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ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARDJUN 19 2012
APPLICATION FOR PERMIT

TH FACILITIES &
SECTION |. iIDENTIFICATION, GENERAL INFORMATION, AND CERTIFIC S REVIEW BOARD
This Section must be completed for all projects.

Facility/Project Identification

Facility Name: U.S. Renal Care Plainfield Dialysis

Street Address: 13717 U.S. Route 30, Units 111, 111-B, 113 and 113-B

City and Zip Code: Plainfield, 60544

County: Will County Health Service Area 9 Health Planning Area: 9

Applicant /Co-Applicant Identification
[Provide for each co-applicant frefer to Part 1130.220].

Exact Legal Name: USRC Plainfield, LLC

Address: 2400 Dallas Parkway, Suite 350, Plano, Texas 75093

Name of Registered Agent: CT Corpoeration System

Name of Chief Executive Officer: Stephen Pirri*

CEQ Address: 2400 Dallas Parkway, Suite 350, Plano, Texas 75093

Telephone Number: 214.736.2700

*Staphen Purri acls as President and Manager of this entity,

Type of Ownership of Applicant/Co-Applicant

O MNon-profit Corporation ] Partnership
| For-profit Corporation ] Governmental
x| Limited Liability Company O Sole Proprietorship J Qther

o Corporations and limited liability companies must provide an lllinois certificate of good
standing.

o Partnerships must provide the name of the state in which organized and the name and address of
each partrer specifying whether each is a general or limited partner.
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" APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT—1 IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER HE LAS'I' PAGE OF THE

APPLICATION FORM, & _ . @ &0 sl S0 g [ i 01 !
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Primary Contact
[Person to receive all correspondence or inquiries during the review period)

Name: Edward Clancy

Title: Attorney

Company Name: Ungaretti & Harris LLP

Address: 70 W. Madison, Suite 3500, Chicago, lllinois 60602

Telephone Number: 312.977.4487

E-mail Address: eclancy@uhlaw.com

Fax Number: 312.977.4405

Additional Contact
[Person who is also authorized to discuss the application for permit]

Name: Shawn Moon

Title: Attorney

Company Name; Ungaretti & Harris LLP

Address: 70 W. Madison, Suite 3500, Chicago, lllinois 60602

Telephong Number; 312,977.4342

E-mail Address: skmoon@uhlaw.com

Fax Number: 312.977.4405
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Applicant /Co-Applicant Identification
[Provide for each co-applicant [refer to Part 1130.220].

Exact Legal Name: USRC Alliance, LLC

Address: 2400 Dallas Parkway Suite 350, Plano, Texas 750893
Name of Registered Agent: CT Corporation System

Name of Chief Executive Officer: Stephen Pirri*

CEQ Address: 2400 Dallas Parkway Suite 350, Plano, Texas 75093

Tetephone Number; 214.736.2700

*Stephen Pirri acts as President and Manager of this entity.

Type of Ownership of Applicant/Co-Applicant

O Non-profit Corporation | Partnership
| For-profit Corporation [ Governmental
[x] Limited Liability Company O Sole Proprietorship ] Other

o Corporations and timited liability companies must pravide an illinois certificate of good

standing.
o Pannerships must provide the name of the state in which organized and the name and address of

each partner specifying whether each is a general or limited partner.

{ APPLICATION FORM.




Applicant /Co-Applicant Identification
[Provide for each co-applicant [refer to Part 1130.220].

Exact Legal Name: U.S. Renal Care, Inc.

Address: 2400 Dallas Parkway Suite 350, Plano, Texas 75093
Name of Registered Agent: CT Corporation System

Name of Chief Executive Officer: Stephen Pirri*

CEO Address: 2400 Dallas Parkway Suite 350, Plano, Texas 75093
Telephane Number: 214.736.2700

*Stephen Pird acts as President of this entity.

;zmof Ownership of Applicant/Co-Applicant

O Non-profit Corporation O Partnership
x] For-profit Corporation ] Governmental
O Limited Liability Company 1 Sole Proprietorship O Other

o Corporations and limited liability companies must provide an Illinois certificate of good
standing,

o Partnerships must provide the name of the state in which organized and the name and address of
each partner specifying whether each is a general or limited partner.

'APPLICATION FORM. ¥ i o mlatitoad




ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- May 2010 Edition

Post Permit Contact
[Person to receive all correspondence subsequent to permit issuance-THIS PERSON MUST BE
EMPLOYED BY THE tICENSED HEALTH CARE FACILITY AS DEFINED AT 20 ILCS 3960

Name: Thomas L. Weinberg

Title: Senior Vice President and General Counsel

Company Name: U.8. Renai Care, Inc.

Address: 2400 Dallas Parkway, Suite 350, Plang, Texas 75093

Telephone Number: 214.736.2700
E-mail Address: Tweinberg@usrenalcare.com

Fax Number: 214 736.2701

Site Ownership
[Provide this information for each applicable site]

Exact Legal Name of Site Owner: Dayfield Properties, LLC

Address of Site Owner: 13717 U.S. Route 30, 111-B, Plainfield, lllinois 60544

Street Address or Legal Description of Site:
Proof of ownership or control of the site is to be provided as Attachment 2. Examples of proof of ownership
are property tax statement, tax assessor's documentation, deed, notarized statement of the corporation

attestmg to ownership, an optlon to Iease a Ietter of intent to Iease or a lease.

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT-2, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM. g i e s

Operating Identity/Licensee
[Provide this information for each applicable facility, and insert after this page.]

Exact Legal Name: USRC Plainfield, LLC

Address: 2400 Dallas Parkway, Suite 350, Planp, Texas 75083

O Non-profit Corporation ] Partnership
| For-profit Corporation 1 Governmental
x] Limited Liability Company [1 Sole Proprietorship ] Other

o Corporations and limited liability companies must provide an llinois Certificate of Good Standing.

o Partnerships must provide the name of the state in which organized and the name and address of
each partner specifying whether each is a general or limited partner.

o Persons with 5 percent or greater interest in the licensee must be identified with the % of

ownersh:p
R T : 7 — — T
| APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT- 3, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL FTER THE LAST PAGE OF. THE s
APPLICATION FORM. Rars L oy . C sy, o

Organizational Relationships

Provide (for each co-applicant) an organizational chart containing the name and relationship of any
person or entity who is related {as defined in Part 1130.140). If the related person or entity is participating
in the development or funding of the project, describe the interest and the amount and type of any

financial contribution.

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT-4, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LASY PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM. .
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ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- May 2010 Edition

Flood Plain Requirements
|Refer to application instructions. |

Provide documentation that the project complies with the requirements of lllinois Executive Order #2005-5
pertaining to construction activities in special flood hazard areas. As part of the flood plain requirements
please provide a map of the proposed project location showing any identified floodplain areas. Floodplain
maps can be printed at www.FEMA.qov or www.illinoisflocdmaps.orq. This map must be in a
readable format. In addition please provide a statement attesting that the project complies with the
requirements of lllinois Executive Order #2005-5 (hitp:iwww.hisrb.illinois.qov).

T

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT -5, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM. o

Historic Resources Preservation Act Requirements
[Refer to application instructions.]

Provide documentation regarding compliance with the requirements of the Historic Resources
Preservation Act

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT-6, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM. v,

DESCRIPTION OF PROJECT
1. Project Classification

_|Check those applicable - refer to Parl 1110.40 and Part 1120.20(b})]

Part 1120 Applicability or Classification:
Part 1110 Classification: [Check one only.]
Substantive [] Part 1120 Not Applicable

(0 Category A Project
] Non-substantive [(X] Category B Project

O DHS or DVA Project

Page 3




ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- May 2010 Edition

2. Narrative Description

Provide in the space below, a brief narrative description of the project. Explain WHAT is to be done in State Board
defined terms, NOT WHY it is being done. If the project site does NOT have a street address, include a legal
description of the site. Include the rationale regarding the project's clagsification as subsiantive or non-substantive.

USRC Plainfield, LLC {"Applicant’) proposes to establish a thifeen (13} station in-center hemodialysis
facility at 13717 U.S. Route 30, Units 111, 141-B, 113 and 113-B, Plainfield, lllinois 80544 {the "Facility")
located in Health Service Area ("HSA™ 9. The Facility will utitize leased space to be built out by Applicant.
The facility will provide both in-center hemadialysis and peritoneal dialysis for patients with £nd Stage
Renal Disease ("ESRD").

This project is categorized as "substantive” under the lllinois Health Planning Act as it contemplates the
establishment of an in-center hemodialysis facility.

Page 4




ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD

Project Costs and Sources of Funds

APPLICATICN FOR PERMIT- May 2010 Edition

Complete the following table listing all costs {refer to Part 1120.110) associated with the project. When a

project or any component of a project is to be accomplished by lease, donation, gift, or other means, the
fair market or dollar value (refer to Part 1130.140) of the component must be included in the estimated
project cost. If the project contains non-reviewable compaonents that are not related to the provision of
health care, complete the second column of the table below. Note, the use and sources of funds must

equal.

Project Costs and Sources of Funds

USE OF FUNDS

CLINICAL

NONCLINICAL

TOTAL

Preplanning Costs

Site Survey and Soil Invesligation

Site Preparation

Off Site Work

New Construction Contracts

Modemization Contracts

$714,230

$714,230

Contingencies

Architectural/Engineering Fees

$55,000

$55,000

Consulting and Other Fees

$30,000

$30,000

Movable or Other Equipment {not in construction
contracts)

$82,555

$109,437

$191,992

Bend Issuance Expense (project related)

Net Interest Expense During Construction (project
related}

Fair Market Value of Leased Space or Equipment

$1,643,599

$1,643,599

Other Costs To Be Capitalized

$90,642

$90,542

Acquisition of Building or Other Property {excluding
land}

TOTAL USES OF FUNDS

$2,615,826

$109,437

$2,725,363

SOURCE OF FUNDS

CLINICAL

NONCLINICAL

TOTAL

Cash and Securilies

$972,327

$109,437

$1,081,764

Pledges

Gifts and Bequests

Bond Issues (project related)

Mortgages

Leases (fair market value)

$1,643,599

$1,643,599

Governmental Appropriations

Grants

Other Funds and Sources

TOTAL SOURCES OF FUNDS

$2,615,926

$109,437

$2,725,363

NOTE: ITEMIZATION OF EACH LINE ITEM MUST BE PROVIDED AT ATTACHMENT-7, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER

THE LAST PAGE OF THE APPLICATION FORN.
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ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERYICES REVIEW BOARD APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- May 2010 Edition

Related Project Costs
Provide the following information, as applicable, with respect to any land related to the project that

will be or has been acquired during the last two calendar years:

Land acquisition is related to project []Yes (m No
Purchase Price:  §
Fair Market Value: $

The project involves the establishment of a new facility or a new category of service
(m] Yes ] No

If yes, provide the dollar amount of all non-capitalized operating start-up costs (including
operating deficits) through the first full fiscal year when the project achieves or exceeds the target
utilization specified in Part 1100.

Estimated start-up costs and operating deficit cost is $ (377,094)

Project Status and Completion Schedules
Indicate the stage of the project’s architectural drawings:

@] None or not applicable L] Preliminary

[ 1 Schematics [ 1 Final Working
Anticipated project completion date {refer to Part 1130.140): April 1, 2013

Indicate the following with respect to project expenditures or to obligation (refer to Part
1130.140):

[_] Purchase orders, leases or contracts pertaining to the project have been executed.
[[] Project obligation is contingent upon permit issuance. Provide a copy of the
contingent “cerification of obligation” document, highlighting any language related to
CON Contingencies

[§] Project obllgatlon will occur after permrt |ssuance

" APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT-& N NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE‘OF THE =
APPLICATION FORM, ek

State Agency Submittals
Are the following submittals up to date as applicable:
N/A[] Cancer Registry

N/A[] APORS
N/A[] Al formal document requests such as IDPH Questionnaires and Annual Bed Reports been

submitted

N/A[] Al reports regarding outstanding permits
Failure to be up to date with these requirements will result in the application for permit being

deemed incomplete.
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ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD

Cost Space Requirements

APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- May 2010 Edition

Provide in the following format, the department/area DGSF or the building/area BGSF and cost. The type
of gross square footage, either DGSF or BGSF, must be identified. The sum of the depariment costs
MUST equal the total estimated project costs. Indicate if any space is being reallocated for a different
purpose. Include outside wall measurements plus the department's or area's portion of the surrounding
circulation space. Explain the use of any vacated space.

Gross Square Feet

Amount of Proposed Total Gross Square Feet

That Is:

Dept. / Area

Cost

Existing | Proposed

New
Const,

Modernized

Asls

Vacated
Space

REVIEWABLE

Medical Surgical

Intensive Care

Diagnostic
Radiology

MRI

Totat Clinical

NON
REVIEWABLE

Administrative

Parking

Gift Shop

Total Non-clinical

TOTAL

APPEND DQCIUIMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT-9, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE

APPLICATION FORM,
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ILLINCIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- May 2010 Edition

Facility Bed Capacity and Utilization |Not Applicable

Complete the following chan, as applicable. Complete a separate chart for each facility that is a part of
the project and insert following this page. Provide the existing bed ¢apacity and utilization data for the
latest Calendar Year for which the data are available. include observation days in the patient day
totals for each bed service. Any bed capacity discrepancy from the Inventory will result in the
application being deemeg incomplete,

FACILITY NAME: CITY:

REPORTING PERIOD DATES: From: to:

Category of Service Authorized Admissions | Patient Days | Bed Proposed
Beds Changes Beds

Medical/Surgical

Obstetrics

Pediatrics

Intensive Care

Comprehensive Physical
Rehabilitation

Acute/Chronic Mental liiness

Neonatal Intensive Care

General Long Term Care

Specialized Long Term Care

Long Term Acute Care

Other ({identify)

TOTALS:
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ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- May 2010 Edition

CERTIFICATION

The application must be signed by the authorized representative(s) of the applicant entity. The
autharized representative(s) are:

o in the case of a corporation, any two of its officers or members of its Board of Directors;

o in the case of a limited liability company, any two of its managers or members (or the sole
manger or member when two or more managers or members do not exist);

o in the case of a partnership, two of its general partners {or the sole general partner, when two or
more general partners do not exist),

o inthe case of estates and trusts, two of its beneficiaries (or the sole beneficiary when two or more
beneficiaries do not exist); and

o inthe case of a sale proprietor, the individual that is the proprietar.

This Application for Permit is filed on the behalf of U.S. Renal Care, Inc.
in accordance with the requirements and procedures of the lllinois Health Facilities Planning Act.
The undersigned certifies that he or she has the authority to execute and file this application for
permit on behalf of the applicant entity. The undersigned further certifies that the data and
information provided herein, and appended hereto, are complete and correct to the best of his or
her knowledge and belief. The undersigned aiso certifies that the permit application fee required
for this application is sent herewith or will be paid upon request.

2z Sl [

SIGNATURE & | SIGNATURE |
Thomas L. Weinberg Stephen M. Pirri
PRINTED NAME PRINTED NAME
Senior Vice President & General Counsel President
PRINTED TITLE PRINTED TITLE
Notarization: Notarization:
Subscribed and sworn to before me Subscribed and sworn to before me
this 12th day of _June this 12th day of June
% J{UW mmm,,,, ﬁ/@&‘k"w
f Not: Signature of Nota
Signature of Notary §\ %g"hﬁ}’ l','r ’fz,,” g W“\“mmmm,,
Seal §F s "-, Z Seal Q}\‘\ .LE.TEW %,
EER N3 g7 y 2
*Insert EXACT Ie@ﬁmv@ww}arﬁ z i -
%, SIRES ot & ERA s =
(’ &n...l \\\ = . 4)2_, ?‘:3 > s
() W Z N, LorTEN

%
7

Uy 227,
s 201
istgg S
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ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- May 2010 Edition

CERTIFICATION

The application must be signed by the authorized representative(s) of the applicant entity. The
authorized representative(s) are:

o inthe case of a corporation, any two of its officers or members of its Board of Directors;

o inthe case of a limited liability company, any two of its managers or members (or the sole
manger or member when two or mare managers or members do not exist);

o in the case of a partnership, two of its general partners {or the sole general partner, when two or
more general partners do not exist};

o inthe case of estates and trusts, two of its beneficiaries (or the sole beneficiary when two or more
heneficiaries do not exist); and

o inthe case of a sole proprietor, the individual that is the proprietor.

This Application for Permit is filed on the behalf of USRC Alliance, LLC *
in accordance with the requirements and procedures of the lllinois Health Facilities Planning Act.
The undersigned certifies that he or she has the authority to execute and file this application for
permit on behalf of the applicant entity. The undersigned further certifies that the data and
information provided herein, and appended hereto, are complete and correct to the best of his or
her knowledge and belief. The undersigned also certifies that the permit application fee required
for this application is sent herewith or will be paid upon request.

o b

SIGNATURE 7 - ISIGNATURE
Thomas L. Weinberg Stephen M. Pirri
PRINTED NAME PRINTED NAME
Manager President & Manager
PRINTED TITLE PRINTED TITLE
Notarization: Notarization:
Subscribed and sworn to before me Subscribed and sworn to before me
this_12th day of _June this 12th_ day of _June

“\\\\\Ililimm e
\\\ ' . - ' [T) ..4&)\”
Slgnature of Notary

£ ;
§ =~ ”?' Signature of Ng N t‘};"xﬂ’%ﬁ'
£ "- z & W PG
Seal E i 2 Seal S 2 e 2
R ¥ £ = 7 t =2
=,,'-.,%, ¢§°.-"§ £ § Y
% OF & z 3 HE
“ o & Z L9 S =
*Insert EXACT legal name %4 thit nt. & Z % g & §F
”’”ﬂnnu\\“‘“ "'z, "-é}rPTRES o \\‘*
’ff 2275016 \\"

Dtz
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ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- May 2010 Edition

CERTIFICATION

The application must be signed by the authorized representative(s) of the applicant entity. The
authorized representative(s) are:

o inthe case of a corporation, any two of its officers or members of its Board of Directors;

o inthe case of a limited liability company, any two of its managers or members {or the sole
manger or member when two or more managers or members do not exist);

o inthe case of a partnership, two of its general partners (or the sole general partner, when two or
more general partners do not exist);

o inthe case of estates and trusts, two of its beneficiaries (or the sole beneficiary when twa ar more
beneficiaries do not exist); and

o inthe case of a sole proprietor, the individual that is the proprietor,

This Application for Permit is filed on the behalf of USRC Plainfield, LLC .
in accordance with the requirements and procedures of the lllinois Health Facilities Planning Act.
The undersigned certifies that he or she has the authority to execute and file this application for
permit on behalf of the applicant entity. The undersigned further certifies that the data and
information provided herein, and appended hereto, are complete and correct to the best of his or
her knowledge and belief. The undersigned also certifies that the permit application fee required
for this application is sent herewith or will be paid upon request.

SIGNATURE $IGNATURE 1

Thormas L. Weinbaerg Stephan M. Puri

PRINTED NAME PRINTED NAME

Marager President and Manager

PRINTED TITLE PRINTED TITLE

Notarization; Notarization:

Subscribed and sworn 1o before me Subscribed and sworn to before me
this t2m  day of e this 120 day of tune

Dobboor g, i St

Signature of Notary \\ Signature of Notary oy,
,3\‘\ \: S FUBL/O ’4',,, \.a\\"sT EWAg;. ",
RN . Z N BUE . %
Seal £ Y % Seal SR,
g ¢ : £ F 5 %2
ERRY ¥ 5 = z H
*Insert EXACT legal dht lfta z 3 e £
%, e RN 2 CApote S O§
”:f; oy I‘ﬁ\ /,,’, a“. :.Exg:“t..- s}
mmmun\\“ Yy, 51 @\6\\\‘
\}

"’Hmumm\\
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ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- May 2010 Edition

SECTION Jll - BACKGROUND, PURPOSE OF THE PROJECT, AND ALTERNATIVES -
INFORMATION REQUIREMENTS

This Section is applicable to all projects except those that are solely for discontinuation with no project
costs,

Criterion 1110.230 — Background, Purpose of the Project, and Alternatives

READ THE REVIEW CRITERION and provide the following required information:

BACKGROUND OF APPLICANT

1. A listing of all health care facilities owned or operated by the applicant, including licensing, and certification if
applicable.

2. A certified listing of any adverse acticn taken against any facility owned andfor operated by the applicant
dufing the three years prior te the filing of the application.

3. Authorization permitling HFSRB and DPH access to any documents necessary to verify the information
submitted, including, but not limited to: official records of DPH or other State agencies; the licensing or
cerlification records of other states, when applicable; and the records of nationally recognized accreditation
organizations Failure to provide such authorization shall constitute an abandonment or withdrawal
of the application without any further action by HFSRB,

4, |If, during a given calendar year, an applicant submits more than one application for permit, the
documentation provided with the prior applications may be utilized to {ulfill the infornation requirements of
this critenon. In such instances, the applicant shall attest the information has been previously provided, cite
the project number of the prior application, and certify that no changes have occurred regarding the
information that has been previously provided. The applicant is able to submit amendments to previously
submitted information, as needed, to update and/or clarify data.

T : P
APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT-11, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL’ORDER AFTER THE LAST
PAGE OF THE APPLICATION FORM. EACH ITEM (1-4) MUST BE IDENTIFIED IN ATTACHMENT 11~

PURPOSE OF PROJECT

1. Document that the project will provide health services that improve the health care or well-being of the
market area population to be served,

2. Define the plarning area or market area, or other, per the applicant's definition.

3. identify the existing problems or issues that need to be addressed, as applicable and appropriate for the
project. {See 1110.230(b} for examples of documentation.)

4, Cite the sources of the information provided as documentation.

5. Detail how the project will address or improve the previously referenced issues, as well as the population’s
health status and weli-being.

6. Provide goals with quantified and measurable objectives, with specific timeframes that relate to achieving
the stated geals as appropriate

For projects involving modernization, descrnibe the ¢onditions being upgraded if any. For facility projects, include
statements of age and condition and requlatory citations if any. For equipment being replaced, include repair and
maintenance records.

-

*
&

NOTE: Information regarding the "Purpose of the Project” will be included l%gle State Agency Report

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT-12, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIA[?SORDER AFTER THE LAST
PAGE OF THE APPLICATION FORM. EACH ITEM {1-6) MUST BE IDENTIFIED IN ATTACHMENT 12. -

- i
kS ! b5
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ILLINDIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- May 2010 Edition

ALTERNATIVES
1} Identify ALL of the alternatives to the proposed project:

Alternative options must include;

A) Proposing a project of greater or lesser scope and cost;

B) Pursuing a joint venture or similar arrangement with one or more providers or
entities to meet all or a portion of the project's intended purpeses; developing
alternative settings to meet all or a portion of the project's intended purposes;

C} Utilizing other health care rescurces that are available to serve all or a portion of
the population proposed to be served by the project; and
D) Provide the reasons why the chosen alternative was selected.
2} Documentation shall consist of a comparison of the project to alternative options. The

comparison shall address issues of total costs, patient access, quality and financial
benefits in both the short term {within one to three years after project completion} and long
term. This may vary by project or situation. FOR EVERY ALTERNATIVE IDENTIFIED
THE TOTAL PROJECT COST AND THE REASONS WHY THE ALTERNATIVE WAS
REJECTED MUST BE PROVIDED.

3) The applicant shall provide empiricat evidence, including quantified oulcome data that
verifies improved quality of care, as available.

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT-13, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST
PAGE QF THE APPLICATION FORM.
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ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- May 2010 Edition

SECTION IV - PROJECT SCOPE, UTILIZATION, AND UNFINISHED/SHELL SPACE
Criterion 1110.234 - Project Scope, Utilization, and Unfinished/Shell Space

READ THE REVIEW CRITERION and provide the following information:

SIZE OF PROJECT:

1 Document that the amount of physical space proposed for the proposed project is necessary and not
excessive. This must be a narrative.

2. If the gross square footage exceeds the BGSF/DGSF standards in Appendix B, justify the discrepancy by
documenting one of the following:;

a. Additional space is needed due to the scope of services provided, justified by clinical or operational
needs, as supported by published data or studies;

bh. The existing facility's physical configuration has constraints or impediments and reguires an
architectural design that results in a size exceeding the standards of Appendix B,

¢. The project involves the conversion of existing space that results in excess square footage.

Provide a narrative for any discrepancies from the State Standard. A table must be provided in the
following format with Attachment 14,

SIZE OF PROJECT
DEPARTMENT/SERVICE PROPOSED STATE DIFFERENCE MET
BGSF/DGSF STANDARD STANDARD?
et LIOERAR &+ % o eag T oaieid w
APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT-14, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER _AFTER THE LAST PAGE CF THE

APPLICATION FORM. R s T O

PROJECT SERVICES UTILIZATION:

This criterion is applicable only to projects or portions of projects that involve services, functions or equipment
for which HFSRB has established utilization standards or occupancy targets in 77 [Il. Adm. Code 1100.

Document that in the second year of operation, the annual ufilization of the service or equipment shall meet or exceed the
utilization standards specified in 1110, Appendix B. A narrative of the rationale that supports the projections must be
provided.

A table must be provided in the following format with Attachment 15.

UTILIZATION
DEPT. HISTORICAL PROJECTED STATE MET
SERVICE UTILIZATION UTILIZATION | STANDARD | STANDARD?
(PATIENT DAYS)
(TREATMENTS)
ETC.
YEAR 1
YEAR 2

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT-15, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE.
APPLICATION FORM. :
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ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD

G. Criterio

1.

n 1110.1430 - In-Center Hemodialysis

Applicants proposing to establish, expand andf/or modernize In-Center Hemodialysis
must submit the following information:

Indicate station capacity changes by Service: Indicate # of stations changed by
action(s):

# Existing # Proposed
Category of Service Stations Stations

B3 In-Center Hemodialysis 1 3

READ the applicable review criteria outlined below and submit the required
documentation for the criteria:

APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- May 2010 Editlon

APPLICABLE REVIEW CRITERIA

Establish | Expand

Modernize

1110.1430(b}1)} - Planning Area Need - 77 lll. Adm. Code 1100 X

{fonmula calculation}

1110.1430(b}{2) - Planning Area Need -~ Service to Planning Area X X

Residents

1110.1430(bX3) - Planning Area Need - Service Demand - X

Establishment of Category of Service

1110.1430(b}{4) - Planning Area Need ~ Service Demand - X

Expansion of Existing Category of Service

1410.1430(b)(5) - Planning Area Need - Service Accessibility

1410,1430{c)(1} -

Unnecessary Duplication of Services

1110.1430{c}(2) - Maldistribution

1110.1430(c}3} -

x| x| x| X

Impact of Project an Other Area Providers

1110.1430(d}{1) - Deterivrated Facilities

1110.1430(d}2) - Documentation

1110.1430(d}(3) - Documentation Related to Cited Problems

1110.1430(e} -

Staffing Availability

1110.1430(f} -

Support Services

1110.1430(g) -

Minimum Number of Stations

1110.4430(h) -

Continuity of Care

1110.1430{) -

x| x| x| x| X

Assurances X

X

PAGE OF THE A

PPLICATION FORM.

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT-26, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST

Projects for relocation of a facility from one location in a planning area to another in the

same planning area must address the requirements listed in subsection (a){1) for the
“Establishment of Services or Facilities”, as well as the requirements in Section 1110.130 -

"Discont

inuation” and subsection 1110.1430{i) - “Relocation of Facilities".

Page 26
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The following Sections DO NOT need to be addressed by the applicants or co-applicants responsible for
funding or guaranteeing the funding of the project if the applicant has a bond rating of A- or better from
Fitch’s or Standard and Poor's rating agencies, or A3 or better from Moody's (the rating shall be affirmed
within the latest 18 month period prior to the submittal of the application):

s Section 1120.120 Availability of Funds — Review Criteria
* Section 1120.130 Financial Viability — Review Criteria
« Section 1120.140 Economic Feasibility — Review Criteria, subsection (a}

VIl - 1120.120 - Availability of Funds

The applicant shall docurnent that financial resources shall be available and be equal to or exceed the estimated total
project cost plus any related project costs by providing evidence of sufficient financial resources from the following
sources, as applicable: Indicate the doltar amount to be provided from the following sources:

$1.081,764 a} Cash and Securities - statements {e.g., audited financial statements, letters from financial
1 ' institutions, board resolutions) as to:

1) the amoun of cash and securilies available for the projedt, including the
identification of any security, ils vatue and avgilability of such funds; and

2) interest 10 be earned on depreciation account funds or 1o be eamed on any
assel from the date of applicant's submission through project completion;

b} Pledges = for anficipated pledges, a summary of the anticipated pledges showing anficipated
receipts and discounted value, estimated time lable of gress receipts and related fundraising
expenses, and a discussion of past fundraising experience.

c) Gifls and Bequests — verification of the dollar amouni, identification of any conditiens of use, and
the estimated time able of receipts;

$1,643,599| o) Debt - a statement of the estimated terms and conditions (including the debt time period, variable
or permanent interest rates over the debt time period, and the anticipated repayment schedule) for
any interim and for the permanent financing propesed to fund the project, including:

1) For general abligalior: bonds, preof of passage of the required referendum ar
evidence that the governmental unil has the authority to issue the bonds and
evidence of the dollar amount of the issue, incuding any discounting
anticipated;

2) For revenue bonds, proof of the feasibility of securing the specified amount and
interest rate;

3) For morntgages, a letter from the prospective lender atiesting to the expectation
of making the loan in the amount and time indicated, including the anticipated
interest rate and any conditions associated with the mortgage, such as, but not
limited 10, adjustable interes! rates, balloon payments, etc..

4) For any lease, a copy of the lease, including all the terms and condilions,
including any purchase options, any capital improvernents 12 the properly and
provision of capital equipment;

5) For any option {0 lease, a copy of the option, including all terms and conditions.

(3] Governmental Appraprialions - a capy of the appropriation Act or crdinance accompanied by a
statement of funding availability from an official of the govermmental unit. If funds are to be made
avgilable from subsequent fiscal years, a copy of a resolution or other aclion of the governmental
unit attesting to this intent;

f) Grants - a letter from the granting agency as to the availability of funds in terms of the amount and
time of receipt;
g) All Other Funds and Sources - verification of the amount and type of any other funds that will be

used for the project.

$2,725,363 TOTAL FUNDS AVAILABLE

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT-39, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE'
APPLICATION FORM.
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1X. 1120.130 - Financial Viability

All the applicants and co-applicants shall be identified, specifying their roles in the preoject funding or
guaranteeing the funding {sole responsibility or shared) and percentage of participation in that funding.

Financial Viability Waiver

The applicant is not required to submit financial viability ratios if:

1. Al of the projects capital expenditures are completely funded through internal sources

2. The applicant's current debt financing or projected debt financing is insured or anticipated to be
insured by MBIA {Municipal Bond Insurance Association Inc.) or equivalent

3. The applicant provides a third party surety bond or performance bond letter of credit from an A
rated guarantor.

See Section 1120.130 Financial Waiver for information to be provided

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT-40, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST
PAGE OF THE APPLICATION FORM. -

u Tepe

The applicant or co-applicant that is responsible for funding or guaranteeing funding of the project shall provide
viability ratios for the latest three years for which audited financial statements are available and for the first full
fiscal year at target utilization, but no more than two years following project completion. When the applicant's
facility does not have facility specific financial statements ard the facility is a member of a health care system that
has combined or consclidated financial statements, the system's viability ratios shall be provided. If the health care
system includes one or more hospitals, the system's viability ratios shall be evaluated for conformance with the
applicable hospital standards.

Provide Data for Projects Classified Category A or Category B {Iast ‘three years) Category B
as; Tam N *‘-\“W-':-uc ,@c., o . - .

—— o i | o (Projected) . .

[P S n - R P

Enter Historical and/or Projected.

Years: Ce

Current Ratio
Net Margin Percentage Not Applicable - Applicant qualifies for the financial
viability waiver as all of the project's capital

expenditures are completely funded through internal
Projected Debt Service Coverage sources.

Percent Debt to Total Capitalization

Days Cash on Hand

Cushion Ratio

Provide the methodology and worksheets utilized in determining the ratios detailing the calculation
and applicable line itern amounts from the financial statements. Complete a separate table for each
co-applicant and provide worksheets for each.

2. Variance
Applicants not in compliance with any of the viability ratios shall document that another organization,

public or private, shall assume the legal responsibility fo meet the debt obligations should the
applicani default.

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 41, IN NUMERICAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE ~
APPLICATION FORM. o o :
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X. 1120.140 - Economic Feasibility

This section is applicable to all projects subject to Part 1120.

A. Reasonableness of Financing Arrangements

The applicant shail document the reasonableness of financing arrangements by submitting a
notarized statement signed by an authorized representative that attests to one of the following:

1) That the total estimated project costs and related costs will be funded in total with cash
and eguivalents, including investment securities, unrestricted funds, received pledge
receipts and funded depreciation; or

2) That the total estimated project costs and related costs will be funded in total or in part by
borrowing because:

A} A portion or all of the cash and equivalents must be retained in the baiance sheet
asset accounts in order to maintain a current ratio of at least 2.0 times for
hospitals and 1.5 times for all other facilities; or

B) Borrowing is less costly than the liquidation of existing investments, and the
existing investments being retained may be converted to cash or used to retire
debt within a 60-day period.

B. Conditions of Debt Financing

This criterion is applicable only to projects that involve debt financing. The applicant shali
document that the conditions of debt financing are reasonable by submitting a notanzed statement
signed by an authorized representative that attests to the following, as applicable:

1) That the selected form of debt financing for the project will be at the lowest net cost
available;
2) That the selected form of debt financing will not be at the lowest net cost available, but is

more advantageous due to such terms as prepayment privileges, ne required mortgage,
access to additional indebtedness, term (years), financing costs and other factors;

3) That the project invelves (in total or in part) the leasing of equipment or facilities and that
the expenses incurred with leasing a facility or equipment are less costly than constructing
a new facility or purchasing new equipment.

C. Reasonableness of Project and Related Costs
Read the criterion and provide the following:
1. Identify each department or area impacted by the proposed project and provide a cost

and square footage allocation for new construction andfer medernization using the
following format {insert after this page).

COST AND GROSS SQUARE FEET BY DEPARTMENT OR SERVICE

A B C J D E F G H
Department Total
{list below) Cost/Square Foot Gross Sqg. Ft. Gross 5. F. Const. $ Mod. $ Cost
New Mod. New Circ.> Mod. Circ* (A xC) {BxE) (G+H)

Contingency

TOTALS

" Include the percentage (%) of space for circulation

Page 52
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D. Projected Operating Costs

The applicant shall provide the projected direct annual operating costs (in current dollars per equivalent
patient day or unit of service) for the first full fiscal year at target vtitization but no more than two years
following project completion. Direct cost means the fully aflocated costs of salaries, benefits and supplies
for the service.

E. Total Effect of the Project on Capital Costs

The applicant shall provide the total projected annual capital costs {in current dellars per equivalent
patient day) for the first full fiscal year at target utilization but no more than two years following project
completion.

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT -42. IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM.,

Xl Safety Net Impact Statement

SAFETY NET IMPACT STATEMENT that describes afl of the following must be submitted for ALL SUBSTANTIVE AND
DISCONTINUATION PROJECTS:

1. The project's material impact, if any, on essential safety net services in the community, to the extent that it is feasible for an
applicant to have such knowledge.

2. The project's impact on the ability of another provider or health care system lo cross-subsidize safely net services, if reasonably
known 1o the applicant.

3. How the discantinuation of a facility or senvice might impact the remaining safety nel providers in a given community, if
reasonably known by the applicant.

Safety Not Impact Statements shall also Includa all of the following:

1. For the 3 fisca! years prior to the application, a certification describing the amount of charity care provided by the applicant. The
amount calculated by hespital applicanis shall be in accordance with the reporting requirements fer charity care reporting in the
linois Community Benefits Acl. Non-hospital applicants shall repart charity care, at cost, in accordance with an appropriate
methodology specified by the Board.

2. Forthe 3 fiscal years prior ta the application, a cerification of the amount of care provided to Medicaidpatients. Hospital and non-
hospital applicants shall provide Medicaid information in a manner consistent with the information reperted each year to the (llinois
Department of Public Health regarding “Inpatients and Qutpatients Served by Payor Source” and "Inpatient and Quipatient Net
Revenue by Payor Source” as required by the Board under Section 13 of this Act and published in the Annual Hospital Profile.

3. Any information the applicant believes is directly relevani to safety nel services, including information regarding teaching,
research, and any other service.

A table in the following format must be provided as part of Attachment 43.

Safety Net Informatlon per PA 96-0031
CHARITY CARE
Charity {# of pationts) Year Year Year
Inpatient
CQuipatient
Total
Charity {cost In dellars)
Inpatient
Outpatient
Total
MEDICAID
Medicaid (# of patients| Year Year Year
Inpatient
Quitpatient
Total
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Medicaid (revenus}

Inpatignt

Quipatient

Total

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT-43, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM.

i .

i
H

Xl Charity Care Information

Charity Care information MUST be furnished for ALL projects.

1. All apglicants and co-applicants shal! indicate the amount of charity care for the (atest three audited fiscal years, the cost
of charity care and the ratio of thal charity care cost to nel patien revenue.

2. If the applicant owns or operales one or more facilities, the reporting shall be for each individual facility located in lllinoss. If
charity care costs are reported on a consolidated basis, the applicant shall provide documentation as to the cost of charity
care; the ratio of that charity care to the net patient revenue for the consolidated financia! statement; the allocation of
cherily care costs, and the ratio of charity care cost to net patient revenue for ihe facility under review.

3. If the applicant is not an existing facility, it shalt submit the facilily's projected patient mix by payer source, anticipated
charily care expense and projected ralio of charity care to net patient revenue by the end of its second year of operation.

Charity care” means care provided by a health care facility for which the provider does not expect to receive payment from
the patient or a third-party payer. {20 ILCS 3960/3) Charity Care must he provided at cost.

A table in the following format most be provided for all facilities as part of Attachment 44.

CHARITY CARE
Year Year Year

Net Patient Revenuo

Amourt of Chanty Care (charges)

Cost of Charily Care

" APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT-JM, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTEAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
{ APPLICATION FORM, - .- - " ,
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After paginating the entire, completed application, indicate in the chart below, the page numbers for the
attachments included as part of the project's application for permit:

INDEX OF ATTACHMENTS
ATTACHMENT
NO. PAGES
1 | Applicant/Coapplicant Identification including Certificate of Good 24-27
Standing
2 | Site Ownership 28-42
3 | Persens with 5 percent or greater interest in the licensee must be 43-45
identified with the % of ownership.
4 | Organizational Relationships (Organizational Chart) Certificate of 46
Good Standing Ete.
5 | Flood Plain Requirementis 47-48
6 | Historic Preservation Act Requirements 45-50
7 | Project and Sources of Funds ltemization 51
8 | Obligation Dacument if required N/A
9 | Cost Space Requirements 53
10 | Discontinuation N/A
11 | Background of the Applicant 54-64
12 | Purpose of the Project 65
13 | Alternatives to the Project 66-68
14 | Size of the Project 69
15 | Project Service Utilization 70
16 | Unfinished or Shell Space N/A
17 | Assurances for Unfinished/Shell Space NiA
18 | Master Design Project NiA
18 | Mergers, Consolidations and Acquisitions N/A
Service Specific:
20 | Medical Surgical Pediatrics, Obstetrics, ICU N/A
21 | Comprehensive Physical Rehabilitation N/A
22 | Acute Mental liness N/A
23 | Neonatal Intensive Care N/A
24 | Open Heart Surgery N/A
25 | Cardiac Catheterization N/A
26 | In-Center Hemodialysis 71-145
27 | Non-Hospital Based Ambulatory Surgery N/A
28 | General Long Term Care N/A
29 | Specizlized Long Term Care NiA
30 | Selected Organ Transplantation NiA
31 | Kidney Transplantation N/A
32 | Subacute Care Hospital Medel N/A
33 | Post Surgical Recovery Care Center N/A
34 | Children's Community-Based Health Care Center N/A
35 | Community-Based Residential Rehabilitation Center N/A
36 | Long Term Acute Care Hospital N/A
37 | Clinical Service Areas Other than Categories of Service N/A
38 | Freestanding Emergency Center Medical Services N/A
Financial and Economic Feasibility:
38 | Availability of Funds 146-223
40 | Financial Waiver 224
41 | Financial Viability 225
42 | Economic Feasibility 226-232
43 | Safety Net impact Statement 233-234
44 | Charity Care Information 235
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TYPE OF OWNERSHIP — CERTIFICATE OF GOOD
STANDING
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File Number 6788-501-5

To all to whom these Presents Shall Come, Greeting:

I, Jesse White, Secretary of State of the State of Illinois, do
hereby certify that

U.S. RENAL CARE, INC., INCORPORATED IN DELAWARE AND LICENSED TO
TRANSACT BUSINESS IN THIS STATE ON MAY 17,2011, APPEARS TO HAVE COMPLIED
WITH ALL THE PROVISIONS OF THE BUSINESS CORPORATION ACT OF THIS STATE

RELATING TO THE PAYMENT OF FRANCHISE TAXES, AND AS OF THIS DATE, IS A

FOREIGN CORPORATION IN GOOD STANDING AND AUTHORIZED TO TRANSACT
BUSINESS IN THE STATE OF ILLINOIS.

In Testimony Whereof, 1 hereto set

my hand and cause to be affixed the Great Seal of
the State of Illinois, this 23TH

dayof ~ FEBRUARY  A.D. 2012

S M
Authenticalion #. 1205402196
Authenticate at: hitp/hwww.cyberdriveillinois.com

SECRETARY OF STATE

Attachment 1 25




File Number 0345096-1

To all to whom these Presents Shall Come, Greeting:

I, Jesse White, Secretary of State of the State of Illinois, do
hereby certify that

USRC ALLIANCE, LLC, A DELAWARE LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY HAVING
OBTAINED ADMISSION TO TRANSACT BUSINESS IN ILLINOIS ON FEBRUARY 28§, 2011,
APPEARS TO HAVE COMPLIED WITH ALL PROVISIONS OF THE LIMITED LIABILITY
COMPANY ACT OF THIS STATE, AND AS OF THIS DATE 1S IN GOOD STANDING AS A

FOREIGN LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY ADMITTED TO TRANSACT BUSINESS IN THE
STATE OF ILLINOIS.

In Testimony Whereof, 1 nereto set

my hand and cause to be affixed the Great Seal of
the State of Ilinois, this 23TH

dayof ~ FEBRUARY  AD. 2012

A -'l_ = .‘ L] |J'I:“' y
o T LD et ”
S M
Authenlication #; 1205402166

Authenticate at: hiip/iwww . cyberdriveillinois.com

SECRETARY OF STATE
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File Number 0393052-1

To all to whom these Presents Shall Come, Greeting:

I, Jesse White, Secretary of State of the State of 1llinois, do
hereby certify that

USRC PLAINFIELD, LLC, HAVING ORGANIZED IN THE STATE OF ILLINOIS ON MAY 16,
2012, APPEARS TO HAVE COMPLIED WITH ALL PROVISIONS OF THE LIMITED
LIABILITY COMPANY ACT OF THIS STATE, AND AS OF THIS DATE IS IN GOOD

STANDING AS A DOMESTIC LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY IN THE STATE OF
ILLINOIS.

In Testimony Whereof, I hereto set

my hand and cause to be affixed the Great Seal of
the State of Illinois, this 11TH

day of JUNE AD. 2012

Authentication #: 1218302060 M

Authenticate at; hitp:/iwww.cyberdriveillinols.com

SECRETARY OF STATE

Atlachment 1
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SITE OWNERSHIP - PROOF OF OWNERSHIP
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5001 Spring Valiny Road

[ TRANSWESTERN Dals s 75214

Phone: 214-448.4525
Fax: 214-448-4571

Letter of 1ntent to Lease Space
May 25, 2012

Mr. Mark Batinick

Re/Max Commcercial Consultants
24014 Renwick

Plainfield, 1L 60544

RE: REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL FOR PROPERTY LOCATED AT:
13713 N US ROUTE 30, PLAINFIELD, TL — SMALL BUSINESS PARK (*BUILDING™)
SUITE #TBD (THE “PREMISES™)

Dear Mark:

USRC Plainfield, LLC (“Tenant™} has determined that the above referenced space meets its criteria for a possible clinic
loeation, This propesed location will serve as n medical clinic for the Plainfield arca,

Please reply by providing the requested information in the right column. If you are in agreement with the terms, please
state“Agrecd” in the column to the right

PEMISLES / LEASE Tenant will require approximaicly 6,500 | Address is 13717 US 30, Units 111,
TERM: square feet. Please propose an address, | 111-B, 113, {13-B Plainfield, IL
dedicated suite number and rentable square | 60544 with 6,493 rentable sf,
footage.
Please propose a ten {10} year term with the | $16.50 Net plus $3.50 CAM or $20.00
right to tcrminate &t any time after 60 | Gross. 3% escalator each year on base
months with 120-clays written notice, rent,
BUILDING: 1. Please provide the street address of the | 13717 US 30, Phainfield, IL 60544
Building,
2. Please indicate the total rentable square | Approximately 57,000 sf
foolage of the Building,
OWNERSHIP: Piease pravide the fufl legal name, matling | Dayfield Properties, LL.C (a Delaware
address and social sccurity number/federnl | Corporation)
tax identification number of the legal owner | 13717 US 30, Unit 111-B
of the Building. If the owner is not an [ Plainfield, IL 60544
individual, please describe the type of entily
(e.g. "“an Ohio corperation...”). FEIN - 61-146833

Attachment 2
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RENTAL RATE/
CONCLESSIONS:

Please provide an aggressive, market
sensitive  rate  with  corresponding
concessions on & ten {10) year term, Please
indicate the structure of the rental rate (net,
gross or full service) and all costs and/or
scrvices not included in the rent,

$16.50 Net plus $3.50 CAM or $20.00
Gross, 3% escalator cach yoar on base
rent,

Not included; gas, electric, data

LEASE
COMMFENCEMENT:

i, Landiord must deliver the Premises in
warm  shell  condition  per  muitually
acceptable specs within thity (30) days
from approval for a Certificate of Need
from the State of Illinios.

2. Rent will commence one hundred
twenty (120) days after issnance of a
Certificate of Need by the State of
Hlinois,

Agreed.

Agreed

RENEWAL OPTION:

Plzase propose two (2) consecutive, five (5)
year lease renewal options at fixed rates.

Agreed with 3% escalator caleulated
annually

TENANT
IMPROVEMENT
ALLOWANCE (TENANT
PERFORMS):

1. Landlord shall deliver the Premises in
warm shell condition per Tenani’s specs
which have been [isted in the section below.

2. Please provide a market sensitive Tenant
Improvement Allowance for 2 ten (10) year
term.

3. After delivery of the Premises, Tenant
shall complete all ncoessary tenant
improvements to the Premises pursuant fo a
space plan and specifications to be prepared
by Tenant, approved by Landlord.

4. Tenant shall not be required 1o pay
Landlord any constroction management or
supervisory fee for  any  {enamt
impravements.

Landlord will provide an as-is vanilla
box.

RELOCATION

Landlord will agrec not to relocate Tenant
with (he property.

OK

The Performance Advantage in Real Estate

Attachment 2
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TENANT SPECS:

Tenant will require certain specifications
listed below. If the specificafions are not
part of the base building package, please
elnborate on how the speclfications can
be met.

1. 2" diameter incoming water line brought
to the Premises that is dedicated,
independent, and separately metered,

2. The presence of sewer service with no
less than a 47 line into the premises of
sufficeint invert depth that will allow Tenant
to install foilet fixtures at the farthest
distance from the sewer line.

3,208V 3Phase power panel with 600 amps
with panel inside the Premises.

4. Gas line with separate meter running to
the Premises.

5. HVAC to be insteiled per Tenant’s
engineered specifications.

6. Landlord will provide & smooth and clean
concrete floor.

7. Current asbestos survey.

8. Fully enginecred as built drawings of the
Premises.

9. The subject property shall not be lacated
within'a 100 ysar flood plain.

10. The property shall 1ot be locafed within
150 feet of easement boundaries or selbncks
of hazardous underground locations
including but not limited to liquid butane ot
propane, liquid petroleum or netural gas
transmission lines, high pressure lines, and
not within the easement of high voltage
electrical lincs.

11, Landlord grants ‘Fenant the right to
construct {reight door and a freight drop off
area.

OK to all.

The Performance Advantage in Real Estate
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BASE YHAR/

Please provide a break-down of costs for all

OPERATING EXPENSES: | operating expenses for which Tenant willbe | $3.50 sf CAM includes water,
responsible. parbage, real estate taxes, snow
plowing, landscape and building
maintenance.
SIGNAGE: Please describe building standard signage | 1 sf of wall signage for every linear
rights along with any opportunities for | foot of frontage. Village Ordinance
Building signage and or monument signage. | prevails when any discrepancy. Wall
signage shall include a rmaceway.
Exisiting monument signage js first
come first serve (there are spots
available),
PARKING: Tenant will requirc 3 marked reserved
handicapped spaccs locnted at or near the | QK
entrance of the Premises, 10 marked
reserved visitor spaces loacied near the
enfrance of the Premises, and 20 marked
spaces which witl be located in the Building
parking area.
RIGHT OF FIRST 1. Tenant shall kave a Right of First Refusal | QK.
REFUSUAL: on any adjacent suite(s).
2. Tenant shall have 15 business days from
receipt of written notice frem Landlord 1o 0K
exercise its Right of First Refusal.
3. If Tenant exarcises its Right of First
Refasal, Tenant shalt lease the additional
space for a term that is coterminous with its | OK

Lease for the Premises and at the rental
rate(s) and other Lease terms in effect, with
& pro rated eonstroction allowance.

The Performance Advantage in Reat Estate
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MISCELLANEOUS:

1. Tenant will require the right to allow a
tractor trailer {18 wheeler) to deliver
supplies in the delivery area located behind
or in front of the Building.

2. If an awning doesn’t curremtly exist,
Landlord will allow Tenant, at its own
expense to install an awning at the front of
the Premises for a patient drop ofFf pick up
arog,

oK

Exisitng awning. If not suitable ok
with Tenant installing additiona) with
Landlord approval of design,

ASSIGNMENT OF
LEASE:

Landlord shall provide automatic consent to
an assignment if assignee has a net worth
greater than or equal to assignor.

OK

TERMINATION OPTION:

Tenant shall have the right to terminate the
Lease at any time after the fiflh anniversary
of the rent commencement date by
providing written notice thereof at least 120
days prior to the date of termination.

CK

HOLDOVER:

Tenant shall have the right to heldover for
three (3) months after term expiration at the
same rate as the Jast month of the lease
term. After the third month, the holdover
rate shall increase (o 125% of the rent for
the Jast month of the lzase term.

0K

The Performance Advantage in Real Estate
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HIPPA COMPLIANCE Landlord acknowledges that Tenant is | OK
PROVISION: subject to the provisions of the Health
Insurance Portability apnd Accountability
Act of 1996 and rélated regulations
(“HIPAA™), and that |HIPAA requires
Tenant to ensure ihe safety and
confidentiality of pauem! medical records.
Landlord further ackndwledges that, in
order for Tenant to comply with HIPAA,
Tenant must restrict accéss to the portions
of the Property where patient medical
recards are kept or stered. Landlord hereby
agrees that, notwithstanding the rights
granted to  Landlord; except  when
accompanied by  jan  authorized
representative of Tenant] neither Landlord
nor its employees, agents representatives or
cotitractors shall be permitted to enter those
areas of the Property designated by Tenant
as locations where patient medical records
are kept and/or stored or where such entry is
prohibited by applicable state or federal
health care privacy laws,

|

BROKER / DISCLOSURE: | Both Landlord and Tenant recognize and
acknowledge that the Tenant is represenied | Brokerage commission of $1.00 sf per
by Howard Watkins with Transwestern as | year paid annually.
procwring Broker, in this transaction.
Landlord agrees to pey a procuring
brokerage a commission of $1.25 per square
foot per year.

Nothing contained herein shall be binding on efther parly unless and until actual lease dosuments are fully executed and

exchanged by both parties.
USRC PL%I;FIE;? i
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DAYFIELD PROPERTIES, LLC

By:__
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LEASE AGREEMENT

TERM OF LEASE

BEGINNING ENDING
01/0113 12431122

MONTHLY RENT| DATE OF LEASE

6/12/12
See rent
schedule below
Security Deposit $10,821.67 PURPOSE Dialysis center — Units 111, 111B, 113, 113B (6,493 sf)

** The Additional Rent {CAM) is the minimal amount with the actual amount calculated as provided in Paragraph 38 of the Lease
Agrecment.

RENT CAM TOTAL RENT CAM TOTAL
01401413 - 12/31/13  $8.927.88 + $1.893.79 = $10.821.67 01701418 - t2/31/18 $10,349.86 + $1,.893.79 = $12,243.65
010114 - 12/31/14 $9,195.72 + §1,893.79 = §11,089 .51 010119 -12/31/19 310,660.36 + §1,893.79=§12,554.15
01701715 -12/31/15 $9,471.59 + §1,893.79 =$11.365.38 041701720 - 12/31/20 $£10.980.17 + $1,893.79 = $12,873.96
01/01/16 - 12131716 $9.755.74 + $1.893.79 = §11.649.53 Q101721 - 12/31/20 $11,309.58 + §1,893.79 = $13,203.37
GIAONA7 —12/3i/17 31004841 +81.893.70=1911.942.20 _ 01/01/22 —12/31/22 $11.648.87 + $1.893.79 =513.542.66

X USRC Piainfield, LLC

NAME NAME X Dayficld Properties, LLC

ADDRESS X ADDRESS  x 13717 South US Route 30
Unit 111

cirYy X cry X Plainfield, IL. 60544

In consideration of the mutwal covenants and agrecments herein stated, Lessor hereby leases to Lessec and Lessee hereby leases from

Lessor 1§olely for the above purpose the premises designated above {the “Premises™), together with the appuncnances therelo, for the
ahove Term.

LEASE COVENANTS AND AGREEMENTS

1. RENT, Lessee shall pay l.essor or Lessor's agent as rent {or the Premises the sum stated above, monthly in advance, until
termination of this lease, at Lessor’s address stated above or such other address as Lessor muy designale in writing. Rent is due
onthe first ol the month. Rent will increase at 3% per annum on the anniversary of the commencement of the lease. Rent shati
begin one hundred wenty (120) days aficr issuance of a Certificate of Need by the State of Ulinois.

2. GAS AND ELECTRIC CHARGES, Lessee will pay, in addition 10 the rent above specified, all gas end electric light and
power bills taxed, levied or charged for their unit, on the Premises, (or and during the time for which this lease is gronted and
in case said {or gas. electric light and power shall not be paid when due. Lessor shall have the right to pay the same. which
amounts so paid, wogether with any sums paid by Lessor fo keep the Premises in 2 clean and healthy condition, as herein
specificd, arc declared to be so much additional rent and payable with the installment of rent next due thereafter.

3. SUBLETTING; ASSIGNMENT. The Premises shall not be sublet in whole or in part (0 any person other than Lessce, and
Lessee shall not assign this lease withoul. in each case. the consent in writing of Lessor first had and obtained: Lessor shall
provide automatic consent to an assignment if assignee has a net worth greater than or cqual to assignor, ! Lessee, or any one
or more of the Lessees, if there be more than one. shall make an assignment for the benelit of creditors, or shall be adjudged a
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bankrupt, Lessor may terminate this lcase, and in such event Lessec shall at once pay Lessor a sum of money equal to the entire
amount of rent reserved by this lease for the then unexpired portion of the term hereby created, as liquidated damages.

LESSEE NOT TO MISUSE. Lessce will not permit any unlawful or immorat practice, with or without his knowledge or
consent, to be commitied or carried on in the Premiscs by himself or by any other person. Lessec will not allow the Premises to
be used for any purposc that will increase the rate of insurance thereon, nor for any purpose other than that hercin before
specified. Lessce will not keep or use or permit to be kept or used in or on the Premises or any place contiguous thereto any
flammable fluids or explosives. without the written permission of Lessor first hand and obtained. Lessee will not load floors
beyend the floor load rating prescribed by applicable municipal ordinances. Lessce will not use or allow the use of the
Premises for any purpose whatsoever that will injure the reputation of the Premises or of the buiiding or which they are a part.

CONDITION ON POSSESSION. Lessec has examined and knows the condition of the Premises and has received the same
in good order and repair, and acknowledges that no representations as 10 the condition and repair thercof, and no agrecments or
promises to decorate, alter, repair or improve the premises, have been made by Lessor or his agent prior to or at the execution
of this lease that are not herein expressed.

REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE. lessce shall keep the Premises and appurtenances thereto in a ¢lean, sightly and healthy
condition, and in good repair, all according to the statutes and ordinances in such cases madce and provided, and the directions
of public officers thercunto duly authorized. all a1 his own expense, and shall vield the same back 1o Lessor upon the
termination of this leasc, whether such termination shall occur by expiration of the term, or in any other manner whatsoever, in
the same condition of eleanliness, repair and sightliness as at the date of the execution hereof. loss by fire and reasonable wear
and tear excepted. Lessee shall make all necessary repairs and renewals upon Premises and replace damaged. missing. burnt
out, and broken lamps, globes, glass and fixtures with material of the same size and quality as that broken, damaged, missing,
and burnt out and shatl insure all glass in windows and doors of the Premises at his own expense. 1§, however. the Premises
shall not thus be kept in good repair and in a clean, sightly and healthy condition by Lessee, as aforesaid. Lessor may enter the
same, himself or by his agents. servants or employees, without such entering causing or constituting a termination of this lease
or an interference with the possession of the Premises by Lessee. and Lessor may replace the same in the same condition of
repair, sightliness, healthiness and cleanliness as existed at the date of execution hereof, and Lessee agrecs to pay Lessor. in
addition to the rent hercby rescrved, the expenses of Lessor in thus replacing the Premises in that condition. Lessec shall not
cause or permit any waste, misuse or neglect of the water, or of the water, gas or electric fixtures.

ACCESS TO PREMISES. lcssee shall allow Lesser or any person authorized by Lessor free aceess to the Premises for the
purpose of examining or exhibiting the same, or to make any repairs or alterations thercof which Lessor may see {it to make.
and Lessee will allow Lessor to have placed upon the Premises at all times notices of “For Sale” and *For Rent”, and Lessee will
nol interfere with the same.

Lessor acknowledges that Lessee is subject to the provisions of the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of
1996 and rclated regulations (“HIPAA™), and that HIPAA requires Lessee to ensure the safety and confidentiality of patient
medical records, Lessor further acknowledges that, in order for Tenant to comply with HIPAA, Lessce must restricl access 10
the portions of the Property where patient medical records are kept or stored. Lessor hereby agrees that, notwithstanding the
rights granted to Lessor, excepl when accompanied by an authorized representative of Lessee, neither Lessor nor its employees,
agents, representatives or contractors shall be permitted to enter those areas of the Property designated by Lessee as locations
where patient medical records are kept andfor stored or where such entry is prohibited by applicable statc or federal health care
privacy laws.

NON-LIABILITY OF LESSOR. Dixcept as provided by linois statute, Lessor shall not be liable to Lessec for any damage
or injury to him or his property occasioned by the failure of Lessor to keep the Premises in repair, and shall not be liable for
any injury done or occasioned by wind or by or from any defect of plumbing, electric wiring or of insulation thereof, gas pipes,
witter pipes, or from broken stairs, porches. railings or walks, or from the backing up of any sewer pipe or down-spoul, or from
the bursting. leaking or running of any tank, tub, washsiand. water closet or waste pipe, drain, or any other pipe or tank in,
upan or about the Premiscs or the building of which they are a part it being agreed that said radiators are under the control of
Lessee, nor for any such damage or injury occasioned by water, snow or ice being upon or coming through the roof. skylight,
trap-door, stairs, walks or any other place upon or near the Premises, or otherwise, nor for any such damage or injury done or
occasioned by the falling of any fixlure, plaster or stucco, nor for any damage or injury arising from any act. omission or
negligence of co-tenants or of other persons. occupants of the same building or of adjoining or contiguous buildings or of
owners of adjacent or contiguous property, or of Lessor’s agents or Lessor himself, all claims for any such damage or injury

being hereby expressiy waived by Lessee.
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9. RESTRICTIONS (SIGNS, ALTERATIONS, FIXTURES), Lessee shall not attach, affix or exhibit or permit 1o be
attached, aflixed or exhibited, except by Lessor or his agent, any articles or permanent character ar any sign, attached or
detached, with any writing or printing thercon, to any window, floor, ceiling, door or wall in any place in or about the
Premises, or upon any of the appurienances thereto, without in each casce the written consent of Lessar first had and obtained;
and shall not commit or suffer any wasle in or about said premises; and shall make no changes or alterations in the Premises by
the crection of partitions or the papering of walls, or otherwise, without the consent in writing of Lessor: and in case Lessee
shall affix additiona! locks or bolts on doors or windows. or shall place in the Premises lighting fixtures or any fixtures of any
kind, withoul the conscnt of Lessor first hand and obtained, such locks, bolts and fixtures shall remain  for the benefit of
Lessor, and without expense of removal or maintenance to Lessor. Lessor shall have the privilege of retaining the same if he
desires. If he does not desire to retain the same, he may remove and store the same, and Lessee agrees to pay the expensc of
removal and storage thercof, The provisions of this paragraph shall not however appiy 10 Lessee’s frade fixtures, equipment
and movable furniture,

10. FIRE AND CASUALTY. Incase the Premises shall be rendered untenantable by fire, explosion or other casualty, Lessor
may, at his option. lerminate this lease or repair the Premises within sixty dayvs. [f [.essor does not repair the premises within
said time, or the building containing the premises shall have been wholly destroyed, the term hercby created shall cease and
Lerminate.

11. TERMINATION; HOLDING OVER. Tenanl shall have the right to terminate the lease at any time after the [ifth anniversary
of the rent commencement date by providing written notice thereof at least 120 days prior to the date of termination.
At the termination of the term of this lease, by lapse of time or otherwise, Lessee will yield up immediate possession of the
Premises to Lessor, in good condition and repair. loss by fire and ordinary wear excepted. and will return the keys therefore to
Lessor at the place of payment of rent, Tenant shall have the right 1o holdover for three (3) menths afler term expiration at the
same rate as the last month of the lease term. A fter the third month. the holdover rate shall increase 1o 125% of the rent for the
Yast month of the lease term.
If'L.essce retains possession of the Premiscs or any part thereof after the termination of the term by lapse of time or othenwise,
then Lessor may at its option within thirly days after termination of the term serve written notice upon Lessee that such holding
over constitules either {a)} renewal of this lease for one year, and from year to year therealter. at double the rental (computed on
an annual basis) specified in Section 1, or (b) creation of a month to month tenancy, upon the terms of this lease except at
double the monthly rental specificd in Section [ for the time Lessee remains in possession. 1£ no such written notice is served
then a tenancy at sufferance with rental as siated at (c) shall have been created., Lessee shall also pay 10 Lessor all damages
sustained by Lessor resulting from retention of possession by Lessce. The provisions of this paragraph shall not constitute a
waiver by Lessor of any right of re-entry as hereinaficr set forth; nor shall receipt of any rent or any other act in apparent
affirmance of tenancy operate as a waiver of the right to terminate this lease for a breach of any of the covenants herein.

12. LESSOR’S REMEDIES. |fLessec shall vacate or abandon the Premiscs or permit the same to remain vacant or unoceupied for
a period ol ten days, or in case of the non-payment of the rent reserved hereby, or any part thereof, or of the breach of any
covenant in this iease contained. Lessee’s right to the possession of the Premises thereupon shall terminate with or (to the extent
permitted by law) without any notice or demand whatsoever, and the mere retention of possession thereafier by Lessee shall
constitute a forcible detainer of the Premiscs; and if the Lessor so clects, but not othenwise, and with or without notice of such
election or any notice or demand whatsoever, this lease shali thereupon terminate, and upon the termination or Lessee™s right of
possession, as afore said. whether this lease be lerminated or not. lessee agrees 10 surrender possession of the Premisces
immediately, without the receipt of any demand for rent. notice to quit or demand for possession of the Premises whalsoever, and
hereby grants to Lessar full and tree license to enter into and upon the Premises or any part thereof, to take possession thereof with
or {to the extent permilted by law) without process of law, and 1o expel and to remove Lessee or any other person who may be
occupying the Premises or any part thereof, and Lessor may use such force in and about expelling and removing Lessce and other
persons as may rcasonably be necessary, and Lessor may re-possess himsel{ of the Premiscs as of his former estate, but such entry
of the Premises shall nol constitute a trespass or Torcible entry or detainer, nor shall it cause a forfeiture of rents due by virtue
thereof. nor a waiver of any covenant, agreement or promise in this lease contained. to be performed by Lessee. Lessee hereby
waives all notice ol any eleclion made by Lessor hereunder. demand for rent, notice 1o quit, demand for possession, and any and ail
netices and demand whatsoever, of any and every nature. which may or shall be required by any statute of this state relating to
forcible entry and detainer, or to iandlerd and tenant, or any other statute, or by the common law, during the term of this lease or
any extension thercof. The acceptance of rent. whether in a single instance or repeatediy, after it falls due, or afier knowledge of
any breach hereof by Lessee. or the giving or making of any notice or demand, whether according to any stalutery provision or not,
or any act or serics of acts except an express written waiver, shall not be construed as a waiver of Lessor’s rights to act without
notice or demand or of any other right hereby given Lessor, or as an election not to proceed under the provisions of this 1case,

3

Attachment 2 37




13.

16,

19,

20.

21,

RIGHT TORELET. IfLessce’sright to the possession of the Premises shall be terminated in any way, the Premises, or any part
thereof, may, but need not (except as provided by Illinois statute), be relet by Lessor, for the account and benefit of Lessce, for
such rent and upon such terms and to such person or persons and for such period or periods as may seem fit to the Lessor, but
Lessor shall not be required to accept or receive any tenant offered by Lessee, nor 10 do any acl whalsoever or exercise any
diligence whatsoever, in or about the procuring of any care or diligence by Lcssor in the reletting thereof; and if 2 sufficient sum
shall not be reccived from such reletting to satisly the rent hereby rescrved, after paying the expenses of reletting and collection,
including commissions to agents. and including also expenscs of redecorating. Lessee agrees to pay and satisfy all deficiency; but
the acceptance of a tenant by Lessor, in place of Lessee, shall not operate as a cancellation hereof, nor to release Lessee from the
performance ef any covenant. promise or agreement herein contained, and performance by any substituted tenant by the payment
of rent, or otherwise, shall constitule onlty satisfaction pro 1anto of the obligations of Lessee arising hereunder,

. COSTS AND FEES. Lessee shall pay upon demand all Lessor’s cosls, charges and expenses. including fees of attorneys, agents

and others retaincd by Lessor, incurred in enforcing any of the obligations of Lessee under this lease or in any litigation,
negotiation or transaction in which Lessor shall. without Lesser’s fault. become involved through or on account of this lease.

. LESSOR’S LIEN. Lessor shall have afirst lien upon the intercst of Lessee under this lease, to secure the payment of all monies

due under this lease, which liecn may be foreclosed in equity at any time when money is overdue under this lease; and the Lessor
shall be entitled to name a receiver of said leaschold interest, to be appointed in any such foreclosure proceeding, who shall take
possession of said premises and who may relet the same under the orders of the court appointing him.

REMOVAL OF OTHER LIENS. In event any lien upon Lessor’s title results from any act or neglect of Lessee, and Lessee
fails to remove said lien within 1en days afler Lessor’s notice to do so, Lessor may remove the lien by paying the full amount
thereof or otherwise and withoul any investigation or contest of the validity thereof, and Lessce shall pay Lessor upon request the
amount paid out by Lessor in such behalf. inciuding Lessor’s costs, expenses and counsel fees.

. REMEDIES NOT EXCLUSIVE. The obligation of Lessec to pay the rent reserved hereby during the balance of the term

hereof, or during any extension hereof, shall not be deemed to be waived, released or terminated,-other notice 1o collect. demand
for possession, or notice that the (enancy hereby created will be terminated on the date therein named, the institution of any action
of forcible detainer or ¢jectment or any judgment for possession that may be rendered in such action, er any other act or acis
resulting in the termination of Lessee’s right to possession of the Premiscs. The Eessor may collect and receive any rent dug from
Lessee, and payment or receipt thereof shall not waive or affect any such notice. demand, suit or judgment, or in any manner
whatsoever waive, affect, change, modify or alter any rights or remedies which Lessor may have by virtue hercof,

. NOTICES. Notices may be served on either party, at the respective addresses given at the beginning of this lease, either (a) by

delivering or causing to be delivered a written copy thercof, or (b) by sending a written copy thercof by United States certified or
registered mail. postage prepaid, addressed to [Lessor or Lessee at said respective addresses in which event the notice shall be
deemed to have been served at the time the copy is mailed.

MISCELLANEOUS. (a) Provisions iyped on this lease and afl riders attached to this lease and signed by Lessor and Lessec are
hereby made a part of this lease.

(b) Lessee shall keep and observe such reasonable rules and regulations now or hercafier required by Lessor. which may be
necessary for the proper and orderly care of the building of which the Premises are 2 part.

(c) All covenants. promises, representations and agrecments herein contained shail be binding upen. apply and inure 10 the benefiy
of Lessor and Lessee and their respective heirs, legal representatives. successors and assigns.

{d} The rights and remedics herchy created are cumulative and the use of onc remedy shall not be taken to exclude or waive the
right 1o the use of another.

{e) The words “Lessor” and “Lessee™ wherever used in this leasc shall be construed to mean Lessors or Lessees in all cases where
there is mere than one Lessor or Lessee, and to apply to individuals, male or female. or to firms or corperations. as the same may
be described as Lessor or Lessee herein, and the necessary grammatical changes shall be assumed in each case as though fully
expressed.

SEVERABILITY. 1f any clause, phrase, provision or portion of this lease or the application thercol lo any person or
circumstance shall be invalid. or unenforceable under applicable law, such event shall not affect. impair or render invalid or
unenforceable the remainder of this lease nor any other clause. phrase, provision or portion hercof, ner shall it affect the
application ol any clause, phrase. provision or porticn hercof 1o other persons or circumstances,

INDEMNITY. During the term of'this Lease, Lessce covenants and agrees that he will protect, save and keep the Lessor harmless
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23.

24,

26.

27

28.

29.

30.

3L

32.

33.

34,

and indemnified against and from any penalty. damages or charges imposed for any violation of any laws or ordinances,
occasioned by the neglect of the Lessee or those holding under Lessee against and from any and all loss, cost, damage or expense,
arising out of or from any accident or other occurrence on or about the Premises. causing injury 1o any person or property and will
protect, indemnify and save and keep harmless the Lessor against and from any and all claims and against and from any and all
loss, cost, damage or expense arising out of any failure of Lessee in any respect to comply with and perform all the requirements
and provisions hereof.

. WATER USE. Lessor is furnishing water for the use of toilets and wash sinks for Lessee's normal use. The water furnished w0

1.essee shall not be used by Lessee for any other use other that normal use of said toilets and wash sinks without the prior written
permission of Lessor. For example, water cannot be used for washing or processing of any sort. Lessee will be billed their
proratcd share for water use costs as stated in Clause 38, Lcessor reserves the right to monitor all water uses.

PARKING. Lcssee shail be entiticd 10 5 marked reserved handicapped spaces located at or near the entrance of the Premises, 10
marked reserved visitor spaces located near the entrance of the Premises. and 20 marked spaces located i the building parking
arca. No abandoned, unlicensed, licensed, and junked vehicles shall be left overnight in the parking arcas without permission of
Lcssor, lL.essor reserves the right to tow vehicles iclt overnight on the property without further notification to Lessee, Lessee’s
employces, agents or customers.

MUNICIPAL ORDINANCES. Lessee agrees to abide by any and all Village Of Plainfield Ordinances as they apply to Lessee's
business operations.

. SIGNS AND PICTURES. Nosign, picturc, advertisement or notice shall be displayed, inscribed, psinted or affixed on any part

of (he outside ol the Premises without the prior written permission of Lessor. Any signs. pictures or any other item, which will
be affixed to the outside of the premises, will be attached by a method reasonably described by the Lessor. Lessee shall not allow
anything 1o be resting against any glass on the premises. Any sign, picture, advertisement or nolice on the Premises shall satisfy
the Sign Covenants of the Lessor and Village Of Plainficld’s specifications and ordinances for sign advertising.

SNOW REMOVAL. Lessor will be responsible for plowing the snow in the parking lot and sidewalks after each snowfall.
Lessee will be billed their prorated share for snow removal costs as stated in Clause 38,

DANGEROUS CHEMICALS FLAMMABLE LIQUIDS. Lessce will not kecp or use or permit to be kept or used in or on the
premises any dangerous chemicals, flammable liquids or explosives except that lessee may keep on the premises no more than 5
gallons of flammable tiquid providing it is beld in a scif-closing can(s).

PERMITTED USE OF PREMISES. Lessce will only use the Premises for the purpose stated above,

HVAC AND UTILITIES. Lessor will provide heating and air conditioning equipment for the basic unit for the Premises.
Lessor's MVAC contractor will perform the initial siart up of the HVAC unil. Tcmperatures in the Premises will not be allowed 10
2o below 50 degrees Fahrenheit. Lessee will be responsible for maintenance of HVYAC units, Lessor will replace HVAC filters as
needed and Lessee will be billed their prorated share as staled in Clause 38.

NOTICE TO LESSOR. All known malfunelions of water syslems. gas systems. sewer systems. electrical systems. roofing
systems, and plumbing systems provided by the Lessor must be reported to the Lessor within a reasonable time by Lessee, Lessor
is to make repairs and maintain such systems in a timely manor except as stated in Clause 29.

JANITORIAL SERVICES. Lessee will provide all janitorial work for their basic unit. Lessce will puy their appropriate share of
the common arca maintenance as defined in clause #38.

ANIMALS. No dogs or other animals shall be allowed on the premises.

HOURS OF OPERATION. Lossee shall open and close the Premises as needed tor proper operation of his business. A written
tist of his normal work hours shall be given 10 the Lessor.

ALTERATION OF PREMISES. Any altcration 10 the Premises as a result of business operations of Lessee afier acceptance of
this lease will be paid for by the Lessee. All alterations must be approved by Lessor.  Approved alterations must meet the local
and stale building codes and the appropriate building permits and inspections must be obtained. Telephone service will be
arranged for by Lessee and cable will be strung in conduit only. The hasic conduil shall be provided by the Lessor and the cable
shall be provided by Lessce. T additional conduit and telephone construction is needed such costs will be paid for by the Lessee.
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35.

36.

37

38.

39.

40.

41,

SECURITY. Sccurity as 1o locked Premises is the responsibility of the Lessee. All lock or key repairs and changes on the interior
and exterior doors will be paid for by the Lessee. Initially, four keys will be provided for each entry door to the Premises. All
lighting for the Premiscs as required by the City code for after closing hours will be paid for by the Lessee, provided such
requirements arc caused by Lessec's business operations.

REFUSE CONTAINERS. Refusc containers for private scavenger pickup and refuse remaoval will be the responsibility of the
Lessor. l.essor will meniter those units 10 insure proper sanitary conditions. These containers will be placed only in areas
reasonably designated by the Lessor. Placement of these containers shall not interfere with the business operations of Lessee or
others. Lessee will be paying their share for refuse containers as stated in Clause 38.

HALLWAYS. The haliways and other common areas may not be used for storage, loitering. soliciting. or any other activity that
may unnecessarily block or cause to inconvenience other tenants or that may create a violation in the local fire or building code.

ADDITTONAL RENT., n addition {o the other amounts set forth in this lease, Lessce agrees to pay 10 Lessor as additional rent
Lessee’s prorata share of the Lessor's Real Estate Taxes, [nsurance and Common Area Expenses incurred in gach calendar year or
portion thereof for the Building during the term of this lease. Lessce shal) pay said share based on Lessor’s estimaies, as adjusted
from time to time, in advance monthly with final adjustment for cach year between l.essor and Lessee afler the end of cach
calendar vear. Commencing with the pavment of rent set forth herein Lessee's initial minimum payment under this paragraph shall
be § 1.893.79 per month.  For purpose hereof Real Estate Taxes shall be defined as real estate taxes and special
assessmenis and all other taxes which apply to or are assessed by the State, County or any municipatity or taxing authority in which
the Building is located on Lessor's land at the Properly assessed with respect to any calendar year in which all or a portion of the
term of this leasc falls. Insurance shall be defined as Fire and Extended Coverage Insurance on L.essor's building on the property
and Common Arca Expenses shall be defined as all the Lessor’s costs of operating, maintaining including cleaning and plowing,
insuring (other than Fire and Exiended Coverage), lighting. policing, repairing, restriping and replacing (including appropriate
reserves), the sidewalks. parking areas. maintenance area, landscaping. drives and other common areas at the Building. Lessce's
prorata share shall be based vpon the percentage that the squarce foot area of the premises bears to the total square fool rentable
ares of Lessor's building on the Property which is _11 %. The additienal rent obligation shall commence upon occupancy.
Utilities shall commence upon occupancy.

SUBORDINATION LEASE. This lease is subject and subordinate 1o the lien of any morigage or mortgages (or Trust
indentures) now or hereafier enforced against the land and/or the Building, and to all renewals, modifications, consolidations,
replacements and exiensions thereof, and 1o all advances made or hereafier to be made upon the security thereof. In confirmation
of such subordination. Lessee shall execute such further instruments as shall be requested by Lessor and | essee hereby irrevocable
appaints l.essor as attorney-in-fact for Lessee with full power and authority to execute and deliver in the name of Lessee any such
instrument or insiruments. Lessee covenants and agrees, in the event any proceedings are brought for the foreclosure of any such
mortgage, 1o attorn to the purchaser upon any such foreclosure, upon any such foreclosure sale, and to recognize such purchaser as
the Lessor under this lease or, in the event of the termination. for any reason whatsoever of any such underlying lease above
referred to, that Lessec (at the option of the holder of the reversion under such underlying lease to be evidenced by written notice
of clection to Lessce) witl attorn 10 and recognize such holder as the then Lessor under this lease to the same extent and effect as
the original Lessor hereunder. The Lessee agrees to execule and deliver at any time from time to time, upon the request of the
Lessor or of any such holder. any instrument. which in the sole judgement of Lessor. may be necessary or appropriate in any of
such events to evidence such attomment, Lessee funher waives the provisions of any statue or rule of law, now or hereafter in
elfect, which may give or purport to give LLessee any right or election 10 terminate or otherwise adversely affect this Jease and the
obligation of Lessee hercunder in the event any such foreclosure proceeding 1s brought. and agrees that this lease shall not be
affected in any way whatsocver by any such foreclosure proceeding.

LOST KEYS. Lessor will provide new keys and locks in the event of lost keys for the Lessee’s rental space. Lessee shall pay a
$20.00 fec.

LATE PAYMENT RETURNED CHECK FEES. The time of cach and every payment of rent is ol the essence of the Lease.
The monthly rent set forth above shall be increased by 10% of said monthly rent (or 10% of said rent that remains unpaid if part of
said monthly rent is paid) if paid after the 5th day of such month. Such monthly rent shall increase an additional 10% {or 10% of
the unpaid rent if  part of said monthly rent is paid) on the first day of each subsequent month until such monthly rent is paid in
full. An additional charge of $50.00 shall be added 10 said monthly rent should a check, submited for payment of rent, or other
obligation of Lessee, be returned unpaid by the bank for any rcason. Upon notice to Lessee of a returned check. Lessee agrees to
replace the funds within 24 hours of the notice with certified funds in the form of two certified or cashiers checks. one for the
original cheek amount and one for the returned cheek fee of $50.00.

6
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42,

43,

44,

45,

46,

47.

48.

in addition to the returned check fee, a rent check returned and unpaid constitutes non-payment ef rent and late charges, iff
applicable, will be assessed in addition to the returned check fee.

LIABILITY INSURANCE, Lessee will seeure and maintain general liability insurance designating Lessor as additional insured’s

from a financially responsible insurance company covering the premises and adjacent ways with limits of coverage of no less
than $1,000,000.00. Lessee shall furnish to Lessor customary certificates indicating that said policy of insurance required hercin
has been purchased and paid for by Lessee. Not less than 10 days prior to the expiration of cach policy, a renewal policy or
certificate shall be delivered to the Lessor. and not less than 18 days prior to the date any premium of each policy shall be due and
pavable there shali be delivered to the Lessor evidence of such payment satisfaciory 1o the Lessor. Any such policy shall provide
that same shall not be cancelable with less than 10 days notice to 21l insured’s.

LEASE HOLDER IMPROVEMENTS. Lessor shall deliver the Premises a vanilla box per mutually agrecable spees within
thirty (30) days from approval of a Certificaie of Need from the State of llinois. Lessor shall allow Lessee with prior written
approval of l.essor and al Lessee’s own expense, 1o install an awning at the front of the Premises for a patient drop offfpick up
area.

SECURTIY DEPOSIT, Lesscc has deposited with Lessor a seeurity deposit that is set forth above the performance of each and
cvery convenant and agreement of this Jease. Lessor shall have the right, but nol the obligation, lo apply the security deposit in
wholc or in part in payment of any unpaid rent or other amount due because of an unperformed convenant or agreement by Lessec.
Lessor’s right te possession of the Premises for nonpayment of rent or for any other rcason shall not be affected by the fact that
the Lessor holds securily. [Lessee’s liability is not limited to the amount of the sccurity deposit. On termination of the lease and
full payment of all amounis due and performances of all Lessee’s covenants and agreements, the security deposit or any portion
thereof remaining unapplied shall be returned without interest to the Lessee.

DELIVERIES. Lessce shall be allowed tractor trailer delivery of supplies in the delivery area behind the building.

OPTION TO RENEW. Upon written notice provided by Lessee to Lessor within 90 days prior to the expiration date of this
Leasc and/or any then expiration date of any renewal term hercof, Lessee may renew this Lease for up to two (2) live-year renewal
terms and the basc rent shall increase 3% from the prior year's base rent. All other terms of this Lease shall continue in full force
and effect.

RIGHT OF FIRST REFUSAL. Lessee has the right of first refusal to any adjacent suites. Lessee shall have fifteen (15)
business days from receipt of written notice from Lessor to exercise its Right of First Refusal. 1f L.essee exercises its Right of First
Refusal, Lessee shall lease the additional space for a term that is coterminous wilh its Lease for the Premises and at the rentai
rate(s) and other Lease terms in effect, with a pro rated construction allowance.

WITNESS the hands and scals of the parties hercto, as of the Date of Lease stated Please print or type name(s)
above. below signature(s).
LI:SSEE: LESSOR:
BY: {SEAL) BY: (SEAL)
BY: {SEAL) (SEAL)
ATTEST:
PERSONAL GUARANTEE
On this .20 in consideration of Ten 1ollars {$10.00) and other good and

valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is herby acknowledged. the undersigned Guarantor hereby guarantees the
payment of rent and performance by Lessee, Lessee’s heirs, executors. administrators, successors or assigns of all covenants and
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agreements of the above Lease.

SIGNED: SIGNED:

NAME DATED NAMLE DATED
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ATTACHMENT 3

OPERATING IDENTITY/LICENSEE CERTIFICATE OF
GOOD STANDING

2200280vi
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File Number 0393052-1

To all to whom these Presents Shall Come, Greeting:

I, Jesse White, Secretary of State of the State of Illinois, do
hereby certify that

USRC PLAINFIELD, LLC, HAVING ORGANIZED IN THE STATE OF ILLINOIS ON MAY 16,
2012, APPEARS TO HAVE COMPLIED WITH ALL PROVISIONS OF THE LIMITED
LIABILITY COMPANY ACT OF THIS STATE, AND AS OF THIS DATE IS IN GOOD

STANDING AS A DOMESTIC LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY IN THE STATE OF
ILLINOQIS.

In Testimony Whereof, I hereto set

my hand and cause to be affixed the Great Seal of
the State of Illinois, this 11TH

day of JUNE AD. 2012

AR e
e : Q
) T ”
Authentication # 1216302050 M )%

Authenticate al: htipwww cyberdrivelllinois.com

SECRETARY OF STATE

Attachment 3
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ATTACHMENT 3

PERSONS WITH 5% OR MORE OWNERSHIP INTEREST IN

OPERATING ENTITY
Member Direct/Indirect Ownership Ownership Percentage
Naila [. Ahmed, M.D, Indirect 3%
Aaron Gurfinchel, M.D, Indirect 8%
Teresa Kravets, M.D., Indirect 8%
Sandeep Mchta, M.D. Indirect 8%
Preeti R. Nagarkatte, M.D. Indirect 8%

2200280v1
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ATTACHMENT 4

ORGANIZATIONAL RELATIONSHIPS ~
ORGANIZATIONAL CHART

_
U.S. Renal Care, Inc.

( USRC Alliance, LLC

USRC Plainfield, LLC

U.S. Renal Care
Plainfield Dialysis

2200280v |
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ATTACHMENT 5

FLOOD PLAIN REQUIREMENTS

2200280v1
Attachmenl 5 47




Village of
Plainfield
170771

T 386 N

Proposed Site

ZONE X

ELGIN JOLIET
AND EASTERN
RAILWAY

4
Z ONE o

R
o
Td

inyg

300

NP

APPROXIMATE SCALE

| N -

3] o200 FEET
S

HHMI NATIONAL FLOOD INSURANCE PRocﬂAﬂ
I

p———

FIRM

FLOOD INSURANCE RATE MAP

WILL COUNTY,
ILLINOIS
AND INCORPORATED AREAS

PANEL 38 OF 585

[SEE MAR INDEW FOR PANELS NOT PRINTEG)

CONTANS:
il cosasary RMEER PINL  SEIX
‘ INMIIRRIFATTD AFESS [11e5 ] wy 3

l AL LKL O mm o} ]
L

o ] e COMBMATT MMEER iheed

o
it
b M e Tha Waf HMBER et telte sl be vird
D wiEd oA Farenct aprbcatinsT (e N sbied!

MAP NUMBER
17197C0038 E

EFFECTIVE DATE:
SEPTEMBER 6, 1995

This | an afficlal copy of & porton of the abenve riferenced flood map. it

wa3 pxiractod using F-MIT COn-Line This map doea not refect chenges

or amendments which may have been made subssquent to the dzte an the
title block. For the latesi product [nformetion about Natenal Flood Insurance
Program fload maps chack the FEMA Flood Map Store at www.msc. fermn gov

Aftachment 5

48



ATTACHMENT 6

ILLINOIS HISTORIC PRESERVATION AGENCY LETTER
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Illinois Historic
-.-—- Preservation Agency

" " 1 Old State Capito! Plaza + Springfield, lllinois 62701-1512 « www.illinois-history.gov

Will County

Plainfield
CON - Leasse to Establish a Dialysis Facility
13717 Route 30
IHPA Log #014051612

»
PAX (217} 782-8161

May 31, 2012

Shawn Moon

Ungaretti and Harris - ;
Three First National Plaza

70 W. Madison - Suite 3500

Chicago, IL 60602-4224

Daar Mr. Moon:

This letter is to inform you that we have reviewed the information provided
concerning the referenced preject.

Oour review of the records indicates that no historie, architectural or
archaeological sites exist within the project area.

Please retain this letter in your files as evidence of compliance with Section 4 of
the Illinois State Agency Historie Resources Preservation Act (20 ILCS 3420/1 et.
seq.). This clearance remains in effect for two years from date of igsuance. It
does not pertain to any discovery during construction, nor is it a clearance for
purposes of the Illinois Human Skeletal Remains Protection Act (20 ILCS 3440).

If you have any further questions, please contact me at 217/785-5027.
Sincerely,
Anne E. Haaker

Deputy State Historic
Preservation Officer

A teletypewriter for the speechihearing impaired is available at 217-524-7128. It is not a voice or fax iNRyachment 6 50




ATTACHMENT 7

PROJECT COST/SOURCE OF FUNDS
ITEMIZATION OF COSTS NOT OTHERWISE IDENTIFIED IN THE
PROJECT COST/SOURCE OF FUNDS TABLE

Architect Fees $55,000
Computers & Wiring $48,913
Dialysis Chairs / Scales $20,497
Dialysis Machines $188,166
Building Lease $1,455,433
Leasehold Improvement $714,230
Medical / Biomed Equipment $13,145
Misc $9,582
Office Furniture / Equipment $109,437
Water Treatment $80,960

2200280v 1
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ATTACHMENT 8

OBLIGATION

Obligation will occur after permit issuance

2200280v1
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ATTACHMENT 9

COST SPACE REQUIREMENTS
Gross Square | Amount of Proposed Total Gross Square
Feet Feet That Is:
- New . Vacated
Dept./ Area Cost  |ExistingProposed Const. lModerm:z:ed Asls Space

REVIEWABLE
In-Center gy 725363 0 | 6493 6,493
Hemodialysis
Total Clinical  |$ 2,725.363 0 6,493 6,493
NON
REVIEWABLE
Total Non-
clinical
TOTAL $ 2,725,363 0 6,493 6.493
2200280v1
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ATTACHMENT 11

BACKGROUND OF THE APPLICANT

Please find the attached list of facilities considered "owned or operated” by the Applicant and
certification from the Applicant.

2200280v1
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DCA of Adel, LLC d/b/a U.S. Renal Care
Adel Dialysis

203 Robinson St

Adel GA 31620

(220) 896-4529

EIN: 56-2335380

License No. ESRD001228

Medicare No. 112733

DCA of Ashland, LLC d/b/a U.S. Renal
Care Ashland Dialysis

113 N Washington St

Ashland VA 23005

(804) 752-3444

EIN: 27-0094841

Licensc No. N/A

Medicare No. 492622

DCA of Barnwell, LLLC d/b/a U.S. Renal
Care Barnwell Dialysis

10708 Marlboro Ave

Barnwell SC 29812

(803) 541-7225

ETN: 20-2131118

License No. ERD-0179

Medicare No. 422613

DCA of Calhoun, LLC d/b/a U.S. Renal
Care Calhoun Dialysis

105 Professional P

Calhoun GA 30701

(706) 624-4497

EIN: 20-4119620

License No, ESRD0O01266

Medicare No. 112770

DCA of Camp Hill, LLC d/b/a U.S. Renal
Care Camp Hill Dialysis

158 § 32™ St Suite 19

Camp Hill PA 17011

(717) 731-0506

EIN: 26-1554083

License No. N/A

Medicare No. 392750

DCA of Carliste, Inc. d/b/a U.S. Renal Care
Carlisie Dialysis

101 Noble Blvd Suite 103

Carliste PA 17013

(717) 258-3099

EIN: 23-2869880

License No. N/A

Medicare No. 392627

DCA of Central Valdosta, LL.C d/b/a U.S.
Renal Care Central Valdosta Dialysis

506 N. Patterson St

Valdosta GA 31601

(229) 219-0099

EIN: 58-2617394

License No. ESRD00I 193

Medicare No. 112699

DCA of Chambersburg, Inc. d/b/a U.S.
Renal Care Chambersburg Dialysis
765 54™ Ave, Park 5™ Ave Professional
Center Suite A

Chambersburg PA 17201

(717) 263-9300EIN: 25-1810333
License No. N/A

Medicare No. 392648

DCA of Chesapeake, LL.C d/b/a U.S. Renal
Care Chesapeake Dialysis

305 College Parkway

Arnold MD 21012

(410) 431-5106

EIN: 20-4373428

Licensc No. £2619

Medicare No. 112619

DCA of Chevy Chase, LL.C d/b/a U.S. Renal
Care Chevy Chase Dialysis

3 Bethesda Metro Center Suite B-005
Bethesda, MD 20814

(301) 652-3434

EIN: 75-2978031

License No. £2633

Medicarc No. 21.2633
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DCA of Cincinnati, LLC d/b/a U.S. Renal
Care Mt Healthy Dialysis

7600 Affinity PI

Mt Healthy OH 45231

(513) 931-7900

EIN: 31-1810465

License No, 0684DC

Medicare No. 362655

DCA of Columbus, LLC d/b/a U.S. Renal
Care Columbus Dialysis

2360 Citygate Dr

Columbus OH 43219

(614) 428-4001

EIN: 20-8388926

License No. 0880DC

Medicare No. 362662

DCA of Delaware County, LL.C d/b/a U.S.

Renat Care Delaware County Dialysis
1788 Columbus Pike

Delaware OH 43015

(740) 369-4870

EIN: 20-5799636

License No. 0871DC

Medicare No. 362713

DCA of Eastgate, LLC d/b/a U.S. Renal
Care Eastgate Dialysis

4600 Beechwood Rd Suite 900
Cincinnati OH 45244

(513) 528-3222

EIN: 26-4578574

Licensc No. 0968DC

Medicare No. 362762

DCA of Edgefield, LLC d/b/a U.S. Renal
Care Edgefield Dialysis

306 Main St

Edgeficld SC 29824

(803) 637-3225

EIN: 20-2131213

License No. ERD-0149

Medicare No. 422602

2200280v1

DCA of Fitzgerald, LLC d/b/a U.S. Renal
Care Fitzgerald Dialysis

402 § Grant St

Fitzgerald GA 31750

(229) 409-2221

EIN: 58-2596232

License No. ESRDQO01191

Medicare No. 112698

DCA of Hawkinsville, LLC d/b/a U.S.
Renal Care Hawkinsville Dialysis

292 Industrial Blvd Suite 100
Hawkinsville GA 31036

(478) 892-3008

EIN: 20-8548207

License No. ESRDO01199

Medicare No. | 12707

DCA of Hyattsville, LL.C d/b/a U.S. Renal
Carc Hyattsville Dialysis

4920 LaSalle Road

Hyattsville, MD 20782

(301} 277-0490

EIN: 26-3674421

Licensc No. 2620

Medicare No. 212620

DCA of Kenwood, LLC d/b/a U.S. Renal
Care Kenwood Dialysis

5150 E Galbraith Rd

Cincinnati OH 45236

(513) 791-2698

EIN: 26-4578451

License No. 0956DC

Medicare No. 362759

DCA of Mechanicsburg, LLC d/b/a U.S.
Renal Care Mcchanicsburg Dialysis

120 South Filbert St

Mechanicsburg PA 17053

(717) 790-6080

EIN: 23-3078802

License No. N/A

Medicare No. 392691
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DCA of North Baltimore, LLC d/b/a U.S.

Renal Care North Baltimore Dialysis
2700 N Charles St Suite 102
Baltimore MD 21218
(410)243-4193

EIN: 20-4373297

License No. E2577

Medicare No. 212577

DCA of Norwood, LLC d/b/a U.S. Renal
Care Norwood Dialysis

[721 Tennessee Avc

Cincinnati OH 45229

(513) 242-6733

EIN: 86-1117490

License No. 0773DC

Medicare No. 362681

DCA of Pottstown, LLLLC d/b/a U.S. Renal
Care Pottslown Dialysis

5 S Sunnybrook Rod Suite 500
Pottstown PA 19464

(610) 718-1127

EIN: 47-0924656

License No. N/A

Medicarc No. 392707

DCA of Rockville, LLC d/b/a U.S. Renal
Care Rockville Dialysis

11800 Nebet St

Rockvitle MD 20852

(301) 468-3221

EIN: 06-1707727

License No. E2641

Medicare No. 212641

DCA of Royston, LLC d/b/a U.S. Renal
Care Royston Dialysis

011 Cook St

Royston GA 30662

(706) 2345-0817

EIN: 20-0546217

License No. ESRD00OI 105

Medicare No. 112719

2200280v1

DCA of SO GA, LLC d/b/a U.S. Renal Care
South Georgia Dialysis

3564 N Crossing Cir

Valdosta GA 31602

(229) 249-3222

EIN: 22-3715287

License No. ESRDOO1180

Medicare No. (12688

DCA of South Aiken, L1.C d/b/a 1J.S. Renal
Care South Aiken Dialysis

169 Crepe Myrtle Dr

Aiken SC 29803

EIN: 20-2130991

License No. ERD-0156

Medicare No. 422604

DCA of Toledo, LLC d/b/a U.S. Renal Care
Bowling Green Dialysis

1037 Conneaut Ave Suite 101

Bowling Green OH 43402

(419) 353-1080

EIN: 34-1933418

License No., 0631DC

Medicare No. 362630

DCA of Vineland, LLC d/b/a U.S. Renal
Care Vineland Dialysis

1450 East Chestnut Ave Bldg 2 Suite C
Vineland NJ 08361

(856) 692-9060

EIN: 52-2180919

License No. 22278

Medicare No. 312551

DCA of Warsaw, LLC d/b/a U.S. Renal
Care Warsaw Dialysis

4709 Richmond Rd

Warsaw VA 22572

(804) 333-4444

EIN: 13-4226110

License No. N/A

Medicare No. 492627
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DCA of Welisboro, Inc. d/b/a U.S. Renal
Care Wellsboro Dialysis

223 Tioga St

Wellsboro PA 16901

(570) 724-3188

EIN: 25-1762601

License No. N/A

Medicarc No. 392602

DCA of West Baltimore, LLC d/b/a U S.
Renal Care West Baltimore Dialysis

22 S Athol St

Baltimore MD 21229

(410) 947-3227

EIN: 75-3170570

License No. E2647

Medicare No. 112647

DCA of York, LLC d/b/a U.S. Renal Care
York Dialysis

1975 Kenneth Rd

York PA 174808

(717) 764-8322

EIN: 76-0792137

License No. N/A

Medicare No. 392731

Keystone Kidney Care, Inc d/b/a U.S. Renal
Care Bedford Dialysis

141 Memorial Dr

Everctt PA 15537

(814) 623-2977

EIN: 25-1663054

License No. N/A

Medicare No. 392612

Keystone Kidney Care, Inc d/b/a U.S. Renal
Care Huntingdon Dialysis

820 Bryan St Suite 4

Huntingdon PA 16652

(814) 643-3600

EIN: 25-1663054

License No. N/A

Medicarc No. 392656
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Pine Bluff Dialysis, Inc. d/b/a Kidney
Center of McGehee

610 Holly St

Mc Gehee, AR 71654-2109

(870) 222-6700

EIN: 71-0855258

License No. N/A

Medicare No. 04-2565

Pine Bluff Dialysis, Inc, d/b/a Pine Bluff -
U.S. Renal Care

2800 W 28® Street

Pine Bluff, AR 71603

(870) 534-7400

EIN: 71-0855258

License No. N/A

Medicare No. 04-2564

U.S. Renal Care Boerne, ILLC d/b/a U.S.
Renal Care Boerne Dialysis

1595 South Main Suite 107

Boerne, TX 78006

(830) 816-3030

EIN: 43-2099925

License No. 008371

Medicarec No. 67-2563

U.S. Renal Care Home Therapies, LLC
133 La Concha Ln

Houston, TX 77054-1809

(713) 668-2744

EIN: 32-0223510

License No. 008644

Medicare No. 45-2840

U.S. Renal Care of Northeast Arkansas LLC
d/b/a Paragould - U.S. Renal Care

901 W Kingshighway

Paragould, AR 72450

(870) 215-0187

EIN: 62-1826477

License No. N/A

Medicare No. 04-2562
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USRC Advanced Home Therapies, LLC
396 Remington Blvd Suite 140
Bolingbrook 11. 60440-4311

(630) 495-9356

EIN: 45-1627715

License No. N/A

Medicare No. Pending

USRC Altoona, LLC d/b/a U.S. Renal Care
Altoona Dialysis

118 E Chestnut Ave

Altoona PA 16601

(814) 942-2569

EIN: 27-3164836

License No. N/A

Medicare No. 39-2786

USRC Atascosa County Dialysis, LLC d/b/a
U.S. Renal Care Atascosa County Dialysis
1320 W Oaklawn Rd

SUITE G&H

Pleasanton, TX 78064-4304

(830) 569-3052

EIN; 26-1394783

License No. 008674

Medicare No. 67263 |

USRC Azle, [P d/b/a U.S. Renal Care
Tarrant Dialysis Azle

605 Northwest Parkway Suite |

Azle TX 76020

(817) 406-4331

EIN: 26-4113763

License No. 110026

Medicare No. 672652

USRC Bellaire Dialysis, LL.C d/b/a U.S.
Renal Care Bellaire Dialysis

7243 Bissonnetl Dr Suite A

Houston TX 77074

{713) 988.7200

EIN: 26-1527679

License No. 110013

Medicare No. 67-2657
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USRC Canton, LLC d/b/a U.S. Renal Care
Canton Dialysis

400 Highway 243 Suite 14

Canton TX 75103

(903) 567-2250

EIN: 26-2409182

License No. 008728

Medicare No. 672607

USRC Cheektowaga, Inc, d/b/a U.S. Renal
Care Cheektowaga Dialysis

2875 Union Rd Suite 13 C/D

Cheetowaga NY 14225

(716) 684-0276

EIN: 27-0789903

Medicare No. 33-2686

USRC Clebuine, LP d/b/a U.S. Renal Care
Tarrant Dialysis Cleburne

1206 W Henderson Suite A

Cleburne TX 76033

(817) 641-5530

EIN: 26-3465019

License No, 110025

Medicare No. 672650

USRC College Partnership, LP d/b/a Baylor
College of Medicine - Scott Street Dialysis
6120 Scott Street Ste F

Houston TX 77021

(713) 741-7059

EIN: 20-8317462

License No. 008624

Medicare No. 672605

USRC Dalton, LLC d/b/a U.S. Renal Care
Dalton Dialystis

1009 Professional Blvd

Dalton GA 30720-2506

(706) 278-1070

EIN: 27-3966564

License No. ESRD0O0O1109

Medicare No. 11-2524
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USRC Delta, LP d/b/a U.S. Renal Care
Delta Dialysis

400 East Edinburg Bivd

Elsa, TX 78543

(956) 581-8489

EIN: 56-2584922

License No. 008419

Medicare No. 67-2557

USRC Downtown San Antonio, LLLC d/b/a
U.S. Renal Care Downtown San Antonio
Dialysis

343 W Houston St Ste 209

San Antonio TX 78205

(210) 251-2824

EIN:26-3721871

License No. 110024

Medtcare No. 67-2672

USRC Eagle Pass, LIL.C d/b/a U.S. Renal
Carc Maverick County Dialysis

3420 Amy Street

Eagle Pass, TX 78852

(830) 773-8878

EIN: 56-2533704

License No. 008305

Medicare No. 67-2534

USRC East Ft Worth LP d/b/a U.S. Renal
Carc Tarrant Dialysis East Fort Worth
6450 Brentwood Stair Rd

Fort Worth Texas 76112

(817) 888-3015

EIN: 27-3360902

License No. 110078

Medicare No. Pending

USRC Edinburg, LP d/b/a U.S. Renal Care
Edinburg Dialysis

206 Conquest

Edinburg. TX 78539

(956) 383-8488

EIN: 41-2166757

License No. 008539

Medicare No. 45-2890
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USRC Friendswood Dialysis, LLC d/b/a
U.S. Renal Care Friendswood Dialysis
3324 EFM 528

Friendswood TX 77546

(281) 993-5067

EIN: 26-1527903

License No. 008692

Medicare No., 672624

USRC Gateway Dialysis, LLC d/b/a U.S.
Renal Care Gateway Dialysis

7171 New Hwy 90 West Suite 101

San Antonio, TX 78227

(210) 673-9200

EIN: 26-2064040

License No. 008664

Medicare No. 45-2851

USRC Grove, LL.C d/b/a U.S. Renal Care
Grove Dialysis

1200 NEO Loop Suite B&C

Grove OK 74344

(918) 787-2900

EIN: 27-2194282

License No. N/A

Medicare No. 37-2583

USRC Harlingen, LP d/b/a U.S. Renal Care
Harlingen Dialysis

4302 E. Sesame Drive

Harlingen, TX 78550

(956) 365-4103

EIN: 41-2166755

License No. 008196

Medicare No. 45-2817

USRC Kingwood, LP d/b/a U.S. Renal Care
Kingwood Dialysis

24006 Hwy 59 North

Kingwood TX 77339

(713) 741-7059

ETN: 20-8996067

License No. 008603

Medicare No. 672604
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USRC Laredo South LP d/b/a U.S. Renal
Carc Larcdo South Dialysis

4602 Ben Cha Road

Laredo, TX 78041

(956) 668-8484

EIN: 20-5786850

Licensc No. 008497

Medicare No. 67-2566

UUSRC Laredo, LP d/b/a U.S. Renal Care
Laredo Dialysis

6801 McPherson Road Suaite {07
Laredo, TX 78041

(956) 725-1202

EIN: 41-2166761

License No. 008197

Medicare No. 45-2823

USRC McAllen, LP d/b/a U.S. Renal Care
McAllen Dialysis

1301 East Ridge Road Suite C

McAllen, TX 78503

(956) 668-8484

EIN: 41-2166763

License No. 008198

Medicare No. 45-2820

USRC Medina County Dialysts, LLC d/b/a
U.S. Renal Care Medina County Dialysis
3202 Avenue G

Hondo, TX 78861

(830) 426-3843

EiN: 26-2175292

License No. 007311

Medicare No. 45-2765

USRC Mid Valley Weslaco LP d/b/a U.S.
Renal Care Mid Valley Weslaco Dialysis
1005 South Airport Drive

Weslaco, TX 78596

(956) 581-8489

EIN: 41-2166767

License No. 008429

Medicarc No. 45-2870
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USRC Mineral Wells, LP d/b/a U.S. Renal
Care Tarrant Dialysis Mineral Wells

2611 Highway 180 West

Mineral Wells TX 76067

(940) 468-2704

EIN: 26-4113811

{License No. 10043

Medicare No. 67-2660

USRC Mission, LP d/b/a U.S. Renal Care
Mission Dialysis

1300 S Bryan Rd Suite 107

Mission, TX 78572-6626

(956) 581-8489

EiN: 41-2166764

License No. 110005

Medicare No, 67-2502

USRC Murray County, LLC d/b/a U.S.
Renal Care Murray County Dialysis
108 Hospital Dr

Chatsworth GA 30705-2058

(706) 517-4818

EIN: 27-3989608

L.icense No. ESRD001178

Medicare No. 11-2685

USRC N Richland Hills LP d/b/a U.S. Renal
Carc Tarrant Dialysis North Richland Hills
6455 Hilltop Drive Suite 112

North Richland Hills, TX 76180-6039

(817) 877-3934

EIN: 16-1774637

License No. 008430

Medicare No. 67-2554

USRC Rio Grande LP d/b/a U.S. Renal Care
Rio Grande Dialysis

2787 Pharmacy Road

Rio Grande City, TX 78582

EIN: 41-2166762

(956) 487-2929

EIN: 41-2166762

License No. 008668

Medicarc No. 45-2664
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USRC SA Bandera Road LL.C d/b/a U.S.
Renal Carc Bandara Road Dialysis-

7180 Bandera Road

San Antonio, TX 78238

(210) 403-9493

EIN: 90-0185327

License No. 008087

Medicare No. 45-2893

USRC SA Houston Street, LLC d/b/a U.S.
Renal Care Houston Street Dialysis

2011 East Houston Street Suite 102d

San Antonio, TX 78202

(210) 225-0004

EIN: 34-2011633

License No. 008134

Medicare No. 67-2506

USRC SA Pleasanton Road, LLC d/b/a U S.
Renal Care Plcasanton Road Dialysis

1515 Pleasanton Road

San Antonio, TX 78221

(210) 922-6255

EIN: 20-89688638

License No. 008588

Medicare No. 67-2510

USRC SA Tri County LLC d/b/a U.S. Renal
Care Tri County Dialysis

14832 Main Street

Lytle, TX 78052

(830) 772-5784

EIN: 42-1639878

License No. 008135

Medicare No. 67-2507

USRC San Benito Dialysis Ltd d/b/a U.S.
Renal Care San Benito Dialysis

295 North Sam Houston

San Benito, TX 78586

(956) 668-8484

EIN: 41-2166758

License No. 008215

Medicare No. 67-2514
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USRC SW Ft Worth LP d/b/a U.S. Renal
Care Tarrant Dialysis Southwest Fort Worth

" 5127 OId Granbury Road

Fort Worth, TX 76133-2017
(817) 877-3934

EIN: 16-1774638

License No. 008443
Medicare No. 67-2559

USRC Tarrant LP d/b/a U.S. Renal Care
Tarrant Dialysis Central Fort Worth
4201 East Berry Street Suite 8

Fort Worth, TX 76105

(817) 531-0326

EIN: 87-0746621

License No. 008457

Medicarc No. 45-2799

USRC Tarrant LP d/b/a U.S. Renal Care
Tarrant Dialysis Fort Worth

501 College, Suite 100

Fort Waorth, TX 76104

(817) 877-5907

EIN: 87-0746621

License No. 008467

Medicare No. 45-2579

USRC Tarrant LP d/b/a U.S. Renal Care
Tarrant Dialysis Grand Prairie

1006 North Carrier Parkway

Grand Prairic, TX 75050

(972) 263-7202

EIN: 87-0746621

License No. 008468

Medicare No. 45-2855

USRC Tarrant LP d/b/a U.S. Renal Care
Tarrant Dialysis Mansfield

1800 Hwy 157 North Swite 101
Mansfield. TX 76063-3930

(682) 518-0126

EIN: 87-0746621

License No. (08464

Medicarc No. 45-2896
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USRC Tarrant LP d/b/a U.S. Renal Care
Tarrant Dialysis North Fort Worth

1978 Ephriham Avenue

Fort Worth, TX 76106-6670

(817) 624-7811

EIN: 87-0746621

L.icense No. 008454

Medicare No. 45-2838

USRC Tarrant LP d/b/a U.S. Renal Care
Tarrant Dialysis South Fort Worth
12201 Bear Plaza

Burleson, TX 76028

(817)293-1978

EIN: 87-0746621

License No. 110071

Medicare No. 45-2637

USRC Tarrant, LP d/b/a U.5. Renal Care
Tarrant Dialysis Arlington

203 West Randol Mill Road

Arlington, TX 76011

(817) 275-7787

EIN: 87-0746621

License No. 008463

Medicare No. 45-2580

USRC Tarrant, LP d/b/a U.S. Renal Care
Tarrant Dialysis Tarrant County

501 College, Suite 200

Fort Worth, TX 76104

(817) 877-1515

EIN: 87-0746621

License No. 008466

Medicare No. 45-2656

UUSRC Tonawanda, Inc. d/b/a U.S. Renal
Care Tonawanda Dialysis

3161 Eggert Rd

Tonawanda NY 14150

(716) 832-0159

EIN: 27-0789780

Medicare No. 33-2685
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USRC Valley McAllen LP d/b/a U.S. Renal
Care Valley McAllen Dialysis

2000 S. Cynthia

McAllen, TX 78503

(956) 994-3374

EIN: 41-2166760

License No. 008199

Medicare No. 45-2872

USRC Weatherford LLP d/b/a U.S. Renal
Care Tarrant Dialysis Weatherford

504 Santa Fe Drive

Weatherford, TX 76086-6503

(817) 594-2832

License No. 008567

Medicare No. 67-2543

USRC West FFort Worth Dialysis LP d/b/a
U.S. Renal Care Tarrant Dialysis West Fort
Worth

1704 S Cherry Lane Suite 200

White Settlement, TX 76108-3629

(817) 367-0822

EIN: 26-1527980

License No. 008649

Medicare No. 672637

USRC Westover Hills, LLC d/b/a U.S.
Renal Care Westover Hills Dialysis
11212 State Highway Building Two Suite
100

San Antonio TX 78216

(210) 521-5923

EIN: 27-3170218

License No. 110073

Medicare No. Pending

USRC Williamsville, Inc. d/b/a U.S. Renal
Care Williamsville Dialysis

7964 Transit Rd Suite 8-A

Williamsville NY 14221

(716) 634-1841

EIN: 27-0789979

Medicare No. Pending
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ATTACHMENT 11

BACKGROUND OF THE APPLICANT
USRC Plainfield, LLC

As required by 77 Ill. Admin. Code § 1110.230; I certify that no adverse actions have been
taken against USRC Plainfield, LLC, or any facility owned or operated by the Applicant, by
Medicare, Medicaid, or any State or Federal regulatory authority during the 3 years prior to the
filing of this Certificate of Need application; and

As required by 77 Ill. Admin. Code § 1110.230; 1 authorize the Illinois Health Facilities and
Services Review Board and Illinois Department of Public Health to access information in order
to verify any documentation or information submitted in response to the requirements of this
subsection or to obtain any documentation or information related to this Certificate of Need
application.

e o

Signature /

Thomas L. Weinberg

Printed Name

Manager

Title

ung

12th
Subscribed and sworn to before me this_____ day of , 2012

Aalreont

Signature of Notaxy \\\\““"2?;,

LAY 7
.L\ ‘\\t ..... ‘,
.§‘ c-).-’. \ PUB{/C‘.'I ";
Seal S -b:;?v?‘ " %
R K ¢ i §
RN o?fg.-" N
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* 0
,/,"f; 221 2'“ o
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ATTACHMENT 12

PURPOSE OF THE PROJECT

The purpose of this project is 10 keep dialysis services accessible to a growing ESRD population
tn Will County (HSA 9) and to ensure convenient access to dialysis services within HSA 9. The
market area that U.S. Renal Care Plainfield Dialysis will serve is primarily a five mile radius
around the facility. This facility is needed to accommodate the 54 ESRD patients that Applicant
has identified from this area who will require dialysis services in the 24 months following project
completion (approximately 27 patients annually). Applicant also anticipates that other
physicians will refer ESRD patients for treatment at the proposed facility resulting in utilization
of the facility in excess of the state standard. U.S. Renal Care Plainficld Dialysis will help
alleviate this need by making 13 additional stations available to ESRD patients.

In addition, this increase in ESRD patients is based upon current patient populations and does not
include future patients that present with diagnoses of CKD4 or CKDS5. As such, additional
dialysis stations arc required to meet the needs of these patients. The poal of U.S. Renal Care
Plainfield Dialysis is to keep dialysis access available to this patient population as we continue to
monitor the growth and provide responsible health care planning for this area.

2200280v1
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ATTACHMENT 13

ALTERNATIVES

Alternative Options
1. A project of greater or lesser scope and cost

Projects of greater and lesser scope were considered in the planning stages of this project. The
alternative of a project of lesser scope would not sufficiently meet the ESRD station need
identificd by the Applicant. As indicated in the Purpose of the Project section, Applicant has
identificd 54 pre-ESRD patients that arc anticipated to require dialysis services in the 24 months
following project completion (approximately 27 paticnts annually) and anticipates that other
physicians will also refer ESRD patients to the proposed facility. This increase in ESRD patients
is based upon current patient populations and does not include future patients that may present
with diagnoses of CKD4 or CKD3S. As such, additional dialysis stations are required to meet the
necds of these patients.

2. Pursuing an alternative joint venture or similar arrangement with one or more
providers or entities to meet all or a portion of the project's intended purposes; developing
alternative settings to meet all or a portion of the project's intended purposes

The operating model for this project is consistent with the standard that U.S. Renal Care has
implemented in various states. This model allows U.S. Renal Care to provide the quality patient
care services required by its patients while controlling costs. Pursuing an alternate arrangement
for the provision of these services may negate this proven operating model or otherwise dilute
the benefits realized by patients of U.S. Renal Care.

3. Utilizing other hecalth care resources that are available to serve all or a portion of the
population the Project proposes to serve

Patients who require dialysis treatment are limited in their options to utilize other health care
resources. Due to the high frequency of required treatment (3 treatments per week) and length of
treatment. patients must be able to access conveniently located and effective facilities. For
example, an incremental increase in drive time of 10 minutes would result an annual drive time
increase of 52 hours.

Documentation shall consist of a comparison of the project to alternative options. The
comparison shall address issues of cost, patient access, quality and financial benefits in
hoth the short term (within onc to three years after project completion) and long term.
This may vary by project or situation. (See Attached Comparison Chart)
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Comparison of Project to Alternative Qptions

Proposed Project

Alternative

Cost

Patient Access

Quality

Financial Benefits

Establish U.S.
Renal Care
Plainfield Dialysis

Project of Lesser Scope /
No Project

Cost: $0
Alternative Option
presents less cost to
Applicant but may
result in additional
costs to patients in

the form of travel
time and lack of
access to the desired
provider of dialysis
services.

Alternative Option
results in reduction in
patient access as
ESRD patient
population growth
exceeds Station
growth.

Alternative Option
results in reduction in
quality as ESRD
patient population
growth exceeds Station
growth.

Alternative Option does
not result in greater
financial benefit to any
stakeholders (patients,
the state, Applicant),

Establish U.S.
Renal Care
Plainficld Dialysis

Alternative Joint Venture
or other Arrangement

Cost: = $2,725,363
Alternative Option
would result in the
same or similar total
cost as the proposed
project but distribute
such costs among
different parties.

Alternative Option
would result in the
same increased patient
access as the proposed
project.

Alternative Option
would likely result in
decreased quality as
the provision of care
through such an
arrangement would
represent a deviation
from the proven model
for the delivery of care
established by
Applicant.

Alternative Option does
not result in greater
financial benefit to any
stakeholders (patients,
the state, Applicant).

Establish U.S.
Renal Care
Plainfield Dialysis

Usc Existing Resources

Cost: $0
Alternative Option
presents less cost to
Applicant but may
result in additional
costs to patients in

the form of travel
time and lack of
access to the desired
provider of dialysis
services,

Alternative Option
results in reduction in
patient access as
ESRD patient
population growth
exceeds Station
growth.

Alternative Option
results in reduction in
quality as ESRD
patient population
growth exceeds Station
growth.

Alternative Option does
not result in greater
financial benefit to any
stakeholders (patients,
the state, Applicant).
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The applicant shall provide empirical evidence, including guantificd outcome data, that
verifies improved quality of care, as available.

Applicant maintains high levels of clinical quality for dialysis patients, on a corporate level U.S,
Renal Care has accomplished a three month average patient outcomes of 95% of patients with a
URR >65% and 97% of patients with Kt/V > 1.2 for the period ending March 31, 2012,
Applicant anticipates similar patient outcomes for the proposed project.
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ATTACHMENT 14

SIZE OF THE PROJECT
Size of Project
Department/Service Proposed State Difference Met
BGSF/DGSF Standard Standard?
In-Center Hemodialysts 499 360-520 -21 Yes
dgsf/Station dgsf/Station | dgsf/Station

The amount of physical space for the proposed project is necessary, and not excessive, for the

provision of hemodialysis services.

within the state standard.

2200280v]

The 499 dgsf/station of the proposed project falls well
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ATTACHMENT 15

PROJECT SERVICES UTILIZATION

Uttlization
Historical Proiected
Dept/Service Ultilization/Patient aject State Standard Met Standard?
Utilizalion
Dayvs cte.
in Center 30 palients / o
Year | Hemodiatysis N/A 389% 80% NO
In Center 63 patients / 0
Year 2 Hemodialysis N/A 81% 80% YES

Applicant has identified 631 current patients in the area with diagnoses of CKD3, CKD4 or

CKDs.

Of these paticnts. Applicant estimates that approximately 54 patients will require

dialysis services in the 24 months following project completion (approximately 27 patients
annually). Based on Applicant's experience 10% of CKD 3, 50% of CKD 4 and 80% of CKD 3
will require dialysis services within 3 years. When this project is completed, most all of the
patients Applicant has identified will requirc dialysis services within 2 years following project
Applicant also anticipates that other physicians will refer ESRD patients for
treatment at the proposed facility resulting in utilization of the facility in excess of the state

completion.

standard.

2200280v1
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ATTACHMENT 26

PLANNING AREA NEED

As indicated in the Purpose of the Project section, Applicant has identified 54 pre-ESRD patients
that are anticipated to require dialysis services in the 24 months following project completion (27
patients annually). This increase in ESRD patients is based upon current patient populations and
does not include future pattents that may present with diagnoses of CKD4 or CKD5. As such,
additional dialysis stations are requircd to meet the nceds of these patients.

2200280+ |
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ATTACHMENT 26

PLANNING AREA NEED - SERVICE TO PLANNING
AREA RESIDENTS

USRC Plainfield, LLC proposes 1o establish a thirteen (13} station in-center hemodialysis and
peritoneal dialysis facility at 13717 U.S. Route 30, Plainfield, [llinois 60544. The facility will
utilize leased space to be built out by Applicant. The facility will provide both in-center
hemodialysis and peritoneal dialysis for patients with End Stage Renal Disease (o provide
necessary health care to the residents of Will County and HSA 9, where the proposed project will
be physically located. The market area that U.S. Renal Care Plainfield Dialysis will serve is
primarily a five mile radius around the facility.

2200280v 1
Attachmenl 25 72




ATTACHMENT 26

PLANNING AREA NEED — SERVICE DEMAND —
ESTABLISHMENT OF CATEGORY OF SERVICE

Projected Referrals — Attached in Appendix 1 arc physician referral letters attesting to the
physicians' total number of patients who have received care at existing facilities located in the
area; the number of new pattents located in the area that the physicians referred for in-center
hemodialysis for the most recent year; and an estimated number of patients that the physician
will refer annually to the applicant's facility within a 24-month period afier project completion,
based upon the physicians' practice expericnce.

2200280v|
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ATTACHMENT 26

PLANNING AREA NEED - SERVICE ACCESSIBILITY

The planning arca for the proposed facility possesses several factors which contribute to service
restrictions for paticnts in the area.

Observed ESRD Prevalence Rates in Certain Populations

ESRD differentially affects certain populations at rates higher than other populations. For
example, ESRD prevalence rates are considerably higher among African-American and
Hispanic demographic segments than among non-Hispanic whitc demographic segments. The
African-American ESRD rate has been reported to be 3.6 times that among whites in the
United States’ at 5,205 per million |:’0plulaticm.2 Similarly, peer reviewed academic articles
demonstraic that ESRD prevalence among the Hispanic population, documented at a rate of
2.458 per million population, is materially higher than that of non-Hispanics.® The clinical
literature has noted:

a particularly rapid concomitant increase in the incidence and prevalence of end-
stage renal disease (ESRD) in Hispanics obscrved in the United States during the
last 2 decades. Compared with non-Hispanic whites, the incidence of ESRD in
Hispanics is nearly 2-fold higher. Because of the high frequency of risk factors
for ESRD in US Hispanics (cg, diabetes mellitus), it is anticipated that the
Hispanic ESRD population will continue to undergo substantial growth.

Michael J. Fischer et al., CKD in Hispanics: Baseline Characteristics From the CRIC (Chronic
Renat Insufficiency Cohort) and Hispanic-CRIC Studies, 58(2) Am. J. Kidney Dis. 214, at 214
(2011).

Obviously, if the 2-fold factor for incidence in this study is accurate, it contributes to the need
determination issue, described below, in not taking into account any increased prevalence for
Hispanics when the Hispanic population percentage grows. As a result, communities that
demonstrate a growth in both the absolute number and percentage make-up of populations at
higher risk for ESRD will experience a greater need for ESRD services.

[n addition to ethnic prevalence rates, aging populations have also been associated with higher
prevalence of ESRD. In 2008, populations aged 65 ycars and over experienced ESRD
prevalence raics that were greater than 3.0 times the overall population.® Specifically, the
ESRD prevalence rate for populations aged 65 to 74 years was 5,940.9 per million population
as compared to an overall ESRD prevalence rate of 1,698.6 per million population. Similarly,
the ESRD prevalence rate for populations aged 75 years and greater was 5,266.4 per million

'1).5. Renal Data Service. 2010 Annual Data Report: Volume 2 Allas of End Stage Renal Disease. at 253,

id a1259.

3 1).8. Renal Data Service, 2010 Annual Data Report: Volume 2 Atlas of End Stage Renal Disease, at 255-259; Claudia M. Lora
et al., Chronic Kidney Disease in United Stales Hispanics: A Growing Public Health Problem, 19 Ethnicity & Discase 466, a1 466
(2009). Michael J. Fischer ct al., CKD in Hispanics: Baseline Characteristics From (he CRIC {Chronic Renal Insufftciency
Cohort) and Hispanic-CRIC Studies, 58(2) Am. ). Kidncy Dis. 214, at 214 (2031},

* See U.S. Renal Data Service, 2010 Annual Data Report: Volume 2 Atlas of End Stage Renal Discase, at 258.
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population.’

These differential rates of ESRD prevalence related to both ethnicity and age result in greater
need for ESRD services when populations are composed of greater numbers of individuals who
experience higher rates of ESRD prevalence, as is demonstrated below for HSA 9.

Demographic Profile of HSA 9

The change in the demographic profile of HSA 9 requires additional stations to ensure that
dialysis services are available to area residents. The Need Determination does not sufficiently
take into account the demographic mix of the HSA population and may understate the need for
ESRD stations in the relevant HSA.

Ethnic Profile

The changing ethnic profile of HSA 9 increases the need for ESRD services in this area. As
described above, the prevalence of ESRDD differs between various ethnic groups which will affect
a population's overall ESRD rate as the ethnic mix of the population changes. The communities
comprising HSA 9 have undergone significant changes in the ethnic mix between the years 2000
and 2010. As demonstrated in Table 1 below, HSA 9 has seen a dramatic increase in both the
"Hispanic or Latino” and "Black or African American alone" populations as tabulated using
Census 2000 and 2010 data. Between 2000 and 2010, the "Hispanic or Latino™ and "Black or
African American alone” populations grew by over 80,000 individuals and 30,000 individuals, or
by 153.8% and 44.3%., respectively. As a result of this explosive diversification of HSA 9, the
ethnic profile of this HSA has changed dramatically. In particular, the "Hispanic and Latino"
scgment of the total population has been significant, expanding from 7.8% to 14.4% in HSA 9.
As the populations above suffer from a higher prevalence of ESRD, the increase in such
populations and resulting changing ethnic profile of HSA 9 increases the need for ESRD services
in this area.

Table 1
HSA 9 Population by Race (2000 Census data)
Grundy Kankakec Kendall Wwill Total
County County County County Population
Hispanic or Latino 1,552 4.959 4,086 43,768 54.365
Black or African American alone 71 16,065 718 52,509 69.363
| Total: 37,335 103,833 54,544 502,266 698.178
HSA 9 Population by Race (2010 Census data)
Grundy Kankakee Kendall Will Totu!
County County County County Population
Hispanic or Latino 4,006 10,167 17,898 105,817 137,978
jlack or African American alone 605 17,187 6,585 75.743 100,120
Total: 50,063 113,449 114,736 677,560 G55,808

SU.S. Renal Data Service, 2010 Annual Data Report: Volume 2 Allas of End Stage Renal Disease, Figure 2.12 available ar

www.nsrds.org/201 0fexe/v2_02.2ip.
2200280vi
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HSA 9 Population by Race (2000-2010 Change)

2000 Total 2010 Total

Population % Total Population % Total % Change
Hispanic or Latino 54,365 7.8% 132,978 14.4% 6.6%
Black or African American alone 69.363 9.9% 100,120 10.5% 0.5%
Tatal: 698,178 055,808

The location of the proposed project, Plainfield. currently maintains a "Hispanic or latino”
poputation of 10.7% of the total population. In terms of the demographic make-up of this area,
the Plainfield area has scen a dramatic increase in the population of Hispanic or Latino origin,
increasing 743% from 504 individuals in 2000 to 4,247 individuals in 2010. This incrcase
represents a change from 3.9% of the total Plainfield population in 2000 to 10.7% of the
population in 2010. Similarly, the Plainfield area has secn a dramatic increase in the "Black or
African American alone” population, which has seen an increase of 1,902% from 110 individuals
in 2000 to 2,202 individuals in 2010. This increase represcnts a change from 0.8% of the total
Plainfield population in 2000 to 5.6% of the population in 2010.

Age Profile

The changing age profile of HSA 9 also increases the need for ESRD services in this area. As
discussed above, individuals 65 years of age and over experience prevalence of ESRD at a
greater rate than those under 65 years of age. In HSA 9, this population has grown between 2000
and 2010 and now comprises a greater proportion of the overall population, as demonstrated in
the Table 2 below. In HSA 9, the population 65 years of age and over has grown by 27,543
individuals, representing a growth of 42.7%. The growth in these populations represents a
significant aging of these communities and will result in greater need for ESRD services.

Table 2
HSA 9 Population by Age Group (2000 Census Data)
Grundy Kankakee Kendall S . Total
Age Group Counly County County Will County Population
64 and under 32,928 90,249 49,909 460.656 633,742
Between 65 and 74 2.292 6.996 2474 22,690 34,452
75 and over 2315 6.588 2.161 18.920 29,984
Total Population 37.535 103.833 54.544 502.266 698,178
HSA 9 Population by Aze Group {2010 Census Data)
Grundy Kankakee Kendall O e Total
Age Group County County County Will County Population
64 and under 44,517 08,212 106.354 614,746 863,829
Between 65 and 74 3117 7.952 5.115 36418 52.602
75 and over 2,429 7.285 3,267 26,396 39.377
Total Population 30,063 113,449 114,736 677,560 955,808

Need Determination for the In-Center Hemodialysis Category of Service

The increased ESRD prevalence rate for certain populations and the demographic shift that has
occurred within HSA 9 resulis in an increased demand for ESRD stations above and beyond the
number of stations calculated by the Need Determination for the In-Center Hemodialysis
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Category of Service (the "Need Determination™). The Need Determination, as currently
formulated in 77 1ll. Admin. Code §1100.630, is based on the assumption that at the baseline
time the existing rate of patients expericncing dialysis should determine future need. As such, if
the population of the HSA increases, the need for stations increases proportionately (increased by
a factor of 1.33 in the five year Need Determination). This approach may be reasonable if the
demographic mix at the baseline time and predicted time are identical. But if the demographic
mix changes and prevalence is not identical across population subgroups, it will not account for
the change in mix. As such, variations in the demographic mix may result in increased station
need.

An illustrative example of the effect of demographic mix changes can be provided through an
examination of ESRD station need for incremental populations. As indicated in the following
graphics, if a population increases by 100,000 individuals and the ESRD prevalence rale is
assumed to be 1,699 per million population (representing the Overall Prevalence of ESRD as
reported by the U.S. Renal Data Scrvice), then the resulting station need to accommodate this
population is 28 stations. 1f, however, the ESRD prevalence rate is adjusted to 4.718 per million
population to account for populations with higher prevalence of ESRD (representing a mixed
average of ESRD prevalence in high risk populations as reported by the U.S. Renal Data
Service) then the resulting station nced required to accommodate this incremental 100,000
individuals is 79 stations.

As a result, the failure of the Need Determination to take into account future variations in the
demographic mix and the increased ESRD prevalence rate for certain populations renders the
Need Determination insufficient to determine future need of ESRD stations.

2200280v)
Atlachment 26

T




CHRONIC KIDNEY DiISease IN UNITED STATES HiSPANICS: A GROWING PUBLIC

HEALTH PROBLEM

Hispanics are the fastest growing minarity
group in the United States. The incidence of
crl-stage renal disease (ESRD) in Hispanics is
higher than non-Hispanic Whites and Hispan-
ics with chronic kidney disease (CKD} are at
increased risk for kidney failure, Likely con-
tributing factors to this burden of disease
include diabetes and matabolic syndrome,
bath are common among Hispanics, Access
to health care, quality of care, and barricrs due
o language, health literacy and acculturation
may also play a role. Despite the: importance of
this public health problem, only limited data
exist about Hispanics with CKD. We review
the epidemiology of CKD in US Hispanics,
ilentify the factors that may be responsible for
this growing health problem, and suggest gaps
in our understanding which are: suitable for
future investigation. (Lthn Dis. 2009;19:466—
472]

Key Words: Chronic Kidney Disease, His-
panics, Health Care Disparitics
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INTRODUCTION

Between 2004 and 2005, the num-
ber of Hispanic in the United Srates
grew by 3.6 percent to reach a rotal of
42.7 million {(representing nearly 15%
of the rotal US population), making this
the fastest prowing segment of the
population in the county.! A large
increase has also occurred in the
Hispanic e¢nd stage renal disease
(ESRD) population. According to Unir-
ed States Renal Data System (USRDS),
in 2005, there were 12,000 new cases of
ESRD rreated with dialysis or transplam
in Hispanics, representing an increase of
63% since 1996. Hispanics have an
incidence rate of ESRD which is 1.5
times greater than for non-Hispanics
Whites.? This increase in ESRD cases
not only translates into an increased
burden to our health care system, bun
also emphasizes the importance of better
understanding risk factors for chronic
kidney disease {CKD} in Hispanics. In
this review, we examine the epidemial-
ogy of CKD in US Hispanics, explore
potential reasons for this growing public
health problem, and highlight porenrial
areas for furure research.

METHODS

We performed a qualitative review
of the literature utilizing 2 PubMed
search for the following keywords:
chronic kidney disease, Hispanics, Lati-
nos, end stage renal disease, diabetes,
dialysis, transplantation, and health care
disparitics. In addition, we reviewed
data from the USRDS?? and che Organ
Procurement and Transplantation Net-
work.* For the purpose of this review,
the rerm Hispanic ethnicity refers to all

Fithwicity & Diseare. Yolume 19, Aurumn 2009

James I Lash, MD

Hispanics have an incidence
rate of ESRD which is 1.5
times greater than for non-

Hispanics Whites. 2

persons of Latin American origin living
in the United States, unless indicated
otherwise. Hispanics are culturally,
socioeconemically, and genetically her-
erogeneous and represent a wide variery
of national origins and social classes.® In
terms of ancestry, US Hispanics origi-
nate from three populations: European
sertlers, MNative Americans, and West
Africans. The breakdown for the US
Hispanic population is as follows: 64%
Mexican, 9% Puerto Rican, 3.5%
Salvadoran and 2.7% Dominican.'
The remainder is of Central American,
South American or other Hispanic or
Latino origin.

ErIDEMIOLOGY OF CKD
IN HISPANICS

Glomerular filiration rate (GFR)
estimating equations have been used to
derermine the prevalence of CKD in the
United States. The abbreviated Modifi-
cation of Dier in Renal Disease
{MDRD) equarion has been considered
to be rthe most accurate available
estimating equation for GFR and has
heen used widely in the literature and by
a growing number of clinical laboraro-
ries.® Though the cquation has been
demonstrared 1o have validiry across a
spectrum of different subgroups,” there
are no data regarding its validity in
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Hispanics. This is a relevant concern
because the serum creatinine concentra-
tion, which is used in the MDRD
equation to calculate estimated GIR
(¢GFR), has been demonstrated to differ
by racial/cthnic groups. In an analysis of
serum creatinine levels in the National
Health and Nutrition Examination Sur-
vey (NHANES) {Il, Mexican Americans
had lower mean serum creatinine levels
than non-Hispanic Whites or non-His-
panic Blacks." The reasons for these
differences are unknown. Similarly, a
recent NHANES analysis of serum
cystatin C, a potentially more sensirive
marker of carly kidney dysfunction than
serum creatinine, reported lower levels of
cystarin C in Mexican Americans com-
pared with other racialfethnic groups
studied.” These differences in the distri-
burion of serum creatinine and cystatin
C levels in Hispanics reinforce the
importance of rigarously evaluating the
accaracy of GFR estimating equations in

iermapiee 10
Hispanics.

INCIDENCE AND
PREVALENCE OF CKD
IN HISPANICS

Mild to Moderate CKD
Information regarding earlier stages
of CKD in Hispanics is limited. Several
investigators have reported a higher
prevalence of microalbuminuria in His-
panics compared with non-Hispanic
Whites."'"™"* In contrast to these find-
ings, a recent analysis of NHANES 111
data suggests that the prevalence of
CKD may be lower in Mexican Amer-
icans than in non-Hispanic Whites or
non-Hispanic Blacks. In an analysis of
NHANES HI, moderately decreased
kidney function (eGFR 30-59 mL/min-
ute/1.73 m”) was most prevalent among
non-Hispanic Whites (4.8%) and non-
Hispanic Blacks (3.1%) and least prev-
alent in Mexican Americans (1.0%)."%
Berween WHANES 1988 to 1994 and
1994 o 2004, the prevalence of CKD
rose among Mexican Americans but

CHRONIC KIDNEY DISEASE IN US HISPANICS - Lora et al

continued to be lower than that ob-
served in non-Hispanic Whites and
Blacks."?

These dara are not consistent with
the higher prevalence rates of ESRD in
Hispanics. Cne potential explanation is
that Hispanics have a higher risk of
ESRD because of more rapid progres-
sion of CKD after its onset, rather than
simply a larger pool of individuals with
CKD. The findings could alse be
related to methodological issues related
to the sample size or sampling bias.
Furthermore, as discussed earlier, the
validity of the MDRID equation has not
been established in Hispanics and
utilizing the equation in Hispanics
could be an important potential source
of error. Lastly, NHANES includes only
Mexican Americans and these findings
may not be generalizable te other
Hispanic subgroups.

End Stage Renal Disease (ESRD)

It is well cstablished that Hispanics
have a higher prevalence of ESRD than
non-Hispanic Whites. The increased
prevalence of treated ESRD in Hispan-
ics was first recognized in the 1980s.
Using data from cthe state of Texas,
Mexican Americans were found o have
an excess of ESRD compared with non-
Hispanic Whites with an incidence ratio
of 3."® For diaberic ESRD, Mexican
Americans had an incidence ratio of &
compared with non-Hispanic Whites.
The first srudy at a narional level
analyzed male Hispanics identified in
Medicare ESRD program data files.
Using common Spanish surnames to
identify cases, it was found thar His-
panics developed ESRD at a vounger
age than non-Hispanic Whites; and
berween 1980 and 1990, ESRD inci-
dence rates increased more for Hispan-
ics.'” In 1995, the USRDS began 1o
acquire data regarding Hispanic ethnic-
ity. In 20006, the adjusted incidence rate
for ESRD in Hispanics was 1.5 rimes
higher than for non-Hispanic Whites.”
Furtherrore, becween 1996 and 20053,
the incidence rate for Hispanics in-

Edhmicity & Disease, Yelume 19, Aurumn 2009

Table 1. Leading causes of ESRD
requiring dialysis in Hispanics and
non-Hispanic Whites in 2000%

MNon-
Primary Hispanic
disease Hispanics  Whites
Diabetes 58.8% 38.8%
Hypertension/large
vessel disease 16.2% 23.7%
Clomerulonephritis 91% 9.9%
Eliology uncertain 3.5% 4.0%
Other 12.4% 23.6%

creased by 63%.2 In contrast, Burrows
er al examined wends In age-adjusted
ESRD rates and reporred rhar the age-
adjusted ESRD rate in Hispanics de-
creased by approximately 15%, from
2000 w 2005 (530.2 vs 448.9)."°
However, thete was an overall increase
in the age-adjusted incidence rates in
Hispanics in 2005 as compared with
1995 (448.9 vs 395.0). It is apparent
that a longer period of follow-up time is
needed to berter characterize trends.
The leading causes of ESRD requiring
dialysis in Hispanics and non-Hispanic
Whites are described in Table 1. Dia-
betes accounts for 59% of prevalent
cases of ESRI} in Hispanic compared
with 39% of cases in non-Hispanic
Whites.” Unfortunately, daca regarding
causes of ESRI} by Hispanic subgroup
are not available.

The incidence and severity of diabe-
tes are important factors in the excessive
incidence of diabetic ESRD observed in
Hispanics. The prevalence of diabetes in
Hispanics has been estimated to be
approximarely 1.5 to 3 times that seen
in the non-Hispanic White population
and s incidence is rising.'g Mareover,
Flispanics have been found to have
lower rares of glucose self-monitoring
and poorer glycemic control compared
with non-Hispanic Whites.”® Hispanics
with diabetes may be at incrensed risk to
develop diabetic nephropathy, Mexican
American diabetics in San Antonio,
Texas had a higher prevalence of
proteinuria than non-Hispanie White

diabetics from Wisconsin.”' However,
4
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no such difference was observed in the
San Luis Valley.”” The importance of
non-diabetic CKD in Hispanics is not
completely understood. Though hyper-
tension is less prevalent in Hispanics,
Mexican Americans had the highest rate
of uncontrelled bypertension in
NHANES 1L* Data from Texas and
the USRDS demonstrate a higher
incidence of LSRD due to hypertension
in Hispanics than in non-Hispanic
Whites.'*4

Progression of CKD
in Hispanics

Only limited information s avail-
able regarding progression rates and risk
factors for CKD in Hispanics. In a
multivariable retrospective analysis of a
cohort of 263 type 2 diaberic ESRD
patients, Mexican ethnicity and female
sex were found ro hasten the decline of
renal function.”> A post hoc analysis of
the Reduction of Endpoints in
NIDDM with the Angiotensin 11 An-
ragonist Losartan Srudy (RENAAL)
found that Hispanics had the highest
risk for ESRD compared with Blacks
and Whites.”® However, the majoriry of
Hispanics in this study were from Latin
American countries and therefore, the
findings may not be applicable to US
Hispanics. A recent analysis of patients
enrolled in Kaiser Permanente of
Northern California, a large integrated
healtheare delivery system, has clarified
the risk of ESRD in US Hispanics with
CKI>.? In 39,550 paticats with stage 3
to 4 CKID, Hispanic cthnicity was
associated with almost a rwo-fold in-
creased risk for ESRD when compared
with non-Hispanic Whites. This in-
creased risk was atrenuated to 33% after
adjustment for diabetes, medication use,
and ocher characteristics. Thus, the risk
for progression o ESRD in Hispanics is
only partially explained by diabetes.

Even less is known about progres-
sion rates and risk factors for non-
diaberic CKD in Hispanics. Some
reports suggest that cerrain glomerular
discases may he morc severe and

468

pragress more often in Hispanics than
in non-Hispanic Whites.”*% In a
recent examination of rates of progres-
sion in 128 padients with proliferative
lupus nephritis, Barr et al. found that
Hispanic ethnicity was independently
associated with progression of CKD.»®
Another study examining patients with
lupus found that Texan-Hispanic eth-
nicity was more likely to be associated
with nephritis than Puerto Rican eth-
nicity.”’ This suggests that outcomes
can vary by Hispanic subgroup.

US Hispanics have been poorly
represented in large prospective CKD
studies. The ongoing NIDDK-spon-
sored Hispanic Chronic Renal Insuffi-
ciency Cohore Study (HCRIC) is inves-
tigating risk factors for CKD and
cardiovascular disease (CVD)} progres-
sion in a cohort of 326 Hispanics with
CKD. This study is based at the
University of Illinois at Chicage and is
an ancillary study to the NIDDK-
sponsored CRIC Study.”

Metabolic Syndrome and CKD
Recent analyses of NHANES IH
data found thar merabolic syndrome
affects over 47 million Americans and
that the problem is more pronounced in
Hispanics.?’a’?’é Mexican Americans have
the highest age-adjusted prevalence of
metabolic syndrome (31.9%) compared
with non-Hispanic Whites (23.8%) and
Blacks (21.6%).%® There is now emerg-
ing evidence supporting a relationship
berween merabolic syndrome and
CKD.**?* In a prospective cohort
scudy of Narive Americans wirhour
diaberes, metabolic syndrome was asso-
ciated with an increased risk for devel-
aping CKD.” In non-diabetic subjects
with normal kidney function enrolled in
the Atherasclerosis Risk in Communi-
ties Study (ARIC), investigators found
an adjusted odds ratio of developing
CKD in participants with merabolic
syndrome of 1.43 compared with par-
ticipants who did nor have the syn-
drome.®® These data suggest that met-
abolic syndrome could be an impormnt
factor in the Hispanic CKID population.

Fibnicity ¢ Ditease, Volume 19, Autumn 2009

DISPARITIES IN HEALTH
CARE AND PREVALENCE AND
PROGRESSION OF CKD

The importance of healthcare dis-
parities in CKD has received increased
rccognition“m bur lietle is known re-
garding the impacr of healthcare dispar-
ities on hcalth outcomes in Hispanics
with CKID), Tt is well substanttated that
there are considerable disparities in
health care for I-iislz;anics.20 According
to a report by the Commonwealth
Fund, nearly two-thirds (65%) of
working-age Hispanics with low in-
comes were uninsured for all or pare of
the year in 2000.%" Using NHANES 111
data, Harris evaluated healthcare access
and utilization, and health starus and
outcomes for patients with type 2
diabetes.?® Mexican Americans below
age 65 years had lower rates of heaich
insurance coverage than non-Hispanic
Whites and Blacks (66% vs 91% and
89%, respectively). Furthermore, Mex-
ican Americans with private insurance
or a high school education or more were
more likely to have normoalbumi-
nuriz.?® The quality of care received
by Hispanics may also play a role in the
progression of kidney disease. Hispanics
with diabetes arc less likely to report
having had a foot exam or glycosylated
hemoglobin testing. ™ As noted earlier,
Mexican American in NHANES 11T had
the highest rate of uncontrolled hyper-
tension.”® Lastly, Ifudu ct al reported
that non-Whites, including Hispanics,
are more likely to receive a late referral
to a nephrologist for CKI} manage-
ment,™ This study was limited by the
low number of Hispanics in the analy-
sis. These findings suggest thar qualicy
of care may play a role in the high
prevalence of ESRD in this population,

Patient-centered facrors may play a
particularly important role for Hispan-
ics include language, healch care literacy,
acculturation, social support, and trust
in healthcare providers. Hispanics who
are recent immigrants face a number of
potential barriers to health care, includ-
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ing lack of familiarity with the health-
care system and language barriers,
Spanish-speaking Hispanics arc less
likely to be insured, have access 1o care
and use preventive health services.#1
Trust in the healthcare system is another
important facror because it has heen
found to be significantly related to
adherence.™ Docscher et al found thar
Hispanics reported significantly less
trust in their physician than non-
Hispanic Whites.*¢ Finally, social sup-
port, defined as resources provided by a
nerwork of individuals or social groups,
has heen found 1o have dircer effects on
health status and health service utiliza-
rion.”” There have been no published
studics to date focusing on patient-
centered factors in Hispanics with
CKD. However, it scems reasonable ro

speculate that these factors amplify
CKD and associated CVD risk.

CARDIOVASCULAR DISEASE
IN HispaNics wiTH ESRD
AND EARLIER STAGES

OF CKD

Several studies have found thar
Hispanics may have lower all-cause
and CV mortality rates than non-
Hispanic Whites.***° The term, His-
panic paradox, has been used to describe
the lower than expected mortality rates
despite the increased incidence of dia-
betes and obesity, lower socioeconomic
status, and barriers to health care.® A
number of explanations have been
proposed, including socio-cultural fac-
tors, ethnic misclassification, incom-
plete ascertainment of deaths, and the
healthy migrant effect.>®** 1n the
ESRD pepulation, Hispanics, Blacks,
and Asians have a lower risk of death
than non-Hispanic Whites, regardless of
diabetes status.2%3*% In a recent
analysis of a national, random sample
of hemodialysis patients, Hispanics had
an adjusted 12-month meorality risk
thar was 25% lower than non-Hispanic
Whires.? ‘I'he reasons for the lower

CHRONIC KIDNEY Disease iN US HISPANICS - tora et af

ESRD mortality rates are not complete-
ly understoad, but differences in surviv-
al have been noted among Hispanic
subgroups with Mexican-Americans,
Cuban Americans and Mispanic-other
having an increased survival advantage
compared with Puerto Rican Ameri-
cans.®® These findings suggest that
sociocultural or genetic differences may
play a role in chese lower ESRD
mortality rates and demonstrating the
importance of examining health out-
comes in subgroups of Hispanics.

Less is known regarding CVID risk
and disease in Hispanics with earlier
stages of CKD. An analysis of moruality
rates of adults with CKD in NHANES
found no difference in CVID or all-cause
mortality in Mexican Americans com-
pared with non-Hispanic whites.”” Tn
contrast, Hispanic veterans with diaberic
CKD experienced a lower 18-month
moriality rate than non-Hispanic
Whites.*® Thaugh Hispanics in Kaiser
Permanente of Northern California had
an increased rate of ESRD, Hispanic
ethnicity was associated with 29% lower
adjusted mortality rate and 19% lower
adjusted rate of CVD events as compared
with non-Hispanic Whites, even after
accounting for major cardiovascular risk
factors, comorbidities and use of preven-
tative therapies.”” Again, the reasons for
these differences are not known,

END-STATE RENAL DISEASE
CARE IN US HisPANICS

Dialysis

Analysis of USRDS dara reveals thar
Hispanics are 1.47 rimes more likely
than non-Hispanic Whites 10 have latc
initiation of dialysis.”” At the starr of
dialysis, Hispanics end to have slightly
lower hematocrit levels and are 139 less
tikely to be on erythopoeisis stimulating
agenis compared with non-Hispanic
Whites.®® An analysis of a random
sample of Medicare eligible adults on
hemodialysis in 1997 revealed that,
compared with non-Flispanic Whires,

Ethnicity & Disease, Volume 19, Autumn 2009

Higpanics on hemodialysis are more
fikely 10 be female, younger, and have
diabetes.®' Hispanics tend 1o have
higher albumin fevcls and similar he-
matocrit levels compared o non-His-
panic Whites,>*¢ 162

Little is known about ESRD care in
the United Srate for unaurhorized

immigrants. Of the 11,8 million unau-

‘thorized immigrants in the Unired

Srates, more than 8.46 million are
Hispanic.®” The incidence rare for
ESRD for this pepulation is unknown.
Many of these undocumented aliens do
nat receive systematic care before initi-
ation of dialysis. Fhe quality and
availability of pre-ESRD care for unaw-
thorized immigranes has not been
systematically studied. A small study of
undocumented ESRD patients initiat-
ing dialysis in New York City found
that these patients had higher serum
creatinine concentration and lower
eGFR, higher systolic blood pressure,
and greater costs for the hospitalization
associated with the initiation of dialy-
sis.” However, a limitation of chis study
was that it only included 33 Hispanics.
An important issue regarding the dial-
ysis of unauthorized immigrants is the
compensation for dialysis, which varies
by individual state and may limit the
availabilicy of long-term dialysis for
undocumented aliens who are then
forced to receive dialysis on an emergent
basis onty.®” The cost of care for
undocumented ESRD parients receiving
dialysis on an emergent basis is 3.7
times higher than fer those unautho-
rized immigrants receiving long-rerm
maintenance dialysis.*® End-stage renal
disease in unauthorized immigrants is of
great public health and economic con-
cern and warrants future research and
re-evaluation of current policies.

Transplantation

Limited data exist that suggest chat
Hispanics are equally likely to be
refecred for renal cransplantation bur
are less likely ro progress beyond the
early stages of the transplant evaluation

46
Attachment 26 981




CHRONIC KIDNEY DISEASE IN US HISPANICS - Lora et al

with some of the reasens including
financial concerns, fear of the surgery,
and preference for dialysis.” Derhaps
for this reason, Hispanics are underrep-
resented on kidney waiting lists relative
1o the prevalence of CKD in this
population.®® Once placed on the
transplant wait list, Hispanies have a
lenger unadjusted median time ro
transplant than non-Hispanic Whites.*
Factors that portentially contribute to
the longer time on the waic list include
lower rates of ergan donations in
Hispanics relative to Whites,"7% less
knowledge and more fear-related barri-
ers to living organ donarion,”’ and
ethnic differences in the frequency of
HLA alleles coupled with current allo-
cation policies.”® Data regarding graft
survival in Hispanics have not been
uniform, with some studics suggesting
thar Hispanics and non-Hispanic
Whites have similar rates of graft
survival,”>™* while other studies have
demonstrated poorer rates of graft
survival in Hispanics.”> More recently,
Gordon ct al found better patient and
graft survival in Hispanics compared
with non-Hispanics.?(‘ Further studies
are needed to clarify whether Hispanic
cthnicity influences post-transplant out-
comes. [n addition, policies arc needed
10 address specific barriers within the
transplant evaluation process for His-
panics to ensure appropriate aceess o
this important therapy.

Compared with non-
Hispanics Whites, Hispanics
have an increased incidence of
ESRD that appears
independent of known clinical

risk factors.
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CONCLUSION

Chronic kidney disease is a growing
and under-recognized health problem
for US Hispanics. Compared with non-
Hispanics Whites, Hispanics have an
incidence of ESRD that
appears independent of known clinical
tisk factors. Furthermore, among pa-
tients starting at the same level of CKD,

increased

Hispanics are at increased -isk for
progression to ESRD. Interestingly,
data from NHANES suggest thac the
prevalence of CKD} with decreased
eGFR, at least in Mexican Americans,
is lower than in non-Hispanic Whites.
The reason for rthis discrepancy is
unclear but could be related 0 more
rapid progression of CKID. Many
questions remain unanswered including:
facrors influencing CKD progression
and CVD outcames; the validity of
current GFR estimaring equations; in-
sights into differences in outcomes
among Hispanic subgroups; and the
impact of health care disparties on
CKD. For these reasons, future research
is needed to berrer understand the
epidemiology and complications of
CKD in US Hispanics. Furthermare,
it is essential cthat adequare numbers of
US Hispanics are included in future
interventional trials ro provide the
necessary ¢vidence base to guide pre-
vention and therapeutic strategies for
CKD and ESRD,
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CKD in Hispanics: Baseline Characteristics From the CRIC
(Chronic Renal Insufficiency Cohort) and Hispanic-CRIC Studies

Michael J. Fischer, MD, MSPH,"Z Alan 8. Go, MD,?** Claudia M. Lora, MD,"

Lynn Ackerson, PhD,? Janet Cohan, MS,” John W. Kusek, PhD, Algjandro Mercado, MS,’
Akinlolu Ojo, MD,® Ana C. Ricardo, MD, MPH,! Leigh K. Rosen, MUEP,”
Kaixiang Tao, PhD,” Dawei Xie, PhD,” Harold I. Feldman, MD,”® and James P. Lash, MD,”
on behalf of the CRIC and H-CRIC Study Groups™

Background: Little is known regarding chrenic kidney disease (CKD) in Hispanics. We compared baseline
characteristics of Hispanic participants in the Chrenic Renal Insufficiency Gehort {CRIC) and Hispanic-CRIC
{H-CRIC) Studies with non-Hispanic CRIC participants.

Study Deslgn: Cross-sectional analysis.

Setting & Participants: Participants were aged 21-74 years with CKD using age-based estimated
glomerutar filiraticn rate {eGFR) at enrollment into the CRIC/H-CRIC Studies. H-CRIC included Hispanics
recruited at the University of lllinois in 2005-2008, whereas CRIC included Hispanics and non-Hispanics
recruited at 7 clinical centers in 2003-2007.

Factor: Race/ethnicity.

Outcomes: Blood pressure, angiotensin-converting enzyme (ACE)-inhibitor/angiotensin receptor blocker
{ARB) use, and CKD-assoclated complications.

Measurements: Demographic characteristics, laboratory data, blood pressurs, and medications were
assessed using standard techniques and protocols.

Results: Of H-CRIGCRIC participants, 497 were Hispanic, 1,650 were non-Hispanic black, and 1,638 were
ron-Hispanic white, Low income and educational attainment were neary twice as prevalent in Hispanics compared with
non-Hispanics (P < 0.01). Hisparnics had self-reported diabetes (§7%) more frequenthy than non-Hispanic blacks (51%:)
and whites (40%; P < 0.01). Blood pressure >130/80 mm Hg was mora common in Hispanics (62%) than blacks (57%}
and whites (35%,; P < 0 05), and abnommalities in hematologic, metabolic, and bong metabolism parameters were more
prevalert in Hispanics (P < 0.05), even afier siratifing by entry eGFR. Hispanics had the Jowest use of ACE
inhibitors’ARBSs among the high-nisk subgroups, including participants with diabetes, proteinunia, and blood pressure
>130/80 mm Hg. Mean eGFR was lower in Hispanics (39.6 mL/min/1,73 m?) than in blacks (43.7 mL/mirv1 72 m?) and
whites {46.2 mL/mir/1.73 m?), whereas median proteinuria was higher in Hispanics (protein excretion, 0.72 g/d) than in
tlacks (0.24 g/d) and whites (0.12 gid; # < §.01).

Limitations: Generalizability; ohserved associations limited by residual bias and confounding.

Conclusions: Hispanics with CKD in the CRIC/H-CRIC Studies are disproportionately burdened with lower
socioeconomic status, mere frequent diabetes mellitus, less ACE-inhibitor/ARB use, worse blood pressure
control, and mare severe CKD and associated complications than their non-Hispanic counterparts.

Am J Kidney Dis. 58(2):214-227. Published by Elsevier Inc. on behalf of the National Kidney Foundation, Inc.
This is a US Government Work. There are no reslriclions on its use.

INDEX WORDS: Chronic kidney disease; Hispanics,; epidemiology.

I I ispanics are now the largest minority group in
the United Stales.! OF interest, there also has

been a particularly raptd concomitant increase in the
incidence and prevalence of end-stage renal discase
(ESRD) in Hispanics observed in the United States
during the last 2 decades.” Compared with non-

Hispanic whiics, the incidence of ESRD in Hispanics

is ncarly 2-fold higher.? Because of the high frc-

quency of risk factors for ESRD in US Hispanics (eg,

dizbetes mellitus). it is anticipated that the Hispanic

ESRD population will continue to undergo substantial
24

growth,
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Hispanics and CKD

Despite the magnitude of this public health prob-
lem, little is known regarding ¢arlicr stages of chronic
kidney diseasc (CKD) in Hispanics.” A few prior
reports have noted that although the prevalence of
estimated glomerular filtration rate (¢GFR) <60 mL/
min/[.73 m? is similar in Hispanics and non-Hispan-
ics, Hispanic cthnicity is associated with higher levels
of microalbuminuria and protcinuria and an almost
2-fold higher risk of ESRD in comparisen with non-
Hispanic whites and blacks.®'® Hispanics have not
beer well represcnted in most large prospective
studics and clinical trials of CKD; therefore, our
understanding of the risk factors. complications,
and outcomes associated with CKD in Hispanics is
limited.'"""® One cxception was a post hoc analysis of
the RENAAL (Reduction in End Points in Non-Insulin-
Dependent Diabetes With the Angiotensin 11 Antago-
nist Losartan) trial, which focused on the role of ethnic-
ity and found that although baseline proteinuria and risk
of ESRD were higher in Hispanics compared with non-
Hispanic whites and blacks, all ethnic groups achieved
renoprotection from losanan therapy after baseline differ-
ences in albuminuria were taken into account.'®

The Hispanic Chronic Renal Insufficiency Cohort
(H-CRIC) Study, an ancillary study to the multicenter
National Institute of Diabetes and Digestive and Kid-
ney Discases—sponsored Chronic Renal Insufficiency
Cohort {CRIC) Study, is the first prospective longitu-
dinal study examining risk factors for the progression
of CKD and cardiovascular discase in a sizable cohort
of US Hispanics with a broad range of kidney dysfunc-
tion,'”'® The H-CRIC Study was initiated because of
less-than-anticipated recruitment of Hispanics in the
CRIC Study and was conducted at the University of
lllinois at Chicago because of disproportionately suc-
cessful Hispanic recruitment into the CRIC Study at
this clinical site.'® In this anticle, we compare baseling
characteristics between Hispanic and non-Hispanic
partictpants in the CRIC and H-CRIC Studies, cspe-
cially as they pertain to risk factors, complications,
and management of CKD.

METHODS
Study Sample and Design

We conducted a cross-sectional comparalive analysis of His-
panic and non-Hispanic participants at enrollment into the CRIC
and H-CRIC Studies, CRIC 15 a0 prospective multwenter cohort
study of adults with CKID. Details of the design and methods of the
CRIC Study have been published previously.''® Major eligibility
criteria for the CRIC Study included adults aged 21-74 years with
mild to moderate CKD using age-based eGFR. xclusion criteria
included inability to consent. New York Heart Association class {17
or 1V heart failure, cirrhosis, human immunodeficiency virus
(HIVYAIDS, polycystic kidney disease, prior dialysis therapy or
transplant, immunosuppressive therapy within 6 months, or chemo-
therapy for cancer within 2 years. The H-CRIC Study adopted
cligibility and exclusion critersa identical to the parem CRIC

Am J Kidney Dis. 2011,58(2).214-227
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Study. However, whereas CRIC included 169 Hispanics and 3,289
non-Hispanics recruited at 7 clinical centers from May 2003
through March 2007, H-CRIC included 327 Hispanics recruited as
the University of [llinois at Chicago and Chicago metropolitan
area from Oclober 2005 through June 2008. Recruitment sites
included university-based, community-based, and private health
chinics. Both swdies were approved by the instituional review
hoards of the participating centers, and the research was conducied
tn accordance with the principles of the Declaration of Helsinki,
All study participants provided written informed consent.

Variables and Data Sources

H-CRIC Study participants underweni the same evaluation and
test strategy as CRIC Study participants, which have been fully
deseribed previously,'”*® as well as additional evaluations {for
only H-CRIC participants) focusing on primary tanguage.'® So-
ciodemographic characteristics (eg, age, sex. racefethnicity, educa-
tion, annual household income, smoking, and health insurance)
were self-reported and recorded at the baseline visit. Medical
conditions {(eg, bypertension, high cholesterol level, chronic heant
failure, peripheral anterial disease, dinbeles, myocardial infarction,
or coronary revascularization) also were self-reported at baseline.
Anthropometric measures {(height, weight, body mass index, and
waisl circumiference) were measured by trained study personnel
and recorded. Current medications were reviewed and docu-
mented. As neted, blood pressure measurements and ankle-
brachial indexes were obtained using standard and validated proto-
cols.!”® For each participant at baseline, urine creatinine and
protein excretion were determined from a 24-hour urine colleclion,
and eGFR was calculated using the CKD-EPT (CKD Epidemiol-
ogy Collaboration) estimating equation, using a locally measured
serum creatinine level calibrated to the Roche enzymatic method
{Roche Diagnostics, Inc, www.roche-diagnostics.usf).?® GFR was
assessed using renal clearance of 125-iodine jothalamate {mea-
sured GFR) in a select subcohort,'” 18

Statistical Analysis

Baseline participant charicteristics were summarized using
mean * standard deviation or median and 25th-75th percentile for
continuous variables and frequency distribution with percentage
for categorical variables. Missing values occummed very infre-
quently and penerally under the following circumstances: (1) a
participant failed o answer a question on a reporting form, (2) a
physical measure was not ebtained, and (3) 2 laboraiory test was
not performed. The only variables wath >3% missing values were
primary language speken {17% [percentage missing in Hispanics
beeause language was assessed o only this groupl}, health insur-
ance (12%), and urine studies (6%). Anaiyses for cach variable
included only observed values. Baseline participant characieris-
lics were compared between proups using ¢ lests, x” tests, or
analysis of variance, as appropriate. A 2-sided P < (.05 was
considered statistically significant. All statistical analyses were
conducted using SAS. version 9.1 {(SAS. www.sas.com).

RESULTS
Baseline Demographic and Clinical Characteristics
H-CRIC and Hispanic CRIC Participants

Of 497 H-CRIC and CRIC Hispanic parlicipanis,
69% were Mexican American, 16% were Puerto
Rican, and 25% had other Latin American ancestry
{Table 1). Proportions of parlicipants with low
annual houschold income (<<$20,000/y), low educa-
tional attainment {less than high school diploma),
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Table 1. Baseline Demographic and Clinical Characteristics of the H-CRIC and Hispanic CRIC Participants

-]
| 1
Mexican Puerto Rican Mexican
Overall American American Other vs Puerto Mexican
Varlable (N = 457) (n=341) (n=8%) (n=75) Rican  vs Other Overall
Age [y) 563117 560= 115 558134 58.1 109 09 02 0.4
Mzn 288 {58) 194 {57) 50 (63} 44 (59} 0.4 08 0.7
Annual income ={(.01 <0001 <000
=%20,000 313(63) 234 (69) 42 (52} a7 (49)
$20,001-$50,000 92 (19) 55 (18) 20 (25) 17 (23)
$50,001-$100,000 24 (5) 8(2) 5{6) 11 {15}
=$100,000 12{2) 4{1) 4(5) 4 {5)
Mo response 55{11) 40{12) 10{12) £ (8)
Educalion <001 <0001 <D.O
<7h grade 183 (37) 160 (47) 10(13) 13(17)
7Ih-12th grade 110(22) 75 (22) 26 (32) 8{12)
High school diploma 71 (14) 45 (13) 13{16) 13 (17}
Vocational degree 11 {2) ain 1(1) 1{1)
Some college 67 (13) 29 (9) 20 (25) 18 {24)
College graduate 35(7) 17 {5) 5 (6} 13 (17)
Graduate degree 20(4) 6{2) 8(7} 8{11)
Realth insurance =0.001 001 <0001
Nene 113{23) 92 (27) 7(9) 14 {19)
Medicald/public aid 80 {16) 61 (18) 10(12) 8{12)
Any Medicare 119 {24) 80{23) 24 (30) 15 {20}
VA/military/Champus 9{2) 1 {0) 8(7n 2{3)
Private/commercial 67 (13) 40{12) B {10} 19{25)
Unknownvincomplele 47 {9) 28 (8} 12 (13} 7{3
Missing 62(13) 3g{11) 14 {17} 9{12)
Primary language spoken <0.001 <0001 <0.001
Engtish 86 (17} 56 {16) 21 (28) 9(12)
Sparish 327 (66) 260 {76) 33{41) 34 (45)
Missing 8417} 25(7) 27 (33) 32 {43)
Tobacco use
Cumenl smoker 29(6) 18 (6) {11} 1{1) 0.0v 01 0403
=100 clgareties 218 (44) 147 {43) 38 (47} 33 {a4) ] 0.9 08
Medical hiztory
Hypenension 443 {89} 309 {91) 72 (89) 62 {83) 0.6 004 0.4
Diabeles 333 (673 240 {70) 52 (64) 42 (56) 0.3 a.02 0.04
Mlfprior revascularizatlon G0 (18} 55 (16} 17 (21) 18 (24) 0.3 a3 0.2
Hean lailure 37N 21 (B} 10{12) 6{8) 0.06 0.6 0.1
PVD 35 (7 30(9) 2(2) 3{4) 0.05 0.2 0.07
$8P fmm Hg) 1360 + 23.7 138.6 = 24.4 130.5 = 18.7 1304 = 23.6 oo 0.01 0.01
DEP {mm Hg} 726%128 732128 723126 W2x126 06 0.07 0.2
MAP {mm Hg} 83.7 £ 143 950~ 14.6 M7+ 129 203+ 138 0.07 0.1 0.02
BF =130/80 mm Hg 307 {62) 223 {66) 47 {59) 37 (49) 0.3 0.01 002
Weight (kg) 84,7 = 201 B46x 189 866+ 238 829 = 16.6 D4 0s 05
BMI (kg.f'mg) NEE68 319585 31474 w658 0.5 0.1 0.3
EM! category 0.5 09 0.8
<25 kg/m® 58{12} 3r{iy 12 {15) 9{12)
25-29.9 kg/m* 170 (34} 116 (34) 29 {36) 25(33)
=30 kgim? 268 (54) 187 (55) 40 {48) 41 {55)
Waist clircumnterence {&m) 1027 = 146 1033 =145 W21 =165 10082126 05 02 o4
Low anklg-brachial index® 72 {15} 46 {14) 15{19) 11{15) 03 09 05
Kidney funclion measuras
SCr {mgfdl) . 1.88 + 063 1.85 = 0.65 1.78 = 0.58 1.66 = 0.54 0.03 <0.001 <0001
eGFRA {mL/min/1.73 m?) 362143 742132 433 +175 456 » 16.9 <0.0M <(.001 <0.00%
eGFR category 0.03 <0001 <0.001
<30 mL/min/1.73 m? 135(27) 105 (31} 19{23) 11(15)
30-<45 mUmin/1.73 m? 205 {41) 149 (44) 29 {36) 27 (36)
45-<60 mLimin/1.73 m? 114 (23 67 {20} 22 (27} 25(33)
=60 mt/min/1.73 m? 43 (9} 20 (6} 11 {34) 12(16)
{Continued)
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Table 1 {Cont’d). Baseline Demographic and Clinical Characteristics of the H-CRIC and Hispanic CRIC Participants

P
| 1
Mexican Puerto Rican Mexican
Qwerall American Amerlcan Dther vs Puerto Mexican
Variable {N = 497) (n=2341) {n=81) {n=75) Rican  vs Other Owerall
SCysC (mgi.) 1.6(1.3.2.1) 1.7(1.4,21} 1.5{1.2, 1.9) 1.3(1.2,1.7) <0001 <0001 <0001
Participants wilh mGFR 214 {43) 145 {43) 35 (43) 34 (45) 09 0.7 0.9
lothalamate GFR 41.0 > 1688 37.1 = 15.0 483 *220 52.2 > 241 0.0 <0001 <0001
Urine studies
24-h urine creatinine {g/d) 1.1(0.8,1.4) 1.1(0.8,1.9) 1.1(0.8,1.4) 11(08, 1.3) 08 0.5 0.8
24-h yrine protein {g/d) 0.72 (0.12, 3.25) 0.88 (0.19, 3.76) 0.39{0.11, 1.80) 0.19{0.07, 2.13) 0.06 0.08 005
Diabetics 1.10{0.22, 4.32) 1.67 (0.26, 4.62) (.67 {0.18, 2.16) 0.70 (013, 3.88) 0.2 06 0.4
Nondizbetics 0.26 (0.07,1.17) 0.67 (0.10,1.73) G.12{0.06, 0.41) 0.11 {0.05, 0.17) 0.1 0.1 0.07
UACR {mg/g)® 413.5(20.8,2,503.4) 659.5(47.9,2,835.8) 2206{24.6,1,519.1) ¥3.6{125 1692.3} 0.1 0.1 0.1
Diabetics 830.0 (704, 3,377.5) 1137.5(77.2,3,613.7) 36327 (62.1,2,209.0) 498.6(64.0,2,825.3) 0.2 0.4 0.3
Nondiabetics 85.7 (106, 826.8)  262.2(21.2,977.7)  43.1(55,423.7) 16.7 (8.8, 79.1) 07 0.4 0.7
Lipoprolains
Total cholesterol (mg/dL) 1895+ 53.7 1906+ 53.9 186.8 * 53.0 187.2 + 47.0 0.8 0.6 08
LDL cholesterol (mg/dL) 103.7 = 40.0 1G3.6 £ 40.9 183.6 = 40.1 104.1 >~ 382 0.8 0.8 0s
HDL cholesterof {mg/dL) 431129 42321246 44,6 > 151 445113 0.1 0.2 0.2
Triglycerides {mg/dL) 158.0{120.0,229.0) 167.0(124.0,231.0) 136.0(108.0,201.0) 154.0{115.0, 217.0) 0.05 01 0.05
Hemoglobin A, {5} o117 70186 7220 68=17 0.3 0.3 0.3
Hemoglobin {g/iL} 121~ 1.9 11.9+19 124216 126218 p.02 0.002 0002
Bone melabolism
parameters
Calchum {mgfdL) 9005 B9 x 05 91206 3105 0.02 0001 0.001
Phosphate (mg/dl) 4007 41207 3.7=07 3807 <0001  «<0.001 <0001
PTH {pgy/mL} 62.0{41.0, 102.0) £7.2 [46.0, 105.1) 54.0(35.0, 89.0} 54,4 (35.0,81.0) 0.9 0008 002

Note: Continucus variables are reprasented by mean = standard deviation or madian {25th, 75th percentils); categorical variables
are given as frequency (percentage). Conversion factors for units: SCr in mg/dL to mmol/L, x88.4; totallLDL/HDL cholesterel in mg/dl,
tommol/L, x0.02586; hernoglobin in g/dL 1o g/L, % 10; calcium in mg/dL to mmel/L, % 0.2495; phosphate in mg/dL to mmolfL, x(0.3226;

no conversion necassary for PTH in pg/ml. and ng/L.

Abbraviations: BMI, body mass index; BP, blood pressure; CRIC, Chronic Renal Insufficiency Cohort; DBP, diastolic blood pressure;
eGFR, estimated glomerular filtration rate; GFR, glomerular filtration rate; H-CRIC, Hispanic Chronic Renal Insufficiency Cohort; HDL,
high-density lipoprotein; LDL, low-density lipoprotein; MAP, mean arteriat pressure; mGFR, measured glomerular filiration rate; M1,
myocardial infarction; PTH, parathyroid hormone; PVD, peripheral vascular disease;, SBP, systolic blood pressure; SCr, serum
creatining; SCysC, serum cystatin C; UACR, urine albumin-creatinina ratio; VA, Veterans Administration.

“Ankie-brachial index <0.9,
PEight percent of values are missing.

and lack of health insurance were significantly
higher for Mexican Americans than Pucrio Rican
Americans and other Latin Americans (P < 0.02).
Mexican Americans more often spoke primarily
Spanish (76%) relative o other Hispanic groups
{~43%: P < 0.001). Compared with other Hispanic
subgroups, prevalences of diabetes and blood pres-
sure > 130/80 mm Hg were more Trequent in Mexi-
can Americans. Mcan ¢GFR was significantly lower
in Mexican Americans (37.4 mL/min/1.73 m2) com-
pared with Puerto Rican Americans (43.3 mL/min/
1.73 m?) and other Latin Americans (45.6 mL/min/
1.73 m?%;, P < 0,001), and measured GFR results for
sclect participants were consistent with these find-
ings. Median 24-hour urine protein and spot urine
albumin-crecatinine ratios werg substantiatly higher
in Mcxican Americans compared with Pucrlo Rican
Amcricans and other Latin Americans, and these
trends persisted in both the diabetic and nondia-

Am J Kidney Dis. 2011,58(2).214-227

betic subgroups. Compared with other Hispanic
subgroups, Mexican Americans had significantly
fower serum hemoglobin and calcium and higher
serum phosphorus and tetal parathyroid hormone
values (P < 0.035).

Comparison With Non-Hispanic White and

Black CRIC Participants

Mean age was ~2 years younger in the 497 His-
panic H-CRIC/CRIC participants than in the 1,638
non-Hispanic white and 1,650 non-Hispanic black
CRIC participants (Table 2). Compared with non-
Hispanic whites and blacks, Hispanics more oficn had
low annual houschold ingome, low ¢cducational attain-
ment, lack of health insurance, and lcss current and
former tobacco use (P < 0.05). The prevalence of
diabetes was highest for Hispanics (67%), whereas
self-reported history of myocardial infarction/prior
revascularization was least prevalent for Hispanics
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Table 2. Baseline Demographic and Clinical Characteristics of the H-CRIC/Hispanic CRIC Participants Compared With
Non-Hispanic White and Black CRIC Participanis®

|
Hispanic

Hispanic Hon-Hispanic While Non-Hispanic Black Hispanic
Variable (n = 497) {n =1,638) {n = 1,650) vs White vs Black
Age (y) 56.3x11.7 589 =110 581 = 10.6 <{.001 0.001
Men 288 (58) 982 {60) 806 (49} 0.4 <0.001
Annual income <0.001 <0.001
=520,000 313 (83} 254 (16) 6846 (39)
$20,001-3$50,000 92 (19) 416 {25) 417 (25)
$50,001-$100,000 24 (5) 455 (28) 21513
>$100,000 12(2) 295{18) 82 (4)
MNo response 56 (11) 218{(13) 30 (19)
Education <0.001 <0.001
<7th grade 183 (37} 7{0} 204{1}
7th-121h grade 110 (22} 83(5) 417 (25)
High sechool diploma 71{14) 291 (18) 366 (22)
Vocational degree 11(2) 73(4) 102 (6)
Some college 67{(13) ag4 (24) 465 {28)
College graduate 35 (7) 429 (26) 180 {11)
Graduate degree 20(4) 361 (22) 100 (6)
Health insurance <0.001 <0.001
None 113 (23) 48 (3) a5 {5}
Medicaid/public aid 80 (16) 95 (6} 317{19)
Any Medicare 119 (24) 561 (34) 488 {30)
VA/military/Champus 9(2) 73 (4) 10 (A
Private/commercial 67 (13) 290 (18} £90 (12)
Unknownfincomplate 47 (9 423 (26) 216 {(13)
Missing 62 (13) 148 (9) 234 (14)
Primary language spoken <0.001 «<0.001
English 86 (17}
Spanish 327 {66)
Missing 84 (17} 1,638 (100) 1,650 {100)
Tobacco use
Curreni smoker 29 (6) 155 (9} 320 (19) 0. <0.001
>100 cigarettes 218 (44} 920 (56) 855 (58) <0.001 <0.001
Medical history !
Hyperension 443 (8%) 1,283 (79) 1,533 (9% <0.001 0.008
Diabotes 334 (67) 649 (40) 84a (51) <0.001 <0.001
Ml/prior revascularization 90 {18) 376 (23) 361 (22) 0.02 0.07
Heant failure 37N 17 (7} 217 (13) 08 <0.001
PVD 357N 105 (6) 117 {7) 0.8 09
SBP {mm Hg} 136.0 = 23.7 1218186 1329 = 231 <0.001 £.009
DBP {(mm Hg} 726128 69.0 =114 73B =138 <0.001 0.08
MAP {mm Hg} 93.7 = 14.3 866 =118 935 £ 147 <0.001 0.8
BP =>130/80 mm Hg 307 (62) 573 (35) 942 (57} <0001 0.05
Weight {(kg) 847 + 20.1 905+ 227 958 = 243 <0.001 <0.001
BMI (kg/m?) N6*+68 3N2*76 334+83 0.2 <0.001
BMi category <0.001 =<0.001
<25 kgim? 58(12) g (19 217 {13)
25-29.9 kg/m? 170 (34) 517 (32} 378{23)
=30 kgtm? 268 (54) 809 (49) 1048 (64)
Waist circurnference {cm) 102.7 * 146 105.4 £17.6 108.0 = 18.2 0.003 <001
Low ankle-brachial index® 72(15) 206 {(13) 333 {20) 0.2 0.007
{Continued}
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Table 2 (Cont'd). Baseline Demographic and Clinlcal Characteristics of the H-CRIC/Hispanic CRIC Participants Compared With
Non-Hispanic White and Black CRIC Participants®

Hispanics and CKD

P
[ 1
Hispanic Non-Hispanic White Nan-Hispanic Black Hispanic Hispanic
Variable {n=497) {n =1,538) {n = 1,650) vs White vs Black
Kidney function measures
SCr {mg/dL} 1.88 +0.63 1.59 = 0.46 1.87 = 8.63 <0.001 0.8
eGFR {mL/min/1.73 m?) 396149 462+ 14.7 437+ 14.9 <0.001 <0.001
eGFR category <{.001 <{.001
<30 mU/min/1.73 m* 135 (27} 245{15) 322 (20)
30-<45 mb/min/1 .73 m? 205 (41} 570 (35) 607 (37)
45-<B0 mUmin/1.73 a@ 114 (23) 532 (32) 495 (30)
=60 mU/min/1.73 m? 43 (9) 291 {18) 226 (14)
SCysC (mg/L) 1.6{1.3, 2.1} 1.3(1.1,1.7) 1.4{1.1,1.9) <0.001 <(.001
Participants with mGFA 214 (43) 585 (36) 525 (32) 0.003 <{.001
lothalamate GFR 410+ 188 509 = 20.3 471 = 19.3 <0.001 <(.001
Urine studies
24-h urine creatinine (g/d) 1.1{0.8, 1.4) 1.3{1.0, 1.7} 1.3{0.9.1.7] <0.001 <0.001
24-h urine protein {(g/d) 0.72(0.12,3.25) 0.12(0.07,0.51) (.24 (0.08, 1.07) <(.001 <{.001
Diabetics 1.10{0.22, 4.32) 0.21 {0.08, 0.90) 0.42 (0.10, 1.63) <0001 <0.001
Nondiabetics 0.26 (0.07,1.17) 0.09 (0.06, 0.28) 0.14 (0.07, 0.63} <{.001 <0.001
UACR (mg/g)® 413.5 (29.8, 2,503.4) 24.5{6.1, 208.1) 76.9(11.4,518.9) <0.001 <0.001
Diabetics 830.0 (70,1, 3,377.5) 68.1(14.4, 454,32} 174.9 (20.4, 975.2) <0.001 <0.001
Nondiabetics 85.7 (10.4, 826.8) 13.2 (5.0, 98.2) 32.5(7.7, 237.5) <0.001 <0.001
Lipoproteins
Total cholesteral {mo/dL) 189.5 + 53.7 1801 =419 185.6 + 45.7 <{3.001 o1
LDL cholesterof (mg/dL} 103.7 2 400 994 * 321 106.1 = 37.2 0.0 0.2
HDL cholesterol {mg/dL) 4312129 471152 493 161 <0001 < (.001
Triglycerides (mg/dL} 158.0 (120.0, 229.0) 133.0(91.5, 192.0) 112.0 (83.0, 160.0} <{.001 <0.001
Hemoglobin A, (%) 70+1.7 6313 6917 <0.001 0.3
Hemoglobin (g/dL} 121+1.9 13.2+17 122+17 <0.001 0.2
Bone metabolism
parameiers
Caleium {mg/dl} 9.0+ 05 92+05 9205 < 0.001 <0.001
Phosphate (mg/dL) 40z 07 3606 3807 <{3.001 < 0.001
PTH (pg/mL) 62.0 (41.0, 102.0) 43.0 {304, 68.6) 67.2 (41 2, 114.8) <0.001 0.01

Nota: Continuous variables are represented by mean =+ standard deviation or median (25th, 75th percentile}; categorical varables
are given as frequancy {percentage). Conversion factors for units: SCrin rmg/dL to mmol/L, x88.4; total/LOL/HDL cholesterol in mg/dL
to mmol/L, *%0.02586, hemoglobin in g/dL to g/L, x<10; calcium in mg/dL to mmel/L, x0.2495; phosphate in mg/fdl. to mmoliL, X0.3229;
no convarsion necessary for PTH in pg/mb and ng/L.

Abbreviations: BMI, body mass index; BP, blood pressure; CRIC, Chrenic Renal Insufficiency Cohort; DBP, diastolic biood pressure;
eGFR, estimated glomerular tittration rate; GFR, glomenular filtration rate; H-CRIC, Hispanic Chronic Renal Insufficiency Cohort; HDL,
high-density lipoprotein; LOL, low-density lipoprotain, MAP, mean arterial pressure; mGFR, measured glomerular filtration rate; Mi,
myocardial infarction; PTH, parathyroid hormone; PVD, peripheral vascular disease; SBP, systolic blood pressure; SCr, serum

creatining; SCysG, serum cystatin C; UACR, urine albumin-creatinine ratio; VA, Velerans Administration.

“Ankle-brachial index <{.9.
PFour percent missing values.

{18%). The prevalence of self-reported hyperiension
for Hispanics (899) was between that for non-
Hispanic whites (79%) and blacks (93%). whereas
blood pressure >130/80 mm Hg at cohort enlry was
more common for Hispanics (62%) than non-His-
panic whites (35%) and non-Hispanic blacks (57%;
P < 0.05). Mean glycosylated hemoglobin tevel in
Hispunics (7.0%) was significantly higher than in
non-Hispanic whites (6.3%; P < 0.05) and similar to
that in non-Hispanic blacks (6.9%; P > 0.05). Mean

Am J Kidney Dis. 2011;58(2):214-227

eGFR was significantly lower in Hispanics (39.6
mL/min/1.73 m®) compared with non-Hispanic whites
(46.2 ml/min/1.73 m?) and blacks (43.7 mL/min/1.73
m?;, P < (LOOD), and measured GIFR results for select
participants were consistent with these findings. Me-
dian 24-hour urine protein and spot urine albumin-
creatinine ratios were substantially bhigher in Hispan-
ics compared with non-Hispanic whiles and blacks,
and these trends persisted in both the diabetic and
nondizbetic subgroups (# < 0.001). Lipoprotein lev-
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Table 3. Bassline Frequency of ACEI/ARB Use in H-CRIC/Hispanic CRIC Participants Compared With Non-Hispanic White and

Black CRIC Pariicipants
P
[ |
Hispanic Non-Hispanic White Non-Hispanic Black Hlispanic Hispanic
Variable {n = 497) {n =1,638) (n = 1,650) vs White vs Black Overall
Overall 67% (332/493} 67% (1.088/1,627) 1% (1,164/1,638) 0.8 0.1 0.03
Control of BP
>130/80 mm Hg 62% (189/305) 70% (397/567) 0% {650/934) 0.02 0.0% 0.03
=130/80 mm Hg 76% (140/184) £5% (689/1,057) 73% (507/698) 0.004 0.4 <0.001
Presence of diabstaes
Yes 72% (2381331} 81% (524/645) 80% (675/843} <Q.001 0.001 0.001
No 58% (94/162) 57% (564/982) 61% (486/795} 058 0.5 0.3
Degree of proteinuria
=0.3 gid 67% (172/258) 78% (384/493) 73% {510/701) <0001 0.07 0.003
=0.3 g/d 71% (110/154) 62% (671/1,087) 70% (574/822) 0.02 07 <0.001
eGFR level
<30 mU/min/1.73 m? 60% (81/135) 75% (183/244) 67% (215/322) 0.002 0.2 0.009
30-<45 mL/min/1.73 m? F4% {149/202) 73% (412/567) 74% (447/605) ¢8 09 09
45-<60 mL/min/1.73 m? 72% (81/113) 68% (358/526) 75% (367/489) 0.5 05 0.05
=60 mL/minf1.73 m? 49% (21/43) 47% (135/290) 61% (135/222) 0.8 0.1 0.01

Note: Statistical comparisons made within clinical subgroup sirala (eg, eGFR leve!) acrass racefethnicity.
Abbreviations: ACEi, angiotensin-converting enzyme inhibitor; ARB, angiotensin receptor blocker; BP, blood pressure; CRIC,
Chronic Renal Insufficiency Cohort; eGFR, astimated glomerular filtration rate; H-CRIC, Hispanic Chronic Renal Insufficiancy Cohaort.

els. hemnoglobin concentrations, and bene metabolism
paramcters were less favorable in Hispanics com-
parcd with non-Hispanic whites and similar 10 those
in non-Hispanic blacks.

Baseline Frequency of ACE-I/ARB Use

Ovecrall, use of angiotensin-converting enzyme
(ACE}-inhibitor or angiolensin receplor blocker (ARB)
mecdications was not significantly different among
H-CRIC/CRIC participants (Table 3). However, for
important subgroups, including those with blood pres-
sure >130/80 mm Hg, diabetes, or urine protein
excretion 0.3 g/d, Hispanics consisteatly had the
lowest receipt of ACE-inhibitor/ARB therapy com-
pared with non-Hispanic whites and blacks (P <
0.05).

Blood Pressure by eGFR and Albuminuria Strata

Across all cGFR categorics and albuminuria strata,
the proportion of participants with blood pressure
>130/80 mm Hg was significantiy higher for Hispan-
ics compared with non-Hispanic whitc participants
(P < 0.05; Tablc 4). However, only in cGFR <30
mL/min/1.73 m* strata was the percentage of Hispan-
ics with blood pressure >130/80 mm Hg significantly
higher than that of non-Hispanic blacks (P < 0.05),
whercas this percentage was not significantly differ-
ent between these 2 groups for all other eGFR strata,
No significant differences were found between propor-
tions of Hispanic and non-Hispanic blacks with blood
pressure > 130/80 mm Hg across albuminuria strata.

220

Laboratory Parameters by eGFR and
Albuminuria Strata

Across all eGFR catcgories and albuminuria strata,
Hispanic participants had significantly lower scrum so-
dium and bicarbonate levels than non-Hispanic whites
and blacks (P < 0.05), whereas less pronounced differ-
ences existed for scrum potassium levels among these
groups (Table 5). There were ne significant differences
in hemoglobin levels belween Hispanics and non-
Hispanic blacks, but levels were significantly lower in
Hispanics compared with non-Hispanic whites across
eGFR and albunnnuria valwes (P < (.05). Calcium
levels were lower and serum phosphorus levels were
higher in Hispanics versus non-Hispanics with eGFR
<45 ml/min/1.73 m® or albumin-creatinine ratio =30
my/g (P < 0.05). Total intact parathyroid hormone
levels for Hispanics gencrally were significantly higher
than for non-Hispanic whites, but lower than for non-
Hispanic blacks across ¢GFR and albuminuria levels.
Serum albumin level consistently was the fowest in
Hispanics compared with non-Hispanics regardless of
cGIFR or albuminuria group.

DISCUSSION

We found that in participants with CKD in the CRIC
and H-CRIC Swdies, Hispanics were dispropartionately
burdencd with lower sociocconomic status, more fre-
quent diabetes mellitus, worse blood pressure control,
lower receipt of ACE-inhibitor/ARB medications, and
more severe CKD compared with non-Hispanic whites

Am J Kid Dis. 2011;68(2}:.214-227
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Table 4. BP in H-CRIC/Hispanic CRIC Participants Compared With Mon-Hispanic White and Black CRIC Participants

P
i i
Hispanic Mon-Hispanic White Non-Hispanic Black Hispanic Hispankc
Variable {n = 497) {n = 1,638} {n = 1,650) vs White vs Black
eGFR Strata
eGFR <30 (n=702)
SBP {mm Hag) 142.3 2 23.0 1234 £ 204 135.0 = 251 <<0.001 0.004
DBP (mm Hg) 731127 66.4 = 12.0 71.6 =140 <0.001 03
MAP (mrm Hg) 96.2 = 14.1 B5.4 =127 927 =153 <0.001 0.03
BP >130/80 mm Hg 98 (73} 84 (35) 191 (60} <.0.001 0.008
eGFR 30-<45 (n = 1,382)
SBP (mm Hg) 137.1 2243 122.8 + 191 1347+ 238 <0.001 0.2
DBP {mm Hg) 720 +1289 68.1 = 11.1 731 =137 <{0.001 0.4
MAP {mm Hg) 937 =145 866+ 116 93.7 2151 <0001 0.9
BP >130/80 mm Hg 126 {62) 216 {38) 349 (58) <{.001 0.3
eGFR 45-<60 (n = 1,141)
SBP {mm Hg) 1308x228 1216 = 184 1317 2 21.0 <0.001 0.7
DBP {mm Hg) 721 133 702114 74.0+13.2 0.1 0.2
MAP (mm Hg) 91.7 x 144 874 +12.0 932 + 136 <0001 0.3
BP >130/80 mm Ha 62 (55) 192 (36) 291 (59} <0.001 04
8GFA 60 {n = 560}
SBP (mm Hg) 125.5 = 18.8 1169 = 154 1278 = 22.0 ¢.001 05
DBP (mm Hg) 47 =114 706 = 11.1 782+142 .02 a1
MAP (mm Ha) 916129 86.0+ 109 948+ 155 0.002 Q2
BP =>130/80 mm Hg 21 (a9) 81 {28) 111 (50) 0.005 0.9
Albuminuria Strata
UACR <30 mg/g{n = 1,564}
SBP (mm Hg) 122.0 = 20.6 118.0 2163 1241 £ 19.4 .02 03
DBP (mm Hgj 67.3 2121 67.8 =107 0.7 125 0.7 {.008
MAP {rmm Hg) 85.5 = 13.2 845107 285130 ¢.3 0.02
BP =130/80 mm Hg 44 (38) 228 (27) 255(42) 0.01 0.5
UACRH 30-<300 mg/g (n = 955)
SBP (mm Hg} 133.2 £ 20.0 1229 =185 1328 222 <{0.001 08
DBP {mm Hg) 69.6 = 11.9 883114 73.6 = 140 a3 0.01
MAP (mm Hyg) 9082126 865> 116 932+ 1486 0.001 G
8P >130/B0 mm Hg 51 (54) 148 (36) 247 (56) 0.001 o7
UACR 300 mg/g (n = 1,110)
SBP {mm Hg) 1432229 1208 +21.2 143.2 = 234 <D.001 09
BBP {mm Hg) 76.0 123 725122 v2=x139 <0.001 0.3
MAP (mm Hg) a8.4 + 131 816129 982 =142 <0.001 0.5
BP >120/80 mm Hyg 186 (76) 183 (53) 395 (76) <0.001 08

Nota: Continuous variables are represented by mean

{percentage). eGFR given in mL/min/1.73 m2,

* standard deviation; categorical variables are given as frequency

Abbreviations: BP, blood pressure; CRIC, Chronic Renal Insufficiency Cohort; DBP, diastolic blood pressure; @GFR, aestimated
glomerular filtration rate; H-CRIC, Hispanic Chronic Renal Insufficiency Cohart; MAP, mean arerial pressure; SBP, systolic blood

pressure; UACR, uhne albumin-creatining ratio.

and blacks. [n particular, in the setting of CKD, Mexican
Americans had especially unfavorable sociodemo-
graphic and clinical parameters relative 10 Puerto Rican
Americans and other Eatin Americans. Even when level
of ¢GFR was taken into account, Hispanics with CKD
more often had uncontrolled blood pressure, lower se-
mum hemoglobin levels, and worse metabolic and bone
metabolism parameters than non-Hispanic whites and
blacks.

Am J Kidney Dis. 2011;58(2):214-227

1n contrast to prior reports and siudics that focused
chiefly on populations with ESRI,** this work is one
of the few systematic evaluations of CKD in Hispan-
ics, who constitutc a growing high-risk population
well known to be affected by health disparitics.?' %
The CRIC and H-CRIC Studics were designed to
examine prospectively risk factors for CKID progres-
sion and cardiovascular diseasc incidence and progres-
sion in a farge diverse representative cohort of indi-

%2 1
Attachment 21

92




Fischer et al

AJKD

rd

Table 5. Laboratory Parameters in H-CRIC/Hispanic CRIC Paricipants Compared With Non-Hispanic White and Black
CRIC Participants

P
[ i
Hispanic Non-Hispanic White Non-Hispanic Black Hispanic Hispamnic
Varlable {n =407) {n = 1,638} (n = 1,650) vs White vs Black
eGFR Strata
eGFR <30 (n = 702}
Sodium (mmol/L) 1281 +29 139829 139.8 = 3.1 <0.001 <0.001
Potassium (mmolil) 4606 4605 45+ 06 05 0.004
CO, {mmol/L) 21735 23.0+33 22734 <0.001 0.003
Hemoglobin (g/dL} 11.5+1.8 123+ 16 115+ 186 <0.001 07
Calciurn {mg/dL} 8806 9205 91*06 <0.001 <0.001
Phosphate (mgfdL) 4407 4.0=08 42=0.7 <0.001 0.09
Total PTH (pg/mL) 102.7 (731, 171.3} 79.8(50.6, 126.4) 133.6(81.3, 212.6) 0.006 <0001
Serum albumin {g/dL} 36056 40+ 04 3805 <20.001 <0.001
eGFR 30-<45 {n = 1,382)
Sodium (mmoliL) 1379 + 3.0 1291 £ 2.9 1400 £ 3.2 <0,001 <0.001
Potassium {mmol/L} 4405 45>05 43=05 02 0.04
CO, {mmoliL) 228x28 243+ 28 245+ 3.2 «<0.001 <0.001
Hemogtobin (gfdL) 11.8x1.7 130+17 11.9= 16 = 0.001 02
Calcium (mgfdL) 89+05 92+05 9.2+05 <0.001 «<0.001
FPhosphate (mg/dL} 4007 37+ 06 38086 <0.001 <0.01
Total PTH {pg/mL) 59.5 (44.0,95.0) 48.0 (32.0, 76.0) 75.3(48.9, 118.5) 0.09 <0.001
Sarum albumin {g/dL) 3605 4004 3.9=05 <0001 <0.001
eGFR 45-<60 {n = 1,141)
Sodium {(mmol/L} 138.3 + 321 $39.3 = 3.0 139.5 = 3.1 0.002 <0.001
Potassium {mmol/L) 43x05 4305 41 =05 0.4 0.002
CO, (mmoliL) 24.0+29 251+28 257+ 30 <0.0M1 <0.001
Hemoglobin {g/dL} 128 x 21 134+ 1.6 25+ 1.6 {0,001 .08
Calcium (mg/dL} 81x05 93x04 82+05 0.01 0.08
Phosphate {mg/dL) 36+ 06 3505 3606 .09 0.8
Total PTH {pg/mL) 51.0(37.0, 66.0) 38.0(28.6,54.0) 52.2(36.0,77.9) <0.001 0.05
Serum albumin {g/dL}) 38=*06 41+04 40+ 04 <0.001 0.008
eGFR =60 (n = 560)
Sodium {mmoli) 132.7 225 138.7 > 3.0 138326 0.04 <0.001
Potassium (mmol/L) 42+05 42=>04 41+04 0.3 0.3
CQ, (mmaoliL) 24834 25,5+ 3.0 25628 0.1 0.1
Hemoglobin [g/dL) 130+ 16 137+ 16 13116 0.003 0.8
Catcium {mg/dL} 9105 91+04 9304 04 0.004
Phosphate (mg/il) 37+05 234205 3506 <0.001 0.09
Total PTH {pg/mL) 40.9(27.0,49.7) 35.0 {26.0, 45.0) 38.0(28.5, 55.6) 03 0.4
Serum albumin (g/dL) 39*06 40=>04 4004 0.02 0.02
Albuminuria Strata
UACR <30 mg/g (n = 1,564}
Sodium (mmolfL} 1383+ 29 139.1 = 3.0 1398 = 3.3 0.005 «<0.001
Potassium {mmol/L) 4305 43x05 4205 05 0.03
CO, {mmoliL) 23933 251 +29 254 =31 <0.001 <0.001
Hemoglobin (g/dL) 124x15 134+15 124= 16 =0.001 Q.7
Calcium {mg/dL) 93204 833x05 33=05 0.7 02
Phosphate (mg/dL) 3705 35206 3706 (.004 0.9
Total PTH {pg/mL) 49.0{35.0, 63.0} 38.0(271,54.9) 52.0(35.0,77.8) 0.1 0.03
Serumn albumin {g/dl) 40204 41*04 41 x04 0.04 04
UACR 30-<2300 mg/g (n = 955)
Sodium (mmol/L) 138327 1393+ 31 1358 = 3.0 0.005 <0.00
Potassium {mmol/L) 44*06 4405 43x05 0.4 0.06
CO, (mmolf.) 231232 241+ 30 244+ 34 0.003 <0.001
{Continued)
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Table 5 (ConY'd). Laboratory Parameters in H-CRIC/Hispanic CRIC Participants Comparad With Non-Hispanic White and Black

CRIC Participants

F <
! 1
Hispanic Non-Hispanic White MNan-Hispanic Black Hispanic Hispanic
Variable {n = 487) (n =1,638) {n = 1,650) vs White vs Black
Hemoglobin (g/dL) 122+20 131217 123+18 <0.001 0.7
Calcium {mg/dL}) 9105 92205 9.2+ 45 0.01 0.008
Phosphate {mg/dL} 39+07 3607 37086 <0001 0.02
Total PTH (pg/mL} 57.7 (34.0,50.0) 49.3{32.0, 74.3) 69.4 (43.1,125.0) .04 0.005
Serum albumin (g/dL) 39x0.4 4104 40x04 <{0.001 p.02
UACR 2300 mgfg {n = 1,11Q)
Sodium {mmol/L) 137.6x 3.1 139228 1385 + 3.0 <0.001 <0.001
Potassium (mmol/L} 4506 4505 4305 Q.08 0.0
CO, (mmoll) 225x32 240> 31 240 3.4 <0.001 <0.001
Hemoglobin (g/dL) 118+20 127 +1.8 119+17 <(.001 08
Calcium {mg/dL} 88x05 9105 90x05 <0.001 <0.001
Phosphate {mg/dL) 42>x08 3B+06 40x07 =<0.001 <0.001
Total PTH (pgfmL) 81.2(50.5, 117.0) 60.1 (36.9,88.4) 92.0({55.7,157.0) 0.08 <0.001
Serum albumin {g/dL) 35*05 38+05 3705 <0.0(1 <0.001

Note: Continuous variables are represented by mean = standard deviation or median {25th, 75th percentile). eGFR given in
mL/min/1.73 m?, Conversion factors for units: hemoglobin in ¢/dL to g/L, % 15; calcium in mg/dL to mmol/L, x0.2435; phosphate in
mg/dL to mmol/L, »0.3229; albumin in g/dL to g/L, %10; no conversion necessary for PTH in pg/mL and ng/L.

Abbreviations: CO,, carbon dioxide; CRIC, Chronic Renal Insufficiency Cohort; eGFR, estimated glomerular filtration rate; H-CRIC,
Hispanic Chronic Renal Insufficiency Cohort; PTH, parathyroid hormone; UACR, urine albumin-creatining ratio.

viduals with CKD."”"'® By capturing a wide array of
data for a broad range of demographic factors and
clinical exposurcs, the H-CRIC and CRIC Studics
will further elucidate rcasons for health disparities in
Hispanics with CKD) and inform clinical wnals of
therapeutic interventions that potentially may lead to
improvements in clinical outcomes.?®

A few prior studics examined differences in the
burden of CKD between Hispanics and non-Hispan-
ics. Although analyses from NHANES (National
Healih and Nutrition Examination Survey} have found
the prevalence of eGFR <60 mL/min/1.73 m? to be
similar in Mexican Americans and non-Hispanic
whites, they generally have noted a higher prevalence
of micro- and macroalburminuria.*?'? In a large co-
hort of adults with stages 3-4 CKD from Kaiscr
Pcrmanente of Northern California, higher levels of
proicinuria also were observed in Hispanics compared
with non-Hispanic whites, which is consistent with
our observations in the H-CRIC/CRIC Studies.” Less
ts known about complications of CKD. Similar to our
findings, a recent analysis from NHANES found that
several melabolic abnormalitics, including those in-
volving hemoglobin, phosphorus, potassium, and bi-
carbonate, were more cormmon in Hispanic than white
adults with eGFR <60 mL/min/1.73 m®*® Differ-
ences in sociccconomic status may explain some of
these observed differences. For example, 2 recent
studies found that low sociocconomic stafus was
associated strongly with higher serum phosphorus
levels in adults with CKD regardless of race/ethnic-

Am J Kidney Dis 2011;58(2):214-227

ity.?®*! The impact of these complications on health
outcomes will be assessed in future fongitudinal anal-
yses.

Optimal control of blood pressure and usc of reno-
protcctive medications also were found to be inferior
in Hispanics compared with non-Hispanic whites in
H-CRIC/CRIC despile evidence suppuorling these mea-
sures to attenuale CKD progression.'® Similar pat-
terns of greater uncontrolled blood pressure in Hispan-
ics with and without CKD also have been observed in
samples from NHANES*? and MESA (Mulii-
Ethnic Study of Atherosclerosis),” which appear duc
in part to sociocconomic differences. Only one prior
study has ecxamined the rclationship between race/
cthnicity and ACE-inhibitor/ARB use in individuals
at high risk of progressive CKD. Of almost 40,000
diabetic adults in the Kaiser Permanente of Northern
California Diabetes Registry, 58% of Latinos received
an ACE inhibitor/ARB, including 54% with albumin-
uria, and this proportion was not significantly differ-
ent from that observed for whites.** Although we ob-
served a similar proportion of Hispanics receiving ACE
inhibitors/ARBs in H-CRIC/CRIC overall, we found
that Hispanics had significantly lower receipt of these
medications in high-risk groups {(eg, diabetes, protein-
uria, and blood pressure >130/80 mm Hg) compared
wilh non-Hispanic whites and blacks. In addition to local
clinical practice patterns, the lower prevalence of health
insurance in Hispanics in H-CRIC/CRIC likely contrib-
utes to these observed differences. Although not specifi-
cally evaluated in regard to categories of race and ethnic-
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ity, Jack of health insurance has becn associated with
deereased access to regular care, worse control of hyper-
tension, and less receipt of ACE inhibitors/ARBs in
adults with diabetes and CK1D 33 Because of its robust
data collection, future H-CRIC/CRIC analyses will delin-
gate the relationships between race/cihnicity, socioeco-
nomic status (eg, income, health insurance, and access to
health care), risk factors for CKID, and CKI» progres-
sion.

There is notable heterogeneity ameong Hispanics in
the Unilcd States with regard 10 race, country of
origin, language, health beliefs, and social customs.™’
The H-CRIC and CRIC Studies also afford an initial
exarnination of dilfcrences among subgroups of His-
panics with CKD, finding that Mexican Americans
had more severe CKD (ic, lower ¢GFRs and higher
proteinuria), a disproportionate burden of unfavorable
CKD risk factors, and a higher prevalence of CKD-
related melabolic complications compared with Puerto
Rican Americans and other Latin Americans. Only a
fcw prior studics have investigated differences in
CKD parameters and outcemes among Hispanic sub-
groups. [n a prospective observational study of nearly
5,000 Hispanics receiving long-term dialysis therapy,
Mexican Americans were found 1o have significantly
tower monality than their Pucrto Rican American
counterparts over 2 years.*® Analysis of NHANES
data showed that Cuban Americans were more likely
to have an estimated creatinine clearance <60 mL/min/
1.73 m? compared with Mexican Americans or Puerto
Ricans.* Recently, findings from MESA showed that
although Puerto Ricans had levels of albuminuria
similar to non-Hispanic whites, Mexicans and Domini-
cans had much higher albuminuria than whiies, which
appeared to be related to the heterogeneity in genetic
admixture between Furopean, African, and Native
American ancestry in these groups.*® Further analyscs
arc needed to betier understand the diversity among
Hispanic subgroups in the United States and delineate
the clinical implications of these baseline findings.

The causes of racial and cthnic incquities among
individuals with CKD are speculated to be of diverse
origins, including patient- {eg, biological, socioeco-
nomic, and environmemnial), provider- (eg, bias and
communtication), and health care systcm-related {cg,
access to services) factors.???® Reasons for these
reported disparities in Hispanics have been examined
infrequently. Some have argued that differences in
sociodemographic and recognized clinical factors ac-
count for much of obscrved disparities in health
outcomes.”” Others have contended (hat intrinsic bio-
logical and genetic predispositions toward CKD and
its complications, along with differential responses to
trcatment, may contribute substantially to thesc dispari-
ties for Hispanics.” Morcover, few studies have incor-

224

porated detailed data for sociceconomic status, health
insurance. and access to care.™® Of those that did, the
observed disparitics in regard to higher rates of ESRD
in Hispanics appear 10 be explained only partially by
these factors.” By virtue of their prospective longitudi-
nal design and detailed collection of paticnt-level
data, the H-CRIC and CRIC Studics are poised 1o
identify additional genetic, biological, and sociocul-
tural factors that contribute to racial/fethric differ-
ences in CKD-related outcomes.

As in other obscrvational analyses, infercnces re-
garding causality arc limited by residual bias and
confounding. Howcver, method strategies have been
adopicd to minimize these concerns.'”'® Another po-
tenial limitation pertains 10 the generalizability of
findings from CRIC and H-CRIC participants. As
previously described,'”!® the CRIC cohort over-
sampled certain subgroups (ic, African Americans)
and recruited participants from select geographic siles
and therefore is not a population-based sample like
the NHANES CKD cohort. Similarly, most Hispanie
participants in CRIC/H-CRIC were Mexican Ameri-
cans {69%) and were recruited from the Chicago
metropolitan area (85%). Although many character-
istics of our Hispanic cohort, including couniry of
origin, education, income, and primary language,
arc similar to represcntative samples, such as those
in NHANES,?'**2 j{ is important 10 recognize thal
our Hispanic cohort does not include robust repre-
scntation from all Hispanic subgroups and geo-
graphic regions of the United States. Therefore,
findings reported here may not fully generalize to
all US Hispanics with CKD. Last, although a recent
study has indicated that the CKD-EPI equation for
eGFR is relatively accurate for Hispanics,** this
equation has not been validated in large diverse
samples of Hispanics. Hence, eGFR findings re-
poried here across racial/ethnic groups may be
subject to bias.

In conclusion, Hispanics with CKD in the CRIC/H-
CRIC Studies are disproportionately burdened with
lower sociocconomic status, more frequent diabetes
mellitus, worse blood pressure control, lower receipt
of ACE-inhibitor/ARB medications, and more scvere
CKD with disproportionate associated melabolic com-
plications than their non-Hispanic white and black
counterparts. The consequences of these observed
diffcrences across racial and cthnic groups are less
clear. Although multiple studies have found an in-
creased burden of adverse sociodemographic charac-
teristics, ¢linical risk factors, and ESRD in Hispanicy
compared with whites.2*%1%%° 3 decreased risk of
cardiovascular events and death in Hispanics with
CKI> and ESRD has been observed,”**?’ which
is consistent with a phenomenon obscrved elsewhere

Am J Kidney Dis. 2011:58{2):214-227
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called the Hispanic paradox.** Thercfore, longitudinal
analyscs arc critically nceded to {ully examine the
impact of these baseline health disparities as potential
mediators of racial/fethnic variation in CKD-related
clinical outcomes. Improving our understanding of
the causes and consequences of health disparities in
Hispanics with CKD has the polential to allow us to
more effectively identify and address barricrs 1o health
care and improve outcomes for this population 2>
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Profite of General Demographic Characteristics: 2000

Census 2000 Summary File 1 (SF 1) 100-Percent Data

NOTE: For informatian on confidentiality protection, nonsampling error, definitions, and count correclions see
hitpfifactfinder.census.govihome/en/datancies/expsfiu him.

Subject

Plainfield village, tilinois

. ~ L Number i !’ercent_ “k
Total population : 13,038 1000 |
"SEXAND AGE N [ 1

Male | 6,537 501 1
[Female T B ) 6,501 499

Under 5 !E.ﬂm t 1,248 __9_@ "
" 5to 9 years - : 1,276 88

10to 14 years § 1401 84
S0 19years 80 T e

20 to 24 years | 551 4.2

25 1o 34 years ‘ 2,023 155
- 3510 44 years J_ ﬂ -M2-,695 207 j
4510 54 years T T 1,725 132
"“55 10 59 years N J[‘ 506 39 |

60 fo 64 years ———— o 204 | 23
L 65to 74 years 427 33
[ 75wBayears ) 2087|7723
. B85 years and over 96 0.7
l_ Median age (years) 33z {X)

18 years and over 8881 | 684 I
™ Male 4,367 335 "
Female B 4,514 346 |
F 21 years and over 8476 | 65.0 |
62 years and over 973 75 (
&5 years and over T B18 83
Male o 327 25
- Female 4g | 1.8
PRACE ™~ T T
| Onerace v 12913 ¢ 990_,
___:'_N_rl!l?._ L — _12,49? ] 959
_E!_la_cif or Afnc_an {\merican -4-__ ’ 340 0.8
American Indian and Alaska Native 10 0.1
Asian _ o 183 ¢ 1.3
Asian Indian o n2
Chinese _ . ¥ _ 03
™ Filpino 9 0.3
Japangse o 7 Y
, Koraa_r_'l‘_ T _ ___— ? ’ ”mzéi T 0._2_'
Vietnamese 1 0.0
“Gther Asian (1] o 27 02
Native Hawaiian and Other Pacific Isfander T YT " 00
Y Native Hawaian T T 0.0
" GuamadianorChamoio T T T Tg T T Rg”
Samoan 0! 00
[ -tfer Pacif sandertal —~ * ) QS I

1 06f3
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. Subject Plginﬁeid village, lllinois
. B Numbor__" ;Percent )
Some other race o 132 | 10 |
. Two of more races 128 | 10 |
Race alene or in combination with one or more other
yaces [3]
1 White N 12,613 — 3BT
™ Black or African American T 126 10
;’ American Indian and Alaska Nati\{e_‘_ = 50 1 o _(_J_ii__‘
Asian 201 1.5
MNative Hawaiian and Other Pacific Islander 8 01
“"Some other race T 170 1.3
HISPANIC OR LATING AND RACE i
Total population 13,038
™ Hispanic or Latino (of any race) T 504
“Mexican C - e
Puerto Rican il i 51
| Cuban e 16 !
[ Gther Hispanic or Latino * 66
Not Hispanic or Latino 12534 |
" While alane o 12,144
RELATIONSHIP ;f [
[ Total population ™™~ T T 13,038 _ 1000 |
"I househoids ! 12,967 | 92.5
I Householder " N : 4315 331 _;
| Spouse | 3,177 244
Child ) 4,826 | 37.0
Own child under 18 years I 4,024 30.9
Other relatives . 30" \"... 25
~ Under 18 years - 1 Tor [T oy
Nonrelatives ; 319 24
Unri'lari'iod pariner [ 166 13

In group quarters

" institulionalized population

Noninstitutionaiized popu1ahon
HOUSEHOLDS BY TYPE

" Total households

" 'Family househollag'(f;hiliés“)

With ¢ own children under 18 years
" Married- couple’ family

With own children under 18 years

Female householder, no husband present

N " With own children under 18 years

Nonfamnly households

Householder or iving atone

"Houscholder 65 years and over
" Housenholds with individuals under 18 years

" Households with individuals 65 years and over

' Average household size
I' Average family size

HOUSING OCCUPANCY

' . Total housing units

4609 |

N Occup:ed housing units 4,315 93.8
a Va?:aﬁ housing units T 294 64
" For seasonal, recreational, or occasionat use . 31 Toa
“Homeowner vacar{oy_?-élé_(percent) | a7 .1 o (X} !
Rental vacancy rate (percent} T 31 T x)
HOUSING TENURE 7 4_ v ;
LOocupmed housmg units _ . | 4315 10e.0
Owner- occuplod housrng units : 3,783 87.7
Renler- occuplod housmg units ) 532 12.3
Average household size of owner-occupied untt ! 342 (X}
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Subiect " Plainfeld vilage, inois
A o L Numbgr_ __I Percent
F*"Average household size of renter-cocupied unit ] 216 0

(X} Not applicable.

(1) Other Asian alone, or two or more Asian categories.

[2] Cther Pacific Islander alone, or two or more Native Hawatian and Other Pacific Islander categories.

(3] In combination with one or more other races listed. The six numbers may add to more than the total populaticn and the six percenlages may add to

more than 100 percent because individuals may report mere than one race.

Source' U.8. Census Bureau, Census 2000 Summary File 1, Matrices P1, P3, P4, P8, P9, P12, P13, P17, P18, P19, P20, P23, P27, P28, P33,
PCTS, PCT8, PCT11, PCT15, H1, H3, H4, H5, H11, and H12.
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U.S. Census Bureau

AMERICAN Q ‘ —— ) A ﬁ,, N

d s ! “;s . - /', ) . - “\ \\-z. RS
FactFinder . . I
DP-1 Profile of General Population and Housing Characteristics: 2010

2010 Demographic Profile Data

NOTE: For more information on confidentiality protection, nonsampling error, and definitions, see http:/fwww.census goviprodicen2010/doc/dpsf pdf.

Geography: Plainfield village, Winois

o éﬁwl;fect TR "~ Number ) P';vrwégthWMM
SEXAND AGE ) ! I
. Total population o . 30581 __—””“"106"5”
! Under 5 yeafs_m o . ! 3477 8.8
| Blogyears —— T 433 | 10|
" 10to 14 years ) 4,002 10.3
'——_1_5_'10 19 years o . 2836 T 74 ;
20 to 24 years ’ 1,464 | 37
2510 29 years mmmm——— 1,584 40
300 34 yoars C ! 2655 6.7
351039 years o ) T 14 | 104
4010 44 years 4,250 107 |
4510 49 years _ - T 3,338 84
" 5010 54 years o ' 2,257 57
- 5510 59 years ) ) 1623 1 41 1
80 to 64 yearan | “13}? M| - . 35 ¢
6510 69 years ' ‘ © o778 . 20
0t0 74 years i 0 491 12
7510 79 yoars ' B 293 0T
™ 80 10 84 years o 243 1T 777 os f
85 years and over ’ o 274 0T {
* Median age (years) o N 338 ) (3(—) |'
16 years and over S W 28959 | 68.1 |
18 years and over 25,647 | 64.8
“21 years and over - ' 24437 61.7 4
" 62 years and over B L 2,878 BEE I
65 years and over ' 2,079 53
Mate pohpulatibn o 19, 633 Al 495
Under 5 years T 769 | et
| 5109 years Coememm o T ST omes T 58 |
i 10toi4years ¢ T 208
.15 {016 years | T 7 1m0
2010 34 years T e 768 |
" 251029 years v“*' ) 783 1
3010 34 years T 208 T 30
3576 38 years } T e T 4
Wt_o 44 years - Q ” 3 MMMMM 2,669 i _:-:‘5?1
45 10 49 years { 1,738 44 !
50t0 54 years T T ey g 30
E5 10 59 years T 815 2.1
(“E010 64 years R T 665 EER
65 to 69 years T : I362N - 0.9
70t0 74 years oo j 231 ! T 06
" 7510 79 years ’ - i 119 o 03
B0 1o 84 years o ) o 8 - _ 02
85 years andover | ' 02
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L Subject | Number " Percent _
f Medianage {years) oA 33.1 (X) |
16 years and over 13,176 333
™18 years and over e T 12,482 A6
21 years and over o ; 11,853 29.9
&2 years and over j 1265 32

65 years and over ' 882 22 1"
(Femafe population " e 1_9._9_48, e 04
‘Under 5 years 1,708 4, 3

" Sw9years .~ T 2080 52
("6 0 Tayears T 2034 s
15 to 19 years - L _iﬁ_ o 1 434 T 36 i
'26'15“24years T T T e 18
25020 years . 82 T 23,
"301034 years | T ' 1,449 37
| 351038 years R X TN 55
4010 44 years 2,181 55
4510 49 years 1,600 4.0 |
""50 10 54 years T 1078 27 |
| 55 to 58 years B 808 2.0
60 to 64 years - ) 712 | 18
" 6510 60 years - T T 416 1.1
| 7010 74 years : 260 0.7 J
[ "75t0 79 years ) o 174 04 |
" 80'to 84 yoars 7] 154 0.4
85 years and over i a3 0.5
“iadian ags {yéars) Y 3
™16 years and over T 13,783 - 348
18 years and over ’ ! 13.155 332
, 21 years and over L o . Y2584 :_ 8 7]
62yoars and over HE 1,613 a1
EASS years and over o~ 1197 | 30_
e o L | .
kTotal population_ ] ~ __—"*f 39,581 __Ja0.0 "
One Race . : 38,704 ] 97.8 .
White 32347 - 81.7
Black or African American - | 2,202 5.6
A Amencan an Indian and Alaska Nalive o 89 0.2
Asian T T3016 76
Astan ndian ) _1.183 | 307}
Chinese o T i 291 o7
Filipino 734 R
" Japanese ) T 01
Korean o 166 0.4
" Viginamese T 131 03 |
™ Otner Asian (1] 489 . 12
" Native Hawaitan and Other Pac:ﬁc Islander o 16 | 00
" Native Hawaiian o 8 0.0
~ Guamanian or Chamorro T 1 a T_ T o0 -
e S o8
" Samoan 9. .00, 4
Other Pacific Islander [2] 4 00
| Some Other Race 1.631 26
" “Two or More Races B 880 22 |
[ White; Amenican Indian and Alaska Native [3] 68 02
White; Asian 3] j‘ 322 | 08 |
White; Black ar African American [3] - 184 Y
White; Some Other Race [3) 134 7T o3
Race alone or in combination with one or more other ¥
races: [4)___ A :
While 33115 83.7
Bfack or Alrican American o 2,453 62
Amencan Indian and Alaska Native 199 05

2 ot 4
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L swhjest " Number " Percent _
; Asian 3449 . BT
" Native Hawaiian and Olher Pacific islander T 02
~"Some Other Race _ - T 1,238"" - _ 3_1
HISPANIG OR LATING - T !
f Total poputation T 30,581 ; ) 1000
Hlspamc or Lailno (of any race) 4 247 .T o 107
Mexican ' T a4 79
-~ Foerts Rican | S5 | 13
Cuban T 88 02
Other Hlspamc or Latino {5] T e 519 o 1.3
" Not Hispanic or Lating - | o 35 334 T aes
HISPANIC OR LATINO AND RACE i
W‘.al population ] _ %9581 1000 .
Hispanic or Latino 4,247 107
Whita alone ™ T T T aga T 74
Black or African American alone o 47 ' 01
American Indian and Alaska Nalive alone 43 0.1
Asian alone 1T 7 "2 0.4 .
Nativa Hawaiian and Other Pacific Islander aTone o 4 . 0_,9_“
““Some Other Race alone | 969 T 24
Twa or More Races T _” ] .21 06
Not Hispanic or Lating 35,3 89.3
Whte alone C a5, 743
Black or African American alone ’ T Taiss o 54 !
[, mArﬁgﬂrﬂican Indian and Alaska Nalive alone o 46 R 01 J
Asian alone 2,993 78 4‘
Native Hawalian and Other Pacific lsfander alone ._L ______ 21 oo ':
~Some Other Race alone | . 62 o _EL_Z |
; TwoorMoreRaces ~~~ — "7 " b “___El§1 o 16 4
RELATIONSHIF' ] I
|'Total populatlon T 3eser | 1000
in househoids 1 39472 99.7
Householder . o 11,920 | 30.1 ;
Spouse [6] - 077 T gear i T 223
. cnig 7T ——— T T e0a1 | T 407
" Own child under 18 years ‘1'3,31“19- T 7 33z
Other relatives 1,686 43
"7 Under 1B years ' - 506 1.3
.65 years and over — 423 17 117}
Nonrelahves 933 24
Under 18 years o 77 N 02
65yearsan30ver N 4_2-_—- Y 0.1
Unmarried partner T j 506 1.3
“Ingroup quarers - 109 03
Tnstitutionaiized population 7 i " e | H C 0 ]
Male T T T, 04
Female = 7 . - S 86 T 0.2_
Nonlnstnullonahzed populallon- T | ¥ T o0
Male - P - 0 - 0.0
Female : i 0 ’ 00
HOUSEHOLDS BY TYPE T o '
| Total househotds T ; 11820 * 1000
Family houscholds (families) [7) m ] 10,155 852 |
With own children under 18 years o 6,602 55.4
Husband-wife family o 8,842 1 B ‘ 742
With awn children under 18 years L _:_ _ 57% 486 i
L Male householder, no wife present - i 367 31
i With own children under 18 years . 201 1.7
L Female householder, no husband present " ) 94 1 7.9 |
i_“ With own ¢ children under 18 years _ 606 | 5.1
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. Subject Number Percent
“Nonfamily housaholds 7] T T :____ - _“1-,?6-5- T 14.8
“Householder living alone 1,365 BT

Male \ ‘ 627 |._. 83
I 5 years and over j 75 0.6
Female , 738 82
65 years and over | 269 23‘—]
|~ Households with individuals under 18 years ; 6870 | 576 |
" Households with individuals 65 years and over ] A64 123 1
:'A\Eggs{household size T 0T ‘;"_ __ 331 | {(x_
fweragie family sizg v[}'I] : 382 ) (X))
FOUSING GCCUPANCY ™™ TR i
) T_ogh_ousing vnits _T ’ .12_,5—32 150,0 H
Occupled housing units T 11,920 95.1
Vacant housing units [ T o e12 49 )
“Forreml ) m T T 158 | 13 |
| " Rented, not accupied | 2 | 02
For sale only 236 19 3
= Soid, Tt ocoupied” BT 63
For seascnal, recreational, or occasional use T R 03 |
" All other vacants | 152 | T4z
il Homeowner vacancy rate (percent) [8] e 24 o {?_}_J
LEentgLv?mEy rate {percent) (9] 1.7 o (__LJ
HOUSING TENURE T ] o
Occupied housing units | 11,920 100.0 ‘|
| Owner-occupied housing units j TYTTTTT0,732 90.0 |
" Populafion in owner-occupied housing units | 36,003 | Xy
Average household size of owner-occupied units 336 (X1 i
™ Renter-ocoupied housing units T Toass T 106 f
Population in renter-occupied housing uniis ! 3,379 (X1
Average household size of renfer-occupied units ‘il 2.84 tXy !

X Not applicable.

[1] Other Asian alone, or twa or more Asian categories.

[2] Other Pacific Islander alone, or two or more Native Hawaiian and Other Pacific Islander categories.
(3] One of the four most commonly reported mulliple-race combinations nationwide in Census 2000.

(4] In combination with one or more of the thar races listed. The six numbers may add to more than the total population, and the six percentages may
add to more than 100 percent because individuzls may report more than one rage.

(5] This category is composed of people whose origins are from the Dominican Republic, Spain, and Spanish-speaking Central or South American
countries. It also includes general origin responses such as "Latina” or "Hispanic.”

[6] "Spouse” represents spouse of the householder. {t does not reflect all spouses in a household. Responses of "same-sex spouse” were edited
during processing to "unmarnied pariner.”

[7] "Family households" consist of a householder ang one or more other people related to the householder by birth, marriage, or adoption. They do not
include same-sex married couples even if the marriage was performed in a state issuing mariage certificates for same-sex couples. Same-sex couple
househalds are included in the family households category if there is at least one additional person related to the heuseholder by birth or adoption.
Same-sex couple househotds with no relatives of the householder present are tabulated in nonfamily househclds. "Nonfamily households” consist of
people living alone and households which do not have any members related io the householder.

[B] The hameowner vacancy rate is the proportion of the homeowner inventory that is vacant “for sale.” It is computed by dividing the total number of
vacant units "for sale only" by the sum of owner-occupied units, vacant units that ara "for sale enly,” and vacant units that have been sold but not yet
occupied; and then multiplying by 100.

19] The rental vacancy rale is the proportion of the rental inventory that is vacant “for rent.” It is compuled by dividing the total number of vacanl units
*for rent” by the sum of the renter-occupied units, vacant units that are “for rent,” and vacant units that have been rented but not yet occupied; and
then mulliplying by 100,

Source: L.S. Census Bureau, 2010 Census.
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NEED DETERMINATION—PREVALENCE RATES
'OVERALL PREVAUENC |

E:OFIESRD

e

I IR

&rm

Fae o “ﬁf‘z -':\w:ﬁ ‘W“'J_’:” —7 - - ‘
1,699 per. million population

Prevalence for Pattents 65-74 years

5,941 per million population

Prevalence for Patients 75 years and over

5,266 per million population

Prevalence for African American Population

5,205 per million popuiation

Prevaience for Hispanic Population

2,458 per million population

Average High Risk Prevalence (Mixed Average)

EY

4,718 per million population

{Source: U.S. Renal Data Service, 2010 Annual Data Report: Volume 2 Atlas of End Stage Renal Disease, at 259)

—arber—

Overall Prevalence

Incremental
Population_

100,000

APPLICATION OF ADJUSTED PREVALENCE

Prevalence |

0.1699%

_ Patients

Stations

Required

28

Average High Risk Prevaience

100,000

0.4718%

79
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APPLICATION OF ADJUSTED PREVALENCE

2 MILLION —] 100
— 3
- & b 90
hat
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— & — 80
—_ - ]
£ gl 70
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— € 60
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1 MILLION = 50
_ »
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— 2 .. 40
—1 9 uf
— 5 220
1z z
|8 2. 2 20
14 o <)
a | b
_ < < . 10
_ b n
0 0

Nor-Adjusted Adjusted
Prevalence Prevalence

Attachment 26 107



ATTACHMENT 26

UNNECESSARY DUPLICATION OF SERVICES

The attached tables show the following information:

e A list of zip code areas that are located, in total or in part, within 30 minutes normal

travel time of the project's site; and

» The total population of the identified zip code areas (based upon the 2010 population

numbers available for the State of [llinois population).

Zip Code Total
Population
60585 22,311
60564 41,312
60504 37,919
60555 13,538
60563 35,922
60540 42,910
60490 20,463
60565 40,524
60440 52,911
60532 27,066
60433 17,160
60432 21,403
60441 36,869
60451 34,063
60491 22,743
60517 32,038
60515 27,503
60516 29,084
60559 24,852
60439 22,919
60561 23,115
60527 27,486
60185 36,527
60190 10,663
60189 30,472
60467 26,046
60480 5.246
60525 31,168
60458 (4.428

Zip Code Total
Population

60537 665
60450 20,332
60410 12,687
60421 3,968
60536 126
60541 3,148
60560 22,415
60545 12,940
60511 1,793
60512 LU
60554 11,796
60447 (3,709
60538 26,619
60506 53,013
60542 17,099
60539 341
60543 36,156
60503 16,717
60505 76,573
60519 88
60502 21,873
60510 28,897
60404 17,395
60586 46,251
60431 22,577
60544 25,959
60436 18,315
60435 48,899
60403 17,529
60446 39.807
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ATTACHMENT 26

UNNECESSARY DUPLICATION OF SERVICES

The names and locations of all existing or approved health care facililies located within 30
minutes normal travel from the site that provide the dialysis services that are proposed by the
project. This table indicates both facilities within an unadjusted 30 minute drive time and the
1.15 factor adjusted 30 minute drive time. Utilization data for these facilities is taken from the
fourth quarter 2011 ESRD utilization .

Mapquest maps of driving times and distances are included in Appendix 2 in the order they
appear in the facility table.
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U.S. RENAL CARE PLAINFIELD DIALYSIS UTILIZATION ANALYSIS

FACILITIES WITHIN A 30 MINUTE DRIVE TIME RADIUS (1.15 ADJUSTED)

Adjusted Included
Name Map Address City Cz;::([l)e County HSA | Stations | Patients 2::: ?.:::: Utililz';tion Utilization
(1.L15X) Analysis

Fresenius Medical Carc of | 6604 Mill Road Oswego 60543 Kendall 9 10 4] 18 207 Y 68.3%
Oswego
Fox Valley Dialysis 1300 Waterford Aurora 60504 Kane 8 26 145 11 2.7 Y 92.9%
Center Dirive
Fresenius Medical Center | 24900 West Caton | Plainfield 60544 will 9 16 71 10 1.3 Y 740% |
of Plainficld Farm Road
Silver Cross Renal Center | 1031 Essington Jotiet 60435 will 9 29 147 18 20.7 Y 84.5%
West Road
Sun Health 2121 Oneida Street | Jolict 60433 Wil 9 17 55 22 25.3 Y 53.9% |
Fresenius Medical Care of | 514 West 5th Naperville 60563 DuPage 7 4 70 24 27.6 Y 83.3%
Naperville-Norih Avenue
Fresenius Medical Care 2451 South Naperville 60565 will 9 16 0 17 19.6 Y 0.0%
Naperbrook Washingion Street
USRC Bolingbrook 396 Reminglon Bolingbrook 60440 will 9 13 0 18 207 Y 0.0%
Dialysis Boulevard
FMC Bolingbrook 329 Remington Bolingbrook 60440 Wilh 9 24 121 18 20,7 Y 84.0%

Road
FMC - Naperville 100 Spalding Drive | Naperville 60366 Suburban 7 i5 81 22 253 Y 90.0%

Cook

Fresenius Medical Care 721 East Jackson Joliet 60432 Will o 16 Q 28 32.2 N 0.0%
Joliet Street
UTILIZATION CALCULATION FOR FACILITIES W/IN 30 MIN DRIVE TIME 196 731 11 62.2%
UTILIZATION CALCULATION FOR FACILITIES W/IN ADJUSTED 30 MIN DRIVE TIME 130 731 10 67.7%
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ATTACHMENT 26

MALDISTRIBUTION

This Project will not result in maldistribution, because there is not a ratio of stations to
population that exceeds onc and one-half times the State average.

A ratio of stations to population that exceeds one and one-half times the State average:

The ratio of stations to population for within a 30 minute drive time of the proposed facility
does not exceed onc and a half times the State average. The State average. calculated from the
most-recently available IDPH Revised Needs Determinattons for ESRD Stations dated May 17,
2012 and 2010 census population statistics results in a state station to population ratio of |
station per 3,346 persons. The calculated station to population ratio within the 30 minute drive
time of the proposed facility is | station per 7,282 persons. Thus the station to population ratio
within the 30 minute drive time of the proposed facility docs not exceed one and one-half times
the State average; in fact it is one-half the State average demonstrating that there is not a
maldistribution of stations in the 30 minute drive time of the proposed facility.

The associated calculation of station to population ratios is included in this attachment. The
calculation for the state station to population ratio util:zes 2010 Census data for the State of
Illinots and the total station count as found on the IDPH Revised Needs Determinations for
ESRD Stations dated May 17, 2012. The calculation of the station to population ratio for
facilitics within a 30 minute drive time s calculated using all facilities and zip codes identified
in the Unnecessary Duplication of Services attachment.

13717 U.S. Route 30, Plainfield, Illinois 60544

Total Number of Stations for Facilities within a 30 Minute Drive Time 196
Total Population for Zip Codes within a 30 Minute Drive Time 1,427,459
Ratio of Stations to Population 7,282

State of lllinois

Total Number of Stations in the State of lllinots 3.834
Total Population in the State of Illinois 12,830,632
Ratio of Stations to Population 3,346
2200280v1
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ATTACHMENT 26

IMPACT OF PROJECT ON OTHER AREA PROVIDERS

The addition of 13 ESRD stations at the U.S. Renal Care Plainfield Dialysis Facility would only
account for 6.6% of the total shift capacity in the unadjusted 30-minute drive time area and
5.2% of the total shift capacity in HSA 9. Assuming 80% utilization (9,734 shifts per year) was
achieved immediately, the facility would only make a 5.3% difference in the 30 minute drive
time occupancy levels and less than a 4.2% difference in the total shift capacity of HSA 9. This
increase in stattons is {ractional compared to the number of licensed stations in the area, thus it
is unlikely that the addition of these stations will lower the utilization of other area providers,
both thosc who arc operating above 80% and those operating below 80%.

*This calculation is based on the HSA 9 approved stations of 250 as calculated on the TDPH
Revised Needs Determinations for ESRD Stations datcd May 17, 2012 and the 30 minute drive
time facilities as identified in Attachment 26 Unnecessary Duplication of Services.  Shift
capacity of each station is calculated as 3 shifts per day, 6 days a week, 52 wecks a year.

2200280v1
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ATTACHMENT 26

STAFFING AVAILABILITY

Medical Director
The curriculum vitae of the facility's Medical Director is included in this attachment.

Staff Recruitment

U.S. Renal Care, Inc. recruits facility personnel through the use of various job posting websites
as well as a recruitment tool maintained on the corporate website (available at
http://www.usrenalcare.com/us_renal_care_careers.htm).

Training

Applicant maintains rigorous orientation and training requiremcnts for all staff of dialysis
facilitics. Clinical staff arc subjecct to a comprehensive orientation regimcen providing training
for such personnel in multiple areas (policics related to orientation and competencies are
included in this attachment). Such staff are also required to comply with any federal or state
training requirements necessary for certification in their respective fields. In additton, U.S.
Renal maintains both corporate and facility level training requirements for facility staff. For
example, all staff are subject to corporate requirements for annual competency assessments and
quarterly assignments provided through U.S. Renal Carc's training tool, Health Streams (a copy
of the schedulc of assignments, email reminder and completion report are included in this
attachment). Furthermore, dialysis statf are also required to comply with any facility required
training programs as implemented by the governing body of the dialysis facility (see attached
policy# EO-8002).

Staffing Plan

Applicant maintains staffing ratios in compliance with state requirements for the state in which
Applicant maintains a dialysis facility. Included in this attachment is the U.S. Renal Care policy
regarding staffing ratios which demonstrates the requirement for on duty RNs when the patients
are present and maintenance of direct patient care providers in compliance with state
regulations. In the case of Tllinots Applicant will maintain a ratio of onc direct patient carc
provider to every four patients.

2200280v]
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Naila I Ahmed MD

9299 East Falling Water Drive
Burr Ridge, Il 606527
Phone (312) 560 1095 m (630) 8878005 Email:nailz.ahmed@comeast.net

CLINICAL EXPERIENCE

Pariner at Northeast Nephrology Assodiates 2002 - present. Working at St Joseph medical center,
Silver Cross hospital and Morris hospital and take care of dialysis patients at outpatient centers including
Silver Cross /Davita units, Fresinius, Nursing home etc.

Director at Silver Cross/ Davita East Hospital Unit.

Joliet home therapy: Director of Peritoneal dialysis Unit. Responsible for Building the PD program and
supervision, management etc.

Clinical Instructor at Michael Reese Hespital, Chicago, Illinois, 2002 to 2005
Served as member of the Pharmacy Committee at ST. Joseph hospital medical center from 2005-2007
CHAIRMAN OF NEPHROLOGY, SILVER CROSS HOSPITAL, JOLIET, ILLINOIS FROM 5/07- present

Feflowship, Dept of Nephrology, University of Illinois at Chicago, 7/00 — 6/02
Residency, University of Illinols at Chicago, Dept. of Internal Medicing, Chicago, IL, 7/97 - 6/00
Externship, Veterans Affairs Medical Center/ George Washington University, Washington, D.C, 5/96 —
10/96

tipld Clinic, Genrge Washingbton University Hospital, Washington, D.C., 10/96~ 2/97

Internship, Departments of Medicine & Surgery, Dhaka Medical College Hospital, Bangladesh, 2/94- 2/95.
Completed training in General Medicine, Pediatrics and Psychiatry, General Surgery, Trauma (Casualty,
Burm Unit, Neurosurgery), Orthopedics & Urology.

RESEARCH EXPERIENCE:

Research Fellow, Dept of Nephrology, University of Iilinols at Chicago, 7/01- 6/02: As part of Nephrology
Fellowship, worked at Cook County Hospital Research Lab on wound healing mode, studying the role of
Angiogenic factor such as Vascular Endothelial Growth Factor (VEGF), Angiopoietin, TIE 2 etc. In
regulating Angiogenesis in Non Diabetic rat, PUBLISHED.

Research Assistantship, Department of Cardiology, George Washington University Hospital, Washington,
D.C, 10/96-5/97. Women's Mealth Initiative Study: NIH funded research to evaluate the benefits and risks
of estrogen replacement, low-fat diet and cakium supplement on overall morbidity and mortality of
post-menopausal women,

Research Assistantship, Department of Neurology, and Veterans Affairs Medical Center, Washington, D.C,
9/96: WARSS (Warfarin/Aspirin Recurrent Stroke Study): NIH funded double biind, multicenter Trial,
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Research Assistantship, {nited Nations Children's Fund (UNICEF), Bangladesh: Assisted In study on
“Infant Feeding Practices in Bangladesh”, breastfeeding vs, formula among women in  Bangladesh,
EDUCATION:

Board Certified in Nephrology, 2002

The American Board of Intemal Medicine Certification, 8/00

Educational Commission for Forelgn Medical Graduates (ECFMG) Certification, 4/96

USMLE Step 1, 9/95: USMLE Step 2, 3/96: USMLE Step 3, 12/98

Certificate of Full Registration, Bangladesh Medical and Dental Coundl, 2/95

Bachelor of Sclence in Medicine & Surgery (M.B.B.S.), Dhaka Medical College, University of Dhaka,

Bangladesh, 1994

HONORS:

« Ranked 8th in Dhaka Regional-Higher Secondary Cartificate Exam. 1984
+ Honors, 2nd M.B.B.S. Professional Exam; ranked 15% in Bangladesh Nationa) Boards, 1988
» Consistently ranked among the top 5% of the class in Dhaka Medical College

SCHOLARSHIP:
Full scholarship to Medical Schoot on the basis of Nationa! Boards rank In Higher Secondary Certificate
School Bxam,

PROFESSIONAL ORGANIZATIONS:

American College of Physicians
American Sodety of Internal Mediclne
National Kidney Foundation

American Society of Nephrology

PERSONAL:

Foreign Languages: Fluent in Bengali, basic Urdu/Hindi
American Cltizen :

References Available Upon Request
1. DR NAGARKATTE TEL 8157445550, NEPHROLOGY
2. DR, GAUTAM GUTTA INTERNAL MEDICINE, PROVENA ST JOSEPH HOSPITAL.

3. DR NAZNEEN NOORANI 630-881-6506, INTERNAL MEDICINE
4, DR AMAR GARAPATI, PULMONARY, SILVERCROSS HOSPITAL,
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us.lneum CARE

CONTINUING EDUCATION & IN-SERVICE EFFECTIVE DATE:

PROGRAMS 012011

POLICY # EO-8002 PAGE10OF1 REVISION DATE:
01/2012

CONTINUING EDUCATION & IN-SERVICE PROGRAMS-
SEE STATE SPECIFIC ALSO

PURPOSE: To provide guidelines on continuing education

POLICY:

All employees must have the opportunity for continuing education and related
development activities. Continuing education and in-service programs are
encouraged for all staff in the facility to continuously improve the quality of
patient care by increasing staff knowledge.

PROCEDURE:

The governing body or designated persons are responsible for developing
regularly scheduled monthly in-service programs that will meet the needs of the
staff and the center.

Documentation of attendance at continuing education activities will be kept in
the personnel file for each staff member. Continuing education activitics may
consist of, but are not limited to; seminars, lectures, and educational workshops
for one-on-one training.

The Facility Administrator will maintain minutes of all such meetings, including
attendance records. Out of center continuing education programs will be at the
guidance of the Facility Administrator.
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uaIRENAL CARE

Hemodialysis Charge Nurse Skills Checklist EFFECTIVE DATE:
0172011

POLICY # EO-1002 REVISION DATE:
04/2011

Enmiployee:

Title:

Facility:

Date of Hire:

PA. VA, NY, GA a 1.PN maybe a charge nurse as long as dizlysis RN is available in the butlding, The LPN may not supervise a RN

Charge Nurse, Administrator, or qualified designes may perform skills verification as preceptor
Objectives: To enswe preper orientation 1o the charpe nurse position,
To provide a smooth transilion from the clinical floer setiing to the charge position

Expeclalions: The Charge Nurse will demonstrate ability to complete all charge nurse duties as per all facility protocols and procedures according 1o job description

N Oricntation Requirements

: Date Completed

Preceptor Signature ™

Recerved a copy of the Federal/State Regulations and beeome familiar with the rule
and regulations of the practicing state

Understands and accepts expectations of job description

Knows the facility's floor plan for emergency purposes and location of the
equipment and suppties.

Demonstrate knowledge of policies and procedures:

4, Patients’ Rights and Responsibilities a.

b. Patient’s Gricvance Procedure

o |

¢. Patient/StafT disaster plan, emergency evacuation and use of 4
emergency supplies

facihities

d Proccss for transferring patient (o hospitals and other health care d.

¢. Patient Admissions and Discharges

o

f. Processing of the transient patient f

Lip]

g Admimstration of medications and {count of narcotics) if required per
fagility procedure.

=

h_Administration of blogd products (if provided) as per facihity protocol

Demonstates knowledge of the Electronic Medical Record{EMR)

Pass a written comprehensive exam on Renal A&P, ESRD, and Hemodialysis with a
score of 80% or better.

Pass a written medication test as related to dialysis and other conditions related to renal
fadlure

Atiend formal charge nurse educanon class centact educalor.

Daily Responsibilities ~. . -

Date Completed

" Preceptor Signature

Watcr Checks

Verifiex Waler lesting is performed per policy,

a. AM apening - Check all water parameters, a.

Pressure pauges, Softner and Carbon Tanks

b Checks Carbon tanks prior to start of gach shift h

¢ End of the day cheeks - Softner tank C

. Ensures all logs are properly completed. d.

Clinical Chegks

Knows 1l Iocation of the emergency cart, AED and suction equipment

Ensures all equipment is functional and ready for bse

Verifics all daily checks are done, i ¢.; glucometer, AED, crash cart, oxygen, suction

|supphes

Assures drug counts are performed and accurate at siarl and end of day and documents on
lovgs

Verfies temperatures on medication and lab refndgerators are within established hmils
ard docinments on logs.

Makes daily staf¥ assignments hased on patient needs

Frsutts staffing ratos do not exceed 4 PCT and 12 1/license nurse or as per slale regs.
EA s notified of not met

Ensures staff maintains inteprity of patient schedule. FA notified if not met

Pravides immediate supervision of patient care,

Provides oversight and direction 10 PCTs and |, VNs/LPNs

Intervenes Lo chanpes in patienl's condition

Recommends ¢hanyges in rgatment based on patient's curment needs

Ensurcs patients are in view of staff dunng hemodialysis trealments.
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I.I.S.-|_RENAL CARE

Hemodialysis Charge Nurse Skills Checklist

EFFECTIVE DATE:
01/2011

POLICY # EGC-1002

REVISION DATE:
04/2011

Ensures visulaization of the patients, Lheir access site, and their bloodline connections
during the dialysis treatmen

Enforees staff compliance 1o personnel policies reparding breaks, lunch perieds, ete.

Efficiently manages st2{f hours and overtime - including sending staff home as needed
when census is low.,

Ensurcs compliance with stale and federal regulations - FA potifted if not met

References the Policy and Procedure manua! to increase personal knowledpe of P&P

Practices according to company policies and procedures

Verifies and corrects others Io follow company P&

Foilows proper infection conirol practices

Monitorsfcornects infection comtrol practices for s1afl, patients and visitors - FA notified if
nol mel

Ensures biohazard wast is disposed of and siered properly

Orversees the clinical floor is kept ciean of debrisfspills

Ensures an enobsirueied path 1o patient slations is maintained

Ensures emergency exits are nol obstructed

Onversees that emerpency procedures are followed

Transeribes orders correcily onto Kardes, compuler system, andfor methods as per facilily
protogol

Verifies stafl is iranseribing/carrying oul orders correctly

Haspilalization of a patient: nolifies physician, sends correet paperwork, proper
documentation in progress notes.

Proper documentalion on retum of hospitalized patient

Conducls assessinem of 2 patient when indicated by a question relating lo a change in the
patient'’s status, extended ar frequent hospitatizalions, or at the patient’s request,

Facilitales communicatin between the patient, patient's family or significant other

Initiales and provide patient education and follow up as needed

Participales in 1he interdisciplinary team review of a patient's progress

Preparcs for and sssists witll CIP'A and POC completion as assipned

Proper medication ndminsiration, including use of proiocols lor:

a. Epagen

b. Witnmin [ Analogs: Caleijex, Heclorol, Zemplar

¢. lron: Venfor, Ferttecit

d Oxypgen

2. Hepitilis vacging

f. TB Tuberculin Testing

g Heparin

h. Lidocaine

RN ERREE

el Bl [ON T ol e B

1, Urokinase {Activase)

}. Antibiorics

k. Mormatl Saline

=l ol

Manapes complicalions during hemodialysis

8. Hypetension

b _Hypenension

c. Cramps

d Headaches

. Prurins

f Nausea, vomiting

. Fever, chills

h. Pyrogenic reaction

1. Chest pain_

TFE T

. Seirures

k.Hvpoglycerma

Fall o

—r[-—-.—-_:rrn,—x,n M

I. Hyperglveemia
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us.] RENAL CARE

Hemodialysis Charge Nurse Skills Checklist

EFFECTIVE DATE:
0112011

POLICY # EO-1002

REVISION DATE:
04/2011

Owersees use and nt of Reuse chemicals where applicable

a. Approve sterilant

b. Signs and symptoms of reaclion‘exposure

Proper use of incident reports

Verifies all ordered lab is drawn, processed, packaped and seni out

Verifies slafl perfomm pH/conductivity cheeks before Irgatmen

Recognizes machine problems, correctly handles machine problems, communicates with
technical

Comiunicates wilh physician, dietician, and social worker regarding patient needs

Ensures charts are closed out prior to leaving and al) paperwork commenicaled to
business office as required {billing logs, ¢1¢.)

Secures the building at the end of the day:

a. makes sure all patents have left the facility

b. cheeks that waler and acid valves have been temed off

¢ checks that answenng service has bee aclivared

d makes sure all doors have been locked

=8 bl e

e e

Weekly /Monthly /Quarterly Responsihilities L

Date Completed

Preceptor Signature

Checks crash can for adequacy of supplies, kind of supplies, and expiration dates, ie.;
meds, airway, lab lubes, misc,

Checks 10 see whal weekly labs need to be drawn

Review of lab resulls and reponts any eritical abnormat resuls (o the Physician

Adjust patient treatment aceording to fab results foltowing prolocel

Monthiv Diabetic Fool Checks done

Craarterly review of patient's home medication

_Treatment Initiation Responsiblities

Date Completed

Preceplor Signature

Conducls nursitty rounds once al] patients are undergoing treatment and

a. reviews patient pre-irearmen| assessments and vevilics accuracy and
compleleness

b. verilies all paramelers are sel Io prescribed order.

¢. verifies pre-treatmems machine checks have been perfermed and
documenied

d wverifies treatment 15 inilialed 3-5 minutes after heparin bolus is given
acconding to d ian

Intradialytic Responsibilities

Date Compleied

Preceptor Signature

Delegates administration of medications 1o licensed siafT

Verifies medications are prepared and labeled appropriately

Adjusts medicalion doses based on lab per established pretocol

Reviews "routine” charting by nurses/PCl's

Reviews "special situation” charting (acute problems, drug reactions, chest pain, fever,
blood loss, eic.)

Monilors machine alarms are answered in a timely manner

Ensures 142 of all patient care staff are present on the clinical floor at all tines,

Turn-Arcund Responsibilities

Date Completed

Preceptor Sipnature

Orchestrates a smooth wrnover by remaining on the dialysis floor during tumaver,
re-assigning stalf as needed nnd troubleshooting problems

Manitors sharps are disposed of properly

Monitors trash is disposed of properly

Ensures stafl does not take brenks during tumover

Ensures no personal phone colls are taken during turnover

Physician Rownding Responsibilities

Date Completed

Preceptor Signature

Rounds with physicians and review labs, medicalions and other study results with MD.
Updates M to anv new patient developments

Receives new orders, iranscribes themm accuraiely, and carmy themn oul in a time manner,

Emergency Procedures

" Date Completed

Preceplor Signatore

Cemonstrates Knawledge of Emergency Procedures

a. Fire evacualion

b. Loss of power

c. Loss of waier supply

d. Natural disasier procedures

Earthquake

Tornddo

Hurricane
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US| RENALCARE

Hemodialysis Charge Nurse Skills Checklist

EFFECTIVE DATE:

0172011

POLICY #EO-1002

REVISION DATE:
0472011

, has successfully completed the USRC Charge

Nurse Skills Checklist 1o intlude successful return demonstrations and 15 competent te perform the clinical

duties included on this checklist.

Employee Signature:

Reviewer Signalure;

Medical IXirector Signature;

Date:;

Drate:

Date,
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US.lRENAL CARE

POLICY: RN/LPN/LVN ORIENTATION EFFECTIVE DATE:
01/2011
POLICY # EO-1001 PAGE1OF1 REVISION DATE:

RN/LPN/LVN ORIENTATION

SCHEDULE FOR RN/LPN/LVN ORIENTATION AFTER ALL STEPS OF
HEMODIALYSIS ORIENTATION ARE MET

(Ex. RN/LPN/LVN may only need 4 weeks to achieve Hemodialysis Orientation and then
RN/LPN orientation can start)

Week 1

Week 11

Paperwork

Medication Administration and Documeniation

Dressing Changes

IV Pump

Review of PD concepts- schedule with PID Nurse. Ultra Bag Competency and
instillation of medications in PD bag.

Rounds with the physician

Transcribing orders

Evaluation

Charge Nurse Competency

Day I: Shadow the Charge Nurse

Day II-V: Charge Nurse role with Preceptor
Mcdication Test

Evaluation

Reference: Core Curriculum for Nephrology Nursing

Attachment 26
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U.S.-[RENAL CARE

POLICY : PATIENT CARE TECHNICIAN
CERTIFICATION

EFFECTIVE DATE:
01/2011

POLICY #: EO - 0012

PAGE 1 OF 1

REVISION DATE:

POLICY:

All Patient Care Technicians (PCT’s) shall be certificd under a staie or a nationally approved
certification program as follows:

1. For newly employed patient care technicians, within 18 months of being hired as a
dialysis patient care technician or

2. For paticnt Care technicians employed on October 14, 2008, within 18 months after this
date {on or before April 14, 2010).

3. For current employees who transfer in (o the patient care technician role from other jobs
(reuse or water treatment technicians) certification will be obtained in 18 months from
the date he/she started in the new PCT position

Ultimately US Renal Care (USRC) recognizes that certification of the PCT is an individual

responsibility and a condition of continued employment in the diatysis industry. USRC will:

I. Offer review classes for voluntary attendance.

2. Offer copies of the “Amgen Care Curriculum for the Dialysis Technician™ as a study

guide.

3. Assist the employee with the application process to ensure completion and thoroughness

of each application.

4. Pay initially for the first exam.

5. Reimburse for a second testing attempt once proof of a passing score is provided.

6. Encourage each PCT employed on October 14, 2008 to sit for the certification exam no
later than the end of January 2010 to ensure adequate time to reschedule and retake the
exam by the April deadline if necessary.

US Renal Care. Inc. proprietary and confidential information. All Righttattesepted
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U s.] RENAL CARE

POLICY : NEW CLINICAL STAFF GUIDE EFFECTIVE DATE:
01/2011
POLICY #: EO - 0002 PAGE1OF 5 REVISION DATE: 112012

HEMODIALYSIS ORIENTATION FOR NEW CLINICAL STAFF
Also see State Specific
USRC definition of ‘with experience’ —employee has provided 6 months hands on dialysis
patient care within the last 18 months.

The oricntation period is approximately 6 — 8 weeks in length for non dialysis experienced staff.
In order to meet the objective of the Orientation Checklist, and to allow for sufficient clinical
practice, the following schedule is presented as a guide. Mastery of both theory and clinical
skills is the responsibility of the student and no student may practice independently without
demonstration and documentation of required skills. Until the individual has satisfied the
training and competency requircments, the individual during the process of completing training
shall be identified as a trainee when present in any patient area of the facility.

Prior to providing dialysis care, all nursing staff shall demonstrate satisfactory completion of
cither the training program or educational equivalency and the competency skills assessment
checklist as required for the dialysis technicians.

Any registered nurse or licensed practical nurse who is employed without previous experience in
the dialysis process, and who has not yet successfully completed the skills competency checklist,
shall be directly supervised when engaged in dialysis treatment activities with patients by a staff
member who has demonstrated skills competency for dialysis treatment as required by the
State/Federal Regulations.

In addition 10 the Amgen and Nephrology Core Curriculums, the Employee Orientation Program
Workbook is a goed resource tool. Delivery of training material will be accomplished through a
combination of lecture, video presentations and independent study.

WEEK I:

Day 1: Facility tour and orientation

Overview of the scrvices provided by the facility

Mceet preceptor

Meet the staft and physicians

Review of Employee Handbook and Job Description

Staff Roles and Responsibilities

Overview of US Renal Care Philosophy

Overview of P & P Manual

Introduction of dialysis machine and dialysis prescription

Reference Amgen Core Curriculum

Read/review Module I and 1l {Today’s Dialysis Environment/The Person with Kidney
Failure)

Universal Precautions/OSHA Education

HIPAA training

Fire and Electrical Safety

Professional education

Vicw stale specific training videos

US Renal Care, Inc. proprictary and confidential information. All Righitapmept28
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u s.] RENAL CARE

POLICY : NEW CLINICAL STAFF GUIDE EFFECTIVE DATE:
01/2011
POLICY #: EO - 0002 PAGE2OF 5 REVISION DATE: 1/2012

Day 2:

Day 3:

Day 4.

Day 5.

Testing: OSHA (TB, Blood borne pathogens, Universal Precautions, Hepatitis)

Scavenger Hunt

Practice set up of dialysis machine with preceptor and removal of lines
Observation of Hemodialysis procedure and orientation to clinic routines
Praper cleaning of chairs, machines, clamps, and blood pressure cuffs
Basic chemistry of body fluids and electrolytes

History of Dialysis

[Legal and Ethical lssues

Hygiene and Grooming

Mobility and Positioning

Read/review Module 11l (Principles of Dialysis)

Practice sct up of dialysis machinc with preceptor

Introduction to screen of dialysis machine and machine components
Reference Braun Operators Manual

Vital signs

Overview of the continuous quality improvement program
Read/review Module IV (Hemodialysis Devices)

Role of the dialysts technician in a dialysis setting: legal and ethical considerations and
concepts of delegating.

Communication and Tcam work Skills

Pre and Post weights

Machine testing PH/conductivity/temperatures

Machine operation and introduction to problem solving with preceptor
Trouble shooting equipment — machine alarms

Practices set up of the dialysis machine

Policies and Procedures on Patients rights including Patient Bilt of Righis
Delivery of an adequate dialysis treatment and factors which may result in inadequate
Ireatment

Complications of dialysis and interventions

Aseptic technigue

Education on the proper usc of Safety Needles

IEducation on accidental needle sticks (Issues and Prevention Strategies for
Healthcare Workers

Preparation and use of dialysate baths

Practices set up of the dialysis machine

Elder Abuse in the dialysis machine

Testing: Module | (Today’s Dialysis Environment)
Identify allergies, patient chart (clectronic medical record)
[dentify goal, treatment time, UFR, TMP

Evaluation: Week |

US Renal Care, Inc. proprietary and confidential information. All Righftartenem 28
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USlRENAL CARE

POLICY : NEW CLINICAL STAFF GUIDE EFFECTIVE DATE:
01,2011

POLICY #: EO - 0002 PAGE3 OF § REVISION DATE: 1/2012

WEEK 2:

Continuc practice set up and use of dialysis machine
Residual testing for presence of bleach

Introduction and education on access placement and taping access

Review location and usc of emergency equipment:

(Oxygen, suction, crash cart, EKG, AED, Emergency box, fire drill & evacuation)

Introduction to patient monitoring during treatment

Introduction and education on documentation procedures and the HII system
Theory and practice of conventional, high efficiency, and high flux dialysis

Interpersonal Communication

Read/review Module 1l and 1] (The Person with Kidney Failure/Principles of Dialysis)

Evaluation: Wcek 2

WEEK 3:
Emergency Plans and Procedures
Introduction to dialysis termination procedures

Review and practice pre and post treatment procedures, paticnt monitoring

Review clinic specific responsibilitics and documentation

Education on Transplants

Review complication recognition and treatment
Continue practice with machine set up and operation
Read/review: Module V (Vascular Access)

Testing: Module 1V (Hemodialysts Devices)
Evaluation: Week 3

WEEK 4.

Introduction to initiation of dialysis with catheters (as appropriate to job description)
Review and educate on commonly used dialysis medications

Medication Administration

Continue supervised practice of dialysis termination
Review P & P Manual

Normal and abnormal lab values

Pre and post dialysis blood draws

Lab processing duties

Orientation and competency for blood glucose monitoring cquipment
Supervised practice to incorporate pre and post dialysis procedures and patient

Monitoring with machine operation, and documentation

Introduction to initiation of dialysis by cannulation

Introduction of materials used to create grafts, needle placement for access in a grafi, and
prevention of complicattons: and identification of signs and symptoms of complications

when cannulating access
Education on PD
Renal Dictitian: Nutritional Considerations

Read/review Module VI (Hemodialysis Procedures and Complications)

Evaluation: Week 4
WEEK 5:
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US.lRENAL CARE

POLICY : NEW CLINICAL STAFF GUIDE EFFECTIVE DATE:
01/2011
POLICY #: EO - 0002 PAGE4 OF 5 REVISION DATE: 1/2012

Cannulation of a patient with fistula needles

The oricntee will incorporate trouble shooting and patient complications with all
previously leamed and practiced experience

Continue supervised practice of dialysis initiation via cathcter, dialysis termination,
and treatment procedures and monitoring

Incorporate machine problem solving and recognition and treatment of complications
Into practice

Education on monitoring of arterial and venous pressures

Renal Social Worker: Psychosocial issues

Read/review Module VII and VIl (Dialyzer Reprocessing/Water Treatment)
Testing: Module V (Vascular Access)

Evaluation: Week 5

WEEK 6:

Continue supervised practice of hemodialysis precedures

Competently complete a | — 2 patient assignment

I:ducation on the management of adequacy outcomes

Technical Specialist: Water system, risks to patients of unsafe water, water checks,
machine maintenance, {rouble shooting machines and cleaning of machines
Evaluation: Week 6 (Preceptor/Orientee/Administrator)

WEEK 7 & 8:

Competently complete assigned patient assignment
Testing: Module VII and VIII (Dialyzer reprocessing/Water Treatment)

This orientation program is based on the assumption that the orientee has no previous
cxperience. Altcrations/Adjustments in the orientation program will be made based on previous
experience and proven chinical skills. During orientation the orientee will also receive theory
training provided by the Clinical Services Department.

REFERENCES TO BE REVIEWED DURING ORIENTATION:

Core Curriculum for Dialysis Technicians
State Specific Educational Videos
Dialysis Training Manual

Dialysis Machine Manual

Dialysis Machine Trouble Shooting Guide

EVALUATION:
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UisENAL CARE

POLICY : NEW CLINICAL STAFF GUIDE EFFECTIVE DATE:
0172011
POLICY #: EO - 0002 PAGE5OF S REVISION DATE: 1/2012

All tests in the Employee Education Manual are to be passed with a score of 80% including the
‘Knowledge Assessment Test’. Passing of the “‘Knowledge Assessment Test” includes
experience and non-experienced staff. If an experienced Care Giver does not pass the
‘Knowledge Assessment Test’ the first time — the empleyee needs to attend a theory class and
rctake the exam.

All employees (experience and non-expcrienced) may take the ‘Knowledge Assessment Test™ a
maximum of three times. Afler third failure, the employee will be terminated.

Weckly evaluations with the orientation checklist will be filled out throughout the ortentation
process by the orientce, preceptor, and cducator. The Administrator will evaluate all checklists
weckly,

If at any time there are difficulties with the learning of the didactic material or inability to
complete modules in the specified time period the Facility Administrator will be notified
tmmediately. If at any time there are difficulties with the dialysis machine set-up, treatment
monitoring, or termination of the treatment the Administrator will be notified. The Preceptor and
Administrator will assess the training schedule orientee’s progress and if needed will make
changes in the orientation program.
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US.IRENAL CARE

POLICY : STAFFING POLICY EFFECTIVE DATE:
01/2011

POLICY #: C-AD-0140 PAGE 1 OF 1 REVISION DATE:
09/2011

Stafiing requirement for the ESRD facility include the coordination of personnel by the
facility administrator to adequately staff for safe and effective provision of patient care.

The following guidelines will direct the staffing of each facility.

1.

A fulitime supervising nurse shall be employed to manage the provision of patient
care,

A nurse or nurses functioning in the charge role shall be on site and available to
the treatment area to provide patient care during all dialysis treatments.

A registered nurse shall be in the facility when patients are present in the facility
- if applicabie.

Licensed nurse to patient ratio shall meet the required state regulations which
govern the facility. If there are no state specific regulations, then the minimum
requirement is to have one licensed nurse {o every 12 patients.

Sufficient direct care staff shall be on-site to meet the needs of the patients. The
ratio of direct care staff shall be one to four patients per shift, unless specified by
state specific regulations. The staffing level shall not exceed that which is
required by state specific regulations which govern the facility. See below for
state specific staffing requirements.

State Specific Staffing Requirements

State Licensed Staff to Direct Care Staff to
Patient Ratio Patient Ratio

Georgia 11010 1104
Maryland 1109 1t03
New Jersey 1t09 1103
Ohio None None i
South Carolina 11010 1104
Texas 1to 12 1104
Pennsylvania None None
Arkansas Nane None
Oklahoma None None
New York None None

| Nlinois None None |
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u&], RENAL CARE

Chinical Annual Compelency

EFFECTIVE DATE:
01/2011

POLICY #LE0-2003

REVISION DATE:

Employec:
Title:

Date of Hire:

NOTE: Not All SKills May Be Required

Universal Precautions/Exposwre Control

Date Completed

Preceptor Signature

Sterile Technique

Aseplic Technique

Machine Sctup/Initiation of Treatment

" Date Completed

Preceptor Signature

Hemedialysis Machine Set-Up

Correct Bath

Gather ali Supplies

Turm on Water

Alarm Tesling

Line Placement/Conneet Concentrale

Peracetic Acid or or other Residual Sterilant ‘l'esting {(when applicable)

Secures the Correct Dialyzer for the Prticnt

Verification ol alyzer

Conductivity/pH Procedure

Treatment Settings

Treatment Procedure

Itte Completed

Preceptor Signature

Initiation of Treatment

Caleulating Fluid Removal

Setting UFRA rograms/Na Modeling/Coet’

Calculating Fiuid Replacement

Adjusis Blood Flow Rate to Patient’s Prescription

Ultrafiltrate Only

Heparin Administration

Paitent Monitoring

Vital Signs

Fluid Replacement

Complication Assessment and T'reatment

Reports unusual Findings to CN

Oxygen Administeation {if applicable}

Verifies the Ordered Flow Rate from the CN

Sets up Equipment Correctly

Connects Tubing Comecily to Eguipment and to Patient

Complication Intervention

13ate Completed

I'receptor Signature

Hypotension

Hypertension

MNausea/Vomiling

Cramping

Chest Pain

s0B

Seizures

Cardiac/Respimiory Arrest

Informs CN of any Unusual Findings
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us} RENAL CARE

Clinical Annual Competency

EFFECTIVE DATE:
4172011

POLEICY # EQ-2003

REVISION DATE:

Medication Administration

Date Completed

Preceptor Signature

Aseptic technique is used when preparing and administering intravenous medications
from vials and amplules

P.O.

.M.

[.V. Push

1. V. Drip

SubQ

Labels Syringes Correctly

Licocaine Adminisiration {if applicable)

Checks Paticnt's Prescniption

Identifies the Correct Vial of Medication

Prepares Dosage Correctly

Administers the Dese Correcily

Observes for and Understands Possible Complications

Heparin Adminisiration (if applicablc)

Describes Basics of Anticoagulion Therapy

Assess Putient for and Reports Evidence of Active Bleeding

Checks Patient's Prescription

Identifies the Correct Vial of Medication

Prepares 1Josage Correctly

Administers the Dose Correctly

Observes for and Understands Pessible Complications

Manitors Appropriateness of Anticosgulation Throughout Treatment

MNormal Saline Administration {if applicable)

Understand Fagility Protocel

Checks Paticnt's Prescription

Recognizes Signs of Hypotension

Notifies RN Appropriately

Administers Normat Saline Correctly

Treatment Termination

Bale Completed

Preceptor Signalure

Rinseback Progedure

Removal of Fistula Needles

Treatment of Post Treatment Bleeding

Care of Catheters Post Treatment {if applicable}

Discarding Supplies

Reports Unusual Findings 1o CN

Sanitizing equipment and treatment area

Catheters (As Per State Regs)

Date Completed

Preceptor Signature

Assessment

Pretreaiment Preparation

Initiation of [halysis

Accessing 1he Bloodsiream

Correcting Operational Preblems:

Poor Avlerial Flow

Poor Yenous Flow

Clotting in Catheler

Elevated Anerizl/Venous Pressures

Site Infections/Culiures

Take Off Preparation

Rinseback Procedure

Past Treatmem Cue of Catheter

Dressing Cliange -
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us?LRENAL CARLE

Clinical Annual Competency

EFFECTIVE DATE:
a1/2011

POLICY # EO-9003

REVISION DATE:

Fistufa's/Grafis

Date Completed Preceptor Signature

Assessment of Bruit and Thrilt

Pretreatment Preparation

Cannulation

[nspects the Access for Patency

Prepares the Skin Using Aseptic Technigue at all Times

Calls for Assisstance Appropriately

Places Necdles Correctly

Replaces Needles Appropriately

Secures Needles

Accessing the Bloodstream

[Operational Problems and Cormections:

Responds Appropriately to Machine Alamms

Infiltration with Cannulation

Infilration During T'reatment

Anerial/Venous Spasms

AnterialfVenous Pressure Problems

Localized Bleeding

Mislodged Needle

Clotted Needle/Drialyzer

Blood Lenk into Dialysate

Blood {.cak Quiside of Bloodpath

Dacumentation

Date Completed Preceptor Signature

Clinical Information System use

Flowsheet

Dialyzer and Paticnt Verification

Maching Checks

Vital Sipns

Medication Administration

Pre and Post Assessments

Treatment Complicalions

Monthly Nursing Charting

Admissions Charting

Discharge Charting

Patient Decurrence Chaning

Patient Assessment/Plan of Care

Diagnostic Laboratory Testing

Date Completed Freceptor Signature

Monthly and Other Labwark

Blood/Wound Culiures

tHood Giucose Testing

Ahle to Deseribe Appropriste Response 1o Patient Emergencies

Date Completed Preceptor Signature

Air Embolism

Cardiac/Respiratory Arrest

Unstable Angina
Seizures
Shock

"New Dialyzer Reaction”

Hemoylysis

Pyrogenic Reaction

Chlorine in Dialysate

Cther

AltachmeRt2f 3 of 4 131




LIS.-lRENAL CARE

—

Clinieal Annual Competency

EFFECTIVE DATE:
01/2011

POLICY # EOQ-9003

REVISION DATE:

Equipment and Building Emergencics

Date Completed

Preceptor Signature

Dialyrer Blood Leak

Clotted Dialyzer and or Lines

L.oss of Elecirical Power

Hand Crank Take-Of Procedure

Fire o1 lood

Emergency Evacuation of Building

Tomadoe/Hurricane/Blizrard Plans

Knows Comecl Procedure for Machine Failure

Use of Emergency Equipment

Date Completed

Preceptor Signatore

Oxygen

Ambu Bag/Oral Airway

Crash Can

Portable Suction

Pt. Evacuation During an Emergency

Education

BDate Completed

Preceptor Signature

Fire Safety

Back Safety

Hazard Communication

Electricg Safety

US Renal Care Standards of Conduct & Compliance Program

Prevention of Slips, Trips and Falls

Emergency Preparedness

Prevention of Needlesticks

Additional competencies as required by state specific repulation, job role or needs

assessment

Compicte Annnal Competency Checklist - Clinical Employee (Technical

Trnining Manual Section 9)

, has successfully completed the USRC Clinical

Annual Training Program to include successful return demonstrations and is competent to perform the

clinical duties included on this checklist.

Emplovee Signature;

Precepior Signature:

Medical Dircctor Signature:

Date:

Date;

Date:
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ATTACHMENT 26

STAFFING AVAILABILITY

USRC Plainfield, LL.C

As required by 77 I1l. Admin. Code § 1110.1430(e)(5), Applicant certifies that U.S. Renal Care
Plainfield Dialysis will maintain an open medical staff. Any board licensed nephrologist may
apply for privileges at this facility.

L]

%475

Signature

Thomas L. Weinberg

Printed Name
Manager
Title
. 12th
Subscribed and sworn to before me this ____ day of 2012
Signature of Notary
\\\\Hllilllm
Seal Q\\:EJ;" L STE :9!”"’
RSN ‘{P"'- %
@’"‘“2 W
ERA N
2 % g & §
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ATTACHMENT 26

SUPPORT SERVICES

USRC Plainfield, LLC

In accordance with 77 Ill. Admin. Code § 1110.1430(f) and with respect to the U.S. Renal Care
Plainfield Dialysis facility, Applicant certifies that:

1. Applicant certifies that it will utilize the Health Informatics International system for the
provision of care to its patients;

2. Applicant certifies that support services consisting of clinical laboratory service, blood
bank, nufrition, rehabilitation, psychiatric and social services will be available to its

patients; and

3. Applicant certifies that provision of training for self-care dialysis, self-care instruction,
home and home-assisted dialysis, and home training will be provided at the U.S. Renal

Care Oak Brook Dialysis facility.

Signature 7
Thomas L. Weinberg

Printed Name

Manager

Title

12
Subscribed and sworn to before me this day of v , 2012

' N Nent. STEy s,
Signature of ota@[\\ Sh) w&x

§ N:‘Y P(Ig .
Scal F 7 '_
“:3 4;2: ¥ -'. *':?
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ff 2720'1‘5 \
it
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ATTACHMENT 26

MINIMUM NUMBER OF STATIONS

The proposed U.S. Renal Care Plainfield Dialysis facility contemplates the establishment of 13
ESRD stations which meets the minimum station requirements for a metropolitan statistical
area,

220028(0wv |
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CONTINUITY OF CARE
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HOSPITAL TRANSFER AGREEMENT

THIS HOSPITAL TRANSFER AGREEMENT ("Agreement'} is entered into
effective the 14th day of June, 2012 (the “Effective Date™) by and between the USRC
Plainfield, LLC, an Ilinois limited liability company (the “Center”), and Provena Saint
Joseph Medical Center, an operating unit of Provena Hospitals, an Illinois not-for-profit
corporation ("Hospital”). (Center and Hospital may each be referred to herein as a "Party” and
collectively as the "Parties”).

RECITALS

WHEREAS, the Center intends to submit to the INlinois Health Facilities Services and
Review Beard an application for a certificate of need permit to establish a free-standing renal
dialysis center for treatment of patients with end-stage renal disease, which will be located in
Lemont, Nllinois; and

WHEREAS, patients of Center (“Patients”) may require transfer to a hospital for acute-
inpatient or other emergency health care services; and

WHEREAS, Hospital owns and operates a licensed and Medicare certified acute care
hospital in reasonable proximity to Center, which has a twenty-four (24) hour emergency room
and provides emergency health care services; and

WHEREAS, the Parties desire to ¢stablish a transfer arrangement to ensure continuity of
care for Patients and to specify the proccdure for ensuring the timely transfer of patients to
Hospital.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing, and the terms, conditions,
covenants, agreements and obligations set forth herein, the Parties hereto agree as follows:

ARTICLEI
TRANSFER OF PATIENTS

Upon recommendation of an attending physician and pursuant to the provisions of this
Agreement, in the event that any Patient needs acute inpaticnt or emergency care and has either
requested to be taken to Hospital, or is unable to communicate a preference for hospital services
at a different hospital, and a timely transfer to Hospital would best serve the immediate medical
needs of Patient, a designated staff member of Center shall contact the admitting office or
emergency department of Hospital (the "Emergency Department”) to facilitate admission.
Hospital shall accept, and as appropriate, admit a Patient as promptly as possible in accordance
with applicable federal and state laws and regulations, the standards of The Joint Commission
("TJC") and any other applicable accrediting bodies, and reasonable policies and procedures of
Hospital, and Hospital has the capacity to treat the Patient. After receiving a transfer request,
Hospital shall give prompt confirmation of whether it can provide health care appropriate to the
Patient’s medical needs. Hospital's responsibility for patient care shall begin when Patient is
admitted to Hospital.
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ARTICLE 1
RESPONSIBILITIES OF CENTER

Center shall be responsible for performing or ensuring the performance of the following:
(a) Arranging, at no cost to Hospital, for ambulance service to Hospital,

(b}  Designating a person who has authority to represent Center and coordinate
the transfer of Patient to Hospital (“Transfer Coordinator”). The Center will notify
Hospital and keep it apprised of the name and contact information of the Transfer
Coordinator,

(©) Notifying Hospital's designated representative prior to transfer to alert him
or her of the impending arrival of Patient and provide information on Patient to the extent
allowed pursuant to Article IV. Such notice shall be as far in advance as possible and in
any event prior to the Patient leaving the Center for transport, to allow the Hospital to
determine whether it can provide the necessary Patient care;

(d)  Notifying Hospital of the estimated time of arrival of the Patient;

(e) Recognizing and complying with the requirements of any federal and state
law and regulations or local ordinances that apply to the care and transfer of individuals
to Hospitals for emergency care;

H The Patient’s medical record shall contain a physician’s order to transfer
the Patient, The attending physician recommending the transfer shall communicate
directly with Hospital's patient admissions, or, in the case of an emergency services
patient who has been screened and stabilized for transfer, with the Hospital’s Emergency
Department.

(g) In addition to a Patient’s medical records and the physician’s order to
transfer, Center shall provide Hospital with all information regarding a Patient’s
medications, and clear dircction as to who may make medical decisions on behalf of the
Patient, with copies of any power of attorney for medical decision making or, in the
absence of such document, a list of next of kin, if feasible, to assist the Hospital in
determining appropriate medical decision makers in the event a Patient is or becomes
unable to do so on his or her own behalf.

(h) Personal effects of any transferred Patient shall be delivered to the transfer
team or admissions department of the Hospital. Personal effects include, but are not
limited to money, jewelry, personal papers and articles for personal hygiene.
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ARTICLE 111
RESPONSIBILITIES OF HOSPITAL

Hospital shall be responsible for performing or ensuring performance of the following:

(a) Designating a person who has authority to represent and coordinate the
transfer and receipt of Patients into the Emergency Department; and

(b) Timely admission of Patient to Hospital when transfer of Patient is
medically appropriate as determined by Hospital attending physician subject to hospital
capacity and patient census issucs provided, that all usual conditions of admission to
Hospital are met; and

{c) Recognizing and complying with the requirements of any federal and state
law and regulations or local ordinances that apply to Patients who present at Emergency
Departments.

ARTICLE 1V
PATIENT INFORMATION

In order to meet the needs of Patients with respect to timely access to emergency care,
Center shall provide information on Patients to Hospital, to the extent approved in advance or
authorized by law and to the extent Center has such information available. Such information
shall include: Patient Name, Social Security Number, Date of Birth, insurance coverage and/or
Medicare beneficiary information (if applicable), current medical findings, diagnoses, known
allergies or medical conditions, treating physician, contact person in case of emergency and any
other relevant information Patient has provided Center in advance. The Center shall send a copy
of all Patient medical records and information set forth in Section II{g) that arc available at the
time of transfer to the Hospital. Other records shall be sent as soon as practicable after the
transfer. The Patient's medical record shall contain evidence that the Patient was transferred
promptly, safely and in accordance with all applicable laws and regulations. Each Party shall and
shall cause its employees and agents to protect the confidentiality of all Patient information
(including, but not limited to, medical records, electronic data, radiology films, laboratory blocks,
slides and billing information), and comply with all applicable state and federal laws and
regulations protecting the confidentiality of Patients’ records, including the Health Insurance
Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 and the corresponding Standards for Privacy of
Individually Identifiable Heaith Information regulations, each as amended from time to time
{collectively, “HIPAA").
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ARTICLEV
NON EXCLUSIVITY

This Agreement shall in no way give Hospital an exclusive right of transfer of Patients of
Center. Center may enter into similar agreements with other acute-care hospitals, and Patients
will continue to have complete autonomy with respect to choice of hospital service providers, as
further described in Article VI,

ARTICLE VI
FREEDOM OF CHOICE

In entering into this Agreement, Center in no way is acting to endorse or promote the
services of Hospital. Rather, Center intends to coordinate the timely transfer of Patients for
medical care. Patients are in no way restricted in their choice of hospitals or medical care
providers.

ARTICLE VII
BILLING AND COLLECTIONS

Each Party shall be responsible for billing the appropriate payer for the scrvices it
provides. Hospital shall be responsible for the billing and collection of all charges for
professional services rendered at Hospital. Center shall in no way share in the revenue generated
by professional services delivered to Patients at Hospital.

ARTICLE VIII
INDEPENDENT RELATIONSHIP

Secrion 87 In performing services pursuant to this Agreement, Hospital and all
employees, agents or representatives of Hospital are, at all times, acting and performing as
independent contractors and nothing in this Agrecment is intended and nothing shall be
construed to create an employer/cmployee, principalfagent, parinership or joint venture
relationship. Center shall neither have nor exercise any direction or control over the methods,
techniques or procedures by which Hospital or its employees, agents or representatives perform
their professional responsibilities and functions. The sole interest of Center is to coordinate the
timely transfer of Patients to Hospital for medical care.

Section 82 Each Party shall be solely responsible for the payment of compensation
and benefits to its personnel and for compliance with any and all payments of all taxes, social
security, unemployment compensation and worker's compensation.

Section &7 Notwithstanding the terms of this Agreement, in no event shall Hospital or
any Hospital personnel be responsible for the acts or omissions of non-Hospital personnel.
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ARTICLE IX
INSURANCE

Both Parties shall maintain, at no cost to the other Party, professional liability mmsurance
in an amount customary for its business practices. Each Party shall provide evidence of the
coverage required herein to the other Party on an annual basis upon request, Each Party shall
notify the other Party at least thirty (30) days prior to termination, lapse or loss of adequate
insurance coverage as provided herein. In the event the form of insurance held by a Party is
claims made, such Party represents and warrants that it will purchase appropriate tail coverage
for claims, demands, or actions reported in future years for acts of omissions during the Term of
this Agreement. In the event of insufficient coverage as defined in this Article IX, or lapse of
coverage, the non-breaching Party reserves the right to immediately and unilaterally terminate
this Agreement. Each Party shall notify the other in writing, by certified mail, of any action or
suit filed and shall give prompt notice of any claim made against either by any person or entity
that may result in litigation related in any way to this Agreement.

ARTICLE X
INDEMNIFICATION

Each Party shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless the other Party together with its
officers, directors, agents, employees, affiliates, successors and assigns from and against any and
all liability, loss, claim, lawsuit, injury, cost, damage or expense whatsoever (including
reasonable attorneys’ fees and court costs), imposed by a third party and arising out of, incident to
or in any manner occasioncd by the performance or nonperformance of any duty or responsibility
under this Agreement by such indemnifying Party, or any of its employees, agents, contractors or
subcontractors. Provided, however, neither Party shall indemnify, defend or hold harmless the
other Party from claims amsing from the other Party’s, or its officers, directors, agents,
employees, affiliates, successors and assigns, gross negligence or willful misconduct.

ARTICLE XI
TERM AND TERMINATION

Sectiorn //./ Term. The initia]l term of this Agrecement shall commence on the
Effective Date and shall continue in effect for a period of one (1) year (the "Initial Term").
Thereafter, this Agreement shall automatically renew for successive one (1) year terms unless
terminated pursuant to this Section. The Imtial term and all renewal terms shall collectively be
the *Term” of this Agreement.

Section /7.2 Events of Termination. Notwithstanding the foregoing, this Agreement
may be terminated upon the occurrence of any one (1) of the following events:

(a) Either Party may terminate this Agreement at any time upon sixty (60)
days prior written notice to the other Party.

(b) If either Party shall apply for or consent to the appointment of a rcceiver,
trustee or liquidator of itself or of all or a substantial part of ils assets, file a voluntary
-5-
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petition in bankruptcy, or admit in writing its inability to pay its debts as they become
due, make a general assignment for the benefit of creditors, file a petition or an answer
seeking reorganization or arrangement with creditors or take advantage of any insolvency
law, or if an order, judgment, or decree shall be entered by a court of competent
jurisdiction or an application of a creditor, adjudicating such Party to be bankrupt or
insolvent, or approving a petition secking reorganization of such Party or appointing a
receiver, trustee or liquidator of such Party or of all or a substantial part of its assets, and
such order, judgment, or decree shall continue in effect and unstayed for a period of thirty
(30) consecutive calendar days, then the other Party may terminate this Agreement upon
ten (10) business days' prior written notice to such Party.

Secrion /7.7 Immediate Termination. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary
herein, this Agreement will be terminated immediately upon the following events: (a) the
suspension or revocation of a Party’s license, certificate or other legal credential necessary to
render pafient care services and meet the terms and conditions of this Agreement; (b) termination
of a Party’s participation in or exclusion from any federal or state health care program for any
reason; (c) the cancellation or termination of a Party’s insurance required under Article IX of this
Agreement without replacement coverage having been obtained; and (d) a Party determines that
the continuation of this Agreement would endanger Patient care.

Section /7.4 Termination Due to Change in or Violation of Law. The Hospital shall
have the unilateral right to terminate or amend this Agreement, without hability, to the extent
necessary to comply with any Iegal order issued to the Hospital by a federal or statc department,
agency or commission, or TJC or any such accreditation organization by which the Hospital is
then accredited, or if it is reasonably determined that continued participation in this Agreccment
wonld jecpardize the Hospital’s status as a Medicarc or Medicaid participant or would be
inconsistent with its status as an organization described in Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal
Revenue Code of 1986, as amended. Prior to termination of this Agreement pursuant to this
Section, Hospital shall first reasonably attempt to amend this Agreement in a manner that will
achieve the business purposes hereof. If Hospital proposes an amendment to this Agreement
pursuant to in order to comply with applicable law or accreditation standards, and such
amendment is unacceptable to Center, cither Party may choose to terminate this Agreement
immediately upon notice at any time thereafter.

ARTICLE XII
MISCELLANEQUS PROVISIONS

Secrron 72,/ Entire Agreement. This Agreement constitutes the entirc understanding
between the Parties with respect to the subject matter hereof. This Agreement supersedes any
and all other prior agreements either written or oral, between the Parties with respect to the
subject matter hercof.

Section /22 Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in two or more
counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original, but all such counterparts together shail
constitute one and the same instrument.
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Section /2.7 Waiver. Any waiver of any terms and conditions hereof must be in
writing, and signed by the Partics. A waiver of any of the terms and conditions hereof shall not
be construed as a waiver of any other terms and conditions hereof.

Section /24 Severability. The provisions of this Agrecement shall be deemed
severable, and, if any portion shall be held invalid, illegal or unenforceable for any reason, the
remainder of this Agreement shall be effective and binding upon the Parties.

Sectron /25 Headings. All headings herein are inserted only for convenience and ease
of reference and are not to be considered in the construction or interpretation of any provision of
this Agreement.

Section /2.6 Assignment. This Agreement, being intended to secure the services of
Hospital, shall not be assigned, delegated or subcontracted by Hospital without prior written
consent of Center.

Secrion /2.7 Governing Law. This Agreement shall be construed under the laws of the
state of lllinois, without giving affect to choice of law provisions.

Secrion /2.8 Notices. Any notice herein required or permitted to be given shall be in
writing and shall be deemed to be duly given on the date of service if served personally on the
other Party, or on the fourth (4th) day after mailing, if mailed to the other Party by certified mail,
return receipt requested, postage pre-paid, and addressed to the Parties as follows:

To Center To Hospital
USRC Plainfield, LLC Provena Saint Joseph Medical Center

333 North Madison Street
Joliet, IL 60435
Attn: CEQ

Copy to:
Presence Health

7435 West Talcott Ave., Suite 461
Chicago, IL 60631

Attention: Chief Legal Officer and
General Counsel

or such other place or places as either Party may designate by written notice to the other.

Sectron /29 Amendment. This Agreement may be amended upon mutuwal, written
agreement of the Partics.

Secrion 1270 Regulatory Compliance. The Parties agree that nothing contained in this
Agreement shall require Center to refer patients to Hospital for emergency care services or to
-7-

Attachment 26

143




purchase goods and services. Notwithstanding any unanticipated effect of any provision of this
Agrecment, neither Party will knowingly and intentionally conduct its behavior in such a manner
as to violate the prohibition against fraud and abuse in connection with the Medicare and
Medicaid programs.

Secrion [2.// Access to Books and Records. I applicable, upon written request of the
Secretary of Health and Human Services or the Comptroller General of the United States, or any
of their duly authorized representatives, Hospital shall make available to the Secretary or to the
Comptroller General those coniracts, books, documents and records necessary to verify the
nature and extent of the costs of providing its services under this Agreement. Such inspection
shall be available for up to four (4) years after the rendering of such service. This Section is
included pursuant to and is governed by the requirements of Public Law 96-499 and Regulations
promulgated thereunder. The Parties agree that any attorney-client, accountant-client or other
legal privileges shall not be deemed waived by virtue of this Agreement.

IN WITNESS THEREOQF, the Parties have caused this Agreement to be executed by
their duly authorized officers hereto setting their hands to be effective as of the Effective Date.

CENTER HOSPITAL
USRC Plainfield, LLC Provena Saint Joseph Medical Center,
an operating unit of Provena Hospitals

Signature: P{L%A&Qmo Signature: -"':fé___g._-. -

Printed Name: Printed Name: __Beth Huphes

Title: I:Q\’“\Y‘EY Title: President/CEQ

Date: GD[ K‘l ' 12 Date: .
8-
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ATTACHMENT 28

ASSURANCES

USRC Plainfield, LLC

In accordance with 77 Ill. Admin. Code § 1110.1430(}), and with respect to the U.S. Renal Care
Plainfield Dialysis facility, Applicant certifies the following:

1. By the second year of operation after the project completion, the Applicant will achieve
and maintain the 80% utilization standards as specified in 77 Ill. Adm. Code § 1100; and

2. That Applicant will achieve and maintain compliance with the following adequacy of
hemodialysis outcome measures for the latest 12-month period for which data are

available:

> 83% of hemodialysis patient population achieves area reduction ratio (URR) 2
65% and > 85% of hemodialysis patient population achieves Kt/V Daugirdas II

1.2,

%V

Signature
Thomas L. Weinberg

Printed Name
Manager
Title
. . 12th June
Subscribed and sworn to before me this day of ,2012
. E jﬁj%‘)mfk -y
Signature of Notary \\\‘\:\;5"“.2'- §I§%¥;&/
§ S g,
S 0'. "-
Seal g %
E o i F
2, % o™ o §
%, SRR S
/// ,,2?- 16 \\\.
’f""’muﬁ?n\\\\\“\
2200280-1
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ATTACHMENT 39

AVAILABILITY OF FUNDS

Applicant documents that financial resources shall be available and be equal to or exceed the
estimated total project cost plus any related project costs by providing evidence of sufficient
financial resources from cash and securities. Applicant will fund the project through capital
contributions from its members. In the event that such contributions are insufficient to cover the
costs associated with this project, U.S. Renal Care, Inc. will provide funding to Applicant
through USRC Alliance, LLC by way of a revolving promissory note. As evidence of U.S.
Renal Care, Inc.'s financial viability, we have included audited financials for 2009-2011. In
addition, included in Attachment 42 is a certification from U.S. Renal Care, Inc. attesting to the
reasonableness of the financing arrangement. Lastly, the master lease for dialysis equipment is
also included in this attachment. The lessee contemplated by the master lease is a wholly owned
subsidiary of U.S. Renal Care, Inc. and the equipment will be subsequently leased to USRC
Plainfield, LLC.

2200280v]
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U.S. RENAL CARE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2011 and 2010

(With Independent Auditors’ Report Thereon)
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KPMG LLP

Suite 3100

717 Nerth Harwood Street
Dallas, TX 75201-6585

Independent Auditors® Report

The Board of Directors
U.S. Renal Care, Inc.:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of U.S. Renal Care, Inc. and subsidiaries
(the Company) as of December 31, 2011 and 2010, and' the related consolidated statements of operations,
changes in equity, and cash flows for the years then ended. These consclidated financial statements are the
responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our andits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards gencrally accepted in the United States of
America, Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes consideration of
internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s
internal conirol over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements,
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable
basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of U.S. Renal Care, Inc. and subsidiarics as of December 31, 2011 and
2010, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for the years then ended in conformity with
U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

KPMe LLP

Dallas, Texas
April 6, 2012

KPMEG (LP ig & Delawars Umited fabildy parinerghip,
tha LS. member frm of KPMG Inkmations Coopersthe
EPMG IntemnationsT), & Swish anifly,
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U.S. RENAL CARE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Balance Sheets
December 31, 2011 and 2010

Assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Accounts receivable, net of allowances of $11,410,941 and $13,458,494
Inventories

Other receivabies

Deferred tax asset

Other current assets

Total current assets

Property and equipment, net
Amortizable intangibles, net
Trade names

Goodwill

Other long-term assets

Total assets
Liabilities and Equity

Accounts payable

Accrued expenses

Current portion of Jong-term debt and capital lease obligations
Current portion of related-party notes payable

Total current liabilities

Long-term debt and capita) lease ebligations, net of current portion
Other long-term liabilitics

Deferred 1ax liability

Preferred stock accrued dividends

Total Eibilities
Commitments and contingencies

U.8. Renal Care, Inc, equity:

Preferred stock A ($0.01 par value. Authorized shares 12,825,000;
issved and outstanding 12,725,000 and 12,350,000 shares)

Preferred stock B and B-1($0.0t par value, Authorized shares
1,600,000, issued and outstanding 1,431,666 shares)

Preferred stock C ¢($0.01 par value. Authorized shares 25,000,000,
issued and outstanding 24,500,962 shares)

Preferred stock D ($0.01 par value. Authorized shares 8,333,333,
issucd and outstanding 8,333,333 shares)

Coraman stock ($0.01 par value. Autherized shares 57,237,646 and
56,910,159 issued and outstanding 7,736,754 and 7,074,324 shares)

Additional patd-in capital

Retained earnings

Total U.S. Renal Care, Inc. stockholders’ equity

Noncontrolling interests (including redeemable interests with redemption
values of $46,149,160 and $40,999,428)

Total equity
Total liabilities and equity

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

2011 2010
bt 28,171,825 9,537,107
48,222,030 48,449,63)
10,507,508 3,100,193
11,034,880 9,994,938
3,613,197 6,215,457
3,166,263 2,636,244
104,715,703 79,933,570
45902,288 46,781,941
21,617,610 27,349,714
859000 859,000
195,591,363 195,575,023
706,982 470,902
5 369,392,946 350,970,150
L) 13,818,397 9,045,119
23,353,925 23,443,871
3,805,921 2,924 662
-— 125,000
40,978,243 35,538,652
317,654,880 181,723,922
1,394,929 1,245,591
2,449,302 11,198,031
-— 19,831,208
162,477,354 249,537,404
127,250 23,500
14,317 14,317
245,010 245,010
83,333 83,333
77,368 70,744
(50,804,776) 38,667,471
— 8,624,492
(50,257,498) 47,828,867
57,173,090 53,603,879
6,915,592 101,432,746
$ 369,392,946 350,970,150
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U.S. RENAL CARE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statements of Operations
Years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010

2011 2010
Nct operating revenues $ 309,643,779 237,606,328
Operating expenses:
Patient care costs 186,090,458 154,284,195
General and administrative 25,301,516 20,165,850
Provision for doubtful accounts 9,117,119 6,898,682
Legal cost/settlement 77,943 (352,334)
Transaction costs 3,131,507 9,076,731
Depreciation and amortization 18,451,254 14,655,411
Loss on disposal of fixed assets 406,832 41,711
Gain on acquisition of controlling interest — {5,050,261)
Totai operating expenses 242,576,629 199,719,985
Operating income 67,067,150 37,886,343
Interest expense, net 22,251,290 10,192,698
Loss on early retirement of debt 4,801,472 —
Income before income taxes 40,014,388 27,693,645
Income tax provision 8,389,946 1,543,219
Net income 31,624,442 20,150,426
Less net income attributable to noncontrolling interests 17,113,167 13,023,628
Net income attributable to U.S. Renal Care, Inc, $ 14,511,275 7,126,798

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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U.S. RENAL CARE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
Years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010

Cash flows from operating activities:

Net income
Adjustments to reconcile nel income to cash provided by
operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization
Noncash dispute settlement
Lease agreement intangible amortization included in rent
Provision for doubtful accounts
Deferred income taxes
Equity investment income
Stock compensation expense
Loss on disposal of fixed assets
Gain on acquisition of controlling interest
Loss on early retirement of debt
Loss on derivatives
Changes in operating assets and liabilities, net of effect of acquisitions
and divestitures:
Accounts receivable
Inventories
Other receivables
Other current assets
Other long-term assets
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Other noncurrent liabilities

Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities:
Acquisitions, net of cash acquired

Sale of property and equipment
Additions of property and equipment, net
Purchase of noncontrolling interests
Investment in affiliate

Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities:

Proceeds from long-term debt borrowings
Payments on long-term debt and related-party notes payable
Deferred financing costs

Proceeds from capital leases

Capital lease payments

Net proceeds from issuance of preferred stock
Proceeds from issvance of common stock
Repurchase of preferred stock

Contributions from nencontrolling interests
Distributiens to noncontrolling interests
Dividends paid to shareholders

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities

Net increase/decrease in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalenis at end of year

2011 2010

$ 31,624,442 20,150,426
18,822,885 14,655,411
— 450,000

(9,936) 31,337
9,117,119 6,898,682
855,742 4,646,303
— (805,801)

136,340 102,652
406,832 41,711
— (5,050,261}
4,801,472 —
434,083 —
(8,889,518) (11,223,175)
(7,407,313) 1,065,325
(1,039,942) (2,773,018)
(530,021} (326,422)
(236,080) {1,049,343)
5,663,597 585,137
320,512 331317
54,070,213 27,730,281
(1,275,000)  (116,523,175)
2,579,801 3,172,324
(15,377,075) (18,394,835)
(465,001) (18.991,500)

101,335

(14,537,275)  (150,635,851)
278,827,099 181,952,491
(144,767,068) (73,000,188)
(5.149,293) (7,938,537)
3,696,968 3,260,343
(2,070,576) (1,243,854}
375,000 25,015,999
318,073 43,648
1,439,500 695,750
(16,067,923) (11,668.292)
(137,500,000) —
{20,898,220) 117,117,320
18,634,718 (5,788,250)
9,537,107 15,325,357
$ 28,171,825 9,537,107

{Continued)
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U.5. RENAL CARE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
Years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010

2011 2010
Supplemental cash flow information:
Cash paid for interest £ 20,292,064 8,474,494
Cash paid for taxes 9,296,414 4,814,265
Supplemental disclosures of noncash investing and financing activities:
Cumulative preferred dividends b 2,601,976 5,094,782
Capital lease financing 398,674 99,126

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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U.S. RENAL CARE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
Deccmber 31, 2011 and 2010

(}) Organization and Significant Accounting Policies

(a)

(b

(c)

(d)

(e)

Organization and Business

U.S. Renal Care, Inc. (the Company) was formed in June 2000 and provides dialysis services to
patients who suffer from chronic kidney failure, also known as end stage renal disease (ESRD).
ESRD is the stage of advanced kidney impairment that requires continual dialysis treatments, or a
kidney transplant, to sustain life, Patients suffering from ESRD gencrally require dialysis three times
per week for the rest of their lives. The Company primarily provides these services through the
operation of outpatient kidney dialysis clinics. As of December 31, 2011, the Company operated
86 outpatient dialysis clinics in Texas, Arkansas, Georgia, Maryland, New Jersey, Ohio,
Pennsylvania, Virginia, South Carolina, New York, Oklahoma and Illinois. In addition to its
outpatient dialysis cenler operations, as of December 31, 2011, the Company provides acute dialysis
services through contractual relationships with hospitals and dialysis to patients in their homes.

Principles of Consolidation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its
wholly owned and majority-owned subsidiaries. All significant intercompany accounts and
transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted
accounting principles (GAAP) requires management to make estimates and assumptions. These
estimates and assumptions affect the reportcd amounts of assets and liabilities, and the disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities, at the date of the consolidated financial statements, as well as the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period.

Although actual results in subsequent periods will differ from these estimates, such estimates are
developed based upon the best information avajlable to management and management’s best
judgments at the time made. The most significant estimates and assumptions involve revenue
recognition, provisions for uncoliectible accounts, determination of the fair value of assets and
liabilities acquired, impairments and valuation adjustments, and accounting for income taxes.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash includes cash and highly liquid investments with a maturity of ninety days or less at date of
purchase. Cash and cash equivalents at times may excced the FDIC limits. The Company believes no
significant concentration of credit risk exists with respect to these cash investments.

Accounts Receivable and Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

Substantially all of the Company’s accounts receivable are related to providing healthcare services to
its patients and are due from the Medicare program, siate Medicaid programs, managed care health
plans, commercial insurance companies and individual paticnts. The estimated provision for doubtful
accounts is recorded to the extent it is probable that a portion or all of a patient balance will not be
collected. The Company considers a number of faetors in evaluating the collectibility of accounts

7 {Continued)
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U.S. RENAL CARE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2011 and 2010

receivable including the age of the accounts, collection patterns and any ongeing disputes with
payors.

Amounts Due from Third-Party Payors

The amount due from third-party payors, which is included in other receivables, represents balances
owed to the Company by the Medicare program for reimbursable bad debts related to Medicare
beneficiaries. These reimbursements are part of the Company’s annual cost rcport filings and as
such, the actual payments may be delayed or subseguently adjusted pending review and audit by the
Medicare program fiscal intermediaries.

Amounts Due from Drug Rebates

The amount due from drug rebates, which is included in other receivables, represents balances owed
to the Company by various pharmaceutical vendors for Epogen (EPQ), vitamin D and iron. During
2011 and 2010, the Company had incentive contracts that reduced the invoice price based upon
volume purchased. This incentive was payable to the Company on a quarterly basis. In addition,
there was an additional annual incentive based on volume that was payable to the Company
annually.

Inventories

Inventories consist primarily of pharmaceuticals and dialysis-related supplies and are stated at the
lower of cost or market. Cost is determined using the first-in, first-out method. Market is determined
on the basis of estimated realizable values.

Property and Equipnent

Property and equipment is carried at cost less accumulated depreciation. Property under capital iease
agreements is stated at the present value of minimum lease payments less accumulated depreciation.
Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets
or the term of the lease as appropriate. The peneral range of useful lives is as follows:

Buildings 39 years
Leaschold improvements Life of lease
Fumiture and equipment 5 years
Computers 3 years

Capital lease assets are amortized over the shorter of the lease term or the estimated uscful life of the
improvement. Property and equipment acquired in acquisitions is recorded at fair value. The cost of
improvements that extend asset lives is capitalized. Other repairs and maintenance charges are
expensed as incurred.

Fully depreciated assets are retained in property and depreciation accounts until they are removed
from service. When sold or otherwise disposed of, assets and related depreciation are removed from
the accounts and the net amounts, less proceeds from disposal, are included in income.

8 (Continued)
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U.S. RENAL CARE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2011 and 2010

Concentration of Credit Risk

The Company's primary concentration of credit risk exists within accounts receivable, which consist
of amounts owed by various governmental agencics, insurance companies, and private patients.
Receivables from the Medicare program and various state Medicaid programs were approximately

56% and 57% of gross accounts receivable at December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively. -

Concentration of ¢redit risk relating to remaining accounts receivable is limited to some extent by the
diversity of the number of patients and payors.

Amoaortizable Intangibie Assets

Amortizable intangible assets and liabilities include noncompetition and similar agreements, lease
agreements, and deferred debt issvance costs, Noncompetition and similar agreements are amortized
over the terms (five to ten years) of the agreements using the straight-line method. Lease agreement
intangibles for favorable and unfavorable leases are amortized on a straight-line basis over the term
of the lease.

Deferred debt issuance costs are amortized using the effective interest method as an adjustment to
interest expense over the term of the related debt. In the case of debt repayments prior to the end of
the terrmm, the Company adjusts the amount of deferred financing costs at the date of repayment,
which is included in interest expense.

Goodwill

Goodwill is recorded when the consideration paid for an acquisition exceeds the fair value of net
iangible assets and identifiable intangible assets acquired. Goodwill and other indefinite-lived
intangible assets are not amortized, but are instead tested for impairment at least annually. The
annual evaluation for 2011 and 2010 resulted in no impairment charges.

Impairment of Long-Lived and Indefinite-Lived Assets

The Company evaluates long lived-assets and identifiable intangibles for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that an asset’s carrying amount may not be recoverable
or the useful life has changed. When undiscounted future cash flows are not expected to be sufficient
o recover an asset’s camrying amount, a loss is recognized and the asset is wriiten down to its fair
value.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

U.S. GAAP describes a fair value hicrarchy based cn three levels of inputs, of which the first two are
considered observable and the last unobservable, that may be used to measure fair value. The threc
levels of inputs are as follows:

. Level 1 —Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets and liabilities.

. Level 2 — Inputs other than Level 1 that are observable, either directly or indirectly, such as
quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities; quoted prices in markets that are not active; or
other inputs that are observable or can be corroborated by observable market data for
substantially the full term of the assets or liabilities.

9 (Continued)
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U.S. RENAL CARE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial $tatements
December 31, 2011 and 2010

. Level 3 — Unobservable inputs that are supported by little or no market activity and are
significant to the fair value of the assets or liabilities.

The Company's interest rate swap is remeasured to fair value on a recurring basis, At December 31,
2011 and 2010, the fair value of the interest rate swap was an unfavorable $434,083 and 30,
respectively, The fair value of the interest rate swap is determined using quoted market prices for
similar swap agreements and is considered to be Level 2 measurement. The fair value of the interest
rate swap is included as a component of other long-term liabilities at fair value.

At December 31, 2011 and 2010, the carrying amount of the senior secured credit facility was
$314.5 million and $178.9 million as compared to fair values of $323.3 million and $189.6 million,
respectively. The estimates of the fair value of the Company’s senior secured credit facility are based
upon a discounted present value analysis of future cash flows and are considered to be Level 3
financial measures. Due to the existing uncertainty in the capital and credit markets, the actual rates
that would be obtained to borrow under similar conditions could materially differ from the estimates
the Company has used.

For the Company’s other financial instruments, including the Company’s cash and cash equivalents,
accounts receivable, accounts payable, and accrued expenses the Company estimates the carrying
amounts approximate fair value due to their short-term maturity.

Net Operating Revenues and Accounts Receivable

Net operating revenue is recognized in the period services are provided. Revemue consists primarily
of reimbursements from Medicare, Medicaid and commercial health plans for dialysis scrvices
provided to patients. A usual and customary fee schedule is maintained for the Company’s dialysis
treatment and other patient services. However, actual collected revenue is normally at a discount to
this fee schedule. Contractual adjustments represent the differences between amounts billed for
services and amounts paid by third-party payors.

The Company’s dialysis facilities are certified to participate in the Medicare program. Revenues
reimbursed by the Medicare program are recognized primarily on a prospective payment system for
dialysis services (ESRD Prograrn). Prior to January 2011, dialysis providers operating under the
Medicare ESRD program received a composite payment rate to cover routine dialysis treatments and
certain supplies. There was a separate payment for laboratory testing and pharmaceuticals such as
EPO, vitamin D and iron supplements that were not included in the composite rate. However,
beginning January 2011, Medicare implemented a new payment system in which all ESRD payments
are now made under a single bundled payment rate that provides for an annual inflation adjustment
based upon a market basket index, less a productivity impravement factor. The bundled payment rate
provides a fixed rate to encompass goods and services provided during the dialysis treatment,
including pharmaceuticals that were historically separately reimbursed to the dialysis providers.
Most lab services that were previously paid direcily to laboratories are also included in the new
payment bundle. Now, as a result of the bundled payment system, the dialysis providers are at risk of
variations in pharmaceutical utilization since reimbursement is set at a fixed average reimbursement
rate.

10 ' {Continued)
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U.S. RENAL CARE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2011 and 2010

As of November 1, 2010, dialysis providers were required {0 make an election as to which clinics
would be fully reimbursed as of January 1, 2011 under the new bundled payment system or phased
into the new system over a four year period. The Company elected to have approximately 72% of its
clinics be reimbursed fully under the new bundled reimbursement system beginning January 1, 2011.
Once this election was made, it could not be revoked. All clinics that receive Medicare certification
subsequent to November 1, 2010 will be reimbursed under the new bundled reimbursement system.

The initial 2011 bundled payment rale includes reductions te conform 1o the provisions of the
Medicare Improvements for Patients and Providers Act (MIPPA) and to establish budget neutrality.
Further, there is a 5.94% reduction tied to an expanded list of case mix adjustors which can be
camed back upon the presence of these certain patient characteristics and co-morbidities at the time
of treatment. Historically, dialysis providers have not had to track certain of the case-mix adjustors
and these adjustors may be difficult to capture initially. There are also other provisions which may
impact reimbursement including an outlier adjustment and a low volume facility adjustment.

On April 1, 20t1, CMS released an interim final rule correcting the 3.1% transition adjustment factor
to properly update the number of ESRD facilities that elected to opt fully into the new Prospective
Payment System (PPS). This new rute was prospective and as a result, effective April 1, 2011 the
Company began recognizing revenues in accordance with the new rule, which resulted in an increase
in Medicare revenue per treatment of approximately 3.1% in comparison to levels recorded in the
first quarter of 2011.

On November 1, 2011, CMS issued the final ESRD PPS rule for 2012. The base rate for 2012
increased by 2.1%, representing a market basket increase of 3.0% less a productivity adjustment of
0.9%.

Also, begiming in 2012, the rule provides for up to a 2% annual payment withhold that can be
eamned back by the facilities that meet certain defined clinical performance standards under a quality
incentive program built into the bundied system. Thus, the quality incentive program couid result in
decreased payments if a dialysis facility fails to meet the standards.

Medicare presently pays 80% of the established payment rates for dialysis treatment furnished to
patients. The remaining 20% may be paid by Medicaid if the patient is eligible, from private
insurance funds, or from the patient’s personal funds, If there is no secondary payor to cover the
remaining 20%, and if the Company demonstrates prescribed collection efforts, Medicare may
reimburse the Company for part of that balance as part of the Company’s annual cost report filings
subject to individual center Medicare cconomics. As a result, billing and collection of Medicare bad
debt claims are often delayed significantly, and final payments are subject to audit.

Medicaid programs are administered by state governments and are partially funded by the federal
governent. In addition to providing primary coverage for patients whose income and assets fall
below state defined levels and are otherwise insured, Medicaid serves as a supplemental insurance
ptogram for the co-insurance portion not paid by Medicare. Medicaid reimbursement varies by state
but is typically reimbursed pursuant to a prospective payment system for dialysis services rendered.

Revenues associated with commercial health plans are estimated based upon patient-specific
contractual terms between the Company and health plans for the patients with which the Company
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has formal agreements, upon commercial health plan coverage terms if known, or otherwise upon
historical collection experience adjusted for refund and payment adjustment trends. Commercial
revenue recognition involves substantial judgment. With several commercial insurers, the Company
has multiple contracts with varying payment arrangements, and these contracts may include only a
subset of the Company’s dialysis centers. In addition, for services provided by noncontracted
centers, final collection may require specific negotiation of 2 payment amount. Generally, payments
for a dialysis treatment from commercial payors are greater than the corresponding amounts received
from Medicare and Medicaid,

Share-Based Compensation

The Company recognizes compensation expense, for all share-based awards, including stock option
grants to employees, using a fair-value measurement method. Under the fair-value method, the
estimated fair value of awards that are expected to vest is recognized over the requisite service
period, which is generaliy the vesting period.

Prior to 2006, the Company accounted for its equity compensation using the intrinsic value-based
method of accounting. The Company did not recognize compensation expense before 2006 because
the exercise price of stock options granted was not less than the estimated value of the underlying
stock on the date of grant, The Company continues to account for equity compensation based shares
granted prior to 2006 using the intrinsic valuc method until such time as shares are modified,
canceled, or repurchased.

The Company estimates the fair value of awards on the date of grant, using the Black-Scholes option
pricing model. The weighted average fair value of options granted during the years ended
December 31, 2011 and 2010 are calculated based on the following assumptions: expected volatility
of 30% and 22%, respectively, expected dividend yield of 0%, expected life of 3.75 years, and
risk-free interest rates of 0.69% to 1.97%. Expected volatility was derived using data drawn from
public dialysis company comparables. The expected life was computed utilizing the simplified
method as permitted by the Securities and Exchange Commission's Staff Accounting Bulletin, Share
Based Paymens. The expected forfeiture rate is 20% based upon a review of the Company’s recent
history and expectaticns as segregated between the Company's board of directors, senior officers,
and other prantees. The risk-free interest rate is based on the approximate average yicld on three and
five year United States' Treasury Bonds as of the date of grant. There were 146,987 and
352,000 options granted during the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively (see
note 10).

Noncontrolling Interest

In December 2007, the FASBissued an accounting standard, Noncontrolling Interests in
Consolidated Financial Statements (ASC 810), which gives puidance on the presentation and
disciosure of noncontrolling intercsts (previously known as minority interests) of consolidated
subsidiaries. This statement requires the noncontrolling interest to be included in the equity section
of the balance sheet, requires disclosure on the face of the consofidated statement of operations of the
amounts of consolidated net income attributable to the consolidated parent and the noncontrolling
interest, and expands disclosures.
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Consolidated income (loss) is reduced (increased) by the proportionate amount of income or loss
accruing to moncontrolling interests. Noncontrolling interest represents the equity interest of
third-party owners in consolidated entities that are not wholly owned.

Income Taxes

Income taxes are accounted for under the asset and Hability method. Deferred tax assets and
liabilities are recognized for the future tax conseguences attributable to the differences between the
financial statement carrying amount of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases
and operating loss and tax credit carryforwards. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using
enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the years which those temporary differences
are expected to be recovered or settled. The effect on deferred tax asscts and liabilities of a change in
tax rates is recognized in income in the period that includes the ¢nactment date. A valuation
aliowance is established when it is more likely than not that the deferred tax assets will not be
realized.

The Company recognizes the financial statement benefit of a tax position only after determining that
the relevant tax authority would more likely than not sustain the position following an audit. For tax
positions meeting the more-likely than-not threshold, the amount recognized in the financial
statements is the larpest benefit that has a greater than 50% likelihood of being realized upon
ultimate settlement with the relevant tax authority. The amount of unrecogmized tax benefits as of
December 31, 2011 and 2010 was $0.

The Company is subject to income taxes in the U.S. federal jurisdiction and various states. Tax
regulations within each jurisdiction are subject to the interpretation of the related tax laws and
regulations and require significant judgment to apply. The Company is no longer subject to
U.S. federal or state or local income tax examinations by tax authorities for the years before 2006. In
2011, the Internal Revenue Service finalized its examination of the Company’s 2007 U.S. income tax
returns, The resolution of this examination resulted in no additional tax payment,

The Company recognizes interest accrued related 1o unrecognized tax benefits in interest expense
and penalties in operating expenses for all perieds presented.

The Company’s consolidated LLC and L.P. subsidiaries do not incur federal income taxes. Instead,
their earnings and losses are included in the retums of, and taxed directly to, the members and
partners of these subsidiaries.

Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities

The Company has entered into interest rate swap and cap agreements as a means of hedging its
exposure to and volatility from variable-based interest rate change. These agreements are designed as
cash flow hedges and are not held for trading or speculative purposes. The swap agreement has the
economic effect of converting portions of the Company's variable rate debt to fixed rates.

In 2011, the Company adopted the provisions of FASB Statement No. 161, Disclosures about
Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities (included in FASB ASC Topic 815, Derivatives and
Hedging), which amends the disclosure requirements for derivative instruments and hedging
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activitics, The amended disclosure require entities to provide information to enable users of the
financial statements to understand how and why an entity uses derivative instruments, how
derivative instruments and related hedged items are accounted for, and how derivative instruments
are related hedged items affect an entity's financial position, financial performance, and cash fiows
{scc note 6).

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements

In July 2011, the FASB issued ASU No. 2011-07, feaith Care Entities-Presentation and Disclosure
of Patient Service Revenue, Provision for Bad Debts, and the Allowance for Doubtful Accounts. This
standard amends the current presentation and disclosure requirements for health care entities that
recognize significant amounts of patient service revenue at the time the services are rendered even
though they do not assess the patient’s ability to pay. This standard requires health care entities to
reclassify the provision for bad debts from an operating expense to a deduction from patient service
revenues in cettain circumstances. Additionaily, this standard requires enhanced disclosures on the
policies for recognizing revenue, assessing bad debts, as well as quantitative and qualitative
information regarding changes in the allowance for bad debts. This standard is applied
retrospectively to all prior periods presented and is effective for the first annual peried ending after
December 15, 2012 with early adoption permitted. The adoption of this standard will not have a
material impact on the Company’s consolidated financial statements,

In September 2011, the FASB issued ASU No. 201108, Intangibles-Goodwill and Other. This
standard simplifies the goodwill impairment assessment by allowing a company to first review
qualitative factors to determine whether it is more likely than not that the fair value of a reporting
unit s less than its carrying amount te determine if the two-step impairment test is necessary. If it is
determined that certain events and circumstances prove that it is more likely than not that the fair
value of a reporting unit is less than its carrying amount then an entity is required to proceed to step
one of the two-step goodwill impairment test. This standard is effective for the first annual period
ending after December 15, 2011 with early adoption permitted. The adoption of this standard will not
have a material impact on the Company’s consolidated financial statements.

Reclassifications

Certain reclassifications have been made to the 2010 consolidated financial statement balances to
conform with the 2011 presentation. Such reclassifications have no effect on earnings or
stockholders’ equity.

Correction of Immaterial Error

In 2011, the Company identified an error in recording the purchase of an additional interest in a
facility in 2010, that resulted in the Company gaining control of the facility that was previously
accounted for as an equity method investment. The effect of this change increased goedwill and
income before income taxes by $5.1 million, increased income tax expense and deferred tax
liabilities by $1.8 miilion and increased net income by $3.3 million. The allocation of the purchase
price including this gain follows. The Company has included this adjustment in the 2010 financial
statements as a comrection of an immatertal error (see note 3(b)).
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Fixed Assets
At December 31,2011 and 2010, property and equipment consists of the following:

2011 2010

Facility equipment, furniture, and information systems s 46,577,947 42,891,347
Land and buildings 3,745,050 6,747,940
Leasehold improvements 30,638,531 21,493,319
New center construction in progress 863,043 778,865
81,824,571 71,911,471
Less accurnulated depreciation and amortization (35,922,283) (25,129,530)
$ 45,902,288 46,781,941

Year ended December 31
2011 2010

Depreciation and amorttization expense on property
and equipment 5 12,880,752 9,304,459

Net book value of equipment under capital leases at December 31 was as follows:

2011 2010
Equipment b 14,073,859 10,671,572
Less accumulated depreciation (8,361,068) {6,099,837)
5 5,712,791 4,571,735

Acquisitions/Disposition

The Company has acquired various dialysié businesses, as described further below. The assets and
liabilities for all acquisitions were recorded at their estimated fair values as of the effective acquisition date
based upon the best available information.

Amortizable intangible assets consist primarily of noncompete agreements. Goodwill is recorded when the
consideration paid for an acquisition exceeds the fair value of identifiable net tangible assets and
identifiable intangible assets acquired.

The results of operations for the acquired companies are included in the Company’s financia! statements
beginning on the effective acquisition date.

(a) Dialysis Corporation of America, Inc, Acquisition

On June 3, 2010, the Company acquired all the outstanding common shares of Dialysis Corporation
of America, Inc. (DCA) for $11.25 per share. DCA provides outpatient dialysis, in-home dialysis and
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acute services in Georgia, Maryland, New Jersey, Ohio, Pennsylvania, Virginia and South Carolina.
The results of operations for DCA are included in the Company’s financial statements beginning
June 1, 2010.

The DCA acquisition cost of approximately $110 million and costs related thereto were funded from
the proceeds of the Company’s senior secured and subordinated loan agreements (sce note 6) and the
issvance of Series D Prefemred Stock {see note 8).

The estimated fair values of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed at the acquisition date are as
follows:

Assets:
Cash $ 1,294,958
Net accounts receivable 17,072,334
Inventory 2,684,480
Other receivables 1,280,382
Other current assets 2,257,895
Total current assets 24,590,049
Property and equipment, net 20,526,500
Amortizable intangibles, net 12,957,381
Goodwill 113,828,342
Other long-term assets 863,600
Total assets $ 172,765,872
Liabilities:
Accounts payable g 4,958,871
Accrued expenses 6,177,187
Total current liabilities 11,136,058
Long-term debt 9,586,971
Other long-term liabilities (326,383)
Deferred tax liability 3,808,826
Total liabilities 3 24,204,972
Equity:
Minority interest 3 38,310,900
Total equity §__38310900
San Antonip

On July 1, 2010, the Company purchased an additional 40% interest in one of its joint venture
cntitics which it previously had a 40% noncontrolling ownership interest for $7.2 miilion, The
acquisition was funded by borrowing under the Company’s revolving credit facility (see note 6) and
cash on hand. The consolidated results of operation for this facility are included in the Company's
financial statements beginning July 1, 2010. Previously, the Company's investment was recorded
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using the equity method of accounting. The investment balance at June 30, 2010 was approximately
$922,000,

Subsequent to the issuance of the December 31, 2010 financial statements, the Company concluded
that the purchase of an additional 40% interest in the San Antonio joint venture on July 1, 2010,
should have resulted in a gain to be included in the December 31, 2010 financial statements. At the
date of the transaction, the Company did not remeasure the previously held noncontrolling interest of
40% at fair value and recognize the resulting gain or loss. As a result of this adjustment, a gain on
acquisition of controlling interest of $5.1 million is included in the December 31, 2010 financial
statemenis. The effect of this change increased goodwill and income before income taxes by
35.1 million, increased income tax expense and deferred tax liabilities by $1.8 million and increased
net income by $3.3 million. The allocation of the purchase price including this gain follows. The
Company has included this adjustment in the 2010 financial statements as a correction of an
immaterial error.

Assets:
Cash $ 671,969
Net accounts receivable 1,151,930
Inventory 22,726
Other receivables 7,724
Other current assets 24,742
Total cwurent assets 1,879,091
Property and equipment, net 974,832
Goodwill 13,476,227
Total assets 3 16,330,150
Liabilities:
Accounts payable 3 25,983
Accrued expenses 145,888
Total Habilities $ 171,871
Equity:
Minority interest % 2,986,200
Total] equity $ 2,986,200
December Acquisition

On December 1, 2010, the Company acquired two outpatient dialysis clinics, an acute program and a
home program (December Acquisition). This transaction included purchasing a $1% majority
interest in the assets of one of the clinics and a 100% interest in the assets of the other clinic. The
results of operations for these services arc included in the Company’s financial statements beginning
December 1, 2010. The December Acquisition cost of approximately $1 million was funded from
operating ¢ash flow.,
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The estimated fair values of the assets acquired at the acquisition date are as follows:

Assets;
Inventory $ 89,114
Other current assets 26,617
Fixed assets 416,000
Goodwill 869,546
Total assets $ 1,400,677
Liabilities:
Accrued expenses 3 357,713
Total labilities $ 357,713

(d)  Medicore Disposition

On November 30, 2010, the Company sold 100% of the net assets of its medical products business
that was acquired in the DCA acquisition. The Company sold, assigned and transferred certain assets
for approximately $535,000 resulting in no gain or Joss.

(e) Advanced Home Therapies Acquisition

On May 16, 2011, the Company acquired home dialysis programs providing services at two
locations in Illinois. The transaction included purchasing a 51% majority interest in the assets. The
results of operations for these services are included in the Company’s financial statements beginning
May 16, 2011. The Advanced Home Therapies Acquisition cost of approximately $1.2 million was
funded from operating cash flow.

The estimated fair value of the assets acquired at the acquisition date arc as follows:

Assets:
Fixed assets $ 9,320
Goodwill 2,452,430
Amortizable intangibles, net 38,250
Total assets b 2,500,000

Equity:
Minority interest 5 1,225,000
Total equity AN 1,225,000

{4) Noncontrolling Intcrests

The Company engages in the purchase and sale of equity interests with respect to its consolidated
subsidiaries that do not result in a change of conwol. These transactions are accounted for as equity
transactions, as they are undertaken among the Comgany, its consolidated subsidiaries, and noncontrolling
interests, and their cash flow effect is classified within financing activities.
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As of December 31, 2011, the Company was the majority owner in 66 joint ventures. Of the noncantrolling
interests in those 66 joint ventures, 23 have put rights generally at fair value as defined in the agreement
that are either currently exercisable or become exercisable at various future dates. The carrying amount of
these redeemable noncontrolling interests totaled $9.1 million and $7.3 mitlion as compared to redemption
values of $46.1 million and $41.0 million at December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively. The redemption
value is calculated at the current value of the put payment that would be required to redeem the interest if
the put is exercised regardless of whether such interest is currently exercisable. As of December 31, 2011,
$7.4 million of put rights are currently exercisable and the remaining $38.7 million gencrally become
exercisable over the next three to five years.

Intongible Assets
At December 31, 2011 and 2010, amortizable intangible assets consisted of the following:

2011 2010

Noncompetition agreements ) 31,858,689 31,836,273
Lease agreements 580,106 580,106
Deferred debt issuance costs 7,768,556 7,939,537
Licenses 359,000 359,000
40,566,351 40,714,916

Less accumulated amortization {18,948,741) (13,365,202)
Net amortizable intangible assets b 21,617,610 27,349,714

Amortizable intangible liabilities, which are included in other long-term liabilities, consisted of lease
agreements as follows:

2011 2010
Lease agreements $ 1,894,040 1,894,040
Less accumulated amortization {933,193) (648,449)
Net amortizable intangible liabilities $ 960,847 1,245,591

Amortization of intangible assets and liabilities over the next five years is as follows:

Deferred debt Lease

Noncompetition issuance agreements,

__agrecments costs net Licenses
2012 $ 4508985 1,267,449 (114,102) 71,800
2013 4,421,133 1,263,680 (66,168) 71,800
2014 4,324 487 1,263,680 (95,728) 71,800
2015 1,288,439 1,263,680 (106,751) 29,9117
2016 164,805 1,150,451 (98,458) —
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Changes in the value of goodwill were as follows:

2011 2010
Balance at January 1 $ 195,575,023 67,922,354
Goodwill adjustments (2,436,090) (521,626}
Goodwill acquired 2,452,430 128,174,295
Balance at December 31 $ 195,591,363 195,575,023

The fair value of the identifiable intangibles acquired and the amount of goodwill recorded as a result of
acquisitions are determined based upon independent third-party valuations and the Company’s estimates.
Amortization expense for the Company’s intangible assets relates to the value associated with the
noncompete and lease agreements. The noncompete intangible assets are amortized over the term of the
noncompete agreements executed in connection with the acquisition iransactions or the medical
agreements entered into with certain physicians and the lease agreement intangibles are amortized over the
term of the lease.

The Company recorded $2.4 million to goodwill related to deferred tax adjustments in relation to the
acquistion of DCA (see note 3(a)).

{6) Long-Term Debt

On June 9, 2011, the Company entered into an Amendment Agreement to amend and restate the
Company’s senior credit agrecment entered into on May 24, 2010 (as amended, the Amended Agreement).
The Amended Agreement consists of: (a) a $215 miltion senior secured term loan (Term Loan} and (b) 2
$40 million senior secured revolving credit facility (Revolver). Also on June 9, 2011, the Company entered
into an Amendment Agreement to amend and restate the senior subordinated loan agreement entered into
on May 24, 2010 to allow the Company to borrow an additional $60 million (Additional Subordinated
Loan), for an aggregate principle amount of $100 million (Subordinated Loan). The additional proceeds
obtained under the Term Loan and the Additional Subordinated Loan along with avzilable cash on hand
were utilized to (a) to fund a one time dividend payment to the Company’s shareholders in the amount of
$137.5 million (see note 9), and (b) pay expenses and fees associated with the amended senior secured and
subordinated loan agreements.

Borrowings under the Term Loan and Revolver {collectively Senior Secured Loans) bear interest based
upon a spread in excess of LIBOR (floor of 1.50%) or the U.S, prime rate, as the benchmark, as adjusted,
in the case of the interest rate applicable to the Revolver, based upon the Company’s leverage ratio. The
Amended Agreement also provides for an annual unused commitment fee of 0.75% based upon the
average revolving credit commitment less outstanding borrowings on the Revelver and letters of credit, as
adjusted based upon the Company's leverage ratio. As of December 31, 2011, borrowings under the Senior
Secured Loans bore interest at 5.50%. The Subordinated Loan accrues interest at 13.25% with 11.25% paid
in cash per annum. The remaining 2% of interest on the Subordinated Loan (PIK Interest) will be
capitalized and accrued for until it becomes due upon the maturity of the loan.
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The Term Loan requires quarterly principal payments of $537,500 in each year from 2011 through 2016
with the balance of $204,787,500 due in 2016. The Subordinated Loan requires a one-time payment of
$100 million principal balance due in 2017, in addition to outstanding PIK Interest.

The Revolver, Term Loan, and Subordinated Loan mature on June 9, 2016, December 9, 2016, and June 2,
2017, respectively. The subordinated loan agreement provides for prepayment penalties if it is repaid
within the first three years subsequent to Tune 2, 2011,

Commencing with the fiscal year ended December 31, 2011, the Company is required to prepay Hs
outstanding Semior Secured Loan balances with 50% of excess cash flow as defined in the credit
agreement. The Company is also required to prepay senior secured loan balances with: (a) 100% of the
proceeds of asset sales or the proceeds received from casualty event settlements that are not reinvested or
permitted pursuant to the terms of the credit agreement, and (b) 100% of the proceeds of indebtedness that
is incurred and not permitted pursuant to the credit agreement. Following satisfaction of any prepayment
under the Senior Secured Loans, the Company is tequired to prepay the Subordinated Loan balances with
100% of the proceeds of asset sales or the proceeds received from a casualty event settlement that are not
reinvested or permitted pursuvant to the terms of the credit agreement.

The Senior Secured Loans and the Subordinated Loan are guaranteed, on a joint and several basis, by each
of the Company’s subsidiaries, subject to certain exceptions. Borrowings under the credit agreements are
collateralized by substantially all of the Company’s and its subsidiaries’ assets, including accounts
receivable, inventory, and fixed assets not subject to permitted capital leases. The Subordinated Loan is
subordinated to the repayment of the Senior Secured Loans. The Senior Secured and Subordinated Loan
agreements include various events of default and contain certain restrictions on the operations of the
business, including restrictions on certain cash payments, including capital expenditures, investments and
the payment of dividends. These loan agreements also include covenants pertasning to interest coverage
and total debt leverage, as well as other customary covenants and events of defaults,

The Company believes it is in compliance with all covenants under the Senior Sccured Loan and
Subordinated Loan agreements and has met all debt payment obligations. At December 31, 2011,
approximately $40 million of commitments were unused and available under the Revolver.

At December 31, 2011 and 2010, long-term debt and capital lease obligations consisted of the following:

2011 2010

Senior secured credit facility:

Term loan $ 213,387,500 131,506,250

Revolver —_ 7,000,000

Subordinated loan 101,137,105 40,410,549
Other notes payable — 23,305
Capital lease obligations 6,936,196 5,708,480

321,460,801 184,648,584
Less current portion (3,805,921) {2,924,662)
$ 317,654,880 181,723,922
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Scheduled maturities of long-term debt and capital lcase obligations at Dccember 31, 2811 were as
follows:

Long-term Capital lease

debt obligations

2012 b 2,150,000 2,130,273
2013 2,150,000 1,890,004
2014 2,150,000 1,669,552
2015 2,150,000 1,296,580
2016 204,787,500 426,856
Thereafter 101,137,105 799,864
§ 314,524,605 8,213,129

Less interest portion at 5.040% — 8.561% (1,276,933)
Total 5 6,936,196

Due to the Amended Agreement, the Company recognized a loss on early retirement of debt of
$4.8 million primarily related to a write-off of previously existing deferred finance costs.

According to the senior secured loan agreement dated as of May 24, 2010, the Company was required to
enter into an interest rate hedging agreement, no later than 90 days following the closing date. The
Company entered into a three year Hedge Agreement on September 1, 2010 which consists of an interest
rate cap on the LIBOR floating rate of the senior secured loans at 1.75% until August31, 2011.
Additionally the Company entered into 2 swap from September I, 2011 to September 1, 2013 effectively
fixing the base rate at 2.32%. The notional amount of the swap is $46.375 million, which is equivatent to
22% of the Term Loan amount borrowed. The fair value of the interest rate swap is $434,083 at
December 31, 2011 and is included as a component of other long-term liabilities. The swap is not being
accounted for as an effective hedge and all adjustments to fair value are recorded to the statement of
operations as interest expense, Interest expense for the year ended December 31, 2011 includes $434,083
of net losses, representing the adjustment of the intecest rate swap to fair value.

Income Taxes

Income tax expense (benefit) consisted of the following:

2011 2010
Current:
Federal LY 4,726,167 1,652,164
State 2,812,966 1,244,752
Deferred:
Federal 1,437,172 4 803,175
State (586,359) (156,872}
h 8,389,946 7,543,219
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The difference between the expected tax expense based on the federal statutory rate of 34% is primarily
Texas gross margin iax, which is not based on pre-tax income and income fax attributable to

noncontrolling interest.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arising from temporary differences were as follows:

2011 2010
Deferred tax assets:
Accrued expenses and other liabilities for financial
accounting purposes not currently deductible 5 6,486,955 5,776,527
Net operating loss carryforwards and contribution limitation 1,190,622 858,471
Flow through entities 9,852,665 4,328,310
Property plant and eguipment — 197,679
Other 1,737,710 151,589
Total deferred tax assets 19,267,952 11,312,576
Deferred tax liabilities:
Property and equipment and intangibles, principally due to
differences in depreciation and amortization (2,234,567) (3,546,732)
Goodwill (11,328,149 (11,031,330)
Other (4,541,341 (1,717,088)
Total deferred tax liabilities (18,104,057) (16,295,150)
Net deferred tax assets (liabilities) $ 1,163,895 {4,982,574)

The Company fully utilized ail net operating loss carryforwards at December 31, 2010 of approximately
$1,285,316. The Company has not recorded a valuation allowance for any of its deferred tax assets at
December 31, 20f1 as it expects to generate future taxable income sufficient to realize such deferred tax

assets.

Preferred Stock

Under the Company’s Fifth Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation, as amended, 105,995,979
total shares are authorized to issue, comprised of 57,237,646 shares of common stock and
48,758,333 shares of preferred stock. Preferred stock is issuable in series under terms and conditions

determined by the Company’s Board of Directors.

(a} Series A Preferred Stock

During 2011, upon the exercisc of warrants by certain warrant holders, 375,000 shares of Series A
Preferred stock were issued at 2 price of $1 per share for total net proceeds of approximately
$375,000. As of December 31, 2011 and 2010, there were 12,725,000 and 12,350,000 shares,

respectively, of Series A Preferred stock outstanding.

(b} Series B Preferred Stock

As of December 31, 2011 and 2010, there were 545,000 shares of Scries B Preferred stock

outstanding,
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Series B-1 Preferred Stock

As of December 31, 2011 and 2010, there were 886,666 shares of Series B-1 Preferred stock
outstanding.

Series C Preferred Stock

As of December 31, 2011 and 2010, there were 24,500,962 shares of Series C Preferred stock
outstanding.

Series D Preferred Stock

As of December 31, 2011 and 2010, there were 8,333,333 shares of Series D Preferred stock
outstanding,

Dividends

Following the payment by the Company of a cash dividend on June 9, 2011 (the 2011 Dividend) (sec
note 9), Series D Preferred stockholders are entitled to receive cash dividends at the rate of 8% per
annum calculated on the base price per share of $0.95, which are cumulative from June 9, 2011, but
shall be paid only (a) upon a liquidation event; (b) upon a redemption of the Series D Preferred
stock; or (¢) if declared by the Board of Directars of the Company. Accumulations of dividends on
shares of Series D Preferred stock do not bear interest. Series A, Series B, Series B-1 and Series C
Preferred stockholders and common stockholders arc entitled to receive dividends, when and if
declared by the Board of Directors out of the Company’s assets legally available. If Series A,
Series C and Series D Preferred shares are cutstanding, no dividend may be declared with respect to
Series B or Series B-1 Preferred stock or common stock unless al! declared Series A and Series C
Preferred dividends and cumulative Series D Preferred dividends have been paid and a similar
dividend is declared on Series A, Series C and 3eries D Preferred stock. Cumulative dividends with
respect to all outstanding shares of Preferred Stock were $359,305 and $19,831,208 at December 31,
2011 and 2010, respectively.

Redemption

Each share of Series A, Series C, and SeriesD Preferred stock is redeemable beginning on
Seplember {, 2020, if approved by at least 60% of the then-outstanding shareholders of Series A,
Series C, and Series D Preferred, voting as a single class. Series B and Series B-1 Preferred stock is
redeemable, beginning on September 1, 2012 only subject to and after redemption of the Series A,
Series C, and Series D Preferred Stock, or if approved by at least 60% of the then-outstanding shares
of Series A, Series C, and Series D Preferred, voting as a single class, and if also approved by at least
60% of the then-outstanding shares of Series B and Series B-1 Preferred, voting as a single class.

Any such redemption would be payable in three equal annual installments and the redemption price
per share would be calculated using the sum of the original issue price {$1 per share for Series A and
Series B Preferred, $1.50 for Series C and Series B-1 Preferrcd, and $3 per share for Series D
Preferred) pius all related accrued and unpaid dividends, minus, in the case of Series A, Series C and
Series D Preferred sharcs only, the amount of the 2011 Dividend paid in respect of such share (but
not less than $0).
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Conversion Rights

Each share of Series A, Series B, Series B-1, Series C and Series D Preferred stock is currently
convertible at any time, at the option of the holder, into the same number of shares of common stock.
Each share of Series A, Series B, Series B-1, Series C, and Series D converts automatically upon
(i) the approval of at least 60% of the shares of Series A, Series B and Series D Preferred stock,
voting as a single class, or (i) a qualified public offering. Upon such amtomatic conversion, any
related declared and unpaid dividend becomes due.

Liguidation Preference

Upon liquidation or dissolution, and after payment or provision for payment of ail debts and
liabilities, stockholders of the Company will receive proceeds, to the extent available, as follows:
(a) first, to the holders of Series A, Series C and Series D Preferred stock, amounts per share equal to
(i} the original issue price, plus {ii) accrued and unpaid dividends, minus (jii} the amount of the 2011
Dividend paid in respect of such share (but not Jess than $0); (b) second, to the holders of Series B
and Series B-1 Preferred stcck, amounts per share equal to (i) the original issue price, plus
(ii) accrued and unpaid dividends, (¢) third, ratably to the holders of common stock, and Series A,
Series B, Series B-1, Series C, and Series D Preferred stock on an as-if-converted to common stock
basis until (i)the holders of Series A and Series C Preferred stock shall have received, in total
including the payment under {a) above, an amount per share equal to three (3) times the difference
between (A) the original issue price less (B) any amount by which the amount of the 2011 Dividend
received in respect of such share exceeded the sum of the original issue price plus accrued and
unpaid dividends, and (ii) the holders of Series D Preferred Stock shall have received, in total
including the payment under (a) above, an amount per share equal 1o two (2} times the difference
between (A) the original issue price less (B) any amount by which the amount of the 2011 Dividend
received in respect of such share exceeded the sum of the onginal issue price plus accrued and
unpaid dividends; and (d) fourth, to the holders of common stock, any remaining available amounts,

Voting Rights

Each share of Series A, Series C and Series D Preferred stock issued and outstanding is entitled to
the number of votes equal to the number of shares of commeon stock into which it is convertible. For
various defined events, Series A, Series C and Series D Preferred stockholders vote together as a
separate class. In those circumstances, 60% or more of the outstanding Series A, Series C and
Series D Preferred stockholders must approve the event.

Each share of commen steck is entitled to one vote. As long as Series A, Series C and Series D
Preferred stock is outstanding, and ¢xcept for various defined cvents, Series A, Series C and Series D
Preferred stockholders vote together with common stockholders as a single class on an
as-if-<converted to common stock basis.

The Series B and Series B-1 Preferred stockholders have no voting rights and their consent is not
required to take any corporate action.

The number of authorized shares outstanding can only be changed upon the affirmative vote of (i) a
majority of the Company’s stockholders, voting together on an as-if-converted to common stock
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basis, and (i} at least 60% of the Series A, Series C and Series D Preferred stock, voting both as
separate classes and together as a single class.

(k) Other Terms

All stockholders are obligated to participate in a sale of the Company approved by at least 60% of
the Series A, Series C and Series I Preferred stockholders, voting together as a singje class, and the
board of directors.

Series A, Series C and Series D Preferred stockholders have the right to purchase any new securities
on a proportionate basis, and also have the right of over-allotment if any other Series A, Series C or
Series D Preferred sharcholder fails to purchase a full proportionate share of the any new securities.
Series B Preferred, Series B-1 Preferred, and common stockholders do not have preemptive rights.

The Company and the Series A, Series B, Series C and Series D Preferred stockholders have the
right to purchase shares from Series B Preferred, Series B-1 Preferred and common stockholders
who wish to transfer their shares to a nonpermitied transferee.

Shareholder Dividend

On June 9, 2011, the Company’s Board of Directors authorized the payment of the 2011 Dividend in the
amount of $137.5 million to all common and preferred stockholders, The 2011 Dividend was paid using
proceeds from the Company’s Term Loan and Additional Subordinated Loan (see note 6). The Company’s
preferred shares are convertible and the 2011 Dividend was paid ratably to all outstanding shares on an
as-if-converted basts. Of the total 2011 Dividend, $117.4 million and $20.1 million were paid to preferred
and commen stockholders, respectively. As of the date of the 2011 Dividend, there were $22.4 million of
curnulative dividends related to the Company’s Series A, Series C and Series D Preferred stockholders.
The 2011 Dividend constituted the payment of all such cumulative dividends to these stockholders, The
remainder of the 2011 Dividend reduced retained eamings by $11.9 million and additional paid-in capital
by $103.2 million. It is the Company’s policy to reduce retained earnings subscquent to the dividend
payment up 1o the amount of the current deficit in additional paid-in capital.

Stock Compensation Plans

The Company's 2005 Stock Inceative Plan (the 2005 SIP) provides stock options and restricted stock
grants, and other share-based incentives, primarily to employees and directors, In March 2009, the
Company authorized an additional 500,000 shares available for grant. In May 2010, the Company
authorized an additional 600,000 shares available for grant. In 2011, the Company authorized an additional
327,487 shares for grant. There were 6,327,487 and 6,000,000 shares available for grant as of
December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively, under the amended 2005 SIP.

(a) Stock Option Plan

Awards granted under the 2005 SIP are for incentive stock options with a five year term, an exercise
price at least equal to the market value on the date of grant, and which vest 25% after one year of
service and then monthly in equal amounts over the next three years of service. Income for the years
ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 included $(2,131) and $70,744 respectively, of pretax
compensation costs related to stock options granted. As of December 31, 2011, there was $14,806 of
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total unrecognized compensation costs related to stock options. These costs are expected to be
recognized over a period of approximately four years, At December 31, 2011, the weighted average
remaining contractual life of outstanding options was 2.82 years.

The table below summarizes activity in the Company’s stock option plan:

Year ended December 31

2011 2010
Weighted Weighted
average average
excrcise exercise
Awards price Awards price
Outstanding at beginning of
year 1,076,594 § 0.18 1,016,066 § 0.14
Granted 146,987 1.70 352,000 0.26
Exercised (662,430) 0.48 (291,472) 0.15
Canceled (128,250) 0.17 — —
Qutstanding at end of year 432,901 (.25 1,076,594 0.18
Awards exercisablc at
year-end 78,068 0.21 380,742 0.14

Restricted Stock

The Company issued restricted stock to certain employees in 2010 and in prior years. Restricted
stock awards vest 25% afler one year of service and then monthly in equal amounts over the next
three years of service, subject to continued employment and other plan terms and conditions. Holders
of restricted stock are not allowed to sell, transfer, pledge, or otherwise encumber their restricted
shares, but such holders are allowed to vote and their shares accrue dividends when and if declared.
The Company may, but is not obligated to, repurchase vested restricted stock from employecs at fair
matket value upon termination of the recipient’s employment.

Expense for restricted stock is recognized over the vesting period. The noncash compensation
expense associated with restricted stock awards was $138,471 in 2011 and $31,908 in 2010. The
following table summarizes restricted stock award activity:

2011 2010
Outstanding balance at beginning of year $ 3,961,558 3,401,558
Granted — 560,000
Exercised — —_—
Forfeited — —
Repurchased — —
Balance at December 31, 2011 3 3,961,558 3,961,558
27 (Continued)

Altachment 39

174




U.S. RENAL CARE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2011 and 2010

The following table swnmarizes the nonvested restricted stock activity:

2011 2010
Qutstanding balance at beginning of year $ 712,753 641,122
Granted — 560,000
Vested {339,420) {488,369)
Forfeited — -—
Repurchased — -
Balance at December 31, 2011 $ 373,333 712,753

At December 31, 201}, 3,588,225 of the outstanding restricted shares were wvested. As of
December 31, 2011, there was approximately $217,000 of total unrecognized compensation costs
related to restricted stock awards, These costs are expected to be recognized over a remaining
vesting period of approximately four years.

(11} Related-Party Transactions

Participation in the Medicare ESRD program requircs that treatment at a dialysis center be under the
general supervision of a director who is a physician. The Company has engaged physicians or groups of
physicians 1o serve as medical directors for each of its centers. The Company has contracts with
approximately 59 individual physicians and physician groups to provide medical director services. The
compensation of medical directors is negotiated individually and depends in general on local factors such
as competition, the professional gualifications of the physician, their experience and their tasks as well as
the workload at the clinic.

An ESRD patient generally seeks treatment at a dialysis center near his or her home and at which his or her
{reating nephrologist has practice privileges. Additionally, many physicians prefer to have their patients
treated at dialysis centers where they or other members of their practice supervise the overall care provided
as medical directors to the centers. As a result, and as is typical in the dialysis industry, the primary referral
source for most of the Company’s centers is often the physician or physician group providing medical
director services to the center,

The Company’s medical director agreements generally include covenants not o compete. Also, when the
Company acquires a center from one or more physicians, or where one or more physicians owns interests
in centers as co-owners with the Company, these physicians have agreed to refrain from owning interests
in competing centers within a defined geographic area for various time periods. These agreements not to
compete restrict the physicians from owning or providing medical director services to other dialysis
centers. Most of these agreements not to compete continue for a period of time beyond expiration of the
corresponding medical director agreements.

The Company leases space for 35 of its centers in which physicians and/or employees hold ownership
interests, and subleases space to referring physicians and/or employees at 16 centers, Future minimum
icase payments payable under these leases {s approximately $23 million at December 31, 2011, exclusive
of maintenance and other costs, and is subject to escalation. For 2011 and 2010, total lease payments under
these leases were approximately $3.9 million and $2.9 million, respectively. On June 21, 2010, the
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Company entered into a ten year corporate office lease agreement with an entity owned by two of its
employees. The lease commenced on August 1, 2011, The future lease payments payable under this lease
are approximately $1.1 million. For 2011, total lease payments under this lease were approximately
549,678,

The Company’s York, Pennsylvania dialysis center is leased from a limited liability parinership in which
the Company has a 60% ownership interest with the remaining 40% owned by two doctors one of whom
serves as the medical director for that facility. These doctors are also affiliated with the entity that owns a
40% minority ownership in the subsidiary that operates the facility.

Some medical directors and other referring physicians own Series B, Series B-1, Series C and Series D
Preferred stock, which they purchased from the Company. Some of the Company’s medical directors also
own equity interests in entities that operate the Company’s dialysis centers.

The Company believes that the leases and equity purchases are no less favorable to the Company and no
morce favorable to such physicians than would have been obtained in arm’s-length bargaining between
independent parties.

The Company has one promissory note obligation owed a noncentrolling interest holder in one of its
subsidiaries. The note obligation was in an original amount of $750,000, of which $0 and $125,000 was
outstanding at December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively. At December 31, 2011 and 2010, $0 and
$125,000 of the amount outstanding was classified ir. the accompanying consolidated balance sheet as a
current liability. The note bore intersst at 7% and principal was due in six annual installments from May 1,
2006 through May 1, 2011.

During the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010, the Company paid & related party affiliated through
common ownership $461,342 and $461,011, respectively, for the usage of an airplane.

A member of the Company’s board of directors provides consulting services primarily related to regulatory
and reimbursement matters. The total expenses incurred by the Company related to these services were
approximately $100,000 in 2011 and 2010, respectively.

Legislation, Regulations, and Market Congditions

The Company’s dialysis operations are subject 0 extensive federal, state, and local government
regulations. These regulations require the Company to meet various standards relating to, among other
things, the operation of dialysis clinics, the provision of quality healthecare for paticnts, maintenance of
proper ownership and rccords, quality assurance programs, and occupational, health, safety and
environmental standards, and the provision of accurate reporting and billing to government and private
payment programs. These laws are extremely complex, and in many instances, providers do neot have the
benefit of significant regulatory or judicial interpretation as to how to interpret and apply these laws and
regulations in the normal course of conducting their business. Healthcare providers that do not comply
with these laws and regulations may be subject to civil or criminal penalties, the loss of their licenses, or
restriction in their ability to participate in various federal and state healthcare programs. The Company
endeavors to conduet its business in compliance with applicable laws and regulations.

29 {Continued}

Attachment 39

176




(13)

(14

U.S. RENAL CARE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2011 and 2010

The Company's dialysis centers are certified (or are pending certification) by the Centers for Medicare and
Medicaid Services, as is required for the receipt of Medicare payments, and are licensed and permitted by
state authorities.

The Mcdicare and Medicaid Fraud and Abuse Amendments of 1977, as amended, generally referred to as
the “anti-kickback statute,” imposes sanctions on those who, among other things, offer, solicit, make or
receive payments in return for referral of a Medicare or Medicaid patient for treatment. The federal False
Claims Act imposes penalties on those who, among other things, knowingly present a false or fraudulent
claim for payment to the federal government, Another federal law, commonly referred to as the “Stark
Law,” prohibits physicians, with certain exceptions, from referring Medicare patients to entities with which
the physician has a financial relationship, states have analogous statues. The Health Insurance Portability
and Accountability Act of 1996 (HIPAA), among other things, includes provisions relating to the privacy
of medical information and prohibits inducements to patients to select a particular healtheare provider,
Congress, states and regulatory agencies continue to consider modifications to federal and state healthcare
laws. The Company’s dialysis centers are also subject to various state hazardous waste and nonhazardous
medical waste disposal laws.

Sanctions for violations of these statutes could result in the impaosition of significant fines and penalties,
repayments for patient services previously billed, expulsion from government healthcare programs, and
other civil or criminal penaitics. Maragement believes that the Company is in material compliance with
applicable government laws and regulations.

Profit-Sharing Plan

The Company has a savings plan {or employees who meet certain criteria that have been established
pursuant to the provisions of Section 401(k) of the Internal Revenue Code. The plan atlows employees to
contribuie a defined portion of their compensation on a tax-deferred basis. Since January 1, 2003, the plan
allows for defined matching Company contributions for eligible employees. The plan was amended
effective January 1, 2006 to allow vesting credit for prior years of service for employees of certain
acquired businesses. For the years ending December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively, the Company made
matching contributions to the plan of $674,250 and $386,328.

The Company may also make discretionary profit-sharing contributions to the plan if approved by the
board of directors. No such contributions were made in 2011 or 2010,

Commitments and Contingencics

The Company may be subject to claims and suits in the ordinary course of business, inchiding contractual
disputes and professional and general liability claims.

On February 15, 2007, the previous owners of the acquired San Antonio facilities brought suit against the
Company. In the lawsuit, the plaintiffs alleged that the Company had failed to pay amounts due to the
sellers of Rencare Lid. (Rencare) conceming accounts receivable that arose prior to the close of the
Rencare acquisition. A trial was held in November 2008 and judgment was entered in favor of the plaintiff
seller. Both sides appealed, and the Company prevailed in the appeal. The Texas Court of Appeals held
that the plaintiff should receive nothing and directed entry of judgment in the Company’s favor. In
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January of 2012, the Texas Supreme Court declined review, and the judgment in favor of the Company is
now final. The Company incurred legal and other professional fees related to this litigation. These
expenses aggregated $62,791 and $27,208 in 2011 and 2010, respectively. In 2010, the Company reversed
a $1.1 million reserve related to this litigation that it recorded in 2008.

In February, 2010, and prior to the Company’s acquisition, DCA received a subpoena from the Office of
Inspector General of the U.S. Depariment of Health and Human Services (OIG) with respect to an
investigation relating to EPO utilization at certain DCA clinics. The Company has been fully cooperating
with the inquiry and has produced the requested documents to date. While there is no indication of such at
this time, any negative findings could result in: (a) substantial monetary penalties; (b) excluding certain
facilities from participation in the Medtcare and Medicaid programs; and {(c) the Company incurring legal
expenses and management time, any or all of which could have a material adverse cffect on the Company’s
revenues, earnings and cash flows. The Company incurred legal fees related to this investigation of
$271,377 and $389,741 in 2011 and 2010, respectively, subsequent to its acquisition of DCA.In
December 2010, the Company received a Civil Investipative Demand (CID) from the U.S. Atterney for the
District of New Jersey requesting decuments relating to laboratory tests performed on patients of the
Company at two of its North Texas clinics. The Company gathered and produced the required documents
and performed its own review of such documents., While the Company believes that it is not the subject of
the government’s investigation, the cutcome of this matfer is uncertain and the Company has risk of an
adverse outcome that could result in substantial monetary penalties.

The Company has obligations to purchase the third-party interests in several of its joint ventures. These
obligations are in the fonm of put provisions in joint venture agreements, and are exercisable at the
third-party owners’ discretion with some timing limitations. If these put provisions are exercised, the
Company would be required to purchase the third-party owners’ interests at fair market value (see note 4).

The Cempany rents office space, medical facilities, and medical equipment under lease agreements that are
classified as operating leases for financial reporting purposes. At December 31, 2011, the future minimum
rental payments under noncancelable operating leases with terms of one year or more consist of the
following:

2012 $ 10,318,246
2013 9,531,848
2014 8,200,747
2015 7,153,231
2016 6,812,937
Thereafter 10,753,819

Rent expense was $10,976,315 and 58,129,164 for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010,
respectively.

Subsequcnt Events

The Company evaluated events subsequent to December 31, 2011 and through April 6, 2012, the date on
which the financial statements were issued.
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KPMG LLP

Suite 3100

717 North Harwood Street
Dallas, TX 752016585

Independent Auditors’ Report

The Board of Directors
U.8. Renal Care, Inc.:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of U.S. Renal Care, Inc. and subsidiaries
(the Company} as of December 31, 2010 and 2009, and the related consolidated statements of operations,
changes in equity, and cash flows for the years then ended. These consolidated financial statements are the
responsibility of the Company’s management. Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audits. '

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonabie assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes consideration of
internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s
internal control over financial reporting, Accordingly, we express no such epinion. An audit also includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements,
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimaics made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a rcasonable
basis for gur opinion,

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of U.S. Renal Care, Inc. and subsidiariés as of December 31, 2010 and
2009, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for the years then ended, in conformity with
U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

KPMe UP

Dallas, Texas
April 27,2011

KPMG LLP Iz s Delswara livited Eabilty partnership,
the UE mamber m of KPWG intomestonsl Cooperitve
{KPMG Intwnational™). # Swisa ently, Attachment 39
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U.S. RENAL CARE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Balance Sheets
December 31, 2010 and 2009

Assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Accounts receivable, net of allowances of $13,458,494 and $8,460,232
Inventories

Other receivables

Deferred tax asset

Other current assets

Total current assets

Property and equipment, nat
Amoriizable intangibles, net
Trade names

Investment in affiliate
Goodwill

Other long-1erm assets
Deferred 1axes

Total assects
Liabilities and Equity

Accounts payable

Accrued expenses

Current poriion of long-term debt and capital lease obligations
Current portion of related-party notes payable

Total current lighilities

Long-term debt and capital 1ease obligations, net of current portion
Related-party notcs payable

Other long-term liabitities

Deferred tax liability

Preferred stock accrued dividends

Total liabilities
Commitments and contingencies

U.S. Renal Care, Inc, equity:

Preferred stock A ($0.01 par value. Authorized shares 20,325,000,
issued and cutstanding 12,350,000 and 12,350,000 shares)

Preferred stock B and B-1($0.01 par value. Authorized shares
1,600,000; issued and outstanding 1,431,666 and 1,415,666 shares}

Preferred siock C ($0.01 par value. Authorized shares 25,000,000;
issued and outstanding 24,500,962 and 24,500,962 shares)

Preferred stock D {$0.01 par value. Authorized shares 8,333,333;
issued and outstanding 8,333,333 and 0 shares)

Common stock ($0.01 par value. Authorized shares 53,525,000 and
52,525,000, issued and outstanding 7,074,324 and 7,074,324 shares)

Additional paid-in capital

Retained eamings

Total U.S. Renal Care, Inc. stockholders® equity

Noncontrolling interests {including redeemable interests with redemption
values of $40,999,428 and $23,600,000)

Total equity
Total liabilities and equity

Sce accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements,

2010 2009

9,537,107 15,325,357
48,449,631 25,900,874
3,100,193 1,369,198
9,594 938 4,863,513
6,215,457 904,600
2,636,244 1,429,165
79,933,570 46,752,707
46,781,941 19,251,600
27,349,714 12,241,111
859,000 —
— 217,670
190,524,762 67,922,354
470,902 238,961
— 906,459
345,919,889 150,570,762
0,045,119 5,675,616
24,248 618 16,485,807
2,924,662 1,447,595
125,000 125,000
36,343,399 23,734,018
181,723,922 62,010,592
— 125,000
440,844 532,982
$,480,942 —
19,831,208 14,736,426
247,820,315 101,139,018
123,500 123,500
14,317 14,157
245,010 245,010
83,333 —
70,744 62,229
38,667471 36,454,222
5,291,320 1,497,694
44,495,695 38,396,812
53,603,879 11,034,932
08,099,574 49,431,744
345,919,889 150,570,762
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U.S. RENAL CARE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statements of Operations
Years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009

Net operating revenues

Operating cxpenses;
Patient care costs
General and administrative
Provision for doubtful accounts
Legal cost/settlement
Transaciton costs
Depreciation and amortization

Total operating expenses
Operating income
Interest expense, net
Income before income taxes
Income tax provision (benefit)
Net income

Less net income aitributable to noncontrolling interests

Net income attributable to U.S. Renal Care, Inc.

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

2010 2009
237,606,328 153,164,637
154,284,195 98,842,829

20,207,561 15,601,927
6,898,682 4,585,251
(352,334) 286,647
9,076,731 460,465
14,655,411 7,957,301
204,770,246 127,734,420
32,836,082 25,430,217
10,192,698 2,923,456
22,643,384 22,506,761
5,826,130 (3,191,190)
16,817,254 25,697,951
13,023,628 10,103,151
3,793,626 15,594,800
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U.S. RENAL CARE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
Years ended December 31, 2010 and 20609

2010 2009

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income $ 16,817,254 25,697,951
Adjustments to reconcile net income to cash provided by
operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization 14,655,411 7,957,301
Noncash dispute settlement 450,000 —_
Lease agreement intangible amortization included in rent 31,337 (83,399)
Provision for doubtful accounts 6,898,682 4,585,251
Deferred income taxes 2,929,214 {4,794,034)
Equity investment income (805,801) (17,646}
Stock compensation expense 102,652 55,096
Loss on disposal of fixed assets 41,71t —

Changes in operating assets and liabilities, net of effect of
acquisitions and divestitures;

Accounts receivable (11,223,179 (9,500,021
Inventories 1,065,325 1,046,906
Other receivables (2,773,018) (529,248)
Other current assets (326,422} (93,041}
Other long-term assets (1,049,343) 7,176
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 585,137 (5,143,235)
Other noncurrent liabilities 331,317 (12,936)
Net cash provided by operating activities 27,730,281 19,176,117
Cash flows from investing activities:
Acquisitions, net of cash acquired {116,523,175) {386,762)
Sale of property and eguipment 3,172,324 —
Additions of property and equipment, net (18,394,835) (7.431,804)
Purchase of noncontrolling interests (18,691,500) —
Investment in affiliate 101,335 (200,024)
Net cash used in investing activities (150,635,851) (8,018,590)
Cash flows from financing activities;
Proceeds from long-term debt borrowings 181,952,491 8,750,000
Payments on long-term debt and related-party notes payable (73,000,188) (600,224)
Deferred financing costs (7,938,537 (7.424)
Proceeds from capital leases 3,260,343 336,118
Capital lease payments (1,243,894) (799.901)
Net proceeds from issuance of preferred stock 25,015,999 316,000
Proceeds from issuance of common stock 43,648 29,823
Repurchase of preferred stock — (75,000}
Contributions from noncontrolling interests 695,750 267,750
Distributions to noncontrolling interests (11,668,292) (9,463,932)
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities 117,117,320 (1,246,790}
Net {decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents (5,788,250) 9,910,737
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 15,325,357 5,414,620
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $ 9,537,107 15,325,357
5 {Continued)
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U.S. RENAL CARE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
Years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009

Supplemental cash flow information:
Cash paid for interest s
Cash paid for taxes

Supplemental disclosures of noncash investing and financing activities:
Accrual of cumulative preferred dividends $
Capital lease financing

See accompanying notes te consolidated financial statements,

2010 2009
8,474,494 2,780,464
4,814,265 1,260,000
5,004,782 3,924,249

99,126 463,783
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U.S8. RENAL CARE, INC, AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2010 and 2009

(1) Organization and Significant Accounting Policies

(@

(3

(c)

(d

(¢

QOrganization and Business

U.S. Renal Care, Inc. (the Company) was formed in June 2000 and provides dialysis services to
patients who suffer from chronic kidney failure, also known as end stage renal disease (ESRD).
ESRD is the stage of advanced kidney impairment that requires continual dialysis treatments, or a
kidney transplant, to sustain life. Patients suffering from ESRD generally require dialysis three times
per week for the rest of their lives. The Company primarily provides these services through the
operation of outpatient kidney dialysis clinics. As of December31, 2010, the Company operated
84 outpatient dialysis clinics in Texas, Arkansas, Georgia, Maryland, New Jersey, Ohio,
Pennsylvania, Virginia and South Carolina. In addition to its outpatient dialysis center operations, as
of December 31, 2010, the Company provides acute dialysis services through contractual
relationships with 21 hospitals and dialysis to patients in their homes.

Principles of Consolidation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its
wholly owned and majority-owned subsidiaries. All significant intercompany accounts and
transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statcments in conformity with U.S. generally accepted
accounting principles (GAAP)} requires management to make estimates and assumptions. These
estimates and assumptions affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, and the disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities, at the date of the consolidated financial statements, as well as the
reporied amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period.

Although actual results in subseguent periods will differ from these estimates, such estimates are
developed based upon the best information available to management and management’s best
judgments at the time made. The most significant estimates and assumptions involve revenue
recagnition, provisions for uncollectible accounts, determination of the fair value of assets and
liabilities acquired, impairments and valuation adjustments, and accounting for income taxes.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash includes cash and highly liquid investments with a maturity of ninety days or less at date of
purchase, Cash and cash equivalents at times may exceed the FDIC limits. The Company believes no
significant concentration of credit risk exists with respect te these cash investments.

Accounts Receivable and Alfowance for Doubtful Accounts

Substantially all of the Company’s accounts reccivable are related to providing healthcare services to
its patients and are due from the Medicare program, state Medicaid programs, managed care health
plans, commercial insurance companies and individual patients. The estimated provision for doubtful

7 {Continued)
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U.S. RENAL CARE, INC, AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2010 and 2009

accounts is recorded to the extent it is probable that a portion or all of a patient balance will not be
collected. The Company considers a number of factors in evaluating the collectibility of accounts
receivable including the age of the accounts, collection patterns and any ongoing disputes with
payors.

Amounts Due from Third-Party Payors

The amount due from third-party payors, which is included in other receivables, represents balances
owed to the Company by the Medicare program for reimbursable bad debts related to Medicare
beneficiaries. These reimbursements are part of the Company’s annual cost report filings and as
such, the actual payments may be dclayed or subsequently adjusted pending review and audit by the
Medicare program fiscal intermediaries,

Amounits Due from Drug Rebates

The amount due from drug rebates, which is included in other receivables, represents balances owed
to the Company by various pharmaceutical vendors for Epogen (EPO), vitamin D and iron. During
2010 and 2009, the Company had incentive contracts that reduced the invoice price based upon
volume purchased. This-incentive was payable to the Company on a quarterly basis. In addition,
there was an additional annual incentive based on volumc that was payable to the Company
annually.

Inventories

Inventories consist primarily of pharmaceuticals and dialysis-related supplies and are stated at the
lower of cost or market. Cost is determined using the first-in, first-out method. Market is determined
on the basis of estimated realizable values.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment is carried at cost less accumulated depreciation. Property under capital lease
agreements is stated at the present value of minimum lease payments less accumulated depreciation.
Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets
or the term of the lease as appropriate. The general range of useful lives is as follows:

Buildings 39 years
Leasehold improvements Life of Jease
Furniture and equipment 5 years
Computers 3 years

Capital lease assets are amortized over the shorter of the lease term or the estimated useful life of the
improvement. Property and equipment acquired in acquisitions is recorded at fair value, The cost of
improvements that extend asset lives is capitalized. Other repairs and maintenance charges are
expensed as incurred. )

8 {Continued)
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U.S. RENAL CARE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2010 and 2009

Fully depreciated assets are retained in property and depreciation accounts until they are removed
from service. When sold or otherwise disposed of, assets and related depreciation are removed from
the accounts and the net amounts, less proceeds from disposal, are included in income,

Concentration of Credit Risk

The Company’s primary concentration of credit risk exists within accounts receivable, which consist
of amounts owed by various governmental agencies, insurance companies, and private patients.
Receivables from the Medicare program and various state Medicaid programs were approximately
57% and 55% of gross accounts receivable at December 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively.
Concentration of credit risk relating to remaining accounts receivable is limited to some extent by the
diversity of the number of patients and payors.

Amortizable Intangible Assets

Amortizable intangible assets and liabilitics include noncompetition and similar agreements, lease
agreements, and deferred debt issuance costs. Noncompetition and similar agreements are amortized
over the terms (five to ten years) of the agreements using the straight-line method. Lease agreement
intangibles for favorable and unfavorable leases are amortized on a straight-line basis over the term
of the lease.

Deferred debt issuance costs are amortized using the effective interest mcthod as an adjustment to
interest expense over the term of the related debt. In the case of debt repayments prior to the end of
the term, the Company adjusts the amount of deferred financing costs at the date of repayment,
which is included in interest expense.

Goodwill

Goodwill is recorded when the consideration paid for an acquisition exceeds the fair value of net
tangible assets and identifiable intangible assets acquired. Goodwill and other indefinite-lived
intangible assets are not amortized, but are instead tested for impairment at least annually. The
annual evaluation for 2010 and 2009 resulted in no impairment charges.

Impairment of Long-Lived and Indefinite-Lived Asscty

The Company evaluates long lived-assets and identifiable intangibles for impairment whenever
cvents or changes in circumstances indicate that an asset’s camrying amount may not be recoverable
or the useful life has changed. When undiscounted future cash flows are not expected to be sufficient
to recover an asset’s carrying amount, a loss is recognized and the asset is written down to its fair
value.

9 (Continued)
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U.S. RENAL CARE, INC, AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statecments
December 31, 2010 and 2009

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The following table details the Company’s financial instruments where the carrying value and fair
value differ (amounts in millions):

Fair value at reporting date using

Quoted
prices
in active Significant Significant
Carrying markets for other other
value as of identical observable unobservable
December 31, items inputs inputs
Financial instrument 2019 (Level 1) (Level 1) (Level 3)
Senior secured credit
facility s 178,917 — — 189,632

The estimates of the fair value of the Company’s senior sccured credit facility are based upon a
discounted present value analysis of future cash flows. Due to the existing uncertainty in the capilal
and credit markets, the actual rates that would be obiained to borrow under similar conditions could
materially differ from the estimates the Company has used.

The fair value of the interest rate swaps are determined using quoted market prices for similar swap
agreements and were nominal at December 31, 2010,

U.S. GAAP describes a fair value hierarchy based on three levels of inputs, of which the first two are
considered obscrvable and the last unobservable, that may be used to measure fair value. The three
levels of inputs are as follows:

. Level 1 —Quoted prices in active markets for identical asscts and liabilities.

. Level 2 - Inputs other than Level 1 that are observable, either directly or indirectly, such as
quoted prices for similar asscts or liabilities; quoted prices in markets that are not active; or
other inputs that are observable or can be comoborated by obscrvable market data for
substantially the full term of the assets or liabilities.

. Level 3 — Unobservable inputs that are supported by little or no market activity and are
significant to the fair value of the assets or liabilities.

For the Company's other financial instruments, including the Company’s cash and cash equivalents,
accounts receivable, accounts payable, and accrued expenses the Company estimatesthe carrying
amounts approximate fair value due to thetr short-term maturity.

10 (Continued)
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U.S. RENAL CARE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consclidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2010 and 2009

Net Operating Revenues and Accounis Receivable

Net operating revenue is recognized in the period services are provided. Revenue consists primarily
of reimbursements from Medicare, Medicaid and commercial health plans for dialysis services
provided to patients. A usual and customary fee schedule is maintained for the Company’s dialysis
treatment and other patient services. However, actual collected revenue is normally at a discount to
this fee schedule. Contractual adjustments represent the differences between amounts billed for
services and amounts paid by third-party payors.

The Company’s dialysis facilities are certified to participate in the Medicare program. Revenues
reimbursed by the Medicare program are recognized primarily on a prospective payment system for
dialysis services (ESRD Program). Prier to January 2011, dialysis providers operating under the
Medicare ESRD program received a composite payment rate to cover routine dialysis treatments and
certain supplies, There was a separate payment for laboratory testing and pharmaceuticals such as
EPQO, vitamin D and iron supplements that were not included in the composite rate. However,
beginning January 2011, Medicare implemented a new payment system in which ali ESRD payments
are now made under a single bundled payment rate that provides for an annual inflation adjustment
based upon a market basket index, less a productivity improvement factor. The bundled payment rate
provides a fixed rate to encompass all goods and services provided during the dialysis treatment,
including pharmacecuticals that were historically separately reimbursed to the dialysis providers.
Most lab scrvices that were previously paid directly to laboratories are also included in the new
payment bundle. Now, as a result of the bundled payment system, the dialysis providers are at risk of
variations in pharmaceutical utilization since reimbursement is set at a fixed average reimbursement
rate.

The initial 2011 bundled payment rate includes reductions of 2% and 0.8%, respectively, to conform
to the provisions of MIPPA and to establish budget neutrality. Further, there is a 5.94% reduction
tied to an expanded list of case mix adjustors which can be camed back upon the presence of these
certain paticnt characteristics and co-morbidities at the time of treatment. Historically, dialysis
providers have not had to track certain of the case-mix adjustors and this may be difficult to capture
initially. There are also other provisions which may impact reimbursement including an outlier
adjustment and a low volume facility adjustment,

As of November 1, 2010, dialysis providers were required to make an clection as to which clinics
would be fully reimbursed as of Janvary 1, 2011 under the new bundled payment system or phased
into the new system over a four year period. The Company elected to have approximately 72% of its
clinics be reimbursed fully under the new bundled reimbursement system beginning January 1, 2011.
Once this election was made, it may not be revoked. All clinics that receive Medicare certification
subsequent to November 1, 2010 will be reimbursed under the new bundled reimbursement system.
Beginning in 2012, dialysis providers will also be subject to & 2% annual Medicare payment
withholding that can be earned back by facilities that meet certain defined clinical performance
standards.

11 {Continued)
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U.S. RENAL CARE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Naotes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2010 and 2009

Medicare presently pays 80% of the established payment rates for dialysis treatment furnished to
paticnts. The remaining 20% may be paid by Medicaid if the patient is eligible, from private
insurance funds, or from the patient’s personal funds. If there is no secondary payor to cover the
remaining 20%, and if the Company demonstrates prescribed collection efforts, Medicare may
reimburse the Company for part of that balance as part of the Company’s annual cost report filings
subject to individual center profilability. As a result, billing and collection of Medicare bad debt
claims are often delayed significantly, and final payment is subject to audit.

Medicaid programs are administered by state governments and are partially funded by the federal
government. In addition to providing primary coverage for patients whose income and assets fall
below state defined levels and are otherwise insured, Medicaid serves as a supplemental insurance
program for the co-insurance portion not paid by Medicare. Medicaid reimbursement varies by state
but is typically reimbursed pursuant to a prospective payment system for dialysis services rendered.

Revenues associated with commercial health plans are estimated based upon patient-specific
contractual terms between the Company and health plans for the patients with which the Company
has formal agreements, upen commercial health plan coverage terms if known or otherwise upon
historical collection experience adjusted for refund and payment adjustment trends. Commercial
revenue recognition involves substantial judgment. With several commercial insurers, the Company
has multiple contracts with varying payment arrangements, and these contracts may include only a
subset of the Company’s dialysis centers. In addition, for scrvices provided by noncontracted
centers, final collection may require specific negotiation of a payment amount. Generally, payments
for a dialysis treatment from commercial payors are greater than the corresponding amounts received
from Medicare and Medicaid.

Share-Based Compensation

The Company recognizes compensation expense, for all share-based awards, including stock option
grants to employees, using a fair-value measurement method. Under the fair-value methaod, the
estimated fair value of awards that arc expected to vest is recognized over the requisite service
period, which is generally the vesting period.

Prior to 2006, the Company accounted for its equity compensation uvsing the intrinsic value-based
method of accounting. The Company did not recognize compensation expense before 2006 because
the exercise price of stock options granted was not less than the estimated value of the underlying
stock on the date of grant. The Company continues to account for equity compensation based shares
granted prior to 2006 using the intrinsic value methoad until such time as shares are modified,
canceled, or repurchased.

12 (Continued}
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U.S. RENAL CARE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2010 and 2009

The Company estimates the fair value of awards on the date of grant, using the Black-Scholes option
pricing model. The weighted average fair value of options granted during the years ended
December 31, 2010 and 2009 are calculated based on the following assumptions: expected volatility
of 22%, expected dividend yield of 0%, expected life of 3.75 years, and risk-free interest rates of
1.08% to 1.97%. Expected volatility was derived using data drawn from two public dialysis
companies. The expected life was computed utilizing the simplified method as permitted by the
Securities and Exchange Commission’s Staff Accounting Bulletin, Share Based Payment. The
expected forfeiture rate is 20% based upon a review of the Company’s recent history and
expectations as scgregated between the Company’s board of directors, senior officers, and other
grantees. The risk-free interest rate is based on the approximate average yield on five year United
States Treasury Bonds as of the date of grant. There were 352,000 and 195,000 options granted
during the years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively (see note 9).

Noncontrolling Interest

In December 2007, the FASB issued an accounting standard, Noncontrolling Interests in
Consolidated Financial Statements (ASC 810), which gives guidance on the presentation and
disclosure of noncontrolling interests (previously known as minority interests) of consolidated
subsidiaries. This statement requires the noncontrotling interest to be included in the equity section
of the balance shect, requires disclosure on the face of the consolidated statement of operations of the
amounts of consolidated net income attributable to the consolidated parent and the nencontrolling
interest, and expands disclosures.

Consolidated income (loss) is reduced (increased) by the proportionate amount of income or loss
accruing to noncontrolling interests. Noncontrolling interest represents the equity interest of
third-party owners in consolidated entities that are not wholly owned.

Income Taxes

Income taxes are accounted for under the asset and liability method. Deferred tax assets and
liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences atiributable to the differences between the
financial statement carrying amount of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases
and operating loss and tax credit carryforwards. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using
enacled tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the years which those temporary differences
are expected to be recovered or settled. The effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of a change in
tax rates is recognized in income in the period that includes the cnactment date. A valuation
allowance is established when it is more likely than not that the deferred tax assets will not be
realized.

13 (Continued)
Attachment 39

192




(s)

U.S. RENAL CARE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2010 and 2009

The Company adopted the accounting standard update ASC 740, Accounting for Uncertainty in
Income Taxes, on January 1, 2009, Previously, the Company had accounted for tax contingencies
under ASC 450, Accounting for Contingencies. As required by ASC 740, the Company recognizes
the financial statement benefit of a tax position only after determining that the relevant tax authority
would more likely than not sustain the position following an audit. For tax positions meeting the
more-likely than-not threshold, the amount recognized in the financial statements is the largest
benefit that has a greater than 50% likelihood of being realized upon ultimate settlement with the
relevant tax autherity. At the adoption date, the Company applied ASC 740 to all tax positions for
which the statue of limitations remained open. As a result of the implementation of ASC 740, the
Company did not recognize an increase in the liability for unrecognized tax benefits. The amount of
unrecognized tax benefits as of December 31, 2010 and 2009 was $0.

The Company is subject to income taxes in the U.S. federal jurisdiction and various states. Tax
regulations within each jurisdiction are subject to the interpretation of the related tax laws and
regulations and require significant judgment to apply. The Company is no longer subject to
U.S. federal or state or local income tax examinations by tax authorities for the years before 2006.In
2010,th e Internal Revenue Service finalized its examination of the Company’s 2007 U.S. income tax
returns, The resolution of this examination resulted in ne additional tax payment.

The Company recognizes interest accrued related to unrecognized tax benefits in ‘interest expense
and penalties in operating expenses for all periods presented.

The Company’s consolidated LLC and L.P. subsidiarics do not incur federal income taxes. Instead,
their earnings and losses are included in the returns of, and taxed directly to, the members and
partners of these subsidiaries.

Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities

The Company has entered into an interest rte swap agreement as a means of hedging its exposure to

and volatility from variable-based interest rate change. Thesc agreements are designed as cash flow
hedges and are not held for trading or speculative purposes. The swap agreement has the economic
effect of converting portions of the Company’s variable rate debt to fixed rates.

In 2010, the Company adopted the provisions of FASB Statement No. 161, Disclosures about
Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities (included in FASB ASC Topic 815, Derivatives and
Hedging}, which amends the disclosure requirements for derivative instruments and hedging
activities. The amended disclosure require entities to provide information to enable users of the
financial statements to understand how and why an entity uses derivative instruments, how
derivative instruments and related hedged items are accounted for, and how derivative instruments
are related hedged items affect an entity’s financial position, financial performance, and cash flows
(see note 6).

14 {Continued)
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U.S. RENAL CARE, INC, AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidaled Financial Statements
December 31, 2010 and 2009

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements

Effective January 1, 2009, the Company adopted the provisions of FASB ASC 820 relating to fair
value measurements and disclosures with respect to nonfinancial assets and nonfinancial liabilities
that are not permitted or required to be measured at fair value on a recurring basis. The adoption had
no impact on the Company’s consolidated financial statements.

Although the adoption of FASB ASC 820 had no direct impact on the Company’s consolidated
financial statements, additional disclosures are required under FASB ASC 820 indicating the fair
value hierarchy of the valuation techniques utilized to determine fair value measures. The Company
has included appropriate disclosures herein.

Effective December 31, 2009, the Company adopted FASB ASC 855, Subsequent Events, which
establishes principles and requirements for subsequent events and applies to accounting for and
disclosure of subsequent events not addressed in other applicable generally accepted accounting
principles. The Company evaluated events subsequent fo December 31, 2010 and through April 27,
2011, the date on which the financial statements were issued.

Reclassifications

Certain reclassifications have been made to the 2009 consolidated financial statement balances to
conform with the 2010 presentation. Such reclassifications have no effect on ecamings or
stockholders’ equity.

Fixed Assets
At December 31, 2010 and 2009, property and equipment consists of the following:

2010 2009

Facility equipment, furniture, and information systems $ 42,891,347 22,202,152

Land and buildings 6,747,940 —
Leasehold improvements 21,493,319 9,731,329
New center construction in progress 778,865 2,829,967
71,911,471 34,763,448
I.ess accumulated depreciation and amortization {25,129,530) (15,511,848)
$ 46,781,941 19,251,600

2010 2009
Depreciation and amortization expense on property
and equipment $ 9,304,459 5,355,638
15 (Continued}
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U.S. RENAL CARE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2010 and 2009

Net book value of equipment under capital leases at December 31 was as follows:

2010 2009
Equipment $ 10,671,572 7,312,321
Less accumulated depreciation (6,099,837) {4,092,015)
3 4,571,735 3,220,306

Acquisitions/Disposition
The Company has acquired various dialysis businesses, as described further below. The assets and

liabilities for all acquisitions were recorded at their estimated fair values as of the effective acquisition date
based upon the best available information,

Amortizable intangible assets consist primarily of noncompete agreements. Geodwill is recorded when the
consideration paid for an acquisition exceeds the fair value of identifiable net tangible assets and
identifiable intangible assets acquired.

The results of operations for the acquired companies are included in the Company’s financial statements
beginning on the effective acquisition date,

(a)  Dialysis Corporation of America, Inc.Ac quisition

On June 3, 2010, the Company acquired all the outstanding common shares of Dialysis Corporation
of America, Inc. (DCA) for $11.25 per share, DCA provides outpatient dialysis, in-home dialysis and
acute services in Georgia, Maryland, New Jersey, Ohio, Pennsylvania, Virginia and South Carolina,
The results of operations for DCA are included in the Company’s financial statements beginning
June 1, 2010,

The DCA acquisition cost of approximately 3110 million and costs rclated thereto were funded from
the proceeds of the Company’s senior secured and subordinated loan agreements (see note 6) and the
issuance of Series D Preferred Stock (see note 8). All purchase accounting adjustments are final
cxcept for certain deferred tax calculations primarily related to flow-through entities.

16 (Continued)
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U.S. RENAL CARE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2010 and 2009

The estimated fair values of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed at the acquisition date are as

follows:
Assets:
Cash $ 1,294,958
Net accounts receivable 17,072,334
Inventory 2,684,480
Other receivables 1,280,382
Other current assets 2,257,895
Total current assets 24,590,049
Property and equipment, net 20,526,500
Amortizable intangibles, net 12,957,381
Goodwill 113,828,342
Other long-term assets 863,600
Total assets $ 172,765,872
Liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 4,958,871
Accrued expenses 6,177,187
Total current liabilities 11,136,058
Long-term debt 9,586,971
Cther long-term liabilities (326,883)
Deferred tax liability 3,808,826
Total liabilities P 24,204,972
Equity:
Minority interest $ 38,310,900
Total equity $ 38,310,900
17 {Continued)
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U.S. RENAL CARE, INC, AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2010 and 2009

San Antonio

On huly 1, 2010, the Company purchased an additional 40% interest in one of its joint venture
entities which it previously had a 40% noncontrolling ownership intercst for $7.2 million. The
acquisition was funded by borrowing under the Company’s revolving credit facility {see note 6) and
cash on hand. The consolidated results of operation for this facility are included in the Company’s
financial statements beginning July 1, 2010. Previously, the Company’s investment was recorded
using the equity method of accounting. The investment balance at June 30, 2010 was approximately
$922,000.

Assets:
Cash $ 671,969
Net accounts receivable 1,151,930
Inventory 22,7126
Other recejvables 7,724
Other current assets 24,742
Total current assets. 1,879,091
Property and equipment, net 974,832
Goodwili 8,426,146
Total assels $ 11,280,069
Liabilities:
Accounis payable $ 25,983
Accrued expenses 145,888
Total liabilities $ 171,871
Equity:
Minority interest $ 2,986,200
Total equity b 2,986,200
December Acquisition

On December 1, 2010, the Company acquired two outpatient dialysis clinics, an acute program and a
home program (December Acquisition). This transaction included purchasing a 51% majority
intercst in the assets of one of the clinics and a 100% interest in the assets of the other clinic. The
results of operations for these services are included in the Company’s financial statements beginning
December 1, 2010. The December Acquisition cost of approximately $1 million was funded from
operating cash flow.
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The estimated fair values of the asscts acquired at the acquisition date are as follows:

Assets:
Inventory $ 89,114
QOther current asscts 26,017
Fixed assets 416,000
Goodwill 869,546
Total assets $ 1,400,677
Liabilities:
Accrued expenses $ 357,713
Total liabilities $ 357,713

(d) Medicore Disposition

On November 30, 2010, the Company sold 100% of the nct assets of its medical products business
that was acquired in the DCA acquisition. The Company seold, assigned and transferred certain assets
for approximately $535,000 resulting in no gain or loss.

Noncontrolling Interests

The Company cngages in the purchase and sale of equity interests with respect to its consolidated
subsidiaries that do not result in a change of control. These transactions are accounted for as equity
transactions, as they are undertaken among the Company; its consolidated subsidiaries, and noncontrolling
interests, and their cash flow effect is classified within financing activities.

As of December 31, 2010, the Company was the majority owner in 48 joint venturcs. Of the noncontrolling
interests in those 48 joint ventures, 17 have put rights generally at fair value as defined in the agreement
that are either currently cxercisable or become exercisable at various future dates. The carrying amount of
these redeemable noncontrolling interests totaled $7.3 million and $3.8 million as compared to redemption
values of $41.0 million and $23.6 million at December 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively. The redemption
value is calculated at the current value of the put payment that would be required to redeem the interest if
the put is exercised regardless of whether such interest is currently exercisable. As of December 31, 2010,
$7.0 million of put rights are currently exercisable and the remaining $34.0 million become exercisable at

future dates.

During the year, there were nine time-based puts exercised in the Company’s Sowth Texas region and one
in the San Antonio region. The Company paid $18.4 million relating to these puts. As a result of the DCA
acquisition, there was one change of control put that was partially exercised at one clinic for $600,000.
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Intangible Assets
At December 31, 2010 and 2009, amortizable intangible assets consisted of the following:

2010 2009
Noncompetition agreements $ 31,836,273 20,132,544
Lease agreements 580,106 76,221
Deferred debt issuance costs 7,939,537 1,910,489
Licenses 359,000 —
40,714,916 22,119,254
Less accumulated amortization (13,365,202) (9,878,243)
Net amortizable intangible assets $ 27349714 12,241,011

Amortizable intangible liabilities, which are included in other long-term liabilities, consisted of lease
agreements as follows: ’

2010 2009
Lease agreements 5 1,089,293 1,089,293 .
Less accumulated amortization (648,449) {556,311
Net amortizable intangible assets 3 440,844 532,982 1

Amortization of intangible assets and liabilities over the next five years is as follows:

Deferred debt

Noncompetition issuance Lease

__agreements costs __agreements Licenses
2011 $ 4,564,626 1,323,090 396,359 71,800
2012 4,492,939 1,323,050 307,657 71,800
2013 4,418,857 1,323,090 227,206 71,800
2014 4,322.211 1,323,090 183,663 71,800
2015 1,281,68) 1,323,090 149,418 29,917

Changes in the value of goodwill were as follows:

2010 2009
Balance at January 1 3 67,922,354 67,559,887
Goodwill adjustments (521,626) 362,467
Goodwill acquired 123,124,034 —
Balance at December 31 § 190,524,762 67,922,354
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The fair value of the identifiable intangibles acquired and the amount of goodwill recorded as a result of
acquisitions are determined based upon independent third-party valuations and the Company’s cstimates.
Amortization expense for the Company’s intangible assets relaies to the value associated with the
noncompete and lease agreements. The noncompete intangible assets are amortized over the term of the
noncompete agreements executed in connection with the acquisition transactions or the medical
agreements entered into with certain physicians and the lease agreement intangibles are amortized over the

term of the lease,

Leng-Term Debt

On June 3, 2010, the Company entered into a new senior credit agreement that consists of: (a) a
$132.5 million senior secured term loan (Term Loan) and (b) a $40 million senior secured revolving credit
facility (Revolver}. Also en June 3, 2010, the Company cntered into a 340 million senior subordinated loan
agreement (the Subordinated Loan). The proceeds of the Term Loan and the Subordinated Loan along with
available cash on hand were utilized to: (a) pay off the Company’s existing CIT Term Loan B and
Revolver (which bore interest at 4.25% at December 31, 2009), (b) pay expenses and fees associated with
the new senior secured znd subordinated loan agreements, and (¢} to fund the DCA acquisition (sce note 3)
including cost and fees related thereto.

Borrowings under the Term Loan and Revolver (collectively Senior Secured Loans) bear interest based
upon a spread in excess of LIBOR (floor of 1.75%) or the U.S. prime rate, as the benchmark, as adjusted
based upon the Company’s leverage ratio. The new Senior Secured Loan also provides for an annual
unused commitment fec of 0.75% based upon the average revolving credit commitment less cutstanding
borrowings on the Revolver and letters of credit issued. As of December 31, 2010, borrowings under the
Senior Secured Loans bore interest at 6.25%. The Subordinated Loan accrues interest at 13.25% with
11.25% paid in cash per annum.The remain ing 2% of interest on the Subordinated Loan (PIK Interest) will
be capitalized and accrued for until it becomes due upon the maturity of the loan.

The Term Loan requires quarterly principal payments of $331,250 in each year from 2011 through 2015
with the balance of $124,881,250 due in 2016. The Subordinated Loan requires a one- time payment of
$40 million principal balance due in 2017, in addition to outstanding PIK Interest.

The Revolver, Term Loan, and Subordinated L.oan mature on June 2, 2015, June 2, 2016 and June 2, 2017,
respectively. The subordinated loan agreement provides for prepayment penalties if it is repaid within the
first four years subsequent to June 3, 2010,

Commencing with the fiscal year ended December 31, 2011, the Company is required to prepay its
outstanding Senior Secured Loan balances with 50% of excess cash flow as defined in the credit
agreement. The Company is also required to prepay senior secured loan balances with: {a} 50% of the net
proceeds of certain capital contributions as defined in the credit agreement, (b) 100% of the proceeds of
asset sales or the proceeds received from casualty event settlements that are not reinvested or permitted
pursuant to the terms of the credit agreement, and (c) 100% of the proceeds of indebtedness that is incurred
and not permitted pursuant to the credit agreement. Following satisfaction of any prepayment under the
Senior Secured Loans, the Company is required to prepay the Subordinated Loan balances with 100% of
the proceeds of asset sales or the proceeds received from a casuvalty event settlement that are not reinvested
or permitted pursuant to the terms of the credit agreement.
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The Senior Secured Loans and the Subordinated Loan are guaranteed, on a joint and several basis, by each
of the Company’s subsidiaries. Borrowings under the credit agreements are collateralized by most of the
Company’s asscts, including accounts receivable, inventory, and fixed assets not subject to permitted
capital leases. The Subordinated Loan is subordinated to the repayment of the Senior Secured Loans. The
Senior Secured and Subordinated Loan agreements include various events of default and contain certain
restrictions on the operations of the business, including restrictions on certain cash payments, including
capital expenditures, investments and the payment of dividends. These loan agreements also include
covenanis periaining to fixed charge coverage, intercst coverage, and total debt leverage, as well as other
customary covenants and events of defaults.

The Company believes it is in compliance with all covenants under the Senior Secured Loan and
Subordinated Loan agreements and has met all debt payment obligations. At December 31, 2010,
approximately $33.0 million was unused and available under the Revolver.

At December 31, 2010 and 2009, long-term debt and capital lease obligations consisted of the following:

2010 2009
Scnior secured credit facility:
CIT term loan B $ — 34,873,000
CIT revolver — 24,968,762
Term loan 131,506,250 —
Revolver 7,000,000 —
Subordinated loan 40,410,549 —
Other notes payable
Capital lease obligations 23,305 23,532
5,708,480 3,592,893
Less current portion 184,648,584 63,458,187
(2,924,662) (1,447,595)
$ 181,723,922 62,010,592
22 (Continued)
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Scheduled maturities of long-term debt and capital lease obligations at December 31, 2010 were as
follows:

Long-term Capital lease
debt ohligations
2011 $ 1,346,461 1,964,299
2012 1,326,844 1,402,897
2013 1,325,000 1,208,797
2014 1,325,000 988,427
2015 8,325,000 486,895
Thereafter 165,291,799 809,975
$ 178,940,104 6,861,290
Less interest portion at 5.719% — 8.561% (1,152,810)
Total 5 5,708,480

According o the senior sccured loan agreement, the Company was required to enter into an interest rate
hedging agreement, no later than 90 days following the closing date. The Company entered into a three
year Hedge Agreement on September 1, 2010 which consists of an interest rate cap on the LIBOR floating
rate of the senior secured loans at 1.75% until August 31, 2011, Additionally the Company entered into a
swap from September 1, 2011 to September 1, 2013 effectively fixing the base rate at 2.32%. The notional
amount of the swap is $46.375 million, which is equivalent to 35% of the Term Loan amount borrowed.
The fair values of the interest rate cap and swap are insignificant at December 31, 2010 and are not being
accounted for as an effective hedge resulting in no adjustment to fair value being recorded to the statement
of operations as interest expense.

Income Taxes

Income tax expense (benefit) consisted of the following:

2010 2009

Current:

Federal $ 1,652,164 678,126

State 1,244,752 924,717
Deferred:

Federal 3,086,086 (4,783,401}

State (156,872) (10,632)

$ 5,826,130 (3,191,190)

The difference between the expected tax expense based on the federal statutory rate of 34% is primarily
Texas gross margin tax, which is not based on pre-tax income and inceme tax atiributable to
noncontrolling interest,
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Deferred tax assets and liabilities arising from temporary differences were as follows:

2010 2009
Deferred tax assets:
Accrued expenses and other liabilities for financial
accounting purposes not currently deductible $ 5,776,527 765,594
Net operating loss carryforwards and contribution limitation 858,471 1,345,244
Flow through entities 4,328,310 3,671,996
Property plant and equipment 197,679 236,104
Other 151,589 332,312
Total deferred tax assets 11,312,576 6,351,250
Deferred tax liabilities:
Property and equipment and intangibles, principally due to
differcnces in depreciation and amertization (3,546,732) (25,657)
Goodwill (11,031,330) (4,514,534)
Total deferred tax habilities ~(14,578,062) (4,540,191)
Net deferred tax assets (liabilities) h) (3,265,486) 1,811,059
The valuation allowance consisted of the following:
2010 2009
Balance at January 1 b3 — 6,149,048
Increase (decrease) during the year — (6,149,048)

Balance at December 31 $ — —

The Company had net operating loss carryforwards of approximately $205,000 as of December 31, 2009,
which were utilized in 2010. The Company has not recorded a valuation allowance for any of its deferred
tax assels at December 31, 2010 as it expects to generate future taxable income sufficient to realize such
deferred tax assets.

Preferred Stock

Under the Company’s Third Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation, 108,783,333 total shares
are authorized to issue, comprising 53,525,000 shares of common stock and 55,258,333 shares of preferred
stock. Preferred stock is issuable in scries under terms and conditions determined by the Company’s board
of directors.

{a} Series A Preferred Stock
As of Deceinber 31, 2009 and 2010, there were 12,350,000 shares of Series A Preferred outstanding,
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Series B Preferred Stock

The Series B redeemable convertible preferred stock (Series B Preferred) shares were sold, primarily
to related-party physicians, at an original issue price of $1 per share. During 2010 and 2009, the
Company issued 16,000 shares to a related-party physician at a price of $1.00 per share. As of
December 31, 2010 and 2009, there were 545,000 and 529,000 shares, respectively, of Series B
Preferred outstanding.

Series B-1 Preferred Stock
As of December 31, 2010 and 2009, there were 886,666 shares of Series B-1 Preferred outstanding.

Series C Preferred Stock
As of December 31, 2010 and 2009, there were 24,500,962 shares of Series C Preferred outstanding.

Series D Preferred Stock

During 2010, 8,333,333 shares of Preferred D Stock were issued at a price of $3 per share for total
net proceeds of approximately $25.0 million in connection with the acquisition of DCA. As of
December 31, 2010, there were 8,333,333 shares of Series D Preferred outstanding,

Dividends

Series A Preferred, Series C Preferred, and Series D Preferred stockholders are entitled to receive
cash dividends at the rate of 8% per annum calculated on the original issue prices. Dividends are
cumulative from the date of original issuance and accrue quarterly. Accumulations of dividends on
shares of Series A, Series C and Series D Preferred stock do not bear interest and are payable
generally at the time of a liquidating event as defined in the apreement. Series B Preferved,
Series B-1 Preferred, and common stockholders are entitled to receive dividends, when and if
declared by the board of directors out of the Company’s assets legally available therefore, so long as
all accrued dividends on then outstanding Series A, Series C, and Sertes D Preferred stock have been
paid or declared and set apart.

Redemption

Each share of Series A, Series C, and Series D Preferred stock is redecmable beginning on
September I, 2020, if approved by 60% of the then-outstanding sharcholders of Series A, Series C,
and Series D Preferred. Series B and Series B-1 Preferred stock is redeemable, beginning on
September 1, 2012 only subject to and after redemption of the Series A, Series C, and Series D
Preferred Stock and if approved by 60% of the then-outstanding shares of Series A, Sertes C, and
Series D Preferred, voting as a single class, and if also approved by 60% of the then-outstanding
shares of Series B and Series B-1 Preferred, voting as a single class,

Any such redemption would be payable in three equal annual installments calculated vsing the sum
of the original issue prices (31 per share for Series A,Seri es C, and Serics D Preferred, and $1.50 for
Series C and Series B-1 Preferred) plus all related accrued and unpaid dividends.
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fh) Conversion Rights

M

G

Each share of Series A, Series B, Series B-1, Series C and Series D Preferred stock is convertible at
any time, at the option of the holder, into the same number of shares of common stock. Each share of
Series A, Series B, Series B-1, Series C, and Series D converts automatically upon a qualified public
offering. Upon such automatic conversion, any related declared and unpaid dividend becomes due.

Liquidation Preference

Upon liquidation or dissolution, and after payment or provision for payment of all debts and
liabilities, stockholders of the Company will receive proceeds, to the extent available, as follows:
(a) first, to the holders of Series A, Series C and Series D Preferred Stock, amounts per share equal
to their original share purchase prices, plus accrued and unpaid dividends (as adjusted for past
dividends, combinations, splits, recapitalizations, and the like); (b} second, to the holders of Series B
and Series B-1 Preferred Stock, amounts per share equal to their original share purchase prices, plus
any accrued and unpaid dividends, (as adjusted for past dividends, combinations, splits,
recapitalizations, and the like); (c) third, ratably to the holders of Common Stock, and Series A
Preferred Stock, Series C Preferred Stock and Series D Preferred Stock on an as-if converted to
Common Stock basis until the holders of Series A, Series C and Series D Preferred Stock shall have
received, in total including the payment under (a) above, an amount equal to three (3) times the
Series A and Series C and two (2) times the Series ) original issue price, respectively; and
{(d) fourth, to the holders of Common Stock, any remaining available amounts,

Veting Rights

Each share of Series A, Series C and Series D Preferred stock issued and outstanding is entitled to
the number of votes equal to the number of shares of common stock into which it is convertible. For
various defined events, Series A, Series C and Series D Preferred stockholders vote together as a
separate class. In those circumstances, 60% or more of the outstanding Serigs A, Series C and
Series I Preferred stockholders must approve the event.

Each share of common stock is entitled one vote. As long as Serics A, Series C and SeriesD
Preferred stock is outstanding, and except for various defined events, Scries A,S eries C and Series D
Preferred stockholders vote together with common stockholders as a single class on an
as-if-converted to common stock basis.

The Series B and Series B-1 Preferred stockholders have no voting rights and their consent is not
required to take any corporate action.

A majority of the Company’s stockholders, voting together on an as-if-converted to common stock
basis, can change the number of authorized shares outstanding.
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Other Terms

If Series A, Series C and Series D Preferred shares are outstanding, no dividend may be declared,
and no shares shall be redeemed, on Series B or Series B-1 Preferred stock unless all accrued
Series A, Series C and Series D Preferred dividends have been paid and a similar dividend is
declared on Series A,Se ries C and Series D Preferred stock.

All stockholders are obligated to participate in a sale of the Company approved by 60% of the
Series A, Series C and Serics D Preferred stockholders, voting together as a single class, and the
board of directors.

Series A, Series C and Series D Preferred stockholders have the right to purchase any new securities
on a proportionate basis, and also have the right of over-allotment if any other Series A, Series C or
Series D Preferred shareholder fails to purchase a full proportionate share of the any new sccurities.
Series B Preferred, Series B-1 Preferred,and common stockholders do not have preemptive rights,

The Company and the Series A and Series B Preferred stockholders have the right to purchase shares
from Series B Preferred, Series B-1 Preferred and common stockholders who wish to transfer their
shares to a nonpermitted transferee.

Stock Compensation Plans

The Company’s 2005 Stock Incentive Plan (the 2005 SIP) provides stock options and restricted stock
granls, and other share-based incentives, primarily to employees and directors. In March 2009, the
Company authorized an additional 500,000 shares available for grant. In May 2010, the Company
authorized an additional 600,000 shares available for grant. There were 6,000,000 and 5,400,000 shares
available for grant as of December 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively, under the amended 2005 SIP.

(a)

Stock Option Plan

Awards granted under the 2005 SIP are for incentive stock options with a five year term, an exercise
price at least equal to the market value on the date of grant, and which vest 25% after one year of
service and then monthly in equal amounts over the next three years of service. [Income for the years
ended December 31, 2010 and 2009 included $70,744 and $13,271 respectively, of pretax
compensation costs related to stock options granted. As of December 31, 2010, there was $22,072 of
total unrecognized compensation costs related to stock options. These costs are expected to be
recognized over a period of approximately four years. At December 31, 2010, the weighted average
remaining coniractual life of outstanding options was 2,37 years.
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The table below summarizes activity in the Company’s stock option plan:

Year ended December 31

2010 2009
Weighted Weighted
average average
exercise exercise
Awards price Awards price
Outstanding at beginning of
year 1,016,066 § 0.14 1,061,692 § 0.14
Granted 352,000 0.26 195,000 0.15
Exercised (291,472) 0.15 (208,751) 0.14
Canceled — — {(31,875) 0.1!
Outstanding at end of year 1,076,594 § 0.18 1,016,066 § 0.14
Awards exercisable at
year-end 380,742 % 0.14 412,941 § 0.14
Restricted Stock

The Company issued restricted stock to certain employees in 2010 and in prior years, Restricted
stock awards vest 25% after one year of service and then monthly in equal amounts over the next
three years of service, subject to continved employment and other plan terms and conditions. Holders
of restricted stock are not allowed to sell, transfer, pledge, or otherwise encumber their restricted
shares, but such holders are allowed to vote and their shares accrue dividends when and if declared.
The Company may, but ts not ebligated to, repurchase vested restricted stock from employees at fair
market value upon termination of the recipient’s employment.

Expense for restricted stock is recognized over the vesting period. The noncash compensation
expense associated with restricted stock awards was $31,908 in 2010 and $41,825 in 2009. The
following table summarizes restricted stock award activity:

Outstanding balance at beginning of year
Granted
Exercised
Forfeited
Repurchased

Balance at December 31, 2010

28

2010 2009
3,401,558 3,401,558
560,000 —
3,961,558 3,401,558
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The following table summarizes the nonvested restricted stock activity:

2010 2009
QOutstanding balance at beginning of year $ 641,122 1,384,334
Granted 560,000 —
Vested (488,369) (743,212)
Forfeited — _
Repurchased — —
Balance at December 31, 2010 $ 712,753 641,122

At December3l, 2010, 3,248,805 of the outstanding restricted shares were vested. As of
December 31, 2010, there was approximately 3320,47] of total unrecognized compensation costs
related to restricted stock awards. These costs are expected to be recognized over a remaining
vesting period of approximately four years.

(10) Related-Party Transactions

Participation in the Medicare ESRD program requires that treatment at a dialysis center be under the
general supervision of a director who is a physician. The Company has engaged physicians or groups of
physicians to serve as medical directors for each of its centers. The Company has contracts with
approximately 59 individual physicians and physician groups to provide medical director services, The
compensation of medical directors is negotiated individually and depends in general on local factors such i
as competition, the professional qualifications of the physician, their experience and their tasks as well as :
the workload at the clinic, '

An ESRD patient generally secks treatment at a dialysis center near his or her home and at which his or her
treating nephrologist has practice privileges. Additionally, many physicians prefer to have their patients
treated at dialysis centers where they or other members of their practice supervise the overall care provided
as medical directors to the centers. As a result, and as is typical in the dialysis industry, the primary refemal
source for most of the Company’s centers is often the physician or physician group providing medical
director services to the center.

The Company’s medical director agreements gencrally include covenants not to compete. Also, when the

. Company acquires a center from one or more physicians, or where one or more physicians owns intcrests
in centers as co-owners with the Company, these physicians have agreed to refrain from owning interests
in competing centers within a defined geographic area for various time periods. These agreements not to
compete restrict the physicians from owning or providing medical director services to other dialysis
centers. Most of these agreements not to compete continuc for a pertod of time beyond expiration of the
corresponding medical director agreements.

The Company leases space for 44 of its centers in which physicians and/or employees hold ownership
interests, and subleases space to referring physicians and/or employees at one center. Future minimum
lease payments payable under these leases is approximately $22 million at December 31, 2010, exclusive
of maintenance and other costs, and is subject to escalation. For 2010 and 2009, total lease payments under
these leases were approximately $2.9 million and $2.4 million, respectively. On June 21, 2010, the
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Company entered into a ten year corporate office lease agreement with an entity owned by two of its
employees. The lease is expected to commence in 2011, The future leasc payments payable under this
lease are approximately $1.5 million.

The Company’s York, Pennsylvania dialysis center is leased from a limited liability partnership in which
the Company has a 60% ownership interest with the remaining 40% owned by two doctors one of whom
serves as the medical director for that facility. These doctors are also affiliated with the entity that owns a
40% minority ownership in the subsidiary that operates the facility,

Some medical directors and other referring physicians own Series B and Series B-1 Preferred stock, which
they purchased from the Company. Some of the Company’s medical dircctors also own equity interests in
entities that operate the Company’s dialysis centers.

The Company believes that the leases and equity purchases are no less favorable to the Company and no
more favorable to such physicians than would have been obtained in arm’s-length bargaining between
independent parties.

The Company has one promissory note obligation owed a noncontrolling interest holder in one of its
substdiaries. The note obligation was in an original amount of $750,000, of which $125,000 and $250,000
was outstanding at December 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively. At December 31, 2010 and 2009, $125,000
of the amount outstanding was classified in the accompanying consolidated balance sheet as a current
liability. The note bears interest at 7% and principal is due in six annual installments from May 1, 2006
through May 1, 2011.

During the years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009, the Company paid a related party affiliated through
common ownership $461,011 and $293,101, respectively, for the usage of an airplane.

A member of the Company’s board of directors provides consulting services primarily related to regulatory
and reimbursement matters. The total expenses incurred by the Company related to these services were
approximately $100,000 and $108,333 in 2010 and 2009, respectively.

Legislation, Regulations, and Market Conditions

The Company’s dialysis operations are subject to extensive federal, state, and local government
regulations. These regulations require the Company {0 meet various standards relating to, among other
things, the operation of dialysis clinics, the provision of quality healthcare for patients, maintenance of
proper ownership and records, quality assurance programs, and occupational, health, safety and
environmental standards, and the provision of accurate reporting and billing to government and private
payment programs. These laws are extremely complex, and in many instances, providers do not have the
benefit of significant regulatory or judicial interpretation as to how to intcrpret and apply these laws and
regulations in the normal course of conducting their business. Healthcare providers that do not comply
with these laws and regulations may be subject to civil or criminal penalties, the loss of their licenses, or
resiriction in their ability to participate in varions federal and state healthcare programs. The Company
endeavors to conduct its business in compliance with applicable laws and regulations.
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The Company’s dialysis centers are certified (or are pending certification) by the Centers for Medicare and
Medicaid Services, as is required for the receipt of Medicare payments, and are licensed and permitted by
state authorities.

The Medicare and Medicaid Fraud and Abuse Amendments of 1977, as amended, generally referred to as
the “anti-kickback statute,” imposes sanctions on those who, among other things, offer, solicit, make or
receive payments in return for referral of a Medicare or Medicaid patient for treatment. The federal False
Claims Act imposes penalties on those who, among other things, knowingly present a false or fraudulent
claim for payment to the federal government. Another federal law, commonly referred to as the “Stark
Law,” prohibits physicians, with certain exceptions, from referring Medicare patients to entities with which
the physician has a financial relationship, states have analogous statues. The Health Insurance Portability
and Accountability Act of 1996 (HIPAA), among other things, includes provisions relating to the privacy
of medical information and prohibits inducements to patients to select a particular heaithcare provider,
Congress, states and regulatory agencies continue to consider modifications to federal and state healthcare
laws. The Company's dialysis centers are also subject to various state hazardous waste and nonhazardous
medical waste disposal laws.

Sanctions for violations of these statutes could result in the imposition of significant fines and penalties,
rcpayments for patient services previously billed, expulsion from government healthcare programs, and
other civil or criminal penalties. Management believes that the Company is in material compliance with
applicable government Jaws and regulations.

Profit-Sharing Plan

The Company has a savings plan for employees who meet certain criteria that have been established
pursuant to the provisions of Section 401(k) of the Internal Revenue Code. The plan allows employees to
contribute a defined partion of their compensation on a tax-deferred basis. Since January 1, 2005, the plan
allows for defined matching Company contributions for eligible cmployees. The plan was amended
effective January 1, 2006 to allow vesting credit for prior years of service for employees of certain
acquired businesses. For the years ending December 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively, the Company made
matching contributions to the plan of $386,328 and $391,053.

The Company may also make discretionary profit-sharing contributions to the plan if approved by the
board of directors. No such contributions were made in 2010 or 2009,
Commitments and Contingencies

The Company may be subject to claims and suits in the ordinary course of business, including contractual
disputes and professional and general liability claims.
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U.S. RENAL CARE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2010 and 2009

On February 15, 2007, the previous owners of the acquired San Antonio facilities brought suit against the
Company. In the lawsuit, the plaintiffs alleged that the Company had failed to pay amounts duc to the
sellers of Rencare Lid. (Rencare) concerning accounts receivable that arose prior to the close of the
Rencare acquisition. The Company denied plaintiff’s claims and, made counterclaims against plaintiffs and
filed a third-party cross-claim against one of the other sellers of Rencare. In the Company’s counterclaim
and cross-complaint, the Company alleged, among other things, that Sellers breached the representations
and warranties in the applicable Rencare acquisition documents by failing to disclose certain [iabilitics. A
trial was held in November 2008 and judgment was entered in favor of plaintiff for $750,000 plus
$300,000 in attorney fees. Both sides appealed and the Company fully prevailed in the appeal. The
appellant court moved that the plaintiff should receive nothing. Plaintiff moved for reconsideration and the
appellant court dismissed their motion. Plaintiffs are seeking further appellant review. At this time, the
Company cannot determine what will be the ultimate resolution. The Company incurred legal and other
professional fees related to this litigation. These expenses aggregated $27,208 and $286,647 in 2010 and
2009, respectively. In 2010, the Company reversed a $1.1 million reserve related to this litigation that it
recorded in 2008,

In February, 2010, and prior to the Company’s acquisition, DCA received a subpoena from the Office of
Inspector General of the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services (OIG) with respect to an
investigation relating to EPO utilization at certain DCA chnics. The Company has been fully cooperating
with the inquiry and has produced the requested documents to date. While there is no indication of such at
this time, any negative findings could result in: (a) substantial monetary penalties, (b) excluding certain
facilities from participation in the Mcdicare and Medicaid programs, and (c) the Company incurring legal
expenses and management time, any or all of which could have a material adverse effect on the Company’s
revenues, earnings and cash flows. The Company incurred legal fees related to this investigation of
$389,741 in 2010, subsequent to its acquisition of DCA.,

In December 2010, the Company received a Civil Investigative Demand {CID) from the U.S. Attorney for
the District of New Jersey requesting documents relating to laboratory tests performed on patients of the
Company at two of its North Texas clinics. The Company is in the process of gathering the required
documents and performing its own review of such documents. While the Company believes that it is not
the subject of the government’s investigation, the outcome of this matter is uncertain and the Company has
risk of an adverse outcome that could result in substantial monetary penalties.

The Company has obligations to purchase the third-party interests in several of its joint ventures. These
obligations are in the form of put provisions in joint venture agreements, and are exercisable at the
third-party owners® discretion with some timing limitations. If these put provisions are exercised, the
Company would be required to purchase the third-party owners® interests at fair market value (see note 4).
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U.S. RENAL CARE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2010 and 2009

The Company rents office space, medical facilities, and medical equipment under lease agreements that are
classified as operating leases for financial reporting purposes. At December 31, 2010, the future minimum
rental payments under noncancelable operating leases with terms of one year or more consist of the

following:

2011
2012
2013
2014
2015
Thereafter

Rent expense was 38,129,164 and $6,290,202 for the years ended December3l, 2010 and 2009,

fespectively.

$  9210,791
8,665,034
7,709,826
6,288,782
5,566,500
12,080,991
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-ummmmmmmwmdaymm end sccoringly sgrees io pay (or naimburse Lassor for) the oy and redated do {af fing

sy fnancing, i
mmmua&ammmmm rils and good deading ceriicebes of Lassas snd any tor of L espoe’
frermundar, Lassen wilf do whatover may be y o hove 8 al of the infercst of Ladaor sod sy sssignee of Lassor i the Equipment noled o sy
mdmmmmwmwmwm:omﬂw I Lastme Fais ko peelar or comply with ary of ks sgreements, Lacsor may
mwwwmamagmwmtshbmmwhtwwaanmum mamdnrmpemmewmaorumr

with such ¥ witfy kidorus! thomon of i mis provided below, shall ba } roedd pay by Lasson
m&dumnd.
1% uwm N’wpa}mat whothor for ront or otherwiza, 1a not paid whatt due, Lexsor ey impose & e cherpe of 5% of the amxond past due for
the d by applk v Klaxy) Payments Samafier isceivad shak by appbed ot 1o delinquant hstatiments and Pwa io current

{rstaliments.

. #¥, DEFAULT. an':dummmmmmmruwnmmr(-}ummsfampaymmmmn«wfmn
revl, besi: rut or any olher smount 0ue herounder; (b) any cortiicals, o Lrodd
-mm«mwbxwmmwdmowwwurdmydlnwatmmmshhswbeenfa!wormbamgnm

-mamiﬁrespadarmmr torid fact, et or unkiy ilbliynrmknamumwmwm fc) Laasow shall Fal i obsorve of
- any ot by 1! to b ohoenned or parformed by Lesses gt the Ghaveol for 15 calendar daya ioflowing written
maraafbyl.oswramrdjuwwmrwmdMsMummypmdumimu-mwmmmuam
_ conaam, mehs &0 Bssonment for o benefl of creditors, bacome inzolvon, or sngags in sy ' (e} Lessoe or any guerarior
dmtmamymwumsflmul hip shall wok i ‘mwl\avuﬂedagaindkhvdwm 2 patiton Tor iguidebon, rmonanization,
mﬁddau w%wmﬁoMWMNmyMﬂwwmmwmmmawm oF 8 Huston,
k il ba By '-‘l‘crufa#araMmdhmmmamymdwdumﬂmmmmmﬂ
bqhmdarhﬂ‘e!mlnme, d o, mr Andor sy credi? agrmerment. comdtonal sokces Gontrant, lease o Cther
. arkstg: (9] any ki 'Lum Kor of théa Laase, o pertnes of Lesse T Lasson is & partnership Sl dee; (h} an gvend of defadff
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shail oocur wnder any other abligrition Lessta or sny gusnantor of 1,.65500's obiigotions herouwndsr owes Jo Lassor; i} an avent of defaull slial oocur undor aiy
Lassos may now or hersaltar owe to any wiikats of Lessar or (i} Lessog, or any guaranlor of B Leaoo shadl sufar 20 adverse matsral changs b
£ Fnanciol condition from the dzia hamof, md a5 & o el Lessor dooms dsoff or any of the Equipmant ja be insecuss.
T8 REMEDIES. Lassorsod Lovtes ogree ihal Lossors AREpes medbymmdm Evonl of Defaul s uncertnlr #nd nof capable of exach
megsromand ot the Geas this Laase i execded bocguse B vake of the S & tha i of this Lento is and tharesfiore thay sirde et for
Buposes of this paragniph 18 "Laxsor's Lows® &5 of ory dbla Shalf ba mmdﬂ‘mﬂoﬂwmm amount of of Fent pnd Ofher amoints payatie by Losses
- Pareunctor Sus Sit smpokt 83 of toch dite phes {2) the amound of mif ungaid rent for the batance of e berm of thix Lease pol ye! dug a3 of such dal fockading

- ny ronswdl o pLrThase cplions which Lessas has controciad i pay) o d from the: e datar Inptalimant b woull ba due et tha Discount
Rafusasﬁmdmmmwx«mmwmwmaumwmumasdmmmm ihat with regard o any
ots forth 3 "Final Py nt* ciher than 10% of e codt of the Equdpment, $hon the amount of such Finef Purchzse Payment

chatbs mmmdn mdm rmsnumdma Tarbnhapwpom of cricedating Lasear's Losy with regand & &nth Supplement ) "Disooond Rate” means
§) tha tate Set forlhs for s Traasmy Consiand Makurdios nmmmmmmmmm}mmmdmwwuw

Hxthr o the Federal Resens Board H.15 Rolease {Sodsctod intorest Rates) a5 of the Rent X o §uch Suppk (i} e e pat
forth for the Troozury Constunt Mutudties having tha tosest tsm i it not lorger than) the lamdm gk Suppk A, & sot forth iy e
m!wmursm(mmmjudmmdwmuwsm i ‘Lbswh“ o (M) %,
whickever it lowvest ¥ a rafa foferred it in the precading clauses (i) o (T} e nol pobéshed in such p cad haralnabove, s reta shail be

Exkon from a reputatis source seiectad by Lessor,
* Upor the pocuronos of §n Event of Dafault a0 51 any e thevoafter, Lessor may sxercise gny ons or mote of the remedies Fsled bolow as Lessor i s
mmmxemmm homer mupmmsmmdm Event of Defaud specfiod In paragraph 17{a), 80 amount squsl to Lessors
Loss as of he date of such b amd ba nmediatoly due and payabiy withoul notice or demand of sny kind. | Tha exencise of
wmmﬂyaﬁﬂwfb&dmmdm%wdmmmdrwmhemdwmm wmmmhm
ooncuTontly o separalnly bt only 10 the Sident ecassary in pormit Lassor ta nectie gmagrts for wivich Lessoa is Febio herounder.
a)  Lossorrrxry, by wiilon pobce fo Lesses, fsnivete His Laase a3 io any or sl of the Equlnmont sefyec! berst and deciams oo smoud equol o Lassor's
mmam-mraummmemmmmw 0% fquidated damagns and not a5 & penally, and the same shal theroupon be and

Iy chew and bie without Eather notice or gemand, snd 28 dgite of Lissia jo vse the Fgulpment shall tarminots dut Lessoe shatt bs end
mmmmwmmmm Lesson shalf ot iv expense promply dedver Bhe Bquipnent i Lossor at 8 kocstion or ncations withia the
continants Unded Stalay dasignatod by Lassr, Lassdrmay aiso oiter upon 1o pramises whons the Equipment i focriod end take imawedialy povsession of
ahd pmove the soeng with or without instliding lega! pyoceetings,
5 ummrmadaywmmacﬁonwmmbytmdmmwemmdwsms&wbmhrMMm
Lotse, Lassors Loss as of the date Lessory Loss & coctaned cu Bl vpon rocovery of Lessor's Loss Som Lessas
mawmmmnmhmmwsm«mwmmmmwmmumﬁmmmwwa
Aoy adBonal smount cuo undor okures (e] ) and () bekw.

el mmommmmmmuaﬂmmwmm&mmnmmmam&mm«wam

cach ¥om of Exspmeant i such manner snd upont such lerms 23 Lossor may in s sola The of trty SUCH S OF jease shel b
wmmmwwmmwwmmm mmmmmm mealbuuiﬁadbanyamm
. Losses chal moroir leblo Kor any dolf For p of this *awmuﬂwmypmdmsqwmwmwmu

mmwmwmmgmdnyummmmdmwmmmmwmmmw

df meywmammmyﬂoﬂormumMnemmwm«mwmwtomwwnmBfl.embrusseo:

a) LsmrmarmwvermurastmmuwwmmarummﬂusmymmmmbbmmmwmmdmmmpnWMMo
clate ¥ bocomes peyadls unth fisly paid o7 the role of the losser of 12% par snnwm of s highost rale pealied by ew,

£ i aoiod: fo any olfver recovery perritied hetcunder Or under apphcable law, Lessor may rycover from Lessow an amount thet will Ay compensate Lossor
For any Yoss of of demagm b Lassor's resiouet inierest i the Squivnent,

e wamrorwﬂsamynhwdgfnwmwymm&:#bymwwmmmnwmmmmmmmm
dmmnymwdmm«mﬂdw#mmdmymmy |, fopall, Blorsge,
mmmmmwm s Any o 3 h ‘nyumwwawbmmmmmhhmm

Rmy&wﬁmumymbmammwum ummmuw-mmwhmawnmm
. o omer S and aF oher ing at aay Fme owing by Lassoe ip Lossor, Lassen sgraes (et upot the
mwmmumhmmudmwmmmmmmm Lessor shall have of of the nghts sl
romodias of & socored pedy undar the Unfform Commential Coda.,
Mo axpross or imphod wafver by Lassorof any broech of Lessos's oliimlions hareunder shadl constitule @ waiver of 3y offior braach of Lossan's

3 hamunder.

19, Nonoss.mmnnmmmemmuummwmmmmmmwm'm:‘-* dp Wi or ‘
with & peatiorraf bt cocviar sorvice or in v Unifeg Stutos mals, posfape prepaid, eddressod fo meipiant o #y podnasy sef o Gbove or ef
.mmamasmubummm.wm
20, NET LEASE AND UNCONDITIONAL OBLIGATION, This Lease &5 @ complelsly ot leaos ond Loassa’s cbigation fo paty nant and =1 ofver Emounts
pswblabyl,mhmuam onconxitionst mwmwmmﬂmwwmmuam«mm

NON-CANCELABLE LEASE, This Lease cannot be forf o d 2xvepl a3
22. SURVIVAL OF INDEMNITIES. Lansas's obfigationy under Maamphs? EWIEMWMHWdem

T.- 23 TAXINDEMNITY. Lassor's bss of, ordoss of tire Agity 10 ciem, or fecapliro of, i or any st of e fodaral or stain income tax bonafits Lewsr

Wﬁawdmwhbmmmnﬂdmmmw& o hevoin a2 2 "Lose’, i for any reason (i Loass is nol 8 fros kepss ke
fedaral or siate ivoma fax pwpases, of § for ony remmon feven though this Leass may 6a A rue lease) Lesaor i3 not sntilled 1o depreciate tho Equipment for

, ficterai o siats fonma (33 prposos in the manner that Lescor articipatad who erleving into tia Lanse, ard &3 o resull L essor suffery 8 Loss, thev Leszes

. tgreos i pay Lecwor, as addiions] bask: roml, & np-sian smount which, after he payment of 2N fodoval, steln and local incomrs taxes o the receipt of such

. amount, and using ths same sscmplions o5 fo txx banefits and ofher matiers Lessor used i arignally eveluating and pricky this Lease, wil i the reasoialio
opirion of Lassor maintai Lossor's et affor-fex rete of rebum wilh rospact o Bhis Loase at tre sama isvel & wouk! Swve bean | such Loss hed ot oocursd. The
Lessor mokes no repiesentation with respect fo thi income bix consequancas of Bhis Laaca of s Squitment. Losmor wil notly Lesaos of sy clalm ihat may

. e e Jo indernnlty heroondor: Lessor shal matio i reasonablo sffod fo confes! any wwoh ciakm but shall have no obigation 10 contest such caim beyond the
Dorministrafive eved of the Intemsd Revenite Sarvice or obher fexing suthorty. &1 any event, Leasor shafl coniof of sspects of any sabiomant sne comtest.
Lmnwamayhhgdhsmoﬁ«maﬁmm.wmhmnﬁbﬂwhﬂhmﬁumymdnh:mnil.sm‘:ddumfsamﬁi
Notwilthstanting the mlmoa’laﬂ}anmmhatuubnmm&mmmdwoﬂdamwanﬂmo
Poys tho trmount Lasose brroguined 1o pay &5 a resut of such casuafly, (i) Loseor's eak of the Equianant othor tham on accoumt of an Event of Detalt

- -herotmdor, i) Faitars of Lecsor jo have stffcisnt incore b otiiizg ity avilicipated tax benedils or b Govaly claim such (ax barodts, and () s chsnge i b faw
mmm;m:mmamma F«msdmpawumnﬂumlwmnmmnmafmmwmd
mfdrlw!s(nrmy & Tax redumna are Moo for such afftiatod proop for fadersl income e plap Lossoa's

. el hix Lﬂmaﬂmrafmmﬁmofmmm
24. OOUNTERPARTS, mmwmmmumamwmmumwmxmmmam Ti i axtant! that any

mmmmmrnmm&smwmmmmcom # secuilly intorasl sy only be oradted i the Supplement
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Wells Fa lpment Financo, in¢.. .
B WELLS mmmrﬁsfm,mm ; Amendment tO
_ FARGO - MAG N9306-070 Masfer Lease

Minnaapolis, MN 55402

' ‘Wens Forgo Equpmont Finange, Inc. (‘Lessor’} and U.S, Renal Cara Home Thersples LLC ("Lessoa’) hereby
amendma Master Lease Number 288280 dated as of November 2, 2010 (the “Lease”) as follows:

"1, Sectin Sla)(vi) is amendsed by deleting it and replacing it it s entlrety with the foflowing: “*koop
sccurate and complete raconds perialning to Borrower's buskiass end fimancial condition and submit
{6 Londer such quarterly and annual roports oonoemfng Borrowar’s bus}ness and financlsl candition
Lendermay from fime fo tima reasonably request”

2 . Saection 15 is amendod by replacing words “Lessee will promptly execute and deliver to Lessor® with
“‘Lossee will execute and doliver to Lessar within ten (10} days of Lessor's requost”

"3 Sectian 17(a} Is amonded by inserting *within (5) five business days of befora tha viords “when due”.
4 Sacﬂon 17(c} is amended by doleting “ten (10) calender days” and replacing 1 with “20 catendar days".

.5. Saction 17(e) Is amended by Inserting “snd,. ¥ such petition Is involuntary, the samo shafl not be
dismissad within 30 calendar days of its fling”

6. Now dlauses (K), (I} and (m} are hereby addod as additional Events of Dafaull in Soction 17 of [ha L
- Apreement to road as follows:

“(k} an svent of défault shall occur after ghving offoct to any provided cure period, of Lesseo undor

. that cedain Credd Agreement duted as of May 24, 2010 among Lessee as Bomowsr, the
Guarardors and Lenders idendifled thereinBank of America, NA., as Syndication Agent, and Royal
Bank of Canada, as Adminisirative Agent and as Coflateral Agent, as such Credit Agreoment may
b& amended from time lo time (the “CredRt Agraement’); (1) Fellure of Lassee to maintain al all times
anﬂrxfmumF&EdCharyeCDWrageRaﬁoasdoﬂmdmdsarfwﬁlhtheGadﬂA@'eemmL(mj
faflira to cortify in writing fo Lessor within shdy (60) days of the et of each fiscal quorter as 1o
those malters perlaining {o financia! stalements and Evants of Defauﬂ statad In the form for such
cwtrﬂcetbn eftachod haroto 03 Exhibit A.” .

Excopt a3 modﬂ‘iad herein, the lerms end conditions of the Lease remaln the same and continus in fuil ferce and
effect. In the event of & conffict between the lorms of the Lease and this Amendmant, the terms of this
Amendmant shall provall,

LESSEE:

U.S. Renal Care Home Therapies, LLC

‘_ Roviswd U S Henol Gire inc ameniment 1o MY (v2) (Z.doc
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_ ExhibitA
To Amendment to Master Lease daled as of November 2, 2010

To: Wolls Fargo Equipment Fingnce, Inc.
733 Marquetle Avenue
Suite 700

Minneapolis, MN §5402
Altn: Sanfor Lending Manages; Healthcare

Re:. erten'y Compfisnce Ceniification of L}.S. Renal Care Hom Tharapias, LLC ("Lessee?)

’ Thé undersigned Lessee hereby certifies to Wells Farge Equiprient Finance, Inc, {"Lessor? that {a) the
finonclal statement of Lessee dated as of June 30, 2010, herefofore or concurrently horawith defiverod by
Lessoe to Lessor, Is true and corroct, and has been prepared in acoardance with genérally acceptad accounting
principals, and (b) as of the dafé heroof, thero exists no defaulf or dofined Event of Defaull undor any loan
agreemont, promissory note of other documant in offact with respatd 1o any credit accommodation granted by

Lassor {0 Lessoe.

Ditod: November 2, 2010

Page2 of 2
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WL Amendmentto

Wells Fargo Equipment Finance, Inc. ("Lessor’) and U.8. Renal Gars Home Thorapios, LLC [Lesses) heroby
emond the Masler Loase Numbor 288280 dated as of November 2, 2010 {tho "Leoso?) s follows:;

1. Section G{a)vi} Iz amanded by doleting it and roplacing i In s entiroty with the following: “heep
aoewrals and complete records pertaining to Borower's business and financial conditia and submi
o Lendoer such quartery and annuai reparts concaming Bormower's business and finoncisl condition
Lendsr may from Lime fo fime-reasonably request*

2 Section 15 Is amended by replacing sttmeummpuymmomddafmmwwﬂh
Iessaewﬁexecweanddeﬁvwmtwwmmn{wjdapoﬂmst

‘3. Soction 17(s) Is smendad by Fiserting “within (5} fie bushass days of bafore the words "wl':en due”,
4. Section 17{c) is amended by dofating “ten {10) cafendardays'und roplacing & with “20 calendar days”.

' 5. Secfon 17(cv) is amended by Inserting "and, such pelition s hvol'unl‘a!y the semo shefl not be
dismissed within 30 calesmar days of is filng*

6. New clauses (&), mm(m)mhmbyaddedes addilonal Events of Dafaul in Seclion 17 of the
Agraemorﬂtomadas!oﬂnm-: N

1k}mwm«dofauxana!maﬂwgﬁdngoﬂadbmymwmpmod dbessesmdcr
that cortain Crodit Agresment dated Bs of July 5, 2006 among Lesses as Borrowey, the Guaraniors
and Londers Mentified thereln, CapialSource Finance LLC, as Syndicotion Ageni; and CIT
Heslihcang LLC, as Administrativo Agont and os. issuing Bank, as such Credit Ageament mey ba
amendoad from tima ta tme; (f) failure of Lossese fo malntain at afl mes o minimum Fixed-Charge
Coverpgo Rolio (a defined below) of 1.20; (m) feiure fo certly in witing fo Lessor within sidy (60)
days of the end of gach fiscal quartoer as to thosa matiers pertaining i financlal stafornents and

'medmwmdnmmhmwmﬂammas%ﬁ& “Flxend
Charge Coverage Ratio” is definad as set forth i the altached Exhidd B, withouf regard 18 whather
oither of the two agroaments from MI&M&HO!E;W?BWS!&R&MSMWMM&
famﬂnahed

-Except as modifled haroln, !hetsrrnséndoondkionsofmoLoasemmﬂremmeandcbnﬂnuafnmmrmmd
oifect. l'nmeemntofacmﬂndbdmenthetamsoﬂhotoasemdﬂﬁsmmmlhafem'lsofﬂm .
Amerdmant shall pravall.

» Dated: Novembef 2, 2010

" Welis Fago Equinne:

U5 Ranof Cory bt

LESSEE:

U.S. Remat Care Home Thoraples, LLC
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Supplement to Master Lease
WL v g Y Agrooment of Safo
MAL NOMCA-OT0

P

Suppfemont Number §288280-400 deted &5 of Novambor 2, 2HG
fo
* Mastor Loase Murnber 206280 oiatod &y of Novormber 2, 2010

’ the date of this Supplemant. However, i that st po such modifications will be Binditrg on Lassoe unfess end untl? Lasses

" Lossor rocerves tho aight (o withdrn the [ of Uiy Suppiement and Issue & modied Suppinment withoul notce
to Losson i Lessor is nolin recelpt of & fuffy exscutod orginal or fecsimife of this document within e {5) business days of

axocitas the modifed docimavit contalning o such modiffcaly

Thiz is @ Supplement fo tha Master Laase Montiied obove batweoan Lossor ond Leszoo (the "Mestor Loase”). Upon tie execution end
ciivory by Lassor ang Losses of ihis Supplomont, Lassor aroby agroes fo koose ko Lessos, amd Lassoa hamby ogrood 1o laase fromt
Lazsoe, the oquipment dastribed balow upon the temns and condtions of thiy Supplement and ihe Mastar Loase. AT tarms and

conciions of the Mastar Laaso shed mrmean iy (Ul forcs anod offoct excepl to o extonf mockfod by this Suppfamend. Thés Suppfemont

- ant tho Master Loase ps K mates 1o this Soppfameant aro hivoinoltar refeand 1o o3 the Leaso®.

Ew!pmw#basﬂfpﬂm: -

Tha Equipmont on Schodule A aitached eroir and reade a pant hevoof
Mori.osseedgmmr_omLamouﬁm&ulsm&hsﬁwmlwmﬁﬂwﬂmwdnmmymmm&mm
as it mocal yoar of the Equipmant or lts ol rumber or VIN) info this Equipimad Descripiion.

Equiproont Location: 1113 La Conchn Lene, Houston, TX TT054

SUNMARY OF PAYMENT TERMS
InfBal Torm [Months). uo . Cost_3100,69277
Pa Toted Basc Ront 312350200
. Pyt s:.mu ‘Phas ApplicoDle salos and us0 | &tonm Ront Dany Rats. 014%
fax
Fumbor of insiahments. &0 Cizodl Dete: D 15, 2010
| Advance Payments_Frrst due on sighing s Leasa Securly Dopasit WA -

Adcitipees! Provisions: Tolal Anance Charpes: $14,7100.00

- End of Term Agreomont:
-1 madflon i payig the Totol Baic Aot when and e dus undar tha Lsaso, LASTse sgros fo pay Lossor $1.00 on the oxpietion

mumwmdwmmmmw

2 wummmmwmﬁwmwwm the Equiprnent shall bo dsemed ronsfortod to

Lozsen at #5 Bon beoton. Lipon roquest by Lossos, Lesoor will dodver » b of sake tensfering the Equipment io Losseo. Lessor
. harpdy warrants that 0l the Gime of irenifer tha Equipmont wilf ba frog of a2 securlly inlerests ond other Fons crealod by Lessor orin
favor of parstns calming tough Lessor, LESSOR MAKES NO OTHER WARRANTY WITH RESPECT TO THE EQUIPMENT,
EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, AND SPECIRICALLY DVSCLAIMS ANY WARFANTY OF MERCHANTABILITY AND OF AITNESS FOR A
PARTICULAR PURFPOSE AND ANY LIABILITY FOR CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES ARFSING OUT OF THE LISE OF OR THE
. INADIUITY TO USE THE EQUIPMENT.
THIS AGREEMENT INCLUDES THE TERMS ON THE ATTACHED FAGELS).

mmmmm U.S, Renal Care Home Thesapes, LLE,
e n—

[ossentom 3, 2000
~Ront Commencament Do
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3 Fodure 1o pay b Anal Purmhiase Paymont whon due shiall constiulo tn “Event of Dofaw” undor the Lease,
4. Lpsses agroos o pay o safes and use laves arfsing on acoownd of U safé of the Equimeont to Lossea.

Lassor makas no repmsoniation with {foihe i o quances of Bre iransaction ovidencod by s Leass, Lossorw? boat
Mbmuammdmmmsmwm . . .

ModTication to Mastor Lazse: To.0n consistont witt thés Sepplamont the Masfor Laase i emondod o Rlaws:

1. The second perograph of paragrapht 2 (rofding to sulomatic extorsion) is hereby delofod,

2 The tiny sonleroo of paragraph 12 covarng casuatly o the Equipment bs amerndad o rosd o3 falows:
in o evont eny Sorn of Exquéiomont shall bocome losl, stolon, destroyod, comaged bayond rapak, or mndermd
permansitly Ui for use for ey reason, or 1 the event of condoimration or seizura of any &om of Equipment, Lassoo

shal promplly poy Lossar an ermaont oqual 1o Lessor's Loss as dafned in paragraph 18 with resped b such fom ot the
.ﬁr»ufmﬂmhmm e proporion that B oripinal cost of such Rem bears ip the Tolx! Cost of of foms of

3. . The sifh sonfonce of parograph 12 /s fod 10 rgad “Any insuroanie or condemmation procoecs recelved shofl bo crodiiad fo
. umsmmmmmwummummmwm

Povagraph 14 st 23 arn dolsted in thalr antiroly.
5 The toinf sonturoe of pecogreph 18(c) & smondad ta rmad "Lesses shial be ontitad 0 any suks and shal ruman Zsble kr sy

[ Gﬁm{ﬂjdmﬂumdmﬂBWNNMMMTBJWMnMMMW
nm%rmhwmmmm smhﬁnumlhﬂof}?MMﬂOmﬁhodWoMper

Vor. 1109
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[ WAE L

b ARGLY

Schedule A

Qovrirct No 2800400 dated o3 of Nevember 2, 2010

Lasson: 1S Aona) Care Homae Thoraplos, (LG
Equipment Dascriplion: Dislysts, Computor and Computer Software =y
togethiar with aff opiions, aftach anvd rlas as more fully described on ifwe follovng Yendor imvoicos
AssetiD Deacription Date Ayt Clsa i Vender 0 Chack # Ivoice #
10260 Rea Pull Tight Lock 21sng EQUIPNENY METROMEDICAL 7816 ' 708146-00
{22.00) 10356301
7¥o 777401
{881.20)
8189
(251,00}
10253 EPROM for upgrade to CRRT 12115409 EQUIPMENT FRESENIUS USA Firy] 4485260
“1&\232 18 X 72 Ad]. Sholf oLcemD EO\j!PMBﬂ IHNTERMETRO FEDO 10279213
10284 2008 K Diatysis, Machine 021010 EQUIPMENT FRESENIUS LISA. 7953 D4583144
10268 Mancor FB0t RO Syslam o3neng EQUIPMENT MAR COR 7842 0000155305
0257 B0XL Metor KR-CT O5f25M0 EQUIPMENT MESA LABS B247 0383535-N
Equipment Originalty located at; 1313 La Concha Lana
Houston, TX 77054
Dated: Novembaer 2, 2(H0
Lesses: WS Renal Care Hame Thoraphos, LLS -

Pagotaoftl
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ATTACHMENT 40

FINANCIAL VIABILITY WAIVER

The applicant is not required to submit financial viability ratios becausc all project capital
expenditures are completely funded through internal resources.

2200280v1
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ATTACHMENT 4]

VIABILITY

The applicant is not required to submit financial viability ratios because all project capital
expenditures are completely funded through internal resources as indicated in Attachment 40.

2200280v ]
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ATTACHMENT 42

REASONABLENESS OF PROJECT AND RELATED COSTS

A. Reasonableness of Financing Arrangements

See Attached Certifications

B. Conditions of Debt Financing

See Attached Certifications

C. Reasonableness of Project Costs

A | B c | o | E|F G H
Cost/Square | Gross Square | Gross Square
Foot Foot Foot Const. Total
Department | New / Mod | New 1 Circ | Mod LCirc 5 Mod. § Cost
[n-Center 44 6,493 §714230 $714,230
Hemodialysis
Contingencies
Totals $110 6,493 $714,230 §$714,230
D. Projected Operating Costs
Projected Operating Costs Total Cost | Treatments | Cost/Trmt
Labor $751,412 9,246 581
Medical supplies $194 787 9246 $21
Medications $553,127 9,246 $60
Medical Director fees $60,000 9,246 36
Rent $110,381 9,246 $12
Management Fee $250,166 9,246 $27
Other $263,566 9,246 $29
Total Projected Operating Costs $2,183,438 9,246 $236
E. Total Effect of the Project on Capital Costs
Total
Cost Treatments | Cost/Trmt
Total Effect of the Project on Capital Cost $318,950 9,246 $34.50

2200280v1
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ATTACHMENT 42

REASONABLENESS OF PROJECT AND RELATED COSTS

77 Ill. Admin. Code § 1120.140 Reasonableness of Financing Arrangements

U.S. Renal Care, Inc.

In accordance with 77 Ill. Admin. Code § 1120.140, | attest that the total estimated project costs
and related costs will be funded in total with cash and equivalents, including investment securities,
unrestricted funds, received pledge receipts and funded depreciation.

R

Thomas L. Weinberg ~ /

Tts: Senior Vice President & General Counsel

Notarization:

Subscribed and sworn to me this 12th day
of June , 2012

Wity

\\\\\“ fr‘f
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By: /(MWM IL

Stephen M. Pirri I

President
Its:

Notarization:

Subscribed and sworn to me this 12t day
of June | 2012

WL,
NSt WAz,
MMW a&‘; ;:\-E'-S-; ﬁ'ﬁéﬁf ..'4,

Signature of Notary

ccccc
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ATTACHMENT 42

REASONABLENESS OF PROJECT AND RELATED COSTS

77 Ill. Admin. Code § 1120.140 Conditions of Debt Financing

U.S. Renal Care, Inc.

In accordance with 77 Ill. Admin. Code § 1120.140, I attest that the conditions of debt financing
are reasonable in that entering into a lease (borrowing) is less costly than the liquidation of existing
investments which would be required for the applicant to construct a dialysis facility. Should the
applicant be required to pay off the lease in full, its existing investments and capital retained could
be converted to cash or used to retire the outstanding lease obligations within a sixty (60) day
period.

by T IR VWLQW

Thomas L. Weinberg I Stephen M. Pirri
Jts: Senior Vice President & General Counsel Its; Fresident
Notarization: Notarization:
Subscribed and sworn to me this 1ot _day Subscribed and sworn to me this 12th day
Ju of Ju 2012 W,
ofjune . 2012 \\\\}{‘ewgg'?{”ﬂ ” ne g o AR;H '4,/
oAb 15 // {E) %
bt % f;-uusuc--. *ch/j’rw@%o“@“’ i, %
Signature of Notary ~ § _s;? ‘.: %__ Signature of Nomry 5 :_5-3
ERR 2! F ERRY ¥ JE
Z % S F % . upohs §
Z ™ &An‘%}@@o’ & %, '-.,.T&?}?*f“@ &
4'/’ e E!\-"‘ § ’ "é.‘ﬂ &
Ty, RIS g S

"ﬂmmmm\\‘
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ATTACHMENT 42

REASONABLENESS OF PROJECT AND RELATED COSTS

77 1. Admin. Code § 1120.140 Reasonableness of Financing Arrangements

USRC Alliance, LLC

In accordance with 77 Ill. Admin. Code § 1120.140, I attest that the total estimated project cosis
and related costs will be funded in total with cash and equivalents, including investment securities,
unrestricted funds, received pledge receipts and funded depreciation.

by, S 2

Thomas L. Weinberg ~ /

Its: Manager

Notarization:

Subscribed and sworn to me this 12" day

of June 2012

At “""H"

i St 7,

Signature of Notag\,;..q RUBLI s, 2
‘1“%-’@‘ *s z
FIE .z
s < P £
E w3 =
ERA &iHE
Z % Sumoes §
%, e BN S

Y
% &

,’, L X ] 2.ﬂ
“irggp
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By:
Stephen M. Pirri

sident & Manager
Its: President & g

Notarization:

Subscribed and sworn to me this 121" day

of JUne 7012

bl

Signature of Notary

........
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ATTACHMENT 42

REASONABLENESS OF PROJECT AND RELATED COSTS

77 Ill. Admin. Code § 1120.140 Conditions of Debt Financing
USRC Alliance, LLC

In accordance with 77 1ll. Admin. Code § 1120.140, 1 attest that the conditions of debt financing
are reasonable in that entering into a lease (borrowing) is less costly than the liquidation of existing
investments which would be required for the applicant to construct a dialysis facility. Should the
applicant be required to pay off the lease in full, its existing investments and capital retained could

be converted to cash or used to retire the outstanding lease obligations within a sixty (60) day
period.

By P 220 Wh”ﬂ&v

Thomas L. Weinberg / Slephen M. Pirri

Its: Manager President & Manager

[ts:

Notarization: Notarization:
Subscribed and sworn to me this 12t day Subscribed and sworn to me this 12t day
of June 2012  ofdune 2012
\“’.\mumuf,fmr
AN AN -+
Lo S5t v, Yank
Signature of Notary £3:5 ~ 2 Signature of Notaw‘ STEWan ",
£ 2 SR, %,
ER ,@':‘2 P § F° Z
%, RS § : i o} E
My ST 2 e S §
Mg %, e RS §
/,,’ 2.2.7 Q‘\\‘\

tsy e
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ATTACHMENT 42

REASONABLENESS OF PROJECT'AND RELATED COSTS

77 Il. Admin. Code § 1120.140 Reasonableness of Financing Arrangements

USRC Plainfield, LLC

In accordance with 77 Ill. Admin. Code § 1120.140, I attest that the total estimated project costs
and related costs will be funded in total with cash and equivalents, including investment securities,
unrestricted funds, received pledge receipts and funded depreciation.

By: %——‘75 By: WA«W D‘-

Thomas L. Welnbarg s Slaphen M. Fimi

ItSI Manager Its: Prasideni and Manager

Notanzation:

Notarization:

) . 12th ) . 12th
Subscribed and sworn to me this day Subscribed and swom to me this day
of June 2012 of June 2012
Signdture of Notary i Signature of Nofary \\\\\ggwxgg:%

A iy, N Phersesd] o,
SeNART Ser el %,
SR RuBLIC ., %z FIA “ Z
§c§-“‘§‘ ..' ?' § = ) "’:"-
ERES = S :
e @ I Z @E“? FF
£ gﬁ‘@:o ;§ % &};‘TEEX?\?&?"- &
= 0 S T § - .o, .-.0° -~
7, e BESEES Ko
Ty, R sy
i
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ATTACHMENT 42

REASONABLENESS OF PROJECT AND RELATED COSTS

77 IIl. Admin. Code § 1120.140 Conditions of Debt Financing
USRC Plainfield, LLC

In accordance with 77 Ill. Admin. Code § 1120.140, I aftest that the conditions of debt financing
are reasonable in that entering into a lease (borrowing) is less costly than the liquidation of existing
investments which would be required for the applicant to construct a dialysis facility. Should the
applicant be required to pay off the lease in full, its existing investments and capital retained could

be converted to cash or used to retire the outstanding lease obligations within a sixty (60) day
period.

By: M By: WW ﬂ A

=

Thomas L Weintrerg Stephen M Pl I'

Its: Manager Its: Presitent and Maneger
Notarization: Notarization:

. . 12th . . 12th
Subscribed and sworn to me this day Subscribed and sworn to me this day
of June 2012 of June 2012

2 oV g odteoont -
1 Wik 1 [\ 1,
Signature of Notary \\\\\\‘:%:&\Alﬂ f""”%;, Signature of Notary \\\\\\\%\‘w AR Tmﬂ,,’;’.
AT LA, TN % SRS TP (7
§;\,§\ WLig™., "%, ‘{%\; & SUBLIG 'r,%
ERAA Z S . %
: i @t = z i @ i Z
z 1 é-r ! = e ¥ I E
R suos § Z % uptes” §F
%, e S %, e S
Ve, Tteagentt, LN '/ ".. TN
v, ?_,'Z\ N Uty 2 o
”’"’”«'uumu\\“\\\\ gt
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ATTACHMENT 43

SAFETY NET IMPACT

This project will result in a positive impact on the ability of other providers and health care
systems to cross-subsidize safety nct services, The capacity of hospitals and health systems to
provide safety net and charity care services is impacted by their efficiency in discharging
inpatients and transitioning their care from an inpatient setting to an outpatient setting. As the
availability of outpatient dialysis services becomes more scarce, hospitals are sometimes forced
to delay patient discharges whilc attempting to procure necessary dialysis services in the
community. This delayed discharge and resulting increase in length of stay may unnecessarily
consume hospital resources that could otherwise be directed to a patient in nced of such
resources. As the proposed project seeks to make additional outpatient dialysis services
available it will help facilitate more timely hospital discharges and will result in grcater
opportunities for hospitals to provide additional safety net and charity care services.

With respect to the provision of dialysis services for Charity Carec and Medicaid purposes, the
Applicants do not operate facilities within Illinois and, as such, have provided Charity Carc and
Medicaid information at the corporate lcvel for U.S. Renal Care, Inc. As such information is
most accurately reported at the trcatment level, due to the fact that patients receive multiple
dialysis treatments which may qualify them as one or morc paticnt types depending on their
status at the time of treatment, this information is reported at the treatment level.
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2200280vI

CHARITY CARE

Charity (# of trcatments) 2009 2010 2011
Inpatient N/A N/A N/A
Outpatient 1,056 1,922 2.305

Tolal t,056 1,922 2,305

Charity (cost in dollars)

Inpatient N/A N/A N/A
Qutpatient $281,536 $521,535 $595.473
Total $281,536 $521,535 $595,473
I MEDICAID

Medicaid (# of

treatments) 2009 2010 2011
Inpaticnt N/A N/A N/A
Qutpatient 17.967 29,744 40,586

Total 17,967 29,744 40,586

Medicaid (revenue)

Inpatient N/A N/A N/A
Outpatient $3,956,318 $6,740,875 $9,382,740
Total $3,956,318 $6.740.875 £9.382,740
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ATTACHMENT 44

CHARITY CARE

Pavor Mix Year | Year 2 Year3
Billed Govt Patients 29 57 59
Billed Commecrcial Paticnts 1 6 8
Billed Non Govt Low Patients 0 0 0
Total Paiienis 30 63 67
Charity Care Information Year | Year 2 Year 3
Net Revenue $488,520 | $2,259,980 | $3,127,080
Bad Debt / Charity Care $15,144 $70,059 $96,939
Ratio of Bad Debt to Net Revenue 0.03 0.03 0.03
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APPENDIX 1
PATIENT REFERRAL LETTERS
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June 8, 2012
VIA FEDERAL EXPRESS

Mr. Dale Galassie

Illinois Health Facilities & Services Review Board
525 W. Jefferson St., 2™ Floor

Springfield, IL 62761

Dear Mr. Galassie:

On behalf of Northeast Nephrology Consultants, Ltd., comprised of Drs. Ahmed, Gurfinchel,
Kravets, Mehta, and Nagarkatte, ] am writing this letter in support of the certificate of need
application for the proposed U.S. Renal Care Plainfield Dialysis facility.

Currently, we treat patients who receive their dialysis at the following facilities: Deerbrook Care
Center, Fairview Care Center of Joliet, Fresenius Medical Care Plainfield, Silver Cross Renal
Center — East, Silver Cross Renal Center — Morris, Silver Cross Renal Center — West or who
receive their dialysis through home modalities. Based on our records, we treated 283 ESRD
patients in 2011, 298 ESRD patients tn 2010, 266 ESRD patients in 2009, and 231 ESRD
patients through first quarter of 2012, as reported to the Renal Network. Included as Appendix
A is the patient count organized by year, patient zip code, and dialysis facility for the years 2009,
2010, 2011, and first quarter 2012. We anticipate that 15% of our existing hemodialysis patients
will not require in-center hemodialysis services within 1 year due to a change in health status.

With respect to new patients referred for dialysis, in the year 2011 we referred 86 patients for
hemodialysis. Included as Appendix B is a patient count by facility and zip code of newly
referred patients.

Based upon a review of our 631 Pre-ESRD patients that currently are in Chronic Kidney Disease
(CKD) Stages 3, 4 and 5, we anticipatc referring 54 patients to the proposed U.S. Renal Care
Plainficld Dialysis facility for dialysis in the two years following project completion, as
demonstrated in Appendix C. While these estimates are based on the zip code of the patient's
residence, we will continue to respect a patient's choice in their dialysis provider.

We respectfully ask the Board to approve the U.S. Renal Care Plainfield Dialysis CON
application to provide in center hemodialysis services for this growing ESRD population in Will
County. Thank you for your consideration.
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I attest to the fact that to the best of our knowledge, ali the information contained in this letter is
true and correct and that the projected referrals in this document were not used to support any
other CON application.

Respectfully,
Signature: Aj(p\l}/‘ [& w
Name: NALY T AWMED
Title: ™MD Q HIQ'T.NE‘@\
SUBSCRIBLED and SWORN TO before me
this/A day of 9"“& , 2012
Notary Public N
“OFFICIAL SEAL"
Carole N. Banas
Notary Public, State of lllinojs
DuPage County
§ My Commission Expires Aug, 27, 2014
APPENDIX 1
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I attest to the fact that to the best of our knowledge, all the information contained in this letter is
true and correct and that the projected referrals in this document were not used to support any

other CON application.

Respectfully,

Signature: d_'“(,\#l A/ 42 O\)V-J

Name: e £ AMMES

Title: MO LARTNER

SUBSCRIBED and SWORN TO before me

this/z4 day of ?M_ , 2012

Notary Public

“OFFICIAL SEAL" F
Carole N, Banas
Notary Public, State of Hlinois
DuPage County
My Commission Expires Aug, 27, 2014_}
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APPENDIX A
ESRD PATIENTS BY PATIENT ZIP CODE 2009 — FIRST QUARTER 2012

Year

_Physician

Paticnl Zip
Code

Decibrook Care
Center (Long-
Term Care
Faciliny)

Fairview
Care Center
of laljet

Fresenius
Medical Care
Eiainfield

Home
Peritoneal
Dialysis

Silver
Cross
Renal
Center -
East

Sitver
Cross
Renal
Center -
Morris

Silver
Cross
Renal
Center -
West

Grand
Total

L XION3ddv

6ee

2009

Dr. Ahmed

60104
00405
60404
60421
60423
60431
60432
60433
60435
60436
60441
60442
00446
60448
60450
60481
60586
GOR03Z
61301

[T
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e |Go |om

—_n O | B |

—_ =] [ =

i o T . ¥ T . TN [ S - Ry T R N i T R

| Dr. Ahmed Toial

30

38

Dr. Gurlinchel

60436
60451

Dr. Gurfinchel Toial

Dr. Kravets

60403
60404
60408
60410
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Year

Physician

Patient Zip
Code

Deerbrook Care
Center (Long-
Term Care
Facility)

Fairview
Care Center
of Joliet

Fresenius
Mecedical Care
Plainfield

Home
Peritoneal
Dialysis

Silver
Cross
Renal
Center
East

Silver |

Cross

Renal
Center -
Morris

Silver
Cross
Renal
Center -
West

Grand
Total

60416
60420
60421
60431
60432
60433
60434
6433

60436 |

60441
60442
60446
60447
60448
60450
60451
60464
60477
60481
60544
60586

60840 |

60920
61341
61354

Ed B A

s

£l o - lon e |k

Ll

Led

Dr. Kravets Total

32

22

Dr. Nagarkatte

60403
60404
60406
60407
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(R4

Silver Silver Silver
Deerbrook Care Cross Cross Cross

Center (Long- Fairview Fresenius Home Renal Renal Renal
Patient Zip Term Care Care Center | Medical Care Peritoneal Center - Center - Center - Grand
Year Phvsician N Code Facility) of foliet Plainfiecld Dialysis East AorTis West Total

60408
60421
60431 i
60432
60433
60434 |
60435
60436
60440 | | o o
60441 | 1 ! 1
60442 | L i _ N _ |
60446
60447 ] -
60448 T _ :
60451
6048} o | 1
60544 _ i

60386
60628 _ N i ]
_ 60638 | i 1
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tJ

Ly = A = O

—_—— s

W b —

(%}
s}
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[ W I 0% I
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Dr. Nagarkatte Total . 6 16 52 74

2009 Total ) o B a7 24 149 266

2010 | Dr. Ahmed 6043 ! ]

6044 I
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60416
60432 | ! 6
60433 9
60435 4 !
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Year

Phvsician

Patient Zip
Code

Deerbrook Care
Center (Long-
Tenn Care

Facility)

} XION3IddVY

e

Pr. Ahmed Tutal

60436
60439
60441
60442
60446
60448
60450
60451
60490
60586
60803

Fatrview
Care Center
of Joliet

Fresenius
Medical Care
Plainficld

Home
Peritoneat
Phalysis

Silver
Cross
Renal
Center -
East

Silver

Cross

Renal
Center -

Morris

Silver
Cross
Renal
Center -
West

Grand

Total

(]

b

B - o

[ NT——

29

Dr. Gurfinchel

60404
60432
60433
60435
60436
60440
60441
60451
60479

— = [t

_Dr. Gurfinchel Total

Dr. Kravets

6043
60403
60404
60408
60410
60416
60420
60421
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Year

Physician

b XIONIddv

eve

Paticnt Zip
Code_

Deerbrook Care
Center (Long-

Term Carc
Facilit)

Fairview

Care Center

of Jolict

Fresenius
Medical Care
Plainfield

Home
Peritoneali
Dialysis

Silver
Cross
Renal
Center
Tlzast

Silver

Cross

Renal
Center -
Mortris

Silver
Cross
Renal
Center
West

Grand
Total

60423
60431
60432
60433
60434
60435
60436
60439
60441
60442
60446
60447
60448
60450
60451
60464
60467
60474

60481 |

60491
60544
60586
60840
60920
6134]
61350
61354

2

el

b

[S I = )
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Dr. Kravets Total

28

3]
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Dr. Mehta

60403
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, Physician

Paticnt Zip

Code

Deerbrook Care
Center {Long-
Term Care
Facility)

Fairview
Care Center
of Iatiet

Fresenius
Medical Care
Plainfield

Home
critoneal
Dialysis

Silver
Cross
Renal
Center -
East

Silver
Cross
Renal
Center -
Morris

Silver
Cross
Renal
Center -
West

Grand
Toial

_Dr. Mchta Total
Dr. Nagarkatie

60433
60442
60450
60481

6040

6043

6049
60103
60404
60407
60416
60421
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60426
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60436 |
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60481
60544
60586
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Year

Physician

2010 Total

_Dr, Nagarkatte Total

Patient Zip
LCode
60628
61301

Deerbrook Care
Center (Long-
Term Care
iacility)

Fairview
Carc Conter
of Joliet

Fresenius
Medical Care
Plainfield

Home
Peritoncal
Dinlvsis

Sitver

Cross

Renal
Center -

ast

Silver

Cross

Renal
Center -
Morris

Silver
Cross
Renal
Center -
Woest

Grand
Total

27

47

83

2011
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Dr. Ahmed

| Dr. Ahmed Total

60403
60404
60410
60415

60431 |

60432
60433
60435

60436

60439
60441

60446 |

60447
601544
60586

60803

91

37

151
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Near

Physician

L XION3ddV

ave

_Dr. Gurfinchel Totai

Dr. Kravets

Patient Zip
Code

Deerbrook Care
Center (Long-
Term Carc

_ | Facility)

Fairview
Care Center
of iolict

60451
. 60477

60403

60404 |
60407 |

60408
60410

60420 |
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APPENDIX B
2011 IN CENTER HEMODIALYSIS REFERRALS BY DIALYSIS FACILITY, PHYSICIAN AND PATIENT ZIP CODE
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APPENDIX C
ANTICIPATED REFERRALS IN THE TWO YEARS FOLLOWING PROJECT COMPLETION

We anticipaic & {otal of 54 patient referals to ESRD to the U.S. Renal Care Plainfield Dialysis Facility in the two years following
project complction. We attribute these relerrals to the following zip codes and physicians.
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Driving Directions from [13400-14149] S Route 30, Plainfield, Illinois 60544 to 6604... Page 1 of 1

- Notes
mapq UeSt m@ Fresenius Medical Care of Oswego
Trip to:

6604 Mill Rd
Oswego, IL 60543
11.65 miles / 18 minutes
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A T

©2011 MapQuest, Inc. Use of directions and maps is subject to the MapQuest Terms of Use. We make no guarantee of
the accuracy of their content, road conditions or route usability. You assume all risk of use. View Terms of Use
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Driving Directions from [13400-14149] S Route 30, Plainfield, lilinois 60544 to 1300... Page 1 of |

- Notes
mapquest & Fox Valley Dialysis Center
Trip to;
1300 Waterford Dr

Aurora, L 60504-5502
8.45 miles / 11 minutes
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2011 MapQuest, Inc. Usa of directions and maps is subject to the MapQuest Terms of Use. We make no guarantee of
the accuracy of their content, road conditions or route usability. You assume all risk of use. View Terms of Use
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Driving Directions from [13400-14149] S Route 30, P]ainﬁeld,l Hinots 60544 to 2490... Page 1 of 1

mapquest >

Trip to:

24900 W Caton Farm Rd
Plainfield, IL 60586
5.99 miles / 10 minutes

Notes

I‘Fresenius Medical Center of Plainfield
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@201 MapQuest, Inc, Use of directions and maps is subject to the MapQuest Terms of Use. We make no guarantee of
the accuracy of their content, road conditions or route usability. You assume afl risk of use. View Terms of Use
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Driving Directions from [13400-14149] S Route 30, Plainfield, Hllinois 60544 to 1051... Page 1 of 1

. @ Notes = et Pt e s e
n |apque5t it ESiIver Cross Renal Center West :|
Trip to: ..

1051 Essington Rd
Joliet, 1L, 60435-2801
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©2011 MapQuest, Inc. Use of directions and maps is subject to the MapQuest Terms of Use. We make no guarantes of
the accuracy of their content, road conditions or route usability. You assume all risk of use. View Terms of Use
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Driving Directions from [13400-14149] S Route 30, Plainfield, Illinois 60544 to 2121...

mapquest m®
;r‘llp;‘cl) ZOneida St

Joliet, I. 60435-6544
12.79 miles / 22 minutes

Notes

Page 1 of 1

Sun Health
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©2011 MapQuest, Inc, Use of directions and maps is subject to the MapQuest Terms of Use. We make no guarantee of
the accuracy of their content, road conditions or route usability. You assume all risk of use. View Terms of Use
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Driving Directions from [13400-14149] S Route 30, Plainfield, Ulinois 60544 to 514 .., Page 1 of 1

. 5 Notes o o
mapqueSt m Fresenius Medicat Care of Naperville - North ﬂ
Trip to:

514 W 5th Ave
Naperville, IL 60563-2901 i
15.75 miles / 24 minutes
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©2011 MapQuest, Inc. Use of directions and maps is subject to the MapQuest Terms of Use. We make no guarantee of
the accuracy of their content, road conditicns or route usability. You assume all risk of use. View Terms of Use
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Driving Directions from [13400-14149] S Route 30, Plainfield, Ilinois 60544 to 2451... Page 1of1

. @ NOtes . Tt = EAETD AT U A, T ot R
mapCIUESt m Fresenius Medical Care Naperbrook
Trip to:

2451 S Washington St
Naperville, I 60565-5419
9.84 miles / 17 minutes
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©2011 MapQuest, Inc, Use of directions and maps is subjaect to the MapQuest Terms of Use. We make no guarantes of
the accuracy of thelr content, road conditions or route usability. You assume all risk of use. View Terms of Use
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Driving Directions from [13400-14149] S Route 30, Plainfield, Illinois 60544 to 396 ... Page 1 of 1

o @ g_gtes . .
maPQUESt i [USRC Bolingbrook Dialysis B
Trip to: :

396 Remington Blvd ;
Bolingbrook, IL 60440-4302 !
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©2011 MapQuest, Inc. Use of directions and maps is subject to the MapQuest Terms of Use. We make no guarantee of
the accuracy of their content, road conditions or route usability. You assurne all risk of use. View Terms of Use
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Driving Directions from [13400-14149] S Route 30, Plainfield, Illinois 60544 to 329 ... Page 1 of |

maDQUESt R  FMC Bolingbrook
Trip to:
329 Remington Blvd

Bolingbrook, IL 60440-5827
" 14.67 miles / 18 minutes
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©2011 MapQuest, Inc. Use of directions and rmaps is subject to the MapQuest Terms of Use. We make no guarantee of
the accuracy of their content, road conditions or route usability. You assume alf risk of use. View Terms of Use
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Driving Directions from [13400-14149] S Route 30, Plainfield, lllinois 60544 to 100 ... Page [ of |

mapquest m®
Trip to:

100 Spalding Dr
Naperville, IL 60540-6550
11.81 miles / 22 minutes
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©2011 MapQuest, inc. Use of directions and maps Is subfect to the MapQuest Terms of Use, We make no guarantes of
the accuracy of their content, road conditions or route usability. ¥ou assume all risk of use. View Terms of Use
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Driving Directions from [13400-14149] S Route 30, Plainfield, IHlinois 60544 to 721 ... Page 1.of |

Notes

maDQUESt' m@ Fresenius Medical Care Joliet
Trip to:

721 E Jackson St
Joliet, 1L 60432-2560
15.21 miles / 28 minutes
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